Public Document Pack

" monmouthshire

W sir fynwy
Neuadd y Sir County Hall
Y Rhadyr Rhadyr
Brynbuga Usk
NP15 1GA NP15 1GA
Tuesday, 28 June 2016

Dear Councillor
CABINET

You are requested to attend a Cabinet meeting to be held at Council Chamber - Council
Chamber on Wednesday, 6th July, 2016, at 2.00 pm.
AGENDA
1. Apologies for Absence
2. Declarations of Interest
3. To consider the following reports (Copies attached):

i. End of Year Performance 2015/16 on Whole Authority Safeguarding 1-18
Division/Wards Affected: All

Purpose: To provide Cabinet members with an overview of the
performance on whole authority safeguarding in 2015/16.

Author: Teresa Norris, Policy and Performance Officer

Contact Details: teresanorris@monmouthshire.gov.uk

ii. Proposed changes to the whole authority safeguarding approach 19 - 58
Division/Wards Affected: All

Purpose: To provide Cabinet members with proposed changes to the
whole authority safeguarding approach.

Author: Teresa Norris, Policy and Performance Officer

Contact Details: teresanorris@monmouthshire.gov.uk

iii. Annual Report of the Statutory Director of Social Services 59 - 116
Division/Wards Affected: All

Purpose: To provide Cabinet members with the Annual Report of the
Statutory Director of Social Services.

Author: Claire Marchant, Chief Officer, Social Care and Health



Vi.

Vil.

viii.

Contact Details: clairemarchant@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Welsh Language Monitoring Report 2015/16
Division/Wards Affected: All

Purpose: To ask Cabinet to note the contents of the attached Welsh
Language Monitoring Report 2015 — 2016 that has been produced in line
with the requirements of the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011.
The Monitoring report details our compliance with areas that the Welsh
Language Commissioner has specified.

Author: Alan Burkitt Policy Officer Equalities and Welsh Language

Contact Details: alanburkitt@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Proposals for the future provision of public car parks by MCC
Division/Wards Affected: All

Purpose: To seek approval to advertise and implement a new car park
order and implement other changes to the provision of public car parks
by Monmouthshire County Council.

Author: Roger Hoggins, Head of Operations, Amanda Perrin, Car Park
Manager.

Contact Details: rogerhoggins@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Management of commercial obstructions in the highway
Division/Wards Affected: All

Purpose: To seek approval for the adoption of a policy titled ‘Provision of
a Management of Commercial Obstruction on the Highway’. The Policy
will cover various occasions when a business wants to use the Public
Highway for reason of benefit to that company. It will bring a consistency
to the policy, both within MCC processes and the wider Local Authority
community by using a specific licensing and charging mechanism for any
organisation seeking to make use of the public highway.

Author: Steve Lane, Operations Manager, County Highways

Contact Details: stevelane@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Review of Earmarked Reserves
Division/Wards Affected: All

Purpose: To review the level of earmarked reserves held by the Council
at the end of 2015/16, the rationale for each reserve and the protocols for
using them.

Author: Joy Robson

Contact Details: joyrobson@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Welsh Church Fund Working Group

117 -
122

123 -
270

271 -
360

361 -
380

381 -



Division/Wards Affected: All 392

Purpose: The purpose of this report is to make recommendations to
Cabinet on the Schedule of Applications for the Welsh Church Fund
Working Group meeting 1 of the 2016/17 financial year held on the 16™
June 2016.

Author: David Jarrett — Senior Accountant — Central Finance Business
Support

Contact Details: davejarrett@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Yours sincerely,

Paul Matthews
Chief Executive



" monmouthshire
WP sir fynwy

CABINET PORTFOLIOS

Count I Partnership and

Counc)illlor Area of Responsibility External W%rking Ward

P.A. Fox Organisational Development WLGA Council Portskewett

(Leader) Whole Council Performance, Whole Council WLGA
Strategy Development, Corporate Services, Coordinating Board
Democracy. Local Service

Board

R.J.W. Greenland | Innovation, Enterprise & Leisure WLGA Council Devauden

(Deputy Leader) Innovation Agenda, Economic Development, Capital Region
Tourism, Social Enterprise, Leisure, Libraries & | Tourism
Culture, Information Technology, Information
Systems.

P.A.D. Hobson Community Development Community Safety | Larkfield

(Deputy Leader) Community Planning/Total Place, Equalities, Partnership
Area Working, Citizen Engagement, Public Equalities and
Relations, Sustainability, Parks & Open Diversity Group
Spaces, Community Safety.

E.J. Hacket Pain Schools and Learning Joint Education Wyesham
School Improvement, Pre-School Learning, Group (EAS)

Additional Learning Needs, Children’s WJEC
Disabilities, Families First, Youth Service, Adult
Education.

G. Burrows Social Care, Safeguarding & Health Gwent Frailty Mitchel
Adult Social Services including Integrated Board Troy
services, Learning disabilities, Mental Health. Older Persons
Children’s Services including Safeguarding, Strategy
Looked after Children, Youth Offending. Health | Partnership Group
and Wellbeing.

P. Murphy Resources Prosiect Gwrydd Caerwent
Accountancy, Internal Audit, Estates & Property | Wales Purchasing
Services, Procurement, Human Resources & Consortium
Training, Health & Safety.

S.B. Jones County Operations SEWTA Goytre
Highways, Transport, Traffic & Network Prosiect Gwyrdd Fawr

Management, Waste & Recycling, Engineering,
Landscapes, Flood Risk.




"1‘ monmouthshire

WP sir fynwy

Sustainable and Resilient Communities

Qutcomes we are working towards

Nobody Is Left Behind
e Older people are able to live their good life
e People have access to appropriate and affordable housing
e People have good access and mobility

People Are Confident, Capable and Involved
o People’s lives are not affected by alcohol and drug misuse
e Families are supported
o People feel safe

Our County Thrives
e Business and enterprise
e People have access to practical and flexible learning
e People protect and enhance the environment

Our priorities

e Schools

e Protection of vulnerable people

e Supporting Business and Job Creation

¢ Maintaining locally accessible services
Our Values

e Openness: we aspire to be open and honest to develop trusting relationships.

e Fairness: we aspire to provide fair choice, opportunities and experiences and
become an organisation built on mutual respect.

o Flexibility: we aspire to be flexible in our thinking and action to become an effective
and efficient organisation.

e Teamwork: we aspire to work together to share our successes and failures by
building on our strengths and supporting one another to achieve our goals.



" monmouthshire
WP sir fynwy

Cymunedau Cynaliadwy a Chryf

Canlyniadau y gweithiwn i'w cyflawni

Neb yn cael ei adael ar 6l
o Gall pobl hyn fyw bywyd da
o Pobl & mynediad i dai addas a fforddiadwy
o Pobl & mynediad a symudedd da

Pobl yn hyderus, galluog ac yn cymryd rhan
¢ Camddefnyddio alcohol a chyffuriau ddim yn effeithio ar fywydau pobl
e Teuluoedd yn cael eu cefnogi
e Pobl yn teimlo'n ddiogel

Ein sir yn ffynnu
e Busnes a menter
e Pobl & mynediad i ddysgu ymarferol a hyblyg
e Pobl yn diogelu ac yn cyfoethogi'r amgylchedd

Ein blaenoriaethau
e Ysgolion
e Diogelu pobl agored i niwed
o Cefnogi busnes a chreu swyddi
¢ Cynnal gwasanaethau sy’'n hygyrch yn lleol

Ein gwerthoedd

e Bod yn agored: anelwn fod yn agored ac onest i ddatblygu perthnasoedd
ymddiriedus

e Tegwch: anelwn ddarparu dewis teg, cyfleoedd a phrofiadau a dod yn sefydliad a
adeiladwyd ar barch un at y llall.

o Hyblygrwydd: anelwn fod yn hyblyg yn ein syniadau a'n gweithredoedd i ddod yn
sefydliad effeithlon ac effeithiol.

e Gwaith tim: anelwn gydweithio i rannu ein llwyddiannau a'n methiannau drwy
adeiladu ar ein cryfderau a chefnogi ein gilydd i gyflawni ein nodau.



Agenda ltem 3a

SUBJECT: End of Year Performance 2015/16 on Whole Authority
Safeguarding

MEETING: Cabinet

DATE: 6™ July 2016

DIVISIONS/WARDS AFFECTED: All

1 PURPOSE

1.1 To provide Cabinet members with an overview of the performance on whole
authority safeguarding in 2015/16.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That members consider this information in parallel with the separate report on
the proposed changes to the whole authority safeguarding approach.

2.2  That members seek assurance that the proposed changes will improve
performance on issues highlighted through this report.

3. KEY ISSUES

3.1  Since 2014 the Safeguarding Unit has provided six monthly performance
reports to the Children and Young People Select Committee, the Cabinet and
the Council using a trio of reports.

3.2  The Whole Authority Safeguarding Coordinating Group (WASCG) has
developed a proposal for future whole authority safeguarding which has been
provided to Council members in a separate report. The proposal constitutes
adopting a strategy supported by an activity programme and a scorecard of
measures which are to be steered through a newly constituted WASCG.

3.3  This proposal has been shared with Directorate Management Teams and has
been presented to the Senior Leadership Team. It has also been informally
presented to the Children and Young People and Adults Select Committees.
After the Cabinet meeting, the proposal will be presented for approval to the
Council on 28™ July 2016.

3.4 On Council’s approval of the proposal, future performance appraisals will be
facilitated through the scorecard of measures.

3.5 However, for consistency in completing a year end appraisal of performance
for 2015/16, the reporting format used to date has been continued. This is
based on nine prioritised objectives as in the Appendix and gives narrative
assessments and scores on performance for each. The scores given are
based on the whole authority self-assessment matrix.

1
Page 1



3.6

3.7

To consolidate the previous trio of performance information and in anticipating
the proposed approach, two of the supplementary report strands previously
reported have not been provided. Refer to paragraph 3.1.

A summary of the performance:

Important safeguarding processes and practices are embedded across the
authority and are supported by key services such as the Safeguarding
Unit, Peoples Services and the Volunteer Coordinator. These include safe

settings, safe recruitment and staff and volunteers safeguarding training

e However, some parts of the authority have embedded safeguarding
processes and practices better than others, including on those aspects
noted above and also, different levels of accountability are embedded

¢ In some service areas safeguarding does not appear to be understood and
or mainstreamed. This has been identified through the safeguarding
training and the SAFEs (internal quality assurance safeguarding audits on
services and settings)

e Other processes and practices need to be strengthened, for instance in

assuring safe practices and processes through contracted service

arrangements

3.8 A summary of the scores:
The six monthly performance scores on the nine prioritised objectives from

2014 to 2016 are given in the table below:

Objective

Score at
April
2014

Score at
September

2014

Score at
April
2015

Score at
September
2015

Score at
April
2016

1.

Safeguarding children and young
people is understood as
‘everyone’s responsibility

N/A

2.

Monmouthshire’s Safeguarding
and Child Protection Policy is
embedded across all settings and
services

3.

Through our Audit Framework we
are assured that all settings and
services meet their roles and
responsibilities in safeguarding
/child protection

3/4

This objective
has been
ssessed as part
of objective 2

4.

Safe recruitment and safe work
force practices

are operating effectively and
embedded across the

2
Page 2




Objective

Score at
April
2014

Score at
September

2014

Score at
April
2015

Score at
September
2015

Score at
April
2016

authority.

5.

All workers and volunteers in
contact with children and families
are trained at the appropriate level

6.

There is a system in place that
identifies and addresses any
professional allegations or
concerns about individuals who
may pose a risk.

7.

We are well-informed about the
issues that compromise the safety
and welfare of children and /or
potentially expose them to harm
through abuse and neglect and can
demonstrate how we respond to
and reduce areas of need.

8.

We operate best safeguarding
practices and can demonstrate
how we identify and address areas
where improvement is needed.

9.

Engagement with children and
young people is at the heart of our
safeguarding and child protection
activity.

4. REASONS

To ensure that:

4.1  Safeguarding performance is kept under review and that intervention is

initiated as necessary.

4.2 Chief Officers and Council members are held to account and also, can hold

others to account in assuring safeguarding processes and practices.

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

There are no resource implications in relation to the report.

3
Page 3




10.

WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS IMPLICATIONS
(INCORPORATING EQUALITIES, SUSTAINABILITY, SAFEGUARDING
AND CORPORATE PARENTING)

The report gives a performance appraisal. There are no Wellbeing of Future
Generations Implications and in this context, an assessment form is not
provided.

CONSULTEES:

The performance appraisal has been signed off through the Whole Authority
Safeguarding Coordinating Group and the Senior Leadership Team.

BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Monmouthshire County Council Safeguarding Policy

The trio of safeguarding reports provided since 2014

The Internal Audit Service report on safeguarding 2015

The Wales Audit Office study on safeguarding 2015

The Ellis Williams review on safeguarding 2015 (former Rhondda Cynon Taff
Chief Officer for Social Services)

The Estyn Inspection report 2016

The Safeguarding Unit service plan 2015/16 (incorporating responses to the
CSSIW feedback on performance 2014 and 2015)

National performance indicators 2015/16

AUTHOR:
Teresa Norris, Policy and Performance Officer
CONTACT DETAILS:

E-mail: teresanorris@monmouthshire.gov.uk
Telephone: 01633 644063 / 07771387935

4
Page 4


mailto:teresanorris@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Appendix: Performance assessment at year end 2015/16 on the prioritised whole
authority safeguarding objectives

1. The cornerstones for authority wide improvements on safeguarding were set in 2014 as
in the diagram below:

Safeguarding & Child A Safe & Suitable Workforce
Protection policy

A culture of strong leadership and 'ownership' of
safeguarding across all directorates and service areas

Responding to children’s

_ needs and the child’s voice
A quality assurance

framework and development

planning

2. Nine key objectives were set to underpin these cornerstones. These are picked up in
Table 1 with scores given since 2014 on the performance achieved. These scores have
been based on the whole authority self-evaluation scoring matrix shown in Table 3.

3. The performance information in Table 1 encapsulates that already reported from 2014 to
the mid-year point 2015/16 and in addition, gives a new appraisal for the whole year
2015/16. The main evidence used for previous reporting was drawn from the Estyn
inspection 2012 to 2015, the CSSIW inspection 2014 with further feedback given in
2015, the Safeguarding Unit service plan and prescribed information captured on
particular service functions, for instance on child protection, recruitment and from youth
surveys.

4. However, new information on performance was received during the year 2015/16 which
has therefore been taken into account in arriving at the whole year appraisal. This is
given in Table 2. The references are Monmouthshire’s Internal Audit Service report
(published 2016), the Wales Audit Office study of safeguarding across Greater Gwent
authorities and the Ellis Williams report on safeguarding in Monmouthshire. All were
undertaken in 2015. In light of these, end of year scores for 2015/16 in some cases are
lower than scores previously reported.

5. The nine objectives are very broad and the view of the Whole Authority Safeguarding
Coordinating Group is that the evidence previously used to assess performance against
them has been inconclusive to fully substantiate the scores given. This recognition has
contributed to prompt a new proposal on whole authority safeguarding that will refocus
safeguarding objectives and strengthen how we monitor and measure performance
going forward.

Page 5



6. Currently the authority is implementing the new Social Services and Wellbeing Act
(Wales) 2014 with an associated national outcomes framework and so this will be

interfaced with the new whole authority safeguarding framework as far as practicable.

A number of links to performance information used for this report are given below.

2015/16 half year report to Cabinet November 2015

Safequarding Service Plan 2015/18

Ellis Williams Review of Safeqguarding in MCC 2015

Internal Audit Report January 2016

Table 1: Scores from April 2014 to the end of year 2015

There is a system in place that identifies and addresses
any professional allegations or concerns about
individuals who may pose a risk.

Objective Score at Score at Score at Score at Score at
April September | April September | April
2014 2014 2015 2015 2016
1. N/A 4 5 5 4
Safeguarding children and young people is
understood as ‘everyone’s responsibility
2. 4 4 4 4 4
Monmouthshire’s Safeguarding and Child
Protection Policy is embedded across all settings and
services
3. 3/4 4 4 4 This objective
Through our Audit Framework we are assured has been
that all settings and services meet their roles dssessed as part
and responsibilities in safeguarding /child of objective 2
protection
4. 2 3 4 4 4
Safe recruitment and safe work force practices
are operating effectively and embedded across
the authority.
5. 5 5 5 5 4
All workers and volunteers in contact with
children and families are trained at the
appropriate level
6. 4 5 5 5 4

Page 6



http://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/s1870/SafeguardingStrategicSept2015.pdf
http://hub/corporatedocs/Service%20Improvement%20Plans%201516/Safeguarding.docx
file://///nscorp1/lll/Performance%20Management/Best%20Value/Corporate%20Safeguarding%20Group/Ellis%20Williams%20Review%20of%20Safeguarding%20in%20MCC%202015.pdf
file://///nscorp1/lll/Performance%20Management/Best%20Value/Corporate%20Safeguarding%20Group/Internal%20Audit%20Report%20January%202016%20with%20TN%20notes.doc.pdf

Objective

Score at
April
2014

Score at
September

2014

Score at
April
2015

Score at
September
2015

Score at
April
2016

7.

We are well-informed about the issues that
compromise the safety and welfare of children and /or
potentially expose them to harm through abuse and
neglect and can demonstrate how we respond to and
reduce areas of need.

8.

We operate best safeguarding practices and can
demonstrate how we identify and address areas where
improvement is needed.

9.

Engagement with children and young people is
at the heart of our safeguarding and child
protection activity.

Page 7




Table 2: Performance for the year 2015/2016:

Safeguarding children
and young people is
understood as
‘everyone’s
responsibility

g abed

Authority
Safeguarding
Coordinating Group
WASCG)

processes and practices are
embedded across the
Quthority, supported by key
services e.g. the
Safeguarding Unit, Peoples
Services and the Volunteer
Coordinator. These include
on recruitment and staff
training, including for
volunteers.

The level of progress on
Wwhole authority
safeguarding influenced an
Estyn decision to release the
Quthority from Special
Measures early in 2016.

In building on this, services
will further embed and
dssure safeguarding within
service and workforce
planning through measures
incorporated into service

plans as standard.

Safeguarding Coordinating
Group review of whole
uthority safeguarding in
2016 to close the gap in
weaknesses identified out of
recent reviews and widen
the agenda to Adult
safeguarding.

A judgement of “Good” out
of the Estyn Inspection
reported in early 2016 —
related to children and
young people particularly

Safeguarding practices stack
well in some aspects against
the Wales Audit Office study
lon good practice / poor
performance 2015

embedded safeguarding better
than others, for instance, assuring
volunteers used across all service
areas and on other aspects of
recruitment.

There are weaknesses in
ccountability and practices where
safeguarding does not appear to
be understood and / or
mainstreamed e.g. assuring
safeguarding through contracted
service arrangements.

iAlso, the Ellis Williams review
2015 and even more particularly
the Internal Audit Service report
2016 identified a number of key
ctivities that need to be
improved across MCC services.

Objective Score at Officer responsible | What is working well Evidence used to What is not in place / not Evidence used to
April for the information substantiate success working effectively and substantiate weakness
2016 needs to improve

1 4 Teresa Norris, Whole Overall, important The Whole Authority Some parts of the authority have [The trio of reports to SLT

and Cabinet from 2014
to the half year 2016

The Ellis Williams review
015

The Internal Audit
Service report 2016

The Wales Audit Office
study and appendix on
sood practice / poor
performance 2015




Objective Score at Officer responsible What is working well Evidence used to What is not in place / not Evidence used to
April for the information substantiate success working effectively and substantiate weakness
2016 needs to improve

2. 4 Heather Heaney, IMCC has had a Safeguarding The policy is accessible and is It cannot be confirmed that all Training has identified

Monmouthshire’s
Safeguarding and Child
Protection Policy is
embedded across all
settings and services

6 obed

Liaison Officer for
Safeguarding in
Education

Statements 2 and 3
are linked to the
same objective

and Child protection Policy
since 2012 which was
subsequently reviewed in
P014. Itis now due for are-
review. It embeds
safeguarding practice such
s safe recruitment and
training. It also covers the
Safeguarding Audit
Framework for Evaluation
SAFE).

All settings that are
supported are asked to be
ware of the MCC policy.

The SAFE process and
programme is a model of
sood practice shared
regionally and nationally.

The authority’s services and
settings, including schools,
Leisure Services, Early Years
settings and the Youth
Service complete the SAFE

every 2 years.

included in the induction day
attended by all new staff. It
is also included in the Level 1
training and forms a key
element in the current
Safeguarding Team service
plan.

Settings have completed a SAFE
for the second time. The
Safeguarding Unit pull out
themes and completes a report
for each group e.g. schools, early
years settings TLC etc. and each
setting receives an action plan to
work towards which is RAG
rated. The Unit also use the
SAFE information in discussions
with settings in the event of
safeguarding issues, to
strengthen any particular areas
or standards.

staff have seen the
Safeguarding and Child
Protection Policy. Itis not
possible to assess whether “all
settings and services” have
embedded the policy but only
that services have had
lopportunity to embed it. The
policy is due for review.

\We know from MCC's Internal
IAudit report that the policy is
not working robustly across
the authority e.g. safe
recruitment practices which is
dlso covered in statement 4.

that some staff are not
bware of the
Safeguarding and Child
Protection Policy

The Internal Audit
Service report 2016
raised issues of concern




Objective Score at Officer responsible What is working well Evidence used to What is not in place / not Evidence used to
April for the information substantiate success working effectively and substantiate weakness
2016 needs to improve
3. N/A Heather Heaney, This objective has been N/A \We need to strengthen application|N/A
Through our Audit Liaison Officer for dssessed as part of objective 2. to safeguarding in some service
Framework we are Safeguarding in ettings.
assured Education
that all settings We need to ensure in a more
d ; Statements 2 and 3 are
andservices : robust way how contracted
meet their linked to the same \
roles and objective services comply with safeguarding
responsibilities processes and practices.
in safeguarding
/child
prolgction
4. 4 Sally Thomas, Interim HR JAn IT system is available for Employee Services have The Internal Audit Service An audit carried out once a
Sa‘ﬁ%recruitment and Manager managers to track all pre- completed a full data cleanse for [provided a report on year on school based staff
safpwork force employment checks and a1l workers in relation to pre- safeg'uardmg processes and identifies any concerns.
pracdices practices and made a number

are operating
effectively and
embedded
across the
authority.

workers are not permitted to
commence work without the
necessary pre-employment
checks in place.

Joint training on safe
recruitment has been delivered
by People Services HR and the
Safeguarding Unit to all head-
teachers and senior leaders in
schools, governors and also, to
managers across the full range
of authority service areas.
Training has been on-going
Since 2014.

employments checks. On a
monthly basis the People
Services Admin Team extract
specific data reports on DBS
checks across the organisation
which they provide to the
Safeguarding Unit, relevant chief
officers, People Services HR and
the directorate safeguarding
champions for scrutiny and
dction as necessary.

A safe recruitment audit across
schools is undertaken every

of recommendations in
lanuary 2016 including on safe
recruitment. For instance the
udit showed there were gaps
in DBS checks and gaps in
references obtained before
employment.

The audit report also showed
the recruitment of volunteers
needed to be tightened,
including in identifying the
numbers in situ and the status
of completeness of safe
volunteers overall. This has
been picked up in entry 5.

People Services system
reports to chief officers, the
Safeguarding Unit and school
heads have identified gaps in
DBS checks and other
recruitment requirements.

The Internal Audit Service
report 2016 identified
weaknesses in recruitment
practices and processes.




Objective Score at Officer responsible What is working well Evidence used to What is not in place / not Evidence used to
April for the information substantiate success working effectively and substantiate weakness
2016 needs to improve
Safeguarding champions are year. The Internal Audit Service
established in each directorate report also recommended on
to raise awareness on Employee Services assess recruitment practices carried
safeguarding, guide in that In Children and Young out by partners and
dddressing issues and in People Services and in contracted services, where
ensuring directorates’ schools the rate of this is an area of uncertainty in
ownership of safeguarding. Alsojcompliance is around 99%. as much as the authority does
they act as a key link between [The assessments for the not have a robust system with
People Services, the other directorates needs to ichecks in place in all cases to
Safeguarding Unit and be confirmed. verify safeguarding
directorates. recruitment through these
People Services HR has The I.nternal A.u.clit Service hvenues.
U developed and implemented a provided spea.flc .
Q recommendations which
«Q Manager/Head-teacher have been taken on board
® suide/workflow for the for the academic year
Ilj recruitment process. 2015/16. Internal Audit
Additionally, there is a range of [officers assessed a sample of
information to provide 20 files against a new starter
. . ichecklist. Schools were
continued assistance for . .
igiven a report on the issues
managers on the Hub. identified and a re-check
confirmed the discrepancies
People Services HR link with had been dealt with.
Owen Wilce on a regular basis in
supporting the Volunteering
sector.
5. 4 Owen Wilce, \We have made strides in 125 staff have used the \We still need to identify the Monmouthshire’s
All workers and \Volunteer @ssuring volunteers used vVolunteering toolkit making number of volunteers who Internal Audit Service

volunteers in contact
with

Coordinating Officer

across MCC services. by
producing a Volunteer

3,271 website visits — it is
currently going through the

support children, young
people and vulnerable adults

report 2016



http://corphub/initiatives/VolunteersToolkit/SitePages/Home.aspx

Objective Score at Officer responsible What is working well Evidence used to What is not in place / not Evidence used to
April for the information substantiate success working effectively and substantiate weakness
2016 needs to improve

children and Toolkit that provides a political process for s part of their role and in line

families are framework and guidance Qpproval. with this, identify the level of

trained at the
appropriate level

2T obed

checklist on the
requirements that
volunteers need to satisfy.
This can be accessed
through a central point.

\We have formed a
volunteer network to share
best practice and reinforce
the safe recruitment
principles provided in the
toolkit.

\We are delivering “Leading
\Volunteers” training to all
staff in volunteer supporting
roles to ensure for instance,
safe recruitment and
Qppropriate levels of
safeguarding training. (as in
SSWA 139).

Role profiles are being
developed for volunteers to
outline what is needed.

Safeguarding Level 1
training has been delivered
to volunteers across the
county and is available on a

bi-monthly schedule to instil

Two courses have been run

giving 25 staff training across
the authority. 87 volunteers
have been trained at Level 1.
Further courses are planned.

All departments supporting
volunteers are currently
developing role profiles.

support that is needed. We
will then be able to assess how
far we meet the requirements
around volunteers.

AN electronic system for
volunteer management is
under development to include
safe recruitment and
safeguarding training. Once
this is up and running we will
have a clear picture across the
county on volunteers.

The Internal Audit report 2016
highlighted the need for an
effective Monmouthshire
database on volunteers.



http://corphub/initiatives/VolunteersToolkit/SitePages/Home.aspx

Objective Score at Officer responsible What is working well Evidence used to What is not in place / not Evidence used to
April for the information substantiate success working effectively and substantiate weakness
2016 needs to improve
safeguarding practice.
6. 4 Kelly Turner, Child \We have strengthened our work[The increase in numbers of Police resource constraints trigger [WASCG monitoring to ensure

There is a system in
place that identifies
and addresses any
professional
allegations or
concerns about
individuals who may
pose a risk.

¢T obed

Protection Coordinator /
Jo Sansom, Business
support Officer

in addressing professional
bllegations through updated
regional guidance at the end of
2015. To accompany this, Level
D ‘Responding to Concerns or
Allegations of Abuse Made
gainst Adults Who Work with
Children or Young People’
training has been launched and
has led to successful training for
multi-agency colleagues. There
are plans to roll this out on a
regular basis.

In the child protection field
specifically, there is a raised
wareness on roles in relation
to safeguarding and among
multi-agency colleagues
facilitated via advice and
support on conduct and on the
threshold of statutory
intervention.

There is increased sharing of
information facilitated by
Safeguarding leads across all

regions meeting on a bi-monthly

professional strategy meetings
highlights that multi-agency
colleagues are using the practice
guidance.

In the child protection field team
managers and senior
practitioners now liaise more
iclosely with the Child Protection
ICo-ordinator to discuss specific
cases / issues and Professional
Strategy meetings now better
recognise prescribed time-
scales.

Closer working relationships
have developed between
icolleagues as evidenced through
more regular contact. Also,
relevant professionals are
utomatically invited to
meetings and bi-monthly
meetings are planned on the
work plans agreed by SEWSCB.

delays and drift in dealing with
cases which poses risk to progress
lon agreed actions.

The figures show that from 1st
October 2015 to 31st March 2016
there have been 31 new incidents
of professional allegations. This
compares with 20 incidents in the
previous year indicating that the
referral rate for professional
bllegations has gone up.

Qssurance work to address
Wweaknesses in processes and
practices.

\We are completing internal quality

strategic and operational
links with regional and local
services meet need. Our
Qim in the next phase will be
to develop preventative
strategies.




Objective Score at Officer responsible What is working well Evidence used to What is not in place / not Evidence used to
April for the information substantiate success working effectively and substantiate weakness
2016 needs to improve
basis to identify regional themes
and to exchange information.
\We have improved how we
track and review cases still open
or closed through monthly
Safeguarding meetings.
7. 4 Sian Schofield / Matthew |Our awareness is facilitated During 2015/16 Children’s We are well informed, but the National performance

We are well-informed
about the issues that
compromise the
safdg) and welfare of
chitfren and /or
potpntially expose
thgm to harm through
abd®e and neglect and
can demonstrate how
we respond to and
reduce areas of need

Gatehouse, Policy &
Performance Unit

through performance indicators
and also through other avenues
such as the SAFE audits and via
schools.

In relation to data intelligence,
the Children in Need Census for
2014/15 (latest available) tells
us that domestic abuse is the
most commonly observed issue
affecting parenting capacity
within Monmouthshire, as
presented in 26% of cases.
Following this, parental
substance misuse and mental
health are the next key issues.
The most common reason for
registration is emotional abuse
which includes domestic
Qbuse).

Services took 3,924 contacts, of
which 465 progressed to referral
(11.9%). 91 of the referrals
progressed to a strategy
discussion (the start of a child
protection investigation).

As a result, an initial (or pre-
birth) child protection
conference was held for 73
ichildren. Following the initial
conference, 66 children were
registered during the year.

At the 31st March 2016, 33
ichildren were on
Monmouthshire’s child
protection register. This is low as
shown in the last 4 year trend.

SAFE audit results.

number of looked after children is

at the 31st March 2016. This
might suggest children are
becoming looked after before
bttempting to manage and
improve the family circumstances
of those on the child protection
register. We need to look at this
through our internal quality
Qssurance work.

particularly high in 2015/16 at 129

indicators and Children’s
Services returns

WASCG assessments as a
result of internal quality
assurance work




Objective Score at Officer responsible What is working well Evidence used to What is not in place / not Evidence used to
April for the information substantiate success working effectively and substantiate weakness
2016 needs to improve

8. 3 Sian Schofield / Matthew [Continuous monitoring and National performance In the wider whole authority National performance

We operate best
safeguarding practices
and can demonstrate
how we identify and
address areas where
improvement is
needed.

GT obed

Gatehouse Policy &
Performance Unit /
Teresa Norris, WASCG

review of data on safeguarding
and child protection
particularly, provides the
necessary snap-shot intelligence
to know what is working and
what isn’t.

From the data we can see that
important child protection is
taken:

e 100% of children on the
child protection register are
allocated a named social
worker (SCC/013ai).

During 2015/16:

e 70.5% of initial assessments

were completed within 7

working days (SCC/042a)

e 80.0% of core assessments

were completed within 35

working days (SCC/043a).

e 87.7% of initial child

protection conferences

were held within 15

working days of the

strategy discussion

(scc/o14)

e Following registration,

88.7% of initial core groups

were held with 10 working

days of the initial

indicators and Children’s
Services returns

The WASCG assessment
based on Monmouthshire’s
Internal Audit Service report
2016, the Wales Audit Office
study 2015 and the Ellis
\Williams report 2015

safeguarding sense, the three
reports noted as evidence and the
SAFE audits demonstrate some of
the means we have available in
dssessing performance on whole
Quthority safeguarding. Through
these we have identified areas
that could be improved, for
instance on recruitment, on
volunteers and on contracted
services.

In relation to child protection,
17.8% of children had a re-referral
within 12 months (SCC/010) even
though this is within the CSSIW’s
suggested rate of 12-30%. 18.2%
representing 12 out of 66 children
registered in the year had been
previously registered.

Internal quality assurance work
has identified developmental
issues in child protection
procedures within Children's
Services which is being addressed.

indicators and Children’s
Services returns

WASCG assessment
based on
Monmouthshire’s
Internal Audit Service
report 2016, the Wales
Audit Office study 2015
and the Ellis Williams
report 2015,

internal quality
ssurance work

SAFE audit




Objective

Score at
April
2016

Officer responsible
for the information

What is working well

Evidence used to
substantiate success

What is not in place / not
working effectively and
needs to improve

Evidence used to
substantiate weakness

conference (SCC/015)

e 93.1% of child protection
reviews were held on time
(scc/034)

The WASCG have carried out an
dssessment based on three
significant reports completed
between 2015 and 2016 in
order to take the safeguarding
bgenda forward.

9. U

Erlggement with
chif@ren and young
pepple is

at € heart of our
safeguarding and
child protection
activity.

Heather Heaney,
Heather Heaney,
Liaison Officer for
Safeguarding in
Education / Tracy
Thomas, Youth
Service manager

Analysis of the Safeguarding
survey undertaken in July 2015
has informed an action plan
from Dec 2015 to March 2017
with regular reviews to ensure
concerns raised by young
people are addressed. At March
2017 a new survey will be
carried out and new actions
incorporated.

Year 8 pupils in Monmouthshire
attended a conference in
January 2016 to discuss issues
that affect them and this has
been used to inform the work
plan for the South East Wales

Safeguarding Children Board.

The action plan:

@j

Monmouthshire
Survey outcome actic

The report and also, follow up
meetings to ensure themes are
actioned in 2016.

Report on
consultations with yor

The action plan is not yet agreed
and circulated for implementation
and so not all areas been
addressed to date. However, the
Youth Service and Safeguarding
Unit anticipate all actions will be
addressed by March 2017.

We need to ensure that key
actions out of the plan are
factored into any other relevant
strategies and into relevant
teams’ service plans.

Lack of progress in agreeing
and delivering on the action
plan.




Table 3: The whole authority self-evaluation matrix:

Level 6 Excellent

Excellent or outstanding

Level 5 Very Good

Good — Major strengths

Level 4 Good

Important strengths with some areas for
improvement

Level 3 Adequate

Strengths just outweigh weaknesses

Level 2 Weak

Important weaknesses

Level 1 Unsatisfactory

Major weakness

Page 17




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3b

SUBJECT: Proposed changes to the whole authority safeguarding
approach

MEETING: Cabinet

DATE: 6" June 2016

DIVISIONS/WARDS AFFECTED: All

11

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

PURPOSE

To provide Cabinet members with proposed changes to the whole authority
safeguarding approach.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The report recommends that members approve the proposed changes to:

¢ Introduce a Safeguarding Strategy — Appendix 1.

e Underpin the strategy with a programme of three distinct elements
covering: Corporate, Children and Young People and Adults. Appendix 2.

e Change the terms of reference and representation of the Whole Authority
Safeguarding Coordination Group - Appendix 3

e Discontinue the current performance report mechanism and replace it with
a scorecard of key safeguarding measures to monitor performance.

KEY ISSUES

The authority has made huge progress within the past three years on assuring
safeguarding in the authority. In the main, this has been in response to
Monmouthshire having been placed in Estyn Special Measures where
Safeguarding was a first of six key recommendations.

The authority has been released from Special Measures since the start of the
year. This has given an opportunity to reflect on the framework in place
around safeguarding and consider what the authority needs in going forward

The authority must implement the new Social Services and Wellbeing Act
(Wales) 2014 and as an integral part of this, the Safeguarding agenda needs
to be widened to incorporate Adults.

There needs to be an escalated focus on safeguarding practices applied by
agencies and volunteers that the authority works with and by commissioned
providers.

Important reviews have been undertaken to assess the current safeguarding
framework and the learning gleaned has contributed to taking stock of the
current position and assessing what is needed going forward. These reviews
are:

1
Page 19



3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

e A report completed by the Wales Audit Office on safeguarding across
the greater Gwent authorities in 2015

e Areport carried out by Ellis Williams on Safeguarding in
Monmouthshire in 2015 — the former Rhondda Cynon Taff Social
Services chief officer

e A Monmouthshire Internal Audit Service report on safeguarding carried
out in 2015 and presented in January 2016

The above reports are identified as sources of evidence in the programme of
activities that underpins the strategy and in this context reflect the issues
picked up through them.

Reflection by the Whole Authority Safeguarding Coordinating Group has led
to the following considerations:

e The composition and terms of reference of the current Whole Authority
Safeguarding Coordinating Group are no longer appropriate to drive the
agenda forward and embed accountability

e The authority needs to develop the level of leadership, accountability,
monitoring and review of safeguarding across the authority’s services and
also within services delivered by external providers

e Adult safeguarding needs to be integrated into the whole authority
approach

e Safeguarding needs to be seen as distinct from the specific function of
child protection to avoid confusion

e A need to develop the authority’s approach to safeguarding in line with the
new Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014

¢ A need to mainstream safeguarding into service planning and decision
making across the authority

This proposal has been shared with Directorate Management Teams and has
been presented to the Senior Leadership Team. It has also been informally
presented to the Children and Young People and Adults Select Committees.
After Cabinet, this proposal will be presented to the Council on 28™ July for
approval.

REASONS

To ensure that:

Safeguarding across the authority is strategic and robust, is integral to all
decisions, is part of everyday operations and that Chief Officers and Council

members are robustly held to account.

Services commissioned through other providers apply robust safeguarding
practices and procedures.

2
Page 20



10.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

It is not envisaged that additional resources will be needed to support the
changes proposed. As now, responsibility will be absorbed within day to day
business activities.

WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS IMPLICATIONS
(INCORPORATING EQUALITIES, SUSTAINABILITY, SAFEGUARDING
AND CORPORATE PARENTING)

This proposal sets out to increase the level of safeguarding compliance. An
evaluation form is in Appendix 4.

CONSULTEES:

The Whole Authority Safeguarding Coordinating Group

All Directorate Management Teams

The Senior Leadership Team

The Children and Young People and Adults Select Committees
The Cabinet

Views received have been considered in the final proposal.
BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Monmouthshire County Council Safeguarding Policy

The current constitution and terms of reference of the Whole Authority
Safeguarding Coordinating Group

The Internal Audit Service report on safeguarding 2015

The Wales Audit Office study on safeguarding 2015

The Ellis Williams report on safeguarding 2015

AUTHOR:
Teresa Norris, Policy and Performance Officer
CONTACT DETAILS:

E-mail: teresanorris@monmouthshire.gov.uk
Telephone: 01633 644063 / 07771387935

3
Page 21


mailto:teresanorris@monmouthshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



@ monmouthshire
\JB sir fynwy

Appendix 1:

Monmouthshire County Council Safeguarding Strategy April 2016

Contents
1. What the strategy sets out to achieve page 2
2. The values and principles page 2
3. The authority’s current performance on safeguarding page 3
4. Theintention and the gaps page 3
5. Delivering the intention and filling the gaps page 4
6. Governance and accountability for safeguarding within the authority page 4
7. Governance and accountability for safeguarding by others page 4
8. Key safeguarding designations across the council page 5
9. What do to if you have a concern page 6
10. other legislation, policies and guidance associated page 6
with the Safeguarding Strategy
11. Appendix on governance arrangements page 7
12. Appendix on Related Legislation, policy and guidance page 14

1
Page 23



1.

The Strategy

What the Safeguarding Strategy sets out to achieve

The Safeguarding strategy has been put in place to ensure that responsibility for
safeguarding is adopted by everyone both within the authority and where we deliver
services with others. In this sense the strategy aims to clarify the levels of
accountability that everyone must take to assure how we safeguard others.

The second purpose of the strategy is to inform what we must do if we have a
safeguarding concern.

The values and principles:

In a policy context, this strategy gives foundation to Monmouthshire’s overarching
strategy; the Single Integrated Plan 2013 — 17 (which will be replaced from 2018 by
Monmouthshire’s Wellbeing Plan). It also underpins two of the Council’s four priorities
of Supporting Vulnerable People and Supporting Education and Schools. These are a
continuous focus in the Improvement Objectives set out in the Council’s Improvement
Plan. The current plan is for 2016-17. In continuing this alignment, safeguarding is a
foremost priority of all chief officer plans and mainstreams through each team service
plan.

In terms of legislative compliance, local authorities have a statutory duty to put
safeguarding arrangements in place including for strategic planning, in giving support
and guidance for all providers of relevant services in its area and in a direct provision of
some services. In this sense local authorities have a duty to work in partnership with
others to secure the safeguarding and wellbeing of children and adults in their area,
including working with the Local Safeguarding Boards. For Monmouthshire, this means
the separate regional boards in place for children and young people and for adults.

In line with this, employees and volunteers who work with children and with adults have
specific safeguarding duties and responsibilities and authorities must ensure that
adequate checks are in place to know that employees and volunteers are of good
character. In this same context, authorities must also ensure there are processes in
place to monitor and manage working practices and to investigate and record
safeguarding allegations made against staff, teachers, support staff and volunteers.

Additionally, members, Chief Executives and senior managers need to ensure that they
have proper oversight of the safeguarding arrangements in place across the authority.
They should actively seek and gain assurance that arrangements are operating
effectively, as without this they are unable to demonstrate that they have discharged
their statutory obligation on safeguarding.

This strategy and the programme of activities that supports it sets out how these
requirements will be achieved.

2
Page 24



The authority’s current performance on safeguarding

In addition to the work done to align safeguarding to the Council’s policies and the
Improvement framework, work done over the past three years has given the authority
and therefore Monmouthshire as a county, a strong foundation for safeguarding that
we can build on. To date, additional work undertaken has been on developing a
safeguarding policy, firming up practices of key concern and trying to embed a culture
of safeguarding so it is everyone’s responsibility. This means in our work with partners
and through other agencies too. This has directed activities such as safer recruitment,
safeguarding training, auditing safety in the settings used for children and young people
and ensuring robust safeguarding processes and practices across a range of council and
agency run support. A further focus has been on working with volunteers to embed
safeguarding behaviour and practice.

Impact from this work is clearly seen and in the children and young people context
particularly has contributed demonstrably to removing the authority from Estyn Special
Measures early in 2016.

The intention: where we want to be on safeguarding and the current gaps in
performance

The Council wants to ensure safeguarding captures the needs of children, young people
and adults and wants to embed safeguarding as everyone’s responsibility; officers,
agency workers, volunteers, elected members and partners. Also, the council wants to
more closely make a tie between safeguarding and the issues of domestic abuse and of
people radicalisation.

The authority recognises there are gaps between this vison and the situation that exists
at this time, for instance, the need to bring adults more cohesively into the whole
authority safeguarding agenda and within that, tie a safeguarding culture around adults
and children more closely together. Also, the need to respond to the direction outlined
in the new Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014 which means in many ways
supporting safeguarding in a much broader context than previously and safeguarding
becoming more integrated for children, young people and adults.

However, gaps have been highlighted through other references; work such as a
Monmouthshire Internal Audit Service review of safeguarding and a commissioned
study of Monmouthshire’s safeguarding carried out by Ellis Williams, a former chief
officer for Social Services in a neighbouring authority. In broad brush these uncovered
the need to improve leadership and accountability at all levels of the authority, the
need to mainstream safeguarding through council policies, decision making, service
planning and operational delivery, the need to assure a safe workforce, better manage
professional concerns and improve how we assure safeguarding through procured and
commissioned services.

3
Page 25



Working towards the intent and filling the gaps

A number of key work streams are underway to take the authority from the current
position to where we want to be and essentially this is being developed and managed
by the Whole Authority Safeguarding Coordinating Group (WASCG). This includes:

e A safeguarding strategy to set out the authority’s intent

e A programme of key milestones and actions across three strands; corporate, children
and young people and adults. This will instigate responsibility taken by schools,
other partners and volunteers. The programme will be reviewed annually

e A scorecard of measures to monitor and evaluate performance against the
programme

e A revised constitution and terms of reference of the Whole Authority Safeguarding
Coordinating Group to better steer, manage and monitor the strategy and
programme

Governance and accountability for safeguarding within the authority

A number of clear accountabilities are designated to specific Monmouthshire officers
and elected members and also, to a number of other agencies that we work with.
These are outlined in the appendices to the strategy.

In line with this, the terms of reference of the Whole Authority Safeguarding
Coordinating Group sets out chief officers and other practitioners’ accountabilities for
ensuring and assuring safeguarding. This group particularly acts as the safeguarding
champions and have responsibility for driving the strategy through operational service
delivery, for assuring performance and for ensuring information, advice and guidance
on safeguarding to all service areas.

They also have responsibility for ensuring the systematic collation and reporting of key
performance information using the activity programme and the measures scorecard.
This coordinated performance information will be systematically reported to
Department Management Teams, the Senior Leadership Team, the relevant select
committees, the Cabinet and the Council.

In addition, safeguarding performance measures extrapolated from the strategy
scorecard must be cascaded into all teams’ service plans to assist safeguarding
performance being regularly monitored at an operational level.

Governance and accountability for safeguarding by others outside the authority

Others that work with us also have responsibility for assuring safeguarding. This
involves other public sector and voluntary sector organisations that we work with and
also, commissioned services that we contract including in the private sector.

This will in context reflect different responsibilities and accountabilities from those that
need to be taken by the authority. For instance at a regional level, the regional

4
Page 26



safeguarding boards for children and for adults keep their own programmes under
review. These account for contributions from Monmouthshire County Council too.

The regional boards are represented by the neighbouring authorities and key agencies
acting within the region; for instance for children this includes the Joint Fostering
Service, the Joint Adoption Service, the Youth Offending Service, Health and for adults
includes the Police and Probation Service.

The key accountabilities that fall under this umbrella are shown in Table 2 of the
appendices, however, it above does not cover all regional and joint services that the
authority works. Monmouthshire’s services that liaise with regional and other joint
services are responsible for defining the safeguarding accountabilities of these bodies
through the governance arrangements and for holding them to account.

The key safeguarding designations in the council

As referenced in paragraph 6 the strategic safeguarding accountabilities are highlighted
in the diagram and Table 1 in the appendices.

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Officer, Enterprise & Deputy CEO

Chief Officer Children & Young People

Chief Officer, Social Care & Health

Chief Officer, Resources

Head of Governance, Engagement & Improvement

The designated members of the Whole Authority Safeguarding Coordinating Group
(WASCG) are listed below. Some designations will duplicate those given above:

Officers designated to form the WASCG:

Chief Officer for Social Care and Health

Chief Officer for Children and Young Peoples directorate
Head of Operations

Head of Adults Services

Head of Children’s Services

Head of Governance, Engagement & Improvement
Head of Community Led Delivery

Head of Tourism, Leisure and Culture

Safeguarding Unit Manager

Monmouthshire Housing manager

5
Page 27



10.

Monmouthshire Youth Service manager
Interim HR Manager

Programme lead on Volunteering

What to do if you have a concern around safeguarding:

Any member of staff with concerns for the safety of individuals, or the behaviour of
colleagues or members towards children or adults should immediately contact the
Designated Officer for Safeguarding in the Social Care, Safeguarding & Health
directorate or the designated officer (the Champion) within their service area; see
paragraph 8 and Appendix 1 Table 1 and diagram for details.

Staff must also follow any other relevant policies and procedures laid down for their
service.

Further advice and guidance can be given by the Safeguarding Unit on 01633 644392.
Other legislation, policies and guidance associated with the Safeguarding Strategy:

The authority’s accountability for safeguarding must be undertaken in tandem with
other direct legislation, policies and guidance both at a national and local level. For
instance the Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014, the Equality Act 2010, the
Children’s Acts and the Wales Interim Policy & Procedure for the Protection of
Vulnerable Adults from Abuse Nov 2010.

Even wider legislation includes the Human Rights Act 1998 and wider policies include
safeguarding through the Domestic Abuse policy and the policy against radicalisation
through PREVENT.

6
Page 28



Appendix 1: Governance Arrangements:

Table 1: Governance Arrangements within the Authority

Function

Who does this

The key safeguarding accountabilities

Designated Officer for
Safeguarding

Chief officer for Social Care
and Health services

Act as the lead on safeguarding for the
authority and as the authority’s guarantor
for safeguarding

Perform the role of the Designated senior
leadership team safeguarding champion

Lead officer for safeguarding
in education

Chief officer for Children and
Young People Services

Perform the role of the Designated
safeguarding champion in relation to
schools and other education settings and
for early years education child care settings
for

Cabinet member portfolio
for safeguarding

Cabinet member with
portfolio for safeguarding

Act as the elected member lead on
safeguarding for the authority and as the
designated elected member guarantor and
champion for safeguarding

Cabinet member portfolio
for education

Cabinet member with
portfolio for education

Act as the elected member lead on
safeguarding in education

The Corporate Parenting
Panel

Cabinet member with

portfolio for safeguarding acts

as Chair of the panel

Additional representative
elected members and officers

Designated young people, the
National Youth Advocacy
Service (NYAS) and foster care
representatives

Carry out the legislative Corporate
Parenting Responsibilities

Provide annual reports to the Council

The Whole Authority
Safeguarding Co-ordinating
Group (WASG)

Lead Officer and Chair — Chief
Officer for Social Care and
Health

Also, representative officers in

the group

Set the safeguarding framework for
Monmouthshire

Steer the safeguarding strategy, policy and
associated programmes of activity for
children and young people and for adults.

Assess the need for support across
authority services, schools, partners and
commissioned providers, including the
voluntary sector, to ensure a safeguarding
culture and environment

7
Page 29




Function

Who does this

The key safeguarding accountabilities

Monitor and reviews performance against
the safeguarding strategy and policy and
on safeguarding practices across the
authority and by relevant external
providers

Receive reports from the Regional Boards,
Estyn and the Children’s Social Services
Inspectorate for Wales, assesses
appropriate action in response to findings
and reports / liaises with senior managers
and elected members

Liaise with senior leadership team and
elected members on implementation of
the Safeguarding strategy, policy and
programmes

The Senior Leadership Team

Chief officers and heads of
service

Strategically monitor and evaluate the
authority’s application and performance on
safeguarding through regular reports and
also through external inspection and
regulation and intervenes as necessary.

Perform the role of directorate champions
to ensure and assure a safeguarding
culture and safeguarding practices across
directorates

Department Management
Teams

Chief officers and directorate
managers

Ensure a standard agenda item for
safeguarding at DMT meetings to test out
application of the strategy.

Ensure officers’ compliance with the
expectation that any unsafe practices and
concerns are reported to the Designated
Officer for Safeguarding and / or the
directorate champion.

DMT representatives on the WASG act as
the conduit between this group and their
DMTs

The Safeguarding Team

Safeguarding Unit manager

Provide advice and facilitation to services
and schools on safeguarding

Act as the key support to the Corporate
Safeguarding Co-ordinating Group in
driving the whole authority safeguarding
strategy, policy and associated
programmes of activity

8
Page 30




Function

Who does this

The key safeguarding accountabilities

Report on the progress and impact of the
safeguarding programmes to SLT, select
committees, Cabinet and Council

Select Committees

Elected members of the
Children and Young People’s
and the Adults Select
Committees

Scrutinise and challenge performance
achieved and application to safeguarding
practices both in relation to the authority
and that of authority partners as relevant
Scrutinise safeguarding implications in
relation to new and revised policies
Scrutinise any strategic risks on
safeguarding as part of the whole authority
strategic risk assessment arrangements

Cabinet

Elected members of the
Cabinet

Approve the safeguarding strategy and
policy and any subsequent revisions

Consider safeguarding matters in all
decisions taken as the Executive for the
authority

Direct the authority to act on safeguarding
in relation to policies and decisions
adopted

Council

All elected members

Collectively consider and sign off the
safeguarding strategy and policy and any
subsequent revisions

Collectively direct the authority to act on
safeguarding in relation to policies and
decisions adopted

Service leads

All service managers across
the authority

Ensure application to safeguarding is
considered in planning and delivering
services, including services commissioned
through partners

Ensure all staff are checked through the
Disclosure Disbarring Service (DBS) and
that safe recruitment and safeguarding
training is carried out as appropriate to
posts

Ensure a safeguarding culture is adopted
by the teams and safeguarding practices
and procedures are followed in delivering
services, including through any
commissioned and procured contracts

9
Page 31




Function

Who does this

The key safeguarding accountabilities

Operational staff and ward
councillors

All officers and members
across the authority

Ensure safe practices in contacting
vulnerable children and vulnerable adults
within the course of their roles and
functions

Comply with the expectation that any
unsafe practices and concerns are reported
to the Designated Officer for Safequarding
and / or the directorate champion

Table 2: Governance Arrangements outside the Authority

The organisation or body

The key safeguarding
accountabilities

Monmouthshire service
area that liaises with the
organisation

The South East Wales Safeguarding
Children Board (the regional board)

Provide strategic leadership and
steering a three year action plan

Hold agencies to account for
discharging their safeguarding
responsibilities

Share best practice and seek
ways to improve practice
Undertaking Child Practice
Reviews and sharing learning

Developing practice guidance,
procedures and protocols for
multi-agency safeguarding
children practice

Engage with and consult children
and young people, parents and
carers, the public and
professionals to identify ways in
which services can be shaped
and improved

Develop and deliver safeguarding
children training for volunteers
and professionals

Provide an annual performance
report to the WASCG and to the
Council

Children’s Services in the
Social Care, Safeguarding &
Health directorate

The Gwent Wide Adults Safeguarding
Board (the regional board)

Act as a multi agency board to
give a regional strategic steer on

Adult Services in the Social
Care, Safeguarding & Health

10
Page 32




The organisation or body

The key safeguarding
accountabilities

Monmouthshire service
area that liaises with the
organisation

safeguarding adults

Act as a conduit for senior leaders
across local authorities and other
key agencies to share and
promote good practice

Act in a monitoring role to assure
safeguarding of adults

Provide an annual performance
report to the WASCG and to the
Council

directorate

The Local Service Board incorporating
the Joint Assessment Framework
around the Family (JAFF) and the Team
Around the Family (TAFF)

(the Local Service Board will become
the Public Service Board in line with the
Wellbeing of Future Generations Act
coming into force 2016)

Act as a multi-agency joint board
to support effective partnership
working including matters on
safeguarding

Support the South East Wales
Safeguarding Children Board in
ensuring that robust multi agency
governance arrangements are in
place

Steer, monitor and review the
over-arching Single Integrated
Plan for Monmouthshire and the
programmes of activity that
under pin it, including matters on
safeguarding

(This plan will become the
Wellbeing Plan in line with the
Wellbeing of Future Generations
Act coming into force 2016)

Partnership Team and the
Policy & Performance Team
(for the Wellbeing Plan) in
the Chief Executives
Department

Monmouthshire schools and governing
bodies

Ensure safe recruitment of school
staff and safe election of
governors

Ensure staff and governors are
trained in safeguarding practices

Assure that staff, governors and
any volunteers are cleared
through the Disclosure and
Barring Service (DBS checks)

Ensure a designated

The Children and Young
People’s directorate and the
Safeguarding Unit

11
Page 33




The organisation or body

The key safeguarding
accountabilities

Monmouthshire service
area that liaises with the
organisation

responsibility is taken for
safeguarding across staff and
governors

Ensure a proper process in
dealing with safeguarding
matters

Contracted providers for children and
young people including for example bus
companies, Additional Learning Needs
residential care, Education Other than
at School (EOTAS), specialist Pupil
Referral support, Youth Service
support, foster care and any other
specialised children and young people
provisions

Comply with contractual
specifications and / or legislative
regulations in safeguarding
children and young people in
providing services with or on
behalf of the authority

All directorates

Contracted providers for adults
including for example home care /
domestic care, day and residential care
for the elderly, infirm, disabled, mental
health care and any other specialised
adult provisions

Comply with contractual
specifications and / or legislative
regulations in safeguarding adults
in providing services with or on
behalf of the authority

Adult Services in the Social
Care, Safeguarding & Health
directorate

An overview of Monmouthshire’s key governance arrangements around safeguarding are

depicted in the diagram below.

12
Page 34




53

Cabinet

SIP / Service Plans: quarterly monitoring Purpose: Legislative Corporate Parenting Responsibilities Executive Member for Safeguarding
Annual Reporting to Council Geoff Burrows
Safeguarding Unit SIP covers Whole Authority and Membership:

reflects the priorities of the SEWSCB Chair: Clir Geoff Burrows
Safeguarding is not evidenced in individual plans

Quality Impact & Sustainability Tool now includes Coumel | GifflEErs, e a2, MAS, VeunE Persem fes
Safeguarding: Corporate Parenting & Safeguarding and Foster Carer Rep
now standard on all decision reports

SIP’s Quality Assured via HoS Challenge: Annual
report on SIP quality to Audit Committee EXEC MEMBER: SAFEGUARDING GEOFF BURROWS Senior Leadership Team

CHIEF OFFICER FOR SOCIAL CARE, SAFEGUARDING AND HEALTH:

SAFEGUARDING LEAD OFFICER

Whole Authority Safeguarding Coordinating Group
Purpose: Steer the whole council in driving forward the
safeguarding agenda and monitor performance against
the strategy and policy

SLT Members: champions to drive
and hold to account on safeguarding Safeguarding Unit
Chief Executive Officer

Chief Officer, Enterprise & Deputy 5/G manager
CEO Lead officer Safeguarding in

Education

Chair: Claire Marchant, Social Care, Safeguarding &
Chief Officer Children & Young Independent Reviewing Health
People officer

Senior practitioner for court

Chief Officer, Social Care & Health and PLO

Chief Officer, Resources Child Protection Coordinator

Head of Governance, Engagement & Administrators

Improvement Regulation:

CSSIW / WAO / ESTYN




Appendix 2: Related Legislation, policy and guidance

e Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014

e More than just words 2011

e Equality Act 2010

e Wales Interim Policy & Procedure for the Protection of Vulnerable Adults from Abuse
Nov 2010

e Valuing people 2001 and Valuing people now 2009

e All Wales Child Protection Procedures 2008

e Mental Capacity Act 2005

e Carers Act 2004

e Children Act 1989 and 2004

e National Service Framework for children, young people and maternity services 2004

e Framework for the assessment of children in need and their families 2000

e Human Rights Act 1998

e Welsh Government guidance on Direct Payments

e Welsh Government guidance In Safe Hands

e Monmouthshire County Council Whistle Blowing policy

e Monmouthshire County Council Complaints policy

14
Page 36



Appendix 2:

monmouthshire

P sir fynwy

Monmouthshire County Council Safeguarding Strategy Activity Programme 2016 - 2017

Consolidating activities in progress and new improvements

Priority Profile Key actions Accountable Start Source of
Officer/s timescales evidence
-Ul. Corporate 1. Review the representation and terms of reference of the WASCG May 2016 WAO study
¢ Ensure a Senior Whole Authority Safeguarding Coordinating Group to ensure 2015, Ellis
& eadership Team, engagement of all chief officers or nominated heads of Williams review
P._.. . . .
c".)Cabmet and Council service and other key representatives 2015 and
- pteer, monitor and WASCG review
scrutinise the whole 2. Develop a safeguarding strategy to support the safeguarding | WASCG July 2016
authority approach to policy
safeguarding
3. Develop an activity programme to underpin the strategy and | WASCG July 2016

a scorecard of key measures

4. Mainstream key strands of the strategy / programme Chief officers From April 2016
through chief officer reports and service plans

5. Review the safeguarding strategy annually and the WASCG Ongoing
safeguarding policy bi-annually and make available on the
council’s website (including schools’ websites)

6. Ensure related council and school policies are kept up to Employee Ongoing

1



Priority

Profile

Key actions

Accountable
Officer/s

Start
timescales

Source of
evidence

PaYal eﬁnql,

0

representative

Develop and implement a process for reporting and dealing
with critical safeguarding incidents through a standard
agenda item at DMT, SLT and service team meetings

Set a standard item to share information on safeguarding —
particularly on performance on safeguarding at the Senior
Manager Network

Ensure all strategic and operational groups across the
authority dealing with the welfare of children and young

people have an appropriate safeguarding representative e.g.

the Integrated Youth Offer Group; Well-Being Group

Chief officers/
team managers

Head of
Governance,
Engagement &
Improvement

Chief officers /
Safeguarding Unit

September 2016

September 2016

September 2016

date e.g. Recruitment, DBS checks etc. Services

Monitor performance against relevant strands of the strategy | Chief officers September 2016

programme and scorecard via all DMTs

Slim down the reporting framework on safeguarding by WASCG September 2016

providing six monthly performance against the strategy

programme and scorecard to SLT, Adults and Children &

Young People Select Committees, Cabinet and Council

. Corporate Present the new safeguarding approach to every DMT to WASCG August 2016 \WAO study

pDrive a safeguarding guide and advise on the responsibilities 2015, Ellis
R culture across the \Williams review
oauthority and in schools Ensure every directorate designates a safeguarding Chief officers August 2016 2015, MCC

Internal Audit
Service review
2016

and WASCG
review




Priority

Profile

Key actions

Accountable

Start

Source of

recruitment training for all school governors and school staff

EAS /
Employee

Officer/s timescales evidence

Tighten the safeguarding assessments by officers in reports Head of Ongoing

to select committees and Cabinet to strengthen scrutiny and | Governance,

decision making Engagement &

Improvement

Carry out a safeguarding survey every two years for staff and | Safeguarding Unit | January 2017

members on safeguarding awareness based on the WAO

survey questions

3. Corporate Develop service plan measures on safeguarding & provide All team April 2016 Estyn inspection
Embed safe recruitment guarterly updates on performance via the Hub to ensure that | managers 2012, WAO
-Dacross the authority all officers in regulated posts are DBS checked and all officers study 2015, Ellis
¢pand in schools: in regulated posts are trained to level 1 and level 2 as \Williams review
Gcg appropriate 2015, MCC
Internal Audit

) . N . . . .
o) Introduce a standard agenda item on monitoring DBS checks | Chief officers August 2016 Service review

and safeguarding training at all DMT meetings 2016 and

WASCG review

Report on the SAFE audits to the WASCG and to DMTs on Safeguarding Unit | August 2016

settings within the DMT brief to ensure robust monitoring

Implement a robust mechanism in each directorate for Chief officers / September 2016

identifying staff, agency workers and ancillary staff (e.g. team managers

foster carers) needing reference checks, DBS checks and

safeguarding training and ensure a robust system on

recording compliance

Tighten DBS checks and checks on the delivery of safe Chief officer CYP / | September 2016




Priority

Profile

Key actions

Accountable

Start

Source of

and members — for instance on the influence of Domestic
Abuse, on PREVENT awareness and referral and on the Social
Services and Wellbeing Act 2014 - in complying with the duty
to report Adults at risk and in delivering on ‘Adult Protection
Orders’

SC&H/ head of
Adults Service/
Adults
Safeguarding
manager

Officer/s timescales evidence
and provide monitoring reports to CYP DMT and to WASCG Services
on the need and level of compliance
Identify elected members who work in regulated activity Head of September 2016
with vulnerable groups (as defined by the Safeguarding Governance,
Vulnerable Groups Act 2006) and ensure DBS compliance Engagement &
Improvement
/ Safeguarding
Unit
Introduce a module on safeguarding within the corporate Safeguarding Unit | September 2016
A staff induction process / Employee
:DU services
«@
P Ensure an up to date recruitment policy on recruitment Employee September 2016
» :
Fen) services
Carry out sample audits on safe recruitment and MCC Internal September 2016
safeguarding processes and report to the WASG for follow up | Audit Service
/ intervention
4, Corporate Develop and deliver a training programme for volunteers Volunteer July 2016 \WAO study
Coordinator / 2015, Ellis
Ensure a programme of Safeguarding Unit \Williams review
safeguarding training 2015, MCC
Implement a programme of safeguarding training for all staff | Chief officer September 2016 |Internal Audit

Service review
2016

and WASCG
review, Gwent

\Wide




Priority

Profile

Key actions

Accountable

Officer/s

Start
timescales

Source of
evidence

arrangements are SAFE
- DBS checked,
safeguarding trained
and consistently

services in recruiting volunteers to ensure parity with the
safeguarding requirements for MCC employed staff

Deliver safe recruitment training to school governors and Safeguarding Unit | September Safeguarding
school staff / Employee 2016 Adults Board
services action plan
SSWB Act code
Deliver safeguarding training to private settings at a nil cost Safeguarding Unit | Ongoing 7
as far as possible e.g. in completing SAFE audits and risk
assessments
Deliver preventing risks training to vulnerable adult groups Workforce by April 2017
Development
manager Adults
4 Services
P5. Corporate Participate to shape regional work on Domestic Abuse WASCG Ongoing
GcgEnsure the safeguarding
_hstrategy supports the Ensure safeguarding practices and training recognise the Actions 2-3: Ongoing
H~work around Domestic impact of domestic abuse Head of Adults
Abuse Services / Head of
Ensure cases are referred and that vulnerable people are Children’s Ongoing
supported to access the right intervention points Services
6. Corporate Implement the volunteer toolkit underpinned by a “Leading Volunteer Ongoing MCC Internal
Ensure volunteers volunteers training” programme to provide a clear Coordinator for Audit Service
engaged by MCC direct framework on safeguarding for volunteers actions 1to 3 and review 2016 and
and engaged through 5and 6 \WASCG review
partnership Review the volunteer policy and the approach taken across July 2016




2. AP 1

explicit in contractual specifications e.g. on workforce
reference checks & recruitment arrangements and monitor
compliance of the contracts (also including via service plans
actions and measures)

Priority Profile Key actions Accountable Start Source of
Officer/s timescales evidence
applying the Council’s Develop a database to monitor volunteers working with the July 2016
safeguarding approach authority who are supporting children, young people and
adults, including on references, DBS checks and training
needs and ensure data protection on the shared access to
information
Develop a system to assess volunteer training needs and Volunteer July 2016
monitor the level of take up Coordinator/
Partnership
manager
Engage with GAVO to raise safeguarding awareness and July 2016
DD raise the profile on safe volunteers
D
P Devise a recognised approach to deal with volunteer non- September 2016
3 compliance or “unsafe” practices
7. Corporate Raise awareness across directorates on the authority’s Chief officers / August 2016 \WAO study
Ensure services safeguarding expectations in relation to negotiating, Service managers 2015, MCC
delivered through procuring and reviewing contracts for actions 1 to 3 Internal Audit
commissioned Service review
arrangements and with Give guidance to third sector and voluntary groups on the Ongoing 2016 and
partners that support authority’s Safeguarding policy and strategy expectations \WASCG review
children, young people
and adults are safe Ensure the Safeguarding policy and strategy expectations are Ongoing




Priority

Profile

Key actions

Provide guidance and advice to schools on integrating the
Safeguarding policy and strategy expectations into
contractual specifications e.g. on workforce reference checks
& recruitment arrangements, on monitoring compliance of
the contracts and also, in letting agreements

Accountable

Officer/s

Safeguarding Unit
/ Employee
services

Start
timescales

September 2016

Source of
evidence

Cce AP 1

8.

Share information and
good practice on
safeguarding outside
the authority

O
P
D
D
N
o

Corporate

Promote safeguarding discussions and relationships with
private residential homes for adults, children and young
people to ensure essential safeguarding information and
good practice is shared

Participate in the South East Wales Consortium (SEWC)
Safeguarding in Education Sub Group (SEG) to standardise
and share good practice across the region and nationally

Participate in the South East Wales Regional Safeguarding
Boards for Adults and for Children to standardise and share
good practice across the region

Work with the South East Wales Regional Safeguarding
Boards to ensure information is shared across all
professionals and with families

Ensure the annual reports of the South East Wales Regional
Safeguarding Boards are systematically filtered through the
WASCG for action and review

Safeguarding Unit
on all actions

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Annually on
receipt of action
plans and end of
year reports

\WAO study
2015, Ellis
\Williams review
2015 and
WASCG review




= B g

Priority

Profile

Key actions

Accountable
Officer/s

Start
timescales

Source of
evidence

Children’s Services to

9. Children & Continue to monitor the SAFE audit process and report to Safeguarding Unit | July 2016 Estyn inspection
Ensure settings for young the WASCG and to DMTs 2012, MCC
children and young people Internal Audit
people are SAFE Complete and monitor a needs analysis / compliance record | Chief officers / September 2016 [Service review
on safeguarding training for directorate staff, agency workers | Service managers 2016 and
and volunteers operating in settings used by directorates \WASCG review
Revise the Safeguarding policy for Child Protection and the Safeguarding Unit | September 2016
Financial Instructions to schools on hiring premises for / CYP Finance
children and young people’s activities and guide staff across | Service Manager
5 the authority and in schools in letting and hiring premises
g Incorporate the inspection of non-maintained settings into Safeguarding Unit | September 2016
D> the SAFE process
10. Children & Pilot access to Plant (the Children’s Services recording Actions 1 -2 April 2016 CSSIW
Improve the flow of young system) with designated CYP officers and schools Safeguarding Unit inspection 2014
information and the people / Chief officer CYP and WASCG
front door processes Monitor and evaluate the pilot and if successful roll out to all | / school heads review
among professionals schools
supporting children and
young people Improve integrated working between partnership TAF Coordinator / | June 2016
preventative services and the statutory front door managed | Children’s
through Children’s Social Services Services
managers
11. Children & Respond to the findings of the Excellence in Children’s Chief officer, June 2016 ICSSIW
Ensure adherence to young Services review by the Institute of Public Care (IPC) SC&H / Head of inspections
recognised processes people assessment of Children’s Services Children’s 2014 and 2016
and practices in Services




C AP 1

Priority

Profile

Key actions

Accountable

Officer/s

Start
timescales

Source of
evidence

the CYP DMT, WASCG and schools and intervene as
necessary to drive improvement

Unit/ Chief officer
CYP / school

assure child protection Implement a quality assurance framework based on best Chief officer, July 2016
practice identified by the Wales Audit Office (e.g. Neath & SC&H / Chief
Port Talbot) within Children’s Services through SCS&H DMT, Executive /
SLT, CYP select committee and Cabinet and intervene as Council Leader /
necessary to drive improvement CYP select
committee chair
Respond to the findings out of the CSSIW inspection of Chief officer, July 2016
Children’s Services in June 2016 and keep actions under SCS&H / Head of
monitoring and review Children’s
Services / Chief
0 Executive /
) Cabinet member
g with safeguarding
portfolio
N
D1
Implement regular staff appraisal with directorate and Head of July 2016
agency staff to ensure laid down processes and practices are | Children’s
applied and to challenge / support non compliance Services /
Children’s Service
managers
12. Children & Ensure schools’ safeguarding policies are annually reviewed Chief officer CYP / | Annually Estyn inspection
Ensure schools comply | young school heads / 2012 and
with safeguarding people chairs of \WASCG review
processes and practices governors
Ensure the findings out of the SAFE audits are reported to Safeguarding Ongoing




Priority

Profile

Key actions

Accountable

Officer/s

heads / chairs of
governors /

Start
timescales

Source of
evidence

WASCG
13. Children & Carry out an 18 monthly survey with young people to assess | Youth Service (2017/18 - Estyn inspection
Engage with children young what makes them feel safe and unsafe and develop and Manager / included to give [2012 and
and young people to people monitor an action plan based on responses to the survey Safeguarding Unit | coverage) \WASCG review
support them in LOSIE for actions
keeping safe 1land?2
Provide generic and targeted information and training to Ongoing
young people on keeping safe such as managing
i relationships, self-harm, bullying and cyber bullying and
gDU sexual exploitation
«
q 14. Adults Assess performance on safeguarding as part of external Actions 1 —3: Ongoing WASCG review
'cl nsure settings for providers’ application for quality accreditation Lead
adults are SAFE Commissioner
Quality
Ensure the Safeguarding policy and strategy expectations are | Assurance/ July 2016
explicit in contractual specifications with external adults’ Supporting
service providers People
Provide reports to the CARE provider forum to assess lessons Ongoing
learnt from an assessment of safeguarding processes
Extend quality assurance feedback to service users via an Adults September 2016
apps on safeguarding criteria Safeguarding
managers
15. Adults Improve integrated working between the third sector and Head of Adults Ongoing WASCG review
Improve the flow of community services and the statutory front door managed | Services /
information and the Changing

10




Priority

front door processes
among professionals
supporting adults

Profile

Key actions

through Adults’ Services

Accountable
Officer/s

Practice/Changing
Lives lead officer

Start
timescales

Source of
evidence

Protect vulnerable older
people in their home

vulnerable adults at home via the “sucker lists”

Services manager
/ Adults
Safeguarding

16. Adults Contribute to review the All Wales POVA policy and Adults September 2016 [WASCG review
Ensure adherence to procedures and implement once finalised Safeguarding
recognised processes manager
and practices in the
Adults Service to assure Ensure the quality assurance of external providers reflects Lead Ongoing
adult protection key developments in adults safeguarding Commissioner
Quality
Assurance/
. Supporting
)
D People
«
:z Implement regular staff appraisal with directorate and Head of Adults Ongoing
- agency staff to ensure laid down processes and practices are | Service / Service
applied and challenge / support any non-compliance managers
17. Adults Promote CHAT as an engagement activity with adults in care | Adults Ongoing \WASCG review
Engage with adults to homes Safeguarding
support them in manager
keeping safe
Implement the regional safeguarding questionnaire for Adults January 2017
adults subject to safeguarding processes Safeguarding
manager
/ GWASB
18. Adults Liaise with the Trading Standards service to identify Environmental Ongoing

11




= "B g

Priority Profile Key actions Accountable Start Source of
Officer/s timescales evidence
manager

Work with the Police and Housing associations to monitor Actions 2 — 3: Ongoing
and intervene on anti-social behaviour to protect vulnerable | Adults
adults Safeguarding
manager
Share information with Police and Housing Associations to / Project Officer Ongoing
protect vulnerable people preyed on by gangs Anti-social
Behaviour
Develop a process to warrant appropriate MCC officers to Adults September
DD apply for Adult Protection Orders Safeguarding
g manager
N

19. Adults Contribute to develop preventative approaches to safeguard | Actions 1-3: Ongoing

Support the Gwent adults through the GWASB Head of Adults

Wide Safeguarding Services / Adults

Adults Board (GWASB) Ensure that regional priorities are focused through the work | Safeguarding Ongoing

of the authority on adult safeguarding manager
Review the mechanisms in place in the authority and in Ongoing

working with partners for early identification of domestic
abuse

12



Appendix 3: “ monmouthshire

WP sir fynwy

Monmouthshire County Council
Whole Authority Safeguarding Coordinating Group (WASG)

Membership of the WASG:

The membership of the Whole Authority Safeguarding Coordinating Group will in the main
constitute chief officers and heads of service as a leadership core. Lower organisational tier
officers will also participate in the group as specifically designated.

Chief officers will be expected to designate nominees in their absence, but the nominees
must be at a sufficiently strategic level to take decisions and take action in representation
and will need to be agreed with the Chief Officer, Social Care and Health.

Officers designated to form the WASG:

Chief Officer for Social Care and Health

Chief Officer for Children and Young Peoples Services
Head of Operations

Head of Adults Services

Head of Children’s Services

Head of Governance, Engagement & Improvement
Head of Community Led Delivery

Head of Tourism, Leisure and Culture
Safeguarding Unit Manager

Monmouthshire Housing manager

Monmouthshire Youth Service manager

Interim HR Manager

Programme lead on Volunteering

The purpose of the WASG:

e To steer the whole authority safeguarding strategy and support programme and keep
under review

e To delegate responsibilities as a collective group to WASG representatives on
accountabilities for safeguarding

e To monitor progress and performance against the whole authority safeguarding strategy

support programme and measures scorecard, to hold others to account across
directorates and intervene as necessary

Page 49



e To report progress and performance against the whole authority safeguarding strategy
support programme and measures scorecard to senior leaders and elected members
and to respond to challenge

e To act as champions to embed safeguarding through service planning and in day to day
operational delivery and ensure directorates mainstream safeguarding practices within
directorate activities

e To ensure that designated WASG members represent the authority on the Regional
Safeguarding Boards for Adults and for Children and Young People and that they
contribute to develop the regional safeguarding action plans and the boards’ work. Also,
that information on work undertaken by the boards is shared with the WASG

e To ensure safeguarding representation on group working arrangements both within and
outside the authority in relation to wellbeing and safeguarding support to adults and to
children and young people

e To act as a conduit to ensure an information flow to the Senior Leadership Team and to
Directorate Department Management Teams on safeguarding and ensure information is
cascaded through service teams

e To share best practice on safeguarding and ensure good practice is shared among
service teams

e To participate as nominated by the WASG in external regulation and inspection on
safeguarding matters, which may be in addition to any other authority designated
accountabilities

WASG meeting arrangements:

WASG will systematically meet on a 2 monthly cycle. Flexibility will be used to call meetings
outside this cycle if necessary.

WASG reporting arrangements:

The WASG will systematically report to the Senior Leadership Team, directorate Department
Management Teams, the Adults and Children and Young People Select Committees, the
Cabinet and the Council. The Chief Officer for Social Care, Safeguarding and Health will
keep the Cabinet member with portfolio up to date on key safeguarding matters.

Page 50



Appendix 4.

B~ monmouthshire

Q) sir fynwy

Name of the Officer completing the evaluation Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal

Teresa Norris

Phone no: 07771387935
E-mail: teresanorris@monmouthsire.gov.uk

Nameof Service Date Future Generations Evaluation form completed
Policy & Performance Unit 15" June 2016
o
Q
(o]
0]
E NB. Key strategies and documents that may help you identify your contribution to the wellbeing goals and sustainable

development principles include: Single Integrated Plan, Continuance Agreement, Improvement Plan, Local Development Plan,
People Strategy, Asset Management Plan, Green Infrastructure SPG, Welsh Language Standards, etc

1. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? What actions have been/will be taken to
Well Being Goal Describe the positive and negative impacts. mitigate gny negatlve' |.mp§1cts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A prosperous Wales

Efficient use of resources, skilled,
educated people, generates wealth, X X
provides jobs



mailto:teresanorris@monmouthsire.gov.uk

Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A resilient Wales

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and
ecosystems that support resilience and
can adapt to change (e.g. climate
change)

A healthier Wales

People’s physical and mental wellbeing
is maximized and health impacts are
understood

People in Mouthshire will be better safeguarded
through a safe workforce, including volunteer
and commissioned providers. Applied practices
and processes will be safe and so ulmitaely
people should feel and be safe

A strategy that sets out explicit responsibilities
underpinned by a comprehensive activity
programme and a robust measures scorecard will
drive the safeguarding approach to ensure
weaknesses in structure, steer, practice and
accountability are addressed

¢S abed

A Wales of cohesive communities
Communities are attractive, viable, safe
and well connected

People in Mouthshire will be better safeguarded
through a safe workforce, including volunteer
and commissioned providers. Applied practices
and processes will be safe and so ulmitaely
people should feel and be safe.

This work will drive activity and accountability
with the regional boards on safeguarding and
also with partners, volunteers and
commissioned services to ensure connections
are made so that people too are connected.

A strategy that sets out explicit responsibilities
underpinned by a comprehensive activity
programme and a robust measures scorecard will
drive the safeguarding approach to ensure
weaknesses in structure, steer, practice and
accountability are addressed

A globally responsible Wales
Taking account of impact on global
well-being when considering local
social, economic and environmental

The approach will support people in being and
feeling safe

A strategy that sets out explicit responsibilities
underpinned by a comprehensive activity
programme and a robust measures scorecard will
drive the safeguarding approach to ensure




Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

wellbeing

weaknesses in structure, steer, practice and
accountability are addressed

A Wales of vibrant culture and

thriving Welsh language
Culture, heritage and Welsh language X

are promoted and protected. People
are encouraged to do sport, art and

recreation

A more equal Wales

People can fulfil their potential no
Thatter what their background or
ircumstances

G obe

rd

4

everyone across all ages, religions, race and
cultures.

The approach does not descrimanate but will support

Procedures are in place to report and deal with
allegations that contravene safeguarding practices
and give rise to concerns around worforce and / or
other providers working with / on behalf of the
authority. Robust monitoring and review will be an
integral part of the approach to ensure and assure
there is no complacency.

2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?

Sustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met this

Are there any additional actions to be taken to

Principle principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain why. | mitigate any negative impacts or better contribute
to positive impacts?
Balancing The proposal has assessed the postion to date and A strategy that sets out explicit responsibilities
short term considered what needs to be done going forward. From this | underpinned by a comprehensive activity programme and
need with long | it has set a programme that delivers short term that fits as a robusthmeasures scorekcard will drive the safeguarding
term and part of and will underpin a longer term and more sustainable approach to ensure weaknesses in structure, steer,
_ practice and accountability are addressed
planning for way.
the future

Long Term




Sustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met this

Are there any additional actions to be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better contribute

Principle principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain why. IMpé
to positive impacts?
_ The proposal sets out clearly that there are expectations of As part of the new approach, there are clear actions set to
Working _ partners and others to deliver the new safeguarding build the interaction between MCC services and other
together with providers. This will also be facilitated through the new

approach and in line with this, expectations of those

H‘ other .partners accountable within the authority in assuring this is delivered. Social Services and Wellbeing Act Wales 2014.
to _de"_Ver There are already partnerships emebedded around
objectives sfageuarding and which should be strengthened through the
Collaboration approach.
Involving This is implicit within the entry above and through a key part | None that are explicit at this point in time but that will be
those with of how the Public Service Board will act and through provided through the arrangements described.
an interest delivering on new Social Services and Wellbeing Act Wales
and seeking | 2014.
their views
o
Dinvolvement
@ Putting The approach will be delivered through existing resources, N/A
g resources but the intention of the whole approach is to prevent
into problems safeguarding occurring.
preventing
problems
occurring or
Prevention getting worse

Integration

Considering
impact on all
wellbeing
goals
together and
on other
bodies

Integration is an implicitpart of the approach. Refgional and
authority level working should be strengthened as should
authority and external provider and authority and volunteer
working. This in turn should positively impact on individuals
and communities.Simlarly, it should drive abetter use of
resources.




3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the
evidence you have used and any action you are taking below. For more detailed information on the protected characteristics, the Equality
Act 2010 and the Welsh Language Standards that apply to Monmouthshire Council please follow this
link:http://hub/corporatedocs/Equalities/Forms/Allltems.aspx or contact Alan Burkitt on 01633 644010 or
alanburkitt@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What has been/will be done to
Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?
Age The adult population will become an integral | None N/A
part of the new safeguarding approach and
so all ages will be appropriately focused.
Disability Nothing additional Nothing additional N/A
Bender Nothing additional Nothing additional N/A
geassignment
éﬂlarriage or civil Nothing additional Nothing additional N/A
partnership
Pregnancy or Nothing additional Nothing additional N/A
maternity
Race Nothing additional Nothing additional N/A
Religion or Belief Nothing additional Nothing additional N/A
Sex Nothing additional Nothing additional N/A



http://hub/corporatedocs/Equalities/Forms/AllItems.aspx
mailto:alanburkitt@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Describe any positive impacts your

Describe any negative impacts

What has been/will be done to

Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?
Sexual Orientation Nothing additional Nothing additional N/A
Nothing additional Nothing additional N/A

Welsh Language

4. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on important responsibilities of Corporate Parenting and
safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities? For more information please see the guidance
http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safequarding%20Guidance.docx and for more on Monmouthshire’s Corporate

Parenting Strategy see http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx

S abed

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on safeguarding and
corporate parenting

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on safeguarding
and corporate parenting

What will you do/ have you done
to mitigate any negative impacts
or better contribute to positive
impacts?

(

afeguarding

People in Mouthshire will be better
safeguarded through a safe workforce,
including volunteer and commissioned
providers. Applied practices and
processes will be safe and so ulmitaely
people should feel and be safe.

This work will drive activity and
accountability with the regional boards
on safeguarding and also with partners,
volunteers and commissioned services.

None. The pont is to improve
safeguarding

A strategy that sets out explicit
responsibilities underpinned by a
comprehensive activity programme and
a robust measures scorecard will drive
the safeguarding approach to ensure
weaknesses in structure, steer, practice
and accountability are addressed



http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safeguarding%20Guidance.docx
http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx

Corporate Parenting

Looked After Children in Mouthshire
will be better safeguarded through a
safe workforce, including volunteer and
commissioned providers. Applied
practices and processes will be safe
and so ulmitaely children should feel
and be safe.

This work will drive activity and
accountability with the regional boards
on safeguarding and also with partners,
volunteers and commissioned services.

None. The pont is to improve
safeguarding

A strategy that sets out explicit
responsibilities underpinned by a
comprehensive activity programme and
a robust measures scorecard will drive
the safeguarding approach to ensure
weaknesses in structure, steer, practice
and accountability are addressed

What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

5.
T
<))
(O
@D
ol
\l

Estyn report 2016

CSSIW report 2014 and updated feedback 2015
Monmouthshire’s Safeguarding Policy

The current constitution and terms of reference of the Whole Authority Safeguarding Coordinating Group
The Internal Audit Service report on safeguarding 2015
The Wales Audit Office study on safeguarding 2015
The Ellis Williams report on safeguarding 2015

The Whole Authority Safeguarding Coordinating Group assessment 2016

6. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

onset.

None extra in the light that the impact on the considerations throughout this evaluation were fundamental to to developing the proposal from the




7. ACTIONS: As aresult of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if

applicable.

What are you going to do When are you going to do it? Who is responsible Progress

None

8. MONITORING: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will
evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review.

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on:

The impact of the approach will be evaluated continuously

The Whole Authority Safeguarding Coordinating Group will evaluate
the approach continuously and report to Cabinet and Council
members cyclically

86 afed

honed and refined throughout the decision making

VERSION CONTROL: The Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then

process. Itis important to keep a record of this process so that we can

demonstrate how we have considered and built in sustainable development wherever possible.

Version | Decision making stage
No.

Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following
consideration

1. Council meeting

28™ July 2016




Agenda ltem 3c

SUBJECT: Annual Report of the Statutory Director of Social Services
MEETING: Cabinet

DATE: 6" July 2016

DIVISIONS/WARDS AFFECTED: All

1 PURPOSE

1.1 To provide Cabinet members with the Annual Report of the Statutory Director
of Social Services.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Cabinet members consider and endorse the analysis in 2015/16 Annual
Report of the Statutory Director of Social Services concerning the performance,
and impact, of adult and children’s social care and health services over the last
financial year.

2.2 That Cabinet members also consider and endorse the 2016/17 areas for
improvement set out in the report to address the critical risk and developmental
issues in social care and health.

3. KEY ISSUES

3.1 This is the Annual Report of the Statutory Director of Social Services, and
reflects on the financial year of 2015/16. The report is intended to reflect on
progress in delivering the priorities for 2015/16 set out in last year's annual
report, performance for that year, and, maps out the key areas for development
and improvement in 2016/17. It enables the Care and Social Services
Inspectorate for Wales (CSSIW) to test out whether our assessment of progress
and development is consistent with the range of evidence gathered and
presented to them as well as their direct experience through site visits,
regulatory activity and themed inspections. The format of the report is a matter
for each Director and Council, but the Director must report on performance and
risk and set out plans for improvement in relation to getting help; services
provided; the effect on people’s lives; shaping services; delivering social
services; and providing direction. The annual report provides an opportunity to
reflect on what we are doing to make a difference to the lives of the most
vulnerable citizens of Monmouthshire, what we do well, and where we need to
do even better. The report explains the context in which we are working and
how we will improve and modernise.

3.2  This Annual Report, alongside the appended reports from the Head of Adults
and Head of Children’s Services is a balanced analysis of Social Care and
Health in Monmouthshire. There is some excellent, leading edge, practice,
workforce development, service provision and commissioning. The remodelling

1
Page 59



3.3

4.1

of care at home through the roll out of the Raglan Project is just one example
of where this is the case. There are also areas where we need to accelerate an
ambitious programme of sustainable improvement. An in-depth review of
children’s social services has highlighted too much variability in the way we
support children and young people. The overall message in this report is that
we are one Social Care and Health department and it is important that we
organise ourselves, and align our programmes of work and resources, to
address inconsistency in standards and the outcomes for our citizens.

The Annual Report articulates a vision and associated priorities for Social Care
and Health in Monmouthshire which seeks to build on the many strengths that
exist with the aim of delivering consistently excellent outcomes across the
board. This is within the context of the new legislative framework for Social
Services in Wales, the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act (2014), the
increasing challenges of demography which could significantly increase
demand for social services, and reducing budgets. The annual report
demonstrates how the further transformation of social care and health in
Monmouthshire is a key part of the work to shape Future Monmouthshire. So
much of the success of social care and health is dependent on resilient people,
families and communities who live the lives they want to live without the need
for care and support from statutory social services.

REASONS
To ensure that:

The Annual Report of the Statutory Director of Social Services is given due
consideration by Cabinet.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The Annual Report sets out the financial performance of Social Care and Health
in 2015/16. It describes the financial context and challenges for coming year
and beyond.

WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS IMPLICATIONS
(INCORPORATING EQUALITIES, SUSTAINABILITY, SAFEGUARDING
AND CORPORATE PARENTING)

The report gives a performance appraisal and priorities for improvement. There
are no Wellbeing of Future Generations Implications and in this context, an
assessment form is not provided. The report provides analysis of safeguarding
performance and priorities.

CONSULTEES:

2
Page 60



10.

Social Care and Health DMT
Senior Leadership Team

AUTHOR:
Claire Marchant, Chief Officer, Social Care and Health
CONTACT DETAILS:

E-mail: clairemarchant@monmouthshire.gov.uk
Telephone: 01633 644487 / 07507710595

3
Page 61


mailto:clairemarchant@monmouthshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Changing Practice, Changing
Lives

Annual Report of the Statutory Director
of Social Services
Monmouthshire County Council

Paée 63



Forward

This is my first annual report as Statutory Director of Social Services with Monmouthshire
County Council. Having taken up my position in November 2015, it is both a privilege, and a
considerable responsibility, to start to understand, lead and shape the improvement of
outcomes for the most vulnerable people within this County. Like many other local
authorities in Wales, Monmouthshire is faced with the twin challenges of declining budgets
and an ageing population. Against this backdrop doing more of the same is not an option; nor
is doing the same things differently. We are building an evidence base in Monmouthshire that
doing different things, better, and for the right reasons, is also more cost effective and by far
the best way forward if we are to manage up to another £25 million reduction in the Council’s
budget.

In my first months in Monmouthshire, | have overseen the most significant change in Social
Care legislation in Wales for over 50 years, the implementation of the Social Services and
Well-being (Wales) Act 2014. At the heart of the Act are improved outcomes for people.
Whilst much specific to the way that we work with children or adults with care and support
needs, there is much more that is common to the way we need to work in a strengths based
way with people, families and communities. The model of social care and health | want to
lead in Monmouthshire is an integrated approach for the people of our County. The ambition
and drive for excellence needs to be felt equally across all social care and health. Much work
is needed to level up everything we do, to the leading edge practice that is clearly evident in
parts of social care. My leadership challenge is, therefore, to create one social care and health
department with a clear vision and purpose, with the right people, practice model and range
of service offers. This will mean we are well placed to support achievement of the best
possible outcomes for all of Monmouthshire’s citizens. My approach to leadership is also
strengths based, to ensure we build on what works in the different parts of Social Care and
Health, recognising we are stronger when we work in partnership, through a coherent
purpose and governance for our workforce, practice and commissioning.

One of the key features | became aware of very quickly when | joined the Council was a
difference between the culture, capacity to change, and clarity of service model, between
different parts of social care and health in Monmouthshire. The implementation of new ways
of working in adult social care is well-recognised as leading the way in Wales and beyond.
Conversely, parts of our children’s service were displaying signs of fragility — evidenced by
variations in practice, high numbers of agency social workers, an absence of commissioning
priorities and a considerable financial overspend. Our numbers of looked after children were
increasing significantly, from 108 at the start of the year to 129 at year end. We have
undertaken in-depth analysis of our current strengths, and areas for improvement, in
partnership with the Institute for Public Care (IPC). This tells us there is an urgent need to
improve social work practice, management capacity and the services we have access to. These
improvements need to be underpinned by a confident, permanent workforce, skilled at
working with families and partners in the most challenging of situations to prevent the need
for children to become looked after in order to be safe, unless there really is no alternative
option. Understanding where we were was the first task. The next phase of the improvement

2
Page 64



programme in children’s services is focussing on getting the basics right, establishing a
permanent workforce who are confident and safe in their practice. This is the highest possible
priority for the Council, which is giving extensive corporate support to a programme for
improvement in Children’s Services led by the Senior Leadership Team, supported by an
External Reference Group of recognised experts, who will oversee this programme over the
next year and beyond if necessary.

In adult services, the last 4 years has seen a practice led transformation. There has been a
focus on improving outcomes for people, development of a coherent model of well-being and
prevention, and a modernised set of both provided and commissioned services. These are
delivered, by a committed and value driven workforce. This has enabled more adults with
care and support needs to live the lives they want to live, often without the need for
traditional services. Outcomes for people have improved. Costs have reduced despite the
challenges of an ageing population. Services, where they are needed are based on ‘what
matters’ to the individual, strong relationships and high standards. Integrated services for
older people are very well established and there are positive relationships with primary care
and third sector partners. There is still much to do, and risks to manage, particularly, in the
provider market, but the improvement journey is well-established, well led and sustainable.
There can be a high level of confidence the improvement programme is embedded and most
importantly is actively transforming lives.

There are considerable strengths within Social Care and Health in Monmouthshire, in both
adult and children’s services which can be built on and developed further. Most importantly,
the vast majority of the workforce is hugely committed to the work they do. The Council
leadership has invested resources and leadership in supporting the transformation of Social
Care and Health. All our workforce needs the same direction, development and aligned
systems to do the job they strive to do. We have the building blocks, with collaborative
leadership across Social Care and Health, to deliver whole service excellence we aspire to for
all our citizens. This next year is about making that a reality.

Claire Marchant
Chief Officer, Social Care, Safeguarding & Health

(Statutory Director of Social Services)

3
Page 65



Our purpose

Our purpose in Monmouthshire is:
“Building resilient and sustainable communities”

Three themes underpin all our work in this County: Nobody left behind; People are capable,
confident and involved and Our County thrives. As a Social Care and Health we play a key
part in all these areas and have agreed our own purpose statement to drive our work:

“Helping People Live Their Own Lives”

Given the particular pressures of working with families and vulnerable children we have
expanded this to:

“Enabling families and communities to keep children and young people safe and to reach
their own potential”

Vision

The vision for Social Care and Health in Monmouthshire is clear; to maximise opportunity for
all people to live the lives they want to live and the positive outcomes they identify. This
informs the priorities and actions for the sustainable Social Care and Health in
Monmouthshire in 2016/17 and beyond.

In practice, this means we aim to work with people on the basis of what matters to them,
recognising their strengths, capabilities and the resources available to them personally, within
their network of family, friends and community. Our model of well-being, care and support is
based on what people can do, not their deficits. We are committed to the highest standards
of safeguarding. We will work alongside people and with them, not ‘do to them.” We work
with partners, inside and outwith the Council, to intervene early and prevent the need for
more intensive interventions, or statutory solutions, unless they are absolutely necessary.

We work with people in the closest circle of support to them, to support an individuals’, or a
families’, intrinsic motivation to achieve their own wellbeing outcome or to change. This
ensures the creation of more natural and sustainable care and support arrangements specific
to the each person or family situation. The image below in figure 1 depicts pictorially this cycle
of care and support radiating outwards from the person themselves through family, friends
and community via preventative approaches to managed care and support.

Pagé 66



Information

Applying
Eligibility &
Meeting Needs

Safeguarding

- .
¥ monmouthshire
L) sir fynwy

Figure 1
Information, advice and assistance, assessment, applying eligibility and meeting needs and

safeguarding vulnerable people are illustrated as cross cutting themes as we undertake these
proportionately throughout the cycle of well-being care and support.

5
Page 67



Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act (2014)

The Act in Action - This strength based model of well-being, care and support underpins
Monmouthshire’s approach to implementation of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales)
Act. Our social care and health offer will align at every level, and embed operationally, the
principles of the Act:

e People’s voice

e Partnership

e Earlyintervention
e Well-being

e Empowerment

The Council is taking a co-ordinated corporate approach to ensure full implementation of the
Social Services and Well-being Act. Delivery of the Act is increasingly becoming business as
usual. In common with other authorities there are some important areas where 2016/17 is
the year when we will develop fully our approach to implementation, as new guidance
emerges and we work with regional and local partners, not to ‘tick the box’, but really embed
the Act in practice. We are working in accordance with the vision of Sustainable Social
Services — that through an increased level of effective earlier intervention / preventative
people will be able to be supported without need for managed intensive care and support.
Crucially for us this is a place based approach within our communities working closely with
community hubs (now incorporating, but not limited to, information and advice, libraries and
adult education). These are critical to combatting the scourge that is loneliness and social
isolation. Figure 2 illustrates how we are working closely with all our partners to really create
connect people to sustainable solutions within they place live.

6
Page 68



Figure 2

The critical areas for the Act implementation are set out in my priorities for improvement
later on in this report.

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act (2015)

There is a great deal of synergy between the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act
and the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act. There is a joined up approach locally, and
regionally, for example to the well-being needs assessment and the population needs
assessment, to ensure there is a complimentary approach. In setting the priorities for Social
Care and Health for 2016/17 and beyond we have been very mindful of the need to balance
short-term priorities with the need to safeguard the ability to meet long-term needs. Each
detailed policy will be evaluated fully to ensure that the future generations well-being goals
are at the heart of everything that is planned and delivered.

Future Monmouthshire

Social Care and Health in Monmouthshire is an integral part of a strategic programme of
‘whole-authority’ work called ‘Future Monmouthshire’. Future Monmouthshire aims to pose
a set of questions about our core purpose as a Council, our relationships with communities,
citizens and stakeholders and our appetite for economic growth and local prosperity — as we
move further forward into a changing public sector landscape. Future Monmouthshire will
see the development of a new operating model for the Council in order to equip it to meet its
goals amidst increasing change and uncertainty. The new operating model will have a clear
purpose: to create the capacity and foresight to develop solutions to some of the county’s
biggest challenges, ensuring that our Council understands the shifting needs and priorities of
communities, positioning itself as an enabler in bringing them about.

The key challenges for Social Care and Health are being addressed through this programme.
For the last four years we have managed the tension of growing public demand for services
and a reducing funding settlement from the Welsh Government. Our communities are
changing: an ageing demography, changing attitudes to community, newly emerging
economies which require new skills and capabilities and the growth of digital technologies
are all impacting the pattern of life, work and play. The time has come to reconsider the role
and purpose of our Council, and Social Care and Health as an integral part. Our financial
settlements over the course of the last four years have seen reduction of £10.215million or
10.03% compared to the Welsh average of 6.21%. Looking forward, we can expect to have to
find a further £14m over the next four years. In this unchartered territory, answering the
guestion about how we continue to deliver and support sustainable social services and
resilient communities, becomes ever more critical.

What we do really well

This section of the report is a flavour of the areas of strengths within Social Care & Health in
Monmouthshire. More detail on these, and other achievements, is included in the Heads of
Service Annual Reports appended to this Director’s Annual Report. There is much to be proud
of, and importantly, that people who experience our services, tell us we are doing well.

7
Page 69



Safeguarding is everyone’s business - Safeguarding is an important area of strength for
Monmouthshire. It is highly assuring to have joined an Authority in which safeguarding
children and adults is such a high priority for the Council. As Chief Officer for Social Care,
Safeguarding and Health, | have responsibility for the Safeguarding and Quality Assurance
Unit which has played a key leadership role in supporting the strong progress made by the
Council in safeguarding children. This was recognised by Estyn in their monitoring visit in
November 2015 which found that the Council has ‘responded well’ to recommendations in
this area. They also noted that ‘the Safeguarding and Quality Assurance Unit (the unit) is a
very useful corporate resource’. Building on success to date, the Whole Authority
Safeguarding Co-ordinating Group (WASCG) is now providing leadership on adults as well as
children’s safeguarding. The safeguarding strategy, work programme and report card will
from hereon in cover adults as well as children’s safeguarding issues. | am confident that safe
recruitment practices are embedded across the Council. This includes the considerable
volunteer workforce we benefit from in Monmouthshire. There is a well-developed audit
process which means we have a really good understanding of how schools and provider
agencies address their safeguarding responsibilities. There are supporting action plans which
are actively monitored to address any issues. We actively work through the regional
safeguarding boards for children and adults, which are now on a statutory footing. Important
reviews (Wales Audit Office, Independent Review of Safeguarding in Monmouthshire by Ellis
Williams and Internal Audit) have been undertaken to assess the current safeguarding
framework and the learning gleaned has contributed to a stock take of the current position
and assess what is needed going forward. Reflection on these reviews by the WASCG has led
us to have a focus on mainstreaming safeguarding into service planning across the Authority
whilst setting direction, prioritising and managing risk and effectively linking with strategic
regional partnerships, through the WASCG.

Talking about what matters - In a number of areas, Monmouthshire social services was in an
advanced position prior to the statutory changes in April 2016; particularly, through the
Changing Practice, Changing Lives programme in adult services. This has delivered a
significant change in culture and practice within social work. The ‘what matters’, strength
based approach to assessment and case management is established. Integrated assessment
isin place, and is now being rolled out across the rest of the Greater Gwent area. Adult teams
in Monmouthshire were part of the National Outcomes pilot. Collaborative Communications
training has proved truly transformational to the adult social care workforce in the way they
work with people to achieve their well-being outcomes.

Integrating Health, Social Care & Well-being - There is a long history of integrated working
in Monmouthshire — health and social care community services for older people work in
integrated teams, from integrated bases, under single management arrangements. Following
the implementation of the new IT system, NHS employed community nursing and therapy
workforce are using a single system. The health and social care workforce have been trained
together on the new Act. There are positive relationships with primary care, and the flow
from the acute services, through an in-reach model to support hospital discharge, with
effective use of community hospital beds, is well-established. There is always more to do, and
a priority for this year is to ensure that the place based approach and integrated working is
reflected in all teams — learning disabilities, mental health and within children’s services; as
well as the current integrated teams. We also intend integrating direct service provision

8
Page 70



within the 3 integrated bases— Monnow Vale in Monmouth, Chepstow Hospital and Mardy
Park in Abergavenny. There are real opportunities to further integrate more health services,
primary care and well-being through the Neighbourhood Care Network place based approach.
An external academic partner will work with us in 2016 to formally evaluate the success of
working in integrated teams over many years.

Remodelling our service offer — Models of support have been remodelled to ensure that they
are truly person centred and start with the person and their aspiration for a good life. | will
give just three examples in this section of the report of those services which have changed to
reflect what matters to people and have a strong evidence base of what works:

1. The in-house homecare service now provides a very individual offer of care and
support. The development of workforce through a really detailed programme of how
to work with people with dementia has supported the very successful roll out of this
model. This very different approach to relationship based care at home service was
piloted in Raglan and is being rolled out across the County. The pilot has shown that
flexible approaches can meet emotional and social needs of people as well as their
physical needs. This way of working has also improved wellbeing for staff and
awareness and connections with local communities.

2. The second example is the way we support people with disabilities to live their own
lives. The ‘My Day My Life’ approach has broadened opportunities and access to
community activities for people. Support staff have taken on a support broker role,
working with people one by one, enabling them to overcome barriers to achieve their
aspirations and dreams, rather than fitting into a service led solution.

3. The third example, is the further development of the BASE service to provide
integrated health and social care support to families (including foster carers and
special guardians) working to support children with complex needs. This is a small,
psychology led, therapeutic team which is providing direct service interventions and
extensive training to the wider workforce and carers, working to an evidence based
model of attachment and support. The service aims to sustain non-residential
placements which are under pressure and support a model of therapeutic foster
carers for children and young people who need additional support.

Connecting People and Communities - The Council has invested in new approaches to tackling
loneliness and social isolation through development of an ‘anatomy of resilience’ at both an
individual and community level. This is a place based approach to wellbeing and prevention.
Community co-ordination and small local enterprise learning pilots have been evaluated.
There have been really inspiring successes in the area of volunteering; people who would
previously have been recipients of service are actively contributing, which supports their own
well-being as well as those of others. A key message is that people need people, and with
some initial support communities can sustain their own solutions. The Rogiet Community
Café, which is run by the community for the community, is a fantastic example of a sustainable
approach to the ‘Social Services and Well-being Act in Action’. The next steps include an
emphasis on creating wider multi agency response at a local level, and ensuring this is an
inclusive approach for children, young people and families — reflecting the focus on ‘people’.

2015/16 Performance

9
Page 71



2014/15 was a year of considerable improvement against key performance measures. As
figure 3 below shows, this was sustained and improved on in some areas, but in other areas
performance levels were not sustained.

® [mproving or at Maximum Unchanged = Declining

Figure 3

Performance indicators can only ever tell part of the story in any service area. The areas where
performance has improved does reflect the intelligence from other sources, quality assurance
and talking to people who experience our service, that the service area is well-placed. For
example, the increase in the number of reviews of adults with care plans and the on-going
reduction in the rate of older people who live in care homes accords with the practice
improvement in adult social work teams. It is important to note that whilst the performance
indicators are not at the level of the previous year in children’s services; most still show a
significant improvement from the 2013/14 position.

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16*

The number of children looked after at 31 March 103 108 129
The number of children on the child protection register on 37 49 33
31 March

The number (and rate per 1000 population) of older 56.59 52.77 53.98
people supported to live at home (1134) (1091) (1148)
The number (and rate per 1000 population) of older 11.33 11.08 10.96
people supported in residential settings (227) (229) (233)
The percentage of adult clients who were reviewed during  82.1% 84.1% 91.3%
the year

The percentage of carers of adults who were offered their 97.3% 99.7% 98.8%
own assessment or review

The percentage of people who were fully independent 54.6% 52.9% 52.5%
following reablement

The percentage of surveyed adult service users who were 90% 93% 93%
satisfied with the services they received

The percentage of children re-referred to children’s 13.3% 13.5% 17.8%

services within a year

10
Page 72



The percentage of initial assessments completed within 7 79.1% 76.8% 70.5%
working days
The percentage of Core Assessments completed within 35 86.7% 84.7% 80.0%
working days

The percentage of children looked after or on the child 100% 100% 100%
protection register with a social worker

The percentage of reviews of looked after children carried 99.6% 100% 98.5%
out on time

The percentage of reviews of children on the child 93.9% 95.5% 93.1%
protection register carried out on time

The average education qualification points score of 16 222 308 241

year olds who have been looked after

Table 1

There has been a frustration with performance in the area of Delayed Transfers of Care
(DToCs) in the last year. The timely discharge of Monmouthshire citizens from hospitals has
long been a strength of integrated working. The integrated teams follow people when they
become inpatients and ‘reach in’ to hospitals to facilitate timely discharge with the right care
and support. This has continued to be the case for the last year, but unfortunately, changes
in the way that DToCs have been recorded and validated have made it appear as if
performance in this very important area of work has deteriorated significantly. In total, health
colleagues reported 42 delays for social care reasons, for 26 people, for Monmouthshire
residents during 2015/16. Aneurin Bevan University Health Board have confirmed that 12
delays (3 people) were Maindiff Court inpatients with no fixed abode. They had been coded
incorrectly as Monmouthshire residents. Removing the Maindiff Court delays leaves us with
30 delays for 23 patients. The breakdown of the delays for these patients is in table 2 below.

< 24 hours 3
1 day 5
2 days 3
3to 7 days 1
8 to 14 days 3
15 to 28 days 3
29 to 56 days 3
57+ days 2
Total 23
Table 2

11
Page 73



10 patients had been delayed for 2 days or less. A small number of patients (5) were delayed
more than 29 days, and there are a variety of reasons for this including legal issues relating to
safeguarding matters. Understanding the true scale and impact of delays is critical to ensuring
that efforts and energy is expended in the right areas to address the complex issues which
can lead to long delays, which are so damaging to people’s health and well-being.

12
Page 74



= How are we doing?

&)L/ Social Care and Health in 2015-16

N @ S

of adults are adult care plans
satisfied with the S olc’xua(}gse:rf::;es reviewe!:l
service they get in 2015-16

150 . . x

100 (=]

.

s 84.2% v
D - e .

more chiliren Statutory visits to * GRel have s
looked after looked after named social
Ch'ldet'i‘;::ne on worker
o
o /‘
1 X¢ Y
i =
dela transfers older people in
ind orm::eafter of care from residential care -
T ——— hospital lowest in Wales
g )- @MonmouthshireCC
w www.monmouthshire.gov.uk
£ i Piktochor

13
Page 75



Financial Performance

This year has seen a challenge on the finance front for Social Care and Health. We had
available budget to us of circa £38 million and at year end delivered an overspend of £1.2
million, which included achievement of mandated savings of repayment towards the new IT
system.

Within the overall financial position, adult services delivered an underspend of £205,000,
against a budget of £29.5million; a fantastic achievement given the budget had reduced by
£1.4 million. Particular success has been obtained from practice change within learning
disabilities as a strategic area for practice change and budget savings. Another particular area
of success has been within the integrated community equipment services, through
negotiation of a new cost apportionment methodology as part of a new section 31
agreement. This resulted in a reduction in spend of £90,000 per annum. Investment to
facilitate change has been important in adult services — the community co-ordination pilot
was supported through reserve investment; Intermediate Care Fund funded a range of
initiatives including dementia training for care workforce.

The second half of the financial position is within Children’s Services. Following significant
investment of £1.321m permanent funding and £153K reserve funding, the outturn was a
£1.4million overspend. This is largely due to the increased number of Looked After Children.
Numbers rose from 108 to 129. A service and financial plan was approved by Cabinet at the
beginning of January, which contained a financial model for achieving financial balance in
children’s services over a 3 year period. This plan secured an additional £1million investment
for the service for 2016/17.

We are currently constructing a commissioning strategy to deal with the increasing Looked
After Children numbers and how effectively they can be supported within our financial
envelope. All our contracts are being reviewed to determine value for money and statutory
funding responsibilities. At the heart of the commissioning strategy is the need to achieve
investment in really good family support services which are able to support children and
families prior to any statutory intervention by social services, and when they are at the ‘edge’
of becoming looked after within the care system.

Workforce Development and Training

Practice Learning (Social Work Students) in Monmouthshire - Monmouthshire County
Council has well-established partnership agreements with Cardiff University Social Work MA
programme and the University of South Wales Newport (USW Newport) Social Work
undergraduate degree programme. We arrange up to 30 Practice Learning Opportunities
(PLOs) each year. These placements are funded by the Practice Learning Opportunity Funding
Scheme this is managed and administered by the Care Council for Wales. We have continued
to benefit from strong partnerships with social work and direct care teams within our
organisation. Alongside this we have been able to place students in a wide range of third
sector organisations. These have provided students with an insight into the varied work
undertaken by the third sector.

14
Page 76



The Practice Learning Development Officer (PLDO) and Staff Development Officer (SDO) work
together to arrange PLOs in statutory agencies and third sector organisations. We provide
support for third sector organisations that do not employ social workers and need off-site
practice assessment for the students placed with them. Each year the training team provide
support for social workers wanting to become practice assessors and to undertake the
appropriate post qualifying training. During 2015/16, two social workers completed the
Enabling Practice PQ and were mentored by the training team.

We recruited 3 students into various teams across the authority from last year’s placement
intake, and are looking to strengthen our links with the HEIs with a view to recruiting more
efficiently in future years.

Post-Qualifying Information — A summary of post-qualifying social work activity is set out
below:

e During 2015/16 nine social workers studied for the Consolidation Programme. Two
social workers studied for Practice Assessor programmes and became first-time
practice assessors

e One senior practitioner completed a module of the CPEL Senior Practitioner
Programme, and one social worker completed the first year of the Experienced
Practitioner Programme

e Two team managers studied for the Team Manager Development Programme

e One social worker studied for the AMHP programme

Ensuring our workforce has the knowledge and skills to do their jobs - there has been a
considerable effort to ensure that the workforce has the necessary knowledge to practice in
accordance with the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act. There has been a regional
and local training programme to social services staff and health staff, third sector and
independent providers and those most affected in corporate roles. Incorporating the culture
shift into practice is being taken forward internally using in-house expertise with the support
of the Transformation Team. We have reframed our training strategy to ensure all training
provided is aligned with the aspirations, principles and practice enshrined in the Act.
Awareness raising has started for other legislation including the Regulation and Inspection
Act and the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015.
In addition, there has been a focus on the skills to meet people’s outcomes, recognising the
needs of Monmouthshire’s population:

e Dementia Care Matters — continuation of last year’s training programme across adult
social care workforce. This will be rolled out to the workforce of commissioned
services from the Autumn of 2016

e Court Skills and Achieving Best Evidence —there will be a regional training programme
from September onwards

e Vocational qualifications - in partnership with local FE colleges and independent
providers, we have enable staff and foster carers to access QCF qualifications in Health
and Social Care L2, L3 and L5 and in the L3 Diploma for Occupational Therapy Support.
We are developing our own staff to become QCF assessors.

15
Page 77



e Supporting social care providers across the sector to ensure staff delivering services
are suitable skilled and qualified to meet the needs of our service users — core training
and more specialist content.

e We are part of a Gwent wide programme to develop and deliver an induction
programme for informal carers new to the role.

e In partnership with Coleg Gwent, a Welsh for Carers training programme has been
developed in recognition of the requirements of Mwy na Geiriau/More than Words.

e Collaborative Communications training has proved transformational for practice in

adult social work teams and will be rolled part of a training programme in children’s services
in the autumn.

Where do we need to do better — Our Priorities for Improvement in 2016/17?

2015/16 has been a transitional year for social services in Monmouthshire. In addition to
changes in statutory leadership, there is also a new Head of Children’s Services appointed in
March 2016, following the departure of the former Head of Service in February 2016. The
Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act has come into force as the legislative basis for social
services in Wales. A new IT system has been implemented which has been designed with
practitioners, to reflect the way that they work in accordance with the new Act. In 2016/17
the benefits from these significant changes in leadership, legislation and systems will start to
be realised.

As set out in the forward, 2015/16 has been a challenging year for children’s services in
Monmouthshire. The service has been focussed on improving practice and performance for a
number of years. An action plan to ensure the areas for improvement identified in the
inspection undertaken by Care and Social Services for Wales (CSSIW) in November 2014 has
driven that improvement. There has been some tangible improvements in key areas such as
contact arrangements and working together with partners to achieve best evidence when
investigations are needed. There is, however, much still to do. It is critical that the
improvements made are embedded sustainably in practice and commissioning. In essence
this means we need a permanent children’s services workforce which is confident in practice,
who can access a range of evidence based support options which can achieve the best
possible outcomes for children and young people; and are delivered within the budget for the
service set by the Council on the basis of really understanding the level of investment needed.

Recognising the pressures within the children’s service, one of my first actions as Director was
to present a 3 year service and financial recovery plan to the Cabinet, which was approved in
January 2016. The plan approved further investment in the service and a clear set of priorities
for workforce development, practice improvement, strategic commissioning and financial
balance. However, addressing the financial resourcing of the service can only ever be part of
the solution. The review undertaken with Institute of Public Care (IPC) to work with the service
provided deep analysis of the work required to deliver excellence outcomes in children’s
services. This was a very thorough piece, reviewing 40 case files as well as other evidence.
The service has fully accepted its findings which reflect, and build on, the analysis within my
early report to Cabinet of the areas where action is needed. We need to get the basics right

16
Page 78



and organise our workforce to deliver them. | am confident we have a clear understanding
and ownership of what our issues are.

It is clear that getting social work practice right is the absolute key to sustainable
improvement in children’s services. Whilst it is important to acknowledge there is some
excellent, child centred practice evident in assessments and care plans, practice is too variable
and not supported systemically. As noted above, improvements in performance indicators
achieved in 2014/15 were not sustained. The workforce, which included significant numbers
of agency staff, struggled to manage the demand upon it, particularly when periods of
unavoidably high levels of absence from work occurred during the summer of 2015.

The granularity of the analysis underlying the variation in practice and performance over the
last 2 years has given me, as the new statutory director, a really in-depth understanding of
where the focus of the improvement programme needs to be. Some areas identified required
immediate address; most critically how we work as a service, and with partners, to ensure
referrals to children’s services are managed so decisions on further action are made
immediately (i.e. within 24 hours), and secondly how administrative staff support the social
work duty system. The other critical areas form part of the children’s services improvement
programme and are actively being addressed in a prioritised way which recognises both the
need for pace, and, based on experience of elsewhere of sustainable cultural and practice
change, the realistic timescales to really embed different ways of working.

The critical areas of improvement to highlight are:

e The need for areally well articulated model of social work practice, so that ‘what good
looks like” in children’s social services is understood by everyone working in, and with,
children’s social services;

e A need to develop the model of intensive family support which works up to the level
of statutory intervention by children’s services, edge of care and rehabilitation from
care;

e Clarity where the current Team Around the Family (TAF) fits within this family support
model, recognising there may be a need to remodel the current offer;

e A new operating model for management of contacts and referrals underpinned by
pathways and protocols for all agencies on how Monmouthshire categorises and
responds to contacts and referrals and a supportive way of working with referrers to
manage risk;

e A review of the role and function of business support as critical to the functioning of
the service;

e Having developed the model of family support, clarity with regard the role of the social
worker in delivery of intensive interventions support for families in need;

e Practice and protocols for applying eligibility to families in need consistent with the
Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act;

e Practice and protocols for undertaking parenting assessments;

e A review of the range and capacity of parenting and attachment support for families;

17
Page 79



e Clarify the roles and case responsibilities of senior practitioners, team managers and
service managers and support managers to operate management arrangements
effectively;

e Ensure quality assurance system is actively driving a cycle of continuous improvement
across the service.

The highest priority for Social Care and Health, and indeed for the Council corporately, in
2016/17 is to deliver a programme for improvement which is based on evidence of what
works in delivering wholesale service improvement. We have a highly skilled, permanent
Head of Children’s Services, who has shown through her leadership of safeguarding in the
Authority that she has the vision and tenacity to drive improvement at pace. We are beginning
to recruit a collaborative leadership team across Social Care and Health. We are building on
the strengths within adult social care and have full support corporately which is giving the
capacity we need. Indeed, we are drawing into this programme the very best people
Monmouthshire has to offer, and will continue to access the external support of IPC where
we need it. We will also work with our local and regional partners in schools, health, police
and provider sector — working collaboratively, and indeed in an integrated way with them,
where it make sense to do so. We will have the support of an external reference group to
advise and challenge us as we progress on our improvement journey.

The culture and practice of continuous improvement is well-developed within adult teams
within Social Care and Health in Monmouthshire. There are a number of improvement
priorities which need to progress at pace in order to maintain the progress in light of reducing
budgets, increasing demand and the role adult services needs to play in the whole service
focus envisioned in this annual report. The strengths based model of social work practice
needs to be continuously reinforced through supervision, coaching, mentoring and quality
assurance systems. The placed based model of well-being and prevention which
Monmouthshire is implementing requires even stronger productive partnerships which
deliver in local areas; drawing in primary care through the Neighbourhood Care Networks,
third sector, Registered Social Landlords and importantly the social capital within
communities. Recognising, there is different levels of social capital within different
communities in Monmouthshire, there will be different challenges for social care and health
to manage people’s needs outside of more traditional statutory services, and this can have
considerable budgetary implications. Finally, Monmouthshire, as other counties in Wales, is
managing a considerable level of risk with external provider markets. This has been evidenced
in recent years with a number of providers being managed through provider performance
procedures for reasons of service quality, financial risk, or both. A critical factor in a county
like Monmouthshire is the ability to recruit and retain a quality workforce of care providers.
Recognising the range of challenges, particularly in the domiciliary market, the ‘Turning the
World Upside Down’ work is looking to radically challenge the traditional task and time basis
of commissioning care and home, with a view to reflecting the lessons from the remodelling
of the in-house homecare service in the reset of the market. This work needs to deliver
tangible outcomes in the coming year; it is clear the current model of commissioning
domiciliary care is not sustainable beyond the short term.

18
Page 80



A critical priority across Social Care and Health is to ensure that the benefits are realised from
the significant investment in development of an in-house IT system to support practice in
adults and children’s services. The development of the new system has been lead by, and is
very well supported by, practitioners and there are benefits already being realised in
integrated teams through health and social care workforce using the system. A pilot has
commenced for 3 schools to be able to directly access the children’s services system which is
at an early stage but improving communications. A full benefits realisation plan is now
needed. It is important that we have well understood support arrangements, both internally
through business support, in-house support; and externally reflected in the Service Level
Agreement with the SRS. The potential is there for the system to provide the management
and performance information to enable a real cycle of continuous improvement. This is an
absolute priority for us. We also need to ensure that practitioners across adults and children’s
services are using the system to its optimum so that there is confidence at all levels in the
management information and performance reports produced.

Summary of Areas for Improvement

The summary of areas for improvement set out below represent a 3 year programme aimed
at ensuring excellence across the board in Social Care and Health.

1. We will deliver a specific, targeted, Programme for Improvement in Children’s Social
Services to deliver excellence in our children’s social services.

e The programme for improvement will have be overseen by the Council’s Senior
Leadership Team and will have the full corporate support of the Council. An external
reference group will act as critical friend to the programme. There will be dedicated
support to the programme, including access to external advice as necessary

o We will develop a practice model for children’s services in Monmouthshire which will
align to the overarching vision for Social Care and Health

e The programme will ensure there is the right capacity and resource to support
improvement in children’s services, at pace but sustainably, with key work streams
in the areas of workforce development, pathway and threshold management,
commissioning, performance and quality and management and support
arrangements.

2. We will implement the Social Services and Well-being Act (2014)
The Social Services and Well-being Act fundamentally changes the legislative basis for
social services in Wales. The priority objectives in implementing the Act in 2016/17 are:
e To ensure that every member of the workforce (internal social care, external
providers, colleagues across the Council, partners) has the training they need to
support delivery of the Act and realise the benefits from it.
e To effectively communicate with people, partners, elected Members and Council
colleagues the important changes as a consequence of the Act
e To review our approaches to information, advice and assistance across adult and
children’s services

19
Page 81



e To work across the Council, with partners and communities to embed a
preventative approach and the active promotion of well-being in everything we do.

e To continue to embed integrated assessment and care planning in social work
practice. This is a proportionate, strength based way of working which focuses of
what people can do, not what they can’t.

e To ensure we work effectively work with partners to implement regional
safeguarding arrangements and embed adult protection orders in our practice.

e To actively promote direct payments as a key enabler for voice and control for
people with care and support needs.

e To develop alternative models of delivery where these provide the best model for
well-being, care and support.

e To realise the benefits for people from the statutory partnership arrangements and
priorities for integration.

e To ensure that people within the secure estate in Monmouthshire are safeguarded
and have their social care needs met.

3. We will, through the Future Monmouthshire programme, set out the future vision for
Social Care and Health in the context of the future of our County

o We will develop our strategic operating model for Social Care and Health as part of
the Council work to articulate its operating model through the Future
Monmouthshire work.

4. We will support people to live the lives they want to live by ensuring they have access
to the timely, quality, information, advice and assistance

o We will review our access points to ensure people are able to easily access the
information and advice they need to make decisions about their own lives.

o We will work with our Greater Gwent colleagues to implement the Dewis
information portal

o We will consider how we best assist people if they require it to access their
community or a commissioned service, looking at options for better links between
the housing gateway and social care access points

e The ‘professional’ front doors into children’s and adult social care will provide
consistent, quality decision making and there will be clear pathways to other IAA
outlets.

5. We will ensure there are coherent models of early intervention, prevention, well-being
with a focus on connecting people, families and communities — place based approach

e Having evaluated the outcomes from community co-ordination, we will build on
what works and develop place based approaches to sustaining and developing social
capital which promotes individual and community well-being and prevents people’s
needs escalating to require commissioned services. We will have particular focus on
tackling the scourge of loneliness and social isolation.

o We will develop a targeted, evidence based model of early intervention and
prevention in children’s services for families that are showing signs of distress to
ensure they can access appropriate support at the earliest opportunity is critical. We
will aim to prevent families reaching a point where it is necessary for children’s social
services to intervene (pre children in need), less still for them to break down to the
stage where their children are taken into care (edge of care services)

20
Page 82




We will work with partners to review current investment from all funding streames,
e.g. core funding, Families First, Supporting People etc. to ensure the right range of
targeted support is in place.

We will work with colleagues across the Council and with our partners and
communities to embed the principle that well-being and prevention is everyone’s
business and every service area can make a considerable contribution to well-being.

6. We will build on the success of our integrated community health and social care teams
to develop place based approaches to well-being, primary, community and social care
based on Neighbourhood Care Network boundaries

We will work with statutory and non- statutory partners within the Neighbourhood
Care Networks to deliver population health systems which integrated primary,
community and social care delivery, alongside well-being and preventative
approaches

We will work through the NCNs to develop resilient place based community
approaches

We will develop the place based approach for all parts of Social Care and Health,
children’s services, learning disabilities and mental health teams, as well as teams
who support older people.

We will review structures and governance in partnership, reflecting a renewed
purpose

Performance measures will be developed which are based on an agreed
understanding of what good looks like.

7. Confident social work practice will facilitate the best possible outcomes for people

Social Workers will spend their time working with people to understand what
matters to them and facilitate them to live the lives they want to live.

We will get the basics right — learning lessons from audits and complaints in key
areas such as child protection, Mental Capacity Act and Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguards.

Strengths based and outcome focussed practice will be embedded in adult and
children’s services.

Progression/ recovery/reablement will be at the heart of social work practice.
Quality assurance systems will support continuous improvement in practice and will
be fully embedded in the way we work. Reflection as an essential part of practice is
critical and a positive approach to learning and review will support us to ensure we
understand people’s experience of us and improve from it.

We will improve the way we work with young people and their families at the critical
time of the transition to adulthood

Where people have care and support needs we will work with them in a way which
empowers them to identify, choose and control the support or care they need to live
life as they want. There will be more direct payments so people can access the
support which is right for them.

8. Safeguarding children and adults at risk is our very highest priority

21
Page 83




Our whole authority safeguarding group will continuing to provide leadership of
safeguarding and ensure all parts of the Council address the priority actions within
the internal audit report

The whole authority group will provide leadership around adult and children
safeguarding, ensuring both are everybody’s business

We will develop statutory regional safeguarding boards with our partners which
will provide partnership leadership to the safeguarding agenda.

We will ensure our workforce are fully trained in use of adult protection and
safeguarding orders

We will continue to work with regional partners to ensure the deprivation of liberty
(DolLs) safeguards are used when needed

9. We will support and develop the whole social care workforce so they have high levels
of confidence, competence and training, underpinned by person centred, values,
behaviours and attitudes.

A new leadership structure for Social Care and Health will be in place.

We will implement the workforce plan for children’s service, the priority outcome
being a stable, permanent workforce

We will work with partners to address critical workforce issues in the care sector
Training and organisational development activity will be aligned to the culture and
values we are developing.

10. We will commission intelligently, informed by a clear evidence base and analysis of
the needs we need to meet. Commissioning and innovative redesign of traditional
services will be based on positive, long term relationships with providers. Links between
practice and commissioning will be strengthened by using information from
assessments and care plans as well as population level assessments.

We will develop an integrated commissioning unit within social care and health
which will embed commissioning as a core function within children’s services

We will commission a new approach to care at home, ‘turning the world of
domiciliary care’ commissioning upside down. We will also continue to address
risks of business sustainability in the sector.

We will reprovide the Council’s residential care for older people with dementia
through an innovative partnership arrangement

Learning disability mandate

Supporting people

We will deliver the remodelling of Mardy Park as an integrated health and social
care hub

We will develop relationships with providers to deliver what matters to people with
a learning disability and mental health problems, including increased community
connection and reduction in dependency on service provision

We will develop a commissioning framework in children’s services and engage with
providers to ensure a full range of services which provide positive outcomes for
children, young people and families

We will continue to explore procurement approaches which ensure we pay a fair
price for care, based on an open book, high trust, relationship

22
Page 84




12. We will integrate commissioning and delivery of health and social care where there
is a clear business case and improved outcomes for people in partnership with ABHB
Health Board and other Greater Gwent Local Authorities. We will explore opportunities
for wider integration and joint working with other partners, such as the police, schools
and housing, where it makes sense to do so.

o We will agree a new s33 agreement for the frailty service

o We will continue to develop our integrated team models, strengthening further the
neighbourhood care networks as the basis for well-being and integration of
primary and community care and also strengthening links with older adult mental
health services.

o We will develop opportunities for further joint and integrated working in learning
disabilities and mental health, learning from the LEAP and BOLD projects in
Caerphilly and Blaenau Gwent

o We will improve joint working between children’s social services and partners in
health, police, education and preventative services, exploring opportunities for
integration where it is in the interest of children, young people and families to do
so.

o  We will build on successful collaborations with partners in the Greater Gwent areas
such as the regional adoption service and frailty service and progress further
collaborations where there is a clear business case.

13. The voice of the people we work with will be at the heart of everything we do

o We will build on the success of the care leaver apprenticeships to ensure we are
doing what matters to children and young people and we involve them fully in all
parts of the service.

e We will co-produce our approaches to well-being, care and support with people
and communities

14. We will align our business systems to support delivery of our priorities.

o We will realise the benefits from our new Flo and Plant systems

o We will ensure our business support is flexible to the way we work

e Each team will understand what good looks like and align measures of
performance

15. We will achieve a balanced budget within adult and children’s services; by doing the
right thing, savings will follow

o We will deliver year 1 of the 3 year financial plan for children’s
o We will deliver the savings mandated to us through improved practice and
commissioning.

Table 3

23
Page 85



Annual Council Report Framework — Children’s Services 2016-17

Introduction

In Children’s Service our primary aim is to work together with others to ensure that
Monmouthshire’s children and young people reach their full potential and live free from the
harmful effects of abuse and neglect. We have established a set of operating principles to
guide us as we work to achieve this.

The purpose of this report is to give an end of year appraisal of Children’s Services, including
information about the teams. The report considers our journey over the last year and outlines
the priorities for service development. It should be read in conjunction with the Chief Officer’s
annual report.

Over the last year, Monmouthshire Children’s Services has continued to deliver services in an
increasingly challenging and complex context. The work plan for the service from April 2015 -
March 2016 was extensive and required the whole service to pull together in developing
systems and processes; improving practice and building partnerships. Some of our
achievements are described in section 3.

However, there remains much to be done and in some areas we are not as far along our path
to improvement as others. In some aspects the service has continued to display signs of
fragility evidenced by inconsistencies in practice, instability within the workforce, and
considerable financial overspend. Some of the particular challenges that we have experienced
are discussed in section 4.

The report has drawn on a number of information sources including statistical and
performance information; feedback from service users, staff and partners; internal reviews
and case audits; and recommendations from our external regulators. Towards the end of the
year, we worked in partnership with the Institute of Public Care (IPC) to undertake an in-depth
review of our service in the context of the research and evidence base regarding achieving
excellence within social care. This was motivated by the recognition that in some areas the
service remained vulnerable and not as prepared as we needed to be in order to meet the
challenges and opportunities presented within the Social Services and Well-being Act. The
resulting IPC report, has helped us arrive at a balanced view of our progress and provided
clear directions for our future plans. Our key priority areas for improvement are set out in
section 5.

1. Service Context

Children’s Services provides a range of services to children, young people and families in
Monmouthshire. There are around 19,000 children who live in Monmouthshire. The service
works with approximately 700 children at any one time. Over the last year there were 3,924
contacts received into the service from a variety of different sources and agencies. This

24
Page 86



resulted in 465 referrals going forward as new pieces of work. At the year-end there were 722
cases open across the service. This included 131 children with a disability, 129 Looked After
Children, 33 children on the Child Protection Register and 31 young people eligible for services
as care leavers.

The current teams within children’s services are:

Children
with
Disability
Team

= & s
-

Children's
Services

Safeguarding ]
Unit Offending

Service

Figure 4

The county covers a large geographical area and is predominantly rural with four
comprehensive schools in Abergavenny, Caldicot, Chepstow and Monmouth and one Special
School for boys with Emotional and Behavioural Difficulties. There are 31 primary schools and
a number of pre-school venues for children. The service works closely with Health, Education,
Adult Services, Police, Housing, 3™ Sector organisations and other Local Authority areas.

Monmouthshire Children’s Services are well represented within a number of local and
regional partnerships allowing us to take a strong role in shaping collaborative and
partnership working. Some of our main partnerships include:

e South East Wales Safeguarding Children’s Board

e Children and Families Partnership Board

e Integrated Youth Offer

e Regional Board Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse & Sexual Violence
e Regional South East Wales Adoption Service

25
Page 87



Within Monmouthshire the arrangements for co-ordinated Early Intervention are led by the
‘Team Around the Family’(TAF) project currently sitting within the partnerships directorate of
the council. The TAF operates through multi-agency meetings within the four comprehensive
school and for early years through the Acorn Centre (Integrated Family Centre). Lead workers
come from within partner agencies and from within the TAF project itself. The TAF was
recognised by IPC as working effectively with children and families requiring early
preventative services through a multi-agency approach.

Children’s Services work with families when there is a requirement for a social-care led plan
of intervention. Often this can be when the difficulties faced by parents have become
entrenched with many barriers to overcome to enable the necessary changes to be made. At
other times a statutory intervention into family life can be seen as the only way to manage
the level of risk in order to ensure a child’s safety and well-being. The main reasons for why
children need support from statutory children’s services remain as illustrated below in figure
5:

Parental
Substance

Abuse Parental

Mental
Health

Domestic
Abuse

Figure 5

All of these reasons for referral can have a significant impact on children reaching their full-
potential due to living in these adverse situations.

Recognising that TAF and Children’s services need to form a continuum of intervention with
an underpinning model for preventative family support is a key area for development.
Operationally there needs to be strong links between the two service areas underpinned by
a shared understanding of step-up and step-down arrangements.

26
Page 88



2. What did Children’s Services Achieve in 2015

The work plan for the service from April 2015 - March 2016 set out some of the areas that we
wanted to focus on over the year. Against this some of our achievements are represented
below in figure 6:

Safeguarding
recognised as as
as area of strong
progress within
the authoirty

Implement
new IT system

Figure 6

During the year 2 contact venues in Monmouth and Caldicot were established delivering child
focused contact to families, where children are not living with their birth parents. A further
venue in Abergavenny is currently being planned.

PLANT, the new IT system for Children’s Services, was implemented in November 2015. This
system continues to be developed to support the practice of our front-facing workers. This
has included a pilot scheme for schools and Education Welfare Officers having direct access
to the system to facilitate information sharing and timely decision making. We need to
continue to develop PLANT as an effective tool for us in for producing performance

27
Page 89



information and the statistical data which is required for Welsh Government. There are plans
in place to further develop this system over the next year.

Alongside colleagues in the Children and Young People Directorate and within the wider
Council, significant work continued regarding safeguarding in the county. This was driven by
the Children’s Services Safeguarding Unit which was recognised by Estyn to be a ‘very useful
corporate resource’. In their monitoring visit in November 2015 Estyn found that the Council
had ‘responded well’ to recommendations and that strong progress had been made in respect
of safeguarding. During the last year work has been undertaken to continue to deliver the
required training across the Council; to continue to provide support and guidance to schools
and partners and to implement our SAFE quality assurance framework for safeguarding.

In November 2015 we launched our BASE project as a therapeutic support for foster carers.
This project helps to support our looked after children through ensuring that their carers and
the wider professional network have the skills to understand and respond to their needs at
an emotional and psychological level. We see BASE as the cornerstone to strengthening our
in-house foster service provision - helping us to keep some of our most vulnerable children
closer to their families and communities.

The Corporate Parenting Group has continued to develop over the year and is chaired by the
Lead Member for Children’s Services. During the past year the service has taken on two
apprentices to develop the Children in Care Group. Our apprentices also attend as members
of the Corporate Parenting Panel to ensure they provide a conduit for the views of children
and young people in care and take back views and tasks from the Corporate Parenting Panel.
From the outset of their time in this role our apprentices have been an asset to the service
and Monmouthshire County Council.

As a service we have continued to maintain our focus on the children and families that we
work with on both a case by basis and as a wider service. Two good examples of this include:

e the summer events hosted by the children with disabilities team to consult and obtain
the views of families and young people in respect of the service we provide and what
they feel they need in the future;

e the young people’s consultation event and safeguarding survey undertaken in
partnership with Monmouthshire Youth Service helping us understand the concerns
of young people and how we might shape our services in response.

Improvements to ensure the Senior Leadership Team and members had a better
understanding of the work of the service, were implemented over the past year. The Head of
Children’s Services attended the Senior Leadership Meeting monthly, to update on progress,
barriers and relevant issues in Children’s Services. In addition Select Committee run by elected
Members scrutinised the work of the service regularly throughout the year on a range of
subjects and topics. The Cabinet Member for Children’s Services met monthly with the Head
of Children’s Services to discuss current issues for Children’s Services. The Lead member also

28
Page 90



spent time during the year, meeting and talking to frontline Social Workers and Youth
Offending staff at a number of meetings and events.

A Members Briefing took place to advise Members on the changes necessary due to the
implementation of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act, from April 2016. This took place in
January 2016. Children’s Services have been attending training on the Act and have been
involved in a number of groups in relation to the implementation of the new Act.

3. What were the key challenges for Children’s Services in 20157

Performance Reporting

Children’s services are required to provide services that are compliant with our statutory
obligation to meet the different needs of children and young people. Some of this is measured
through key performance data. Our end of year profile for the service is illustrated through
the following data in table 4:

Children’s Services

Ref Descripti | 2012/ | 2013/ | 2014/ | 2015/ @ 2014/ | 2015/ | Directi | Targ Est.
on 13 14 15 16 15 16 on of et Quarti
Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual | Wales | Target @ travel Met lein
Av Wales

SCC/004 | The

(NSI) percentag
e of

children
looked
g‘;ti;;"ch 27% | 107%  19% | 85% - 0 .
who have
had three
or more
placemen
ts during
the year
SCC/011( | The

b) percentag
(NSI) e of initial
assessme
nts where Upper
the child 220‘38 321 sr4% | 527%  448%  60% v x | Middl
% %
has been e
seen

alone by
the Social
Worker.
SCC/025 | The

(PAM) percentag
e of 66.9% | 66.3% | 84.5% | 84.2% | 87.7% 90% 7 x
statutory
visits to

29
Page 91



looked
after
children
due in the
year that
took
place in
accordanc
e with
regulation
S.

SCC/033(
d)
(NSI)

The
percentag
e of
young
people
formerly
looked
after with
whom the
authority
isin
contact at
the age of
19.

88.9%

92.3%

88.9%

62.5%

93.3%

100%

SCC/041(
a)
(NSI)

The
percentag
e of
eligible,
relevant
and
former
relevant
children
that have
pathway
plans as
required

68.4%

73.3%

98%

100%

91.2%

98%

SCC/045
(PAM)

The
percentag
e of
reviews
of looked
after
children,
children
on the
Child
Protectio
n Register
and
children
in need
carried
outin line
with the

59.5%

86.1%

93.9%

92.4%

88.9%

95%

Lower
Middl

30
Page 92



statutory
timetable

Scc/o010

The
percentag
e of
referrals
that are
re-
referrals
within 12
months

16.2%
69/42

13.3%
55/41

13.5%
65/48

17.8%
83/46

N/A

12-
30%

N/A

Scc/o14

The
percentag
e of initial
child
protectio
n
conferenc
es duein
the year
which
were held
within 15
working
days of
the
strategy
discussion

84.8%
56/66

93.4%
57/61

75%
57/76

87.7%
64/73

N/A

93.2%

N/A

SCC/015

The
percentag
e of initial
core
group
meetings
due in the
year
which
were held
within 10
working
days of
the initial
child
protectio
n
conferenc
e

34.0%
16/47

96.2%
51/53

87.1%
54/62

88.7%
55/62

N/A

91.5%

N/A

SCc/o16

The
percentag
e of
reviews
of child in
need
plans
carried
outin

19.5%
89/45

57.5%
104/1
81

85.2%
190/2
23

84.4%
239/2
82

N/A

86%

N/A

31
Page 93




accordanc
e with the
statutory

timetable

SCc/021

The
percentag
e of
looked
after
children
reviews
carried
out within
statutory
timescale
s during
the year

100%
296/2
96

99.6%
284/2
85

100%
281/2
81

98.5%
336/3
41

N/A

100%

N/A

SCC/024

The
percentag
e of
children
looked
after
during
the year
with a
Personal
Education
Plan
within 20
school
days of
entering
care or
joining a
new
school in
the year
ending 31
March

81.8%
18/22

67.5%
27/40

87.1%
27/31

65.0%
26/40

N/A

91.7%

N/A

SCC/030
a

The
percentag
e of
young
carers
known to
Social
Services
who were
assessed

100%

54.5%

100%

100%

N/A

100%

N/A

SCC/034

The
percentag
e of child
protectio
n reviews
carried

90.5%
181/2
00

93.9%
155/1
65

95.5%
126/1
32

93.1%
134/1
44

N/A

100%

N/A

32
Page 94




SCC/039

SCC/042(

a)

SCc/043(
a)

out within
statutory
timescale
s during
the year
The
percentag
e of
health
assessme
nts for
looked
after
children
due in the
year that
have
been
undertak
en

The
percentag
e of initial
assessme
nts
complete
d within 7
working
days

The
percentag
e of
required
core
assessme
nts
complete
d within
35
working
days

83.6%
133/1
59

76.5%
277/3
62

81.3%
74/91

87.8%
137/1
56

76.4%
214/2
80

86.7%
78/90

87.7%
114/1
30

76.8%
285/3
71

84.7%
138/1
63

88.9%
169/1 N/A
88

70.5%
210/2 N/A
98

80.0%

72790 /A

87.7%

82.2%

86.7%

N/A

N/A

N/A

Source: End of Year Performance Report June 2016

Table 4

Performance data is important as it provides some quantitative indicators about our
operational activity set against our statutory requirements. In 2014-2015 there was a
focussed effort on driving up some of these key performance indicators. This saw a significant
improvement around areas of activity such as timescales for undertaking review and visits to
our looked after children. Whilst the general trend over recent years continues to be one of
improvement, our performance over the last year has seen some slippage. Some of this was
impacted by our focus on the implementation of PLANT, however, we are now in a position
one again where we must ensure that the use of performance information becomes part of

33
Page 95



our internal management processes. We must continue to develop PLANT so that we have
the right information to inform us locally about our activities as well as contributing to the
wider national development of measuring well-being outcomes for our service users.

Financial Performance

During the year the service continued to experience significant pressure on its budgets with
a £1.4 million overspend despite significant investment of £1.321m permanent funding. The
main reasons for this financial pressure include:- continued demand and high cost placements
particularly in relation to a small cohort of children with complex needs; difficulties in
recruitment resulting in over-reliance on expensive agency and interim cover; increase in legal
costs and social work capacity associated with the complexity of case-work; increase in costs
incurred through increased numbers of looked after children.

The service has seen investment from the council in developing some invest to save business
cases to strengthen our in-house foster care services and our support for children on Special
Guardianship Orders. As we move into the second year of these, reviewing our performance
against these business cases from a financial perspective is now critical.

A service and financial plan was approved by Cabinet at the beginning of January. This
contained within it a model for achieving financial balance in children’s services over a 3 year
period. This plan secured an additional £1milliam investment for the service for 2016/17.

Children’s Services must now continue to closely monitor its expenditure, underpinned by the
wider programmes of workforce development; practice development and improving our
service offer with a particular emphasis on prevention at all levels.

Increased LAC population

Numbers of LAC and CP

140
120
100
80
60

2 \//‘\

20

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

LAC el CP

Figure 7

34
Page 96



At the year-end Monmouthshire’s Looked After Children population was 129 an increase of
21 children based on year-end figures. There has been an upward trend in the number of
looked after children over a number of years. This is set against a downward trend in the
number of children whose names are included on the Child Protection Register — from 49 at
year-end 2015 to 33 at current year end.

Some of the factors which have influenced this trend include:

e Increased level of risk and complexity of cases

e The increased use of court / legal processes to manage risk rather than through a
multi-agency child protection plan

e A lack of a consistent preventative LAC strategy including a coherent, multi-agency
family support strategy and services to support families who experience difficulties

e Theimpact of staff turnover, together with a ‘built-in’ transfer point at the first looked
after child review can undermine the timely implementation of alternative risk
management processes or care plans for rehabilitation

e The increase use by the courts of children being placed at home with their parent(s)
whilst retaining their Looked After Status (Placement with Parent Regulations). The
year-end figure for this was 21 children 12% of the LAC population.

The challenge for our service this year is to develop our preventative approaches at all tiers
of the service to ensure that children become looked after only when this is absolutely in their
best interests and that as soon as it is safe and appropriate for them to return home this is
achieved.

Achieving a stable and confident workforce

The last year has continued to pose challenges for us about our ability to permanently recruit
to the service. At the year-end our workforce comprised 12 agencies workers which is
approximately 22% of the workforce. Reflecting back, some of this relates to out-dated
recruitment methods, and the absence of a consistent strategy for planning around the
training, development and support needs of the existing work-force. We did, however,
develop ‘select the best’ interview models and these certainly helped us make some very
positive recruitment decisions for the service. We can now build on this as we move forward
around our work-force planning and development over the next year.

4, What are Children’s Services working on in 2016-17

Taking a step back to consider our current position, it is clear that as a service we have a
significant improvement agenda ahead of us. Our full service plan is set out within our Service
Improvement Plan.

35
Page 97



Ensuring

Reducing commissioned

our

Developin services get
overspend :-:trengpt’h:a!I best outcomes
based for children

models

Communicating a
clear service
model and
statement of intent

Developing our
partnership and
collaborative
working

Getting the
right On-going
systems and practice

processesin improvement
place

Figure 8

The start of our service planning has been to ask ourselves some searching questions and
being relentless in drilling down to some of the root causes of the presenting difficulties and
challenges. This provides a good foundation for change and a clear sense of the scope of the
changes that are required. Our work with IPC has been fundamental to this: We are at the
point where we have a good sense of the diagnostic and a clear sense of direction and drive
towards some solutions.

The critical areas of improvement to highlight are:

e The need for areally well articulated model of social work practice, so that ‘what good
looks like” in children’s social services is understood by everyone working in, and with,
children’s social services;

e A need to develop the model of intensive family support which works up to the level
of statutory intervention by children’s services, edge of care and rehabilitation from
care;

e Clarity where the current Team Around the Family (TAF) fits within this of family
support model, recognising there may be a need to remodel the current offer;

36
Page 98

Strengthening
our in-house
fostering



e A new operating model for management of contacts and referrals underpinned by
pathways and protocols for all agencies on how Monmouthshire categorises and
responds to contacts and referrals and a supportive way of working with referrers to
manage risk;

e Development of our services for children in long-term foster care and supporting their
pathway to independence as care leavers;

e Areview of the role and function of business support as critical to the functioning of
the service;

e Having developed the model of family support, clarity with regard the role of the social
worker in delivery of intensive interventions support for families in need;

e Practice and protocols for applying eligibility to families in need consistent with the
Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act;

e Practice and protocols for undertaking parenting assessments;

e Areview of the range and capacity of parenting and attachment support for families;

e Clarify the roles and case responsibilities of senior practitioners, team managers and
service managers and support managers to operate management arrangements
effectively;

e Ensure quality assurance system is actively driving a cycle of continuous improvement
across the service.

Addressing these challenges will require a programme approach which captures the inter-
relatedness of many of the areas for development. The key themes for our work going
forward is captured within figure 8 below and will be delivered through three programme
streams (see fig 9) in the context of our transformational agenda as we continue to implement
the Social Services and Well-Being Act.

Clear pathways
and thresholds

i -

Workforce and
staff

development / 2
\ Children's

Qualityand
performance

Services

\Model

Management effective
and support support

arrangements - 2
— _ - services

Figure 8 - Source: IPC Delivering Excellent Practice in Children's Services (Monmouthshire
June 2016)

Commissioning '}

37
Page 99



Transformational
Services

Commissioning
and Services

Workforce

Development

Service Model

Figure 9 - our work-streams

A summary of key tasks within these work streams are as follows:

We will deliver a specific targeted Programme for Improvement to deliver excellence in
our Children’s Social Services

1.

Service Model

We will develop a common shared evidence-based vision and model for the
delivery of children’s services

We will put in place new procedures and policies in each of the identified areas
which support the vision and model of service and include clear key pathways and
business processes

Workforce Development

We will implement a recruitment strategy to reduce our reliance on agency
workers

We will clarify the roles and case responsibilities of senior practitioners, team
managers and service managers and support managers to operate management
arrangements effectively

We will review our business support to ensure business support arrangements are
effective in supporting best social work practice

We will design and deliver a programme of training for social work teams to
support skills development within the new vision and procedures, and the SSWB
Act

Commissioning and Services

We will ensure that there are coherent models of early intervention and
prevention, with a focus on supporting families

38
Page 100




We will develop a model of intensive family support which works up to the level of
statutory intervention by children’s services, edge of care and rehabilitation from
care

Develop and implement a commissioning strategy and secure services to support
families with complex needs

Ensure that there is clarity where the current Team Around the Family (TAF) fits
within this of family support model, recognising there may be a need to remodel
the current offer

Table 5

39
Page 101




Annual Council Report Framework - Adult Services 2016-17

40
Page 102



Head of Service Challenge / ACRF 2016

Head of Service area Overview
This is the opportunity for the Head of Service to provide a brief overview of the current
context of their service area, which will be further substantiated by the detailed self-
evaluation.

Head of Service and Service areas managed?

Adult Services:

Commissioning Team, Integrated service teams in Monmouth, Chepstow and
Abergavenny (Older people) Learning Disability team/ Independent living team Adults
with Physical Disabilities. Mental health teams adult /older people. Safeguarding team
Direct care services: Mardy Park Resource Centre, Severnview Resource Centre, Home
Care support: Dementia, reablement and enablement. Day provision, Budden Crescent,
My Day My Life, Individual support services and Monmouthshire meals.

What is your services purpose & what outcomes do you align to?

Adult Social Care and Health Services are striving to make sure that “people are able to live
their own lives”, and that people are protected from harm. People approach Adult Social
Care Services for support at different times in their lives. We want to support and enable
people to remain in control of their lives, working with people to find options/solutions that
best meet their vision of a good life. We focus on people’s strengths, abilities and
contribution. We enable family/friendship networks and communities alongside services to
support people to live their own lives.
Vision/operating model.
The current vision/operating model is driving the transformation journey and preparing us
for the implementation of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act (2014).
Over the last 4 years we have changed the approach to the way we deliver Adult Social
Care. Like many other local authorities Monmouthshire is faced with the twin challenges of
declining budgets and an ageing population. If we want to keep delivering adult social care
and health in the same old way we need to find another £25 million a year by 2030. Salami
slicing isn’t an option.
The national policy agenda in Wales places great emphasis on a person led approach that
respects that people are the best judges of their own wellbeing/quality of life and what they
need from others (including formal services) to maintain and improve their wellbeing. Our
transformative approach harnesses these values/principles and looks to embed this is all
aspects of delivery.
We are re modelling/transforming what we do ensuring that the approach we take focuses
on and is driven by what people see as their good life and with a real emphasis on delivering
outcomes set by individuals.
What does this mean for people who approach us?

e People are supported at the first point of contact by the most appropriate person,

whether that’s an occupational therapist, a social worker or a district nurse.

41
Page 103



We've changed the way people are supported, discarding the deficit focussed
approach in favour of having conversations with people about what matters to them.
We are re focussing the ways we deliver domiciliary ‘at home’ support away from
episodic to relationship based care.

We are re focussing what practitioners spend their time doing, more time in
communities and less time at desks and we are measuring our performance in terms
of the impact we have had on people’s lives.

We have re focussed how we deliver support to people at home, moving away from
task based to a relationship based approach that places emphasis on emotional as
well as physical wellbeing.

We have re -defined our longer term commissioning intentions in line with the
transformation.

In developing Community Coordination and Small Local Enterprise we aim to see
more people supported in their own communities with a support from family, friends
and natural associations.

Our work with informal Carers is central to all developments and is concentrating on
keeping a support focussed co- produced approach.

A little while ago we developed a short animation which further describes the approach to
delivering Adult Social Care and Health support. https://vimeo.com/77894268

These operating principles guide how we deliver support to people who are in contact with

us;

OPERATING PRINCIPLES:

We will work in partnership to facilitate solutions, building meaningful
rapport/relationships with family’s individuals and partners.

We will know/be clear about the people who we will support in a timely manner.

We will have a plan of how we will support people to develop a ‘whole life’ plan,
and have a method to track progress and communicate effectively. (including
commissioning)

We will take an outcome focused approach to future planning (long term and short
term) with families and individuals to meet their own aspirations and goals.

We will involve the right people at the right time to help people in crisis and will
take responsibility for the appropriate pace and continuity of our on-going
intervention.

We will have honest and transparent conversations with all people.

We will work with and respect other colleagues and challenge systems to ensure
best practice and service delivery.

We will use knowledge to reflect learn and develop on our practice and decisions.

42
Page 104


https://vimeo.com/77894268

Everything we record will be purposeful and proportionate.

We will value and respect our staff and trust their judgement; and promote
wellbeing in the workforce.

Our IT system will work for us.

We will work creatively and equitably within all resources available.

Key Priorities 2014-2017

Developing new models for community living
Place based approaches to wellbeing

Consolidate new ways of working/practice change
Integration with Health

Safeguarding

Infrastructure /workforce development/FLO
Working towards implementing the Act

Where are we currently?

We have a clear purpose and vision based on continuous improvement and
learning through doing.

We have a dedicated, passionate and committed workforce delivering high quality
support and services to enable people to lead full lives.

Building on the success of the Raglan project we are rolling out this approach;
extending the approach using an accredited ‘train the trainer’ approach to deliver
relationship based home support using a cross section of staff from head of service
to frontline home carer.

Real progress using action learning sets to embed person centred approaches and
creating the right conditions for on-going learning and improvement.

A clear commissioning approach that has evolved and developed alongside the
transformation in practice.

A key programme ;‘turning the world upside down’ will develop over the next 18
months with a vision to create a sustainable, flexible and relationship based
approach to commissioned at home support.

Community Coordination and SLE approaches have been evaluated following a two
year learning project. Next steps are to roll out the approach.

Progress in the ‘My Day My Life’ work is beginning to deliver real outcomes for
individuals and is being rolled into other areas in Monmouthshire.

We continue to have high satisfaction levels with services.

Well- being of staff is a key component to our success we continue to survey and
receive high response rates and high levels of well-being reported.

43
Page 105



e An uptake in practice assessing places and professional development
opportunities.

e Extensive training has been delivered in dementia and collaborative
communication and extended mentoring approaches being employed to embed
and sustain learning.

e We are seeing a reduction in spend levels through understanding demand which is
having a positive impact on the budget.

e Community engagement events at Mardy and MDML have generated
opportunities for contribution and co- producing with the community.

Where do we need to be?

A personal outcome approach that addresses wellbeing, with the right conditions for
excellence in practice.
Moving from a deficit based approach to a fully Integrated strengths based approach is
certainly a contemporary challenge.
Since the implementation of the NHS & Community Care Act 1990 we have been
delivering social care through a largely needs led approach which has often remained
service led. The Social Service and Wellbeing Act (Wales) 2014 sets out an extensive and
aspirational approach which will transform how we will deliver support to people over the
coming decade and beyond.
Transforming practice remains a key focus and one which we have invested in heavily in
the last 12 months. As part of the national outcomes framework pilot run in conjunction
with SSIA, we have been able to demonstrate some excellent practice but also has given
us a view of what is still needed to ensure we can “ help people to live their own lives”
The new Social Services and Wellbeing Act (2014) was introduced on the 6TH April and is a
real opportunity to shape the future.
It is imperative that we create the conditions within which practitioners can un- learn and
re learn. There is a need to set free practitioners to develop relationships with people that
really do address what matters to people with much less emphasis on bureaucratic
processes. We also need to ensure that our partners in care delivery within the wider
market share the same values principles and vision.
This all requires time, thinking and reflection. We need to develop a much more relational
approach move away from the reliance on episodic approach to care management and
service delivery. Creating opportunities for practitioners to come together e.g. action
learning sets, themed workshops all aid the learning of a new language and new practice
that is needed.
The question of measurement and knowing if we have done a good job is a key
requirement moving forward. Building confidence with people and being able to measure
the impact using feedback and engaging to evaluate effectiveness of the approach is the
next key challenge
We will also need to :

e Continuing to develop approaches in line with purpose/vision and operating

principles
e Further remodelling of workforce to ensure we have sufficient capacity to
maintain progression at pace.

44
Page 106



Succession planning and growing the skills we need in the workforce to meet the
demands of the new approaches.

Delivering against the transformation budget mandates.
Commissioning that support the person centred/relationship approach.
Embed the safeguarding team that has been reviewed and invested in.

Ensure that we can deliver against the new duties in the Social Services and
Wellbeing Act.

How will we get there?

Table 6

Continued effort and energy drive and leadership at all levels.

Creating the right conditions within which our staff can deliver against purpose
and operating principles.

Keeping sight of purpose and principles and evaluating progress towards these.

Increasingly being able to measure impact using data and stories to evidence we
are improving.

45
Page 107



80T abed

NATIONAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS.

As part of the National Performance indicators Adult Services continues to perform well. There is some context around the changed delayed
transfers of care (DTOC) position between years 14/15 and 15/16. Largely this is accounted for in the change in the way the Health Board now
collects this data. It is also worthy of note that the figures are derived form a once monthly census day count. We have looked at the model of
delivery and the outcomes for people. The outcomes for ensuring people are supported at home in a timely and effective manner remains high
despite the anomaly with the figures.

Adult Services

46

Ref Description 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 | 2015/16 2014/15 | 2015/16 | Direction | Target Est.
Actual Actual Actual Actual Wales Av Target of travel Met Quartile in
Wales
SCA/001 The. rate of delayed transfers of care for 177 183 127 ner " Lower
(NSI) social cafre reasons per 1,000 16 17 12 42 4.83 2.15 x Middle
population aged 75 or over
The rate of older people (aged 65 or
over):
(SIS?I/)OOZ(a) a) Supported i.n the community per 23';5 512'35 5129717 '?13: 67.30 52.77 7 x l\ljlfdpdelra
1,000 population aged 65 or over at the
end of the period
The rate of older people (aged 65 or
over):
SCA/002(b) b) Whom the authority supports in care 13.21 11.33 11.08 10.96 18.82 11.08 N v
(NSI) X 254 227 229 233
homes per 1,000 population aged 65 or
over at the end of the period
The percentage of clients with a care
SCA/007 plan at 31 March whose care plans 54.4% 82.1% 84.1% 91.3% 80.0% 86.4% A v
(PAM) should have been reviewed that were 900/1654 | 1213/1478 | 1036/1232 | 1222/1339 ' ’
reviewed during the year
SCA/018(a) | The percentage of carers of adults who 74.2% 97.3% 99.7% 98.8% 88.3% 100% ¥ x
(PAM) were offered an assessment or review 322/434 675/694 754/756 813/823 ’




60T abed

of their needs in their own right during
the year
The percentage of adult protection
SCA/019 ; . . . 99.59% . . Upper
(NSI) referrals completed where the risk has 80.37% 81.2% 100% 241/242 95.60% 100% Middle
been managed
The percentage of carers of adults who
. . 23.0% 17.0% 14.3% 14.4% o
SCA/018(b) | had an'asses.sment <?r rewevy of their 74/322 115/675 108/754 | 117/813 N/A 17.9% N/A
needs in their own right during the year
The percentage of carers of adults who
were assessed or re-assessed in their 47.3% 47.0% 32.4% 59.8% 0
SCA/018(c) own right during the year who were 35/74 54/155 35/108 70/117 N/A ar% N/A
provided with a service
Table 7

Here is a link to some examples of compliments we have received in the last 12 months that people have sent to us. COMPLIMENT DOC

47



file:///S:/Directorate%20Mgmnt/Strategic%20Planning/Julie's%20Folder/ACRF%20Report%20folder/ACRF%20report%202016%20folder/Documents%20%20-%20links%20for%20ACRF%20folder/Compliments.docx

PROGRESS ON KEY PRIORITIES

Prevention and Early Intervention: Place based approaches to wellbeing.

Getting nearer to an understanding of the ‘anatomy of resilience ‘ at both and individual
and community level and supporting this by delivering place based approaches to
wellbeing has been the focus of Adult Services in the last few years.

This year the Community Coordination and small local enterprise learning pilot has been
evaluated and the next steps include talking the learning to the next level reflecting what
has been learnt in particular the importance of contribution for wellbeing and widening
the approach. This will include an emphasis on creating wider multi agency response at a
local level and developing place based multi-agency teams. We will also be working up
the IAA approach through this model.

Some key headlines from the evaluation conclude that:

“People need people “
“People want to contribute “
From the coordinators perspective:

“alarge part of what | do is listen to where the obstacles are and to where the passion is
and try and address those issues”

“Use all available resources, don’t think this is a one person job, keep track on facilitating
and resist all efforts for you to fix things!”

Here is the full evaluation of the Community Coordination pilot Coco Evaluation and
these two short films that illustrate the impact of this work
.http://corphub/initiatives/VolunteersToolkit/Case%20Study%20Media/Forms/Video/vid
eoplayerpage.aspx?ID=32&FolderCTID=0x0120D520A80800383813F488012C46810784E1
4A7FA036&List=1a5341d2-14bc-463f-bb3f-
056455b9d471&RootFolder=%2Finitiatives%2FVolunteersToolkit%2FCase%20Study%20M

edia%2FDorina%2FAdditional%20Content&RecSrc=%2Finitiatives%2FVolunteersToolkit%
2FCase%20Study%20Media%2FDorina
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ACkQzNBJDVg

By developing approaches to prevention and early intervention we are the addressing
requirements set out in the Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2015:

Population Needs Assessment (Part 2)

Preventative Services (Part 2)

Information Advice Assistance (Part 2)

48
Page 110



file:///S:/Directorate%20Mgmnt/Strategic%20Planning/Julie's%20Folder/ACRF%20Report%20folder/ACRF%20report%202016%20folder/Documents%20%20-%20links%20for%20ACRF%20folder/Coco%20Evaluation.docx
http://corphub/initiatives/VolunteersToolkit/Case%20Study%20Media/Forms/Video/videoplayerpage.aspx?ID=32&FolderCTID=0x0120D520A80800383813F488012C46810784E14A7FA036&List=1a5341d2-14bc-463f-bb3f-056455b9d471&RootFolder=%2Finitiatives%2FVolunteersToolkit%2FCase%20Study%20Media%2FDorina%2FAdditional%20Content&RecSrc=%2Finitiatives%2FVolunteersToolkit%2FCase%20Study%20Media%2FDorina
http://corphub/initiatives/VolunteersToolkit/Case%20Study%20Media/Forms/Video/videoplayerpage.aspx?ID=32&FolderCTID=0x0120D520A80800383813F488012C46810784E14A7FA036&List=1a5341d2-14bc-463f-bb3f-056455b9d471&RootFolder=%2Finitiatives%2FVolunteersToolkit%2FCase%20Study%20Media%2FDorina%2FAdditional%20Content&RecSrc=%2Finitiatives%2FVolunteersToolkit%2FCase%20Study%20Media%2FDorina
http://corphub/initiatives/VolunteersToolkit/Case%20Study%20Media/Forms/Video/videoplayerpage.aspx?ID=32&FolderCTID=0x0120D520A80800383813F488012C46810784E14A7FA036&List=1a5341d2-14bc-463f-bb3f-056455b9d471&RootFolder=%2Finitiatives%2FVolunteersToolkit%2FCase%20Study%20Media%2FDorina%2FAdditional%20Content&RecSrc=%2Finitiatives%2FVolunteersToolkit%2FCase%20Study%20Media%2FDorina
http://corphub/initiatives/VolunteersToolkit/Case%20Study%20Media/Forms/Video/videoplayerpage.aspx?ID=32&FolderCTID=0x0120D520A80800383813F488012C46810784E14A7FA036&List=1a5341d2-14bc-463f-bb3f-056455b9d471&RootFolder=%2Finitiatives%2FVolunteersToolkit%2FCase%20Study%20Media%2FDorina%2FAdditional%20Content&RecSrc=%2Finitiatives%2FVolunteersToolkit%2FCase%20Study%20Media%2FDorina
http://corphub/initiatives/VolunteersToolkit/Case%20Study%20Media/Forms/Video/videoplayerpage.aspx?ID=32&FolderCTID=0x0120D520A80800383813F488012C46810784E14A7FA036&List=1a5341d2-14bc-463f-bb3f-056455b9d471&RootFolder=%2Finitiatives%2FVolunteersToolkit%2FCase%20Study%20Media%2FDorina%2FAdditional%20Content&RecSrc=%2Finitiatives%2FVolunteersToolkit%2FCase%20Study%20Media%2FDorina
http://corphub/initiatives/VolunteersToolkit/Case%20Study%20Media/Forms/Video/videoplayerpage.aspx?ID=32&FolderCTID=0x0120D520A80800383813F488012C46810784E14A7FA036&List=1a5341d2-14bc-463f-bb3f-056455b9d471&RootFolder=%2Finitiatives%2FVolunteersToolkit%2FCase%20Study%20Media%2FDorina%2FAdditional%20Content&RecSrc=%2Finitiatives%2FVolunteersToolkit%2FCase%20Study%20Media%2FDorina
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ACkQzNBJDVg

By developing different approaches ‘offers’ that are place based and enable people to
contribute we are going to be able to manage demand and ensure that people are able to
live their own lives.

Alternative Models of Provision: Developing new models for community living.

As part of the Transformation work in Adult Services we have been re modelling provision
and models of delivery across the whole range of services we deliver.

Developing models of support that are truly person centred and start from the person
and their aspiration for a good life. We will supplement, facilitate and enable people to
remain connected to the things that matter most.

For the purpose of this report | have highlighted two areas in detail ‘My Day My Life’ and
‘Raglan model’ then added links to the grids which hold detail on the other areas. These
also feed the Service improvement plans.

e Carers
e Enhanced Reablement
e MDML

e Shared lives
e Mardy Park Resource Centre Development
e carers grid

Photo folder

RAGLAN MODEL.

Raglan Evaluation

e The Raglan model is an at home support service for older people with dementia.
The original pilot has now been evaluated. This approach is being rolled out county
wide.

e A6 day Dementia care training course has now being delivered via a train the
trainer approach using 10 of our own staff and is now accredited through Dementia
Care matters and University of Surrey. 350 Staff have been trained. It is planned to
broaden this out to the whole sector in 2016/17.

e This work has demonstrated that flexible approaches can meet emotional and social
needs of people as well as their physical needs. Improved wellbeing for staff.
Improved awareness and connections with local community.

e This approach was subject to extensive qualitative and qualitative evaluation.
Qualitative feedback captured extensively by the staff teams continues to evidence
improved outcomes and improved quality of life. ( using i pads and Evernote)

49
Page 111



file:///S:/Directorate%20Mgmnt/Strategic%20Planning/Julie's%20Folder/ACRF%20Report%20folder/ACRF%20report%202016%20folder/Documents%20%20-%20links%20for%20ACRF%20folder/Carers.docx
file:///S:/Directorate%20Mgmnt/Strategic%20Planning/Julie's%20Folder/ACRF%20Report%20folder/ACRF%20report%202016%20folder/Documents%20%20-%20links%20for%20ACRF%20folder/Enhanced%20Reablement.docx
file:///S:/Directorate%20Mgmnt/Strategic%20Planning/Julie's%20Folder/ACRF%20Report%20folder/ACRF%20report%202016%20folder/Documents%20%20-%20links%20for%20ACRF%20folder/MDML.docx
file:///S:/Directorate%20Mgmnt/Strategic%20Planning/Julie's%20Folder/ACRF%20Report%20folder/ACRF%20report%202016%20folder/Documents%20%20-%20links%20for%20ACRF%20folder/SL.docx
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/app/uploads/2015/04/Mardy-Park-Resource-Centre-Development-1.docx
file:///S:/Directorate%20Mgmnt/Strategic%20Planning/Julie's%20Folder/ACRF%20Report%20folder/ACRF%20report%202016%20folder/Documents%20%20-%20links%20for%20ACRF%20folder/Raglan%20Evaluation.pdf

Two highly successful community groups now run by the communities themselves.

This is a ground breaking project that has demonstrated well the value of a person
led approach. This learning has enabled the approach to be widened out and will
form part of the approach we use to develop the independent sectors approach to
care.

We are delivering better outcomes at same cost.

We promote a relationship based experience of receiving care- that supports a more
natural life, promotes choice, control, independence and meets social and emotional
needs of the people we support.

This also supports the informal carer — they are involved and listened to, they will
experience improved choice and control, their health and wellbeing will be supported.

My Day My Life’ broadening opportunities and access to community activities.

MDML

Recognised that old approach to project management was not producing results
and was replaced with engaging frontline staff to set a journey with each person.
Supported staff to take on a support broker role, working with people one by one.
Used action learning sets to embed learning and shape progress supported by Bob
Rhodes (lives through friends).

By starting with a different conversation the individual stories of how this has
changed lives are very powerful.

Pace is variable dependent on level of complexity , examples of opportunities
include; Yam yams music workshop, swimming, Touch trust yoga, tea dances,
bowling, drumming and other sporting activities.

Having established the philosophy in Abergavenny we are now rolling this out to
Monmouth and Chepstow

Some early results show :

Some people requiring less paid support as their networks grow.

Reliance on council transport has decreased with people and families sourcing and
providing their own transport solutions.

20 people have been through the approach one by one, with many more being
supported to access community based activities as opposed to traditional

Tangible Improvement in self-esteem for many people, evidenced in conversations,
dress code, personal hygiene.

People who previously would not converse now approaching others and initiating
conversations

This approach has significantly contributed to a whole system approach that strives
to deliver a person centred approach, examples of huge life impacts are now

50
Page 112



file:///S:/Directorate%20Mgmnt/Strategic%20Planning/Julie's%20Folder/ACRF%20Report%20folder/ACRF%20report%202016%20folder/Documents%20%20-%20links%20for%20ACRF%20folder/MDML.docx

common place. Confidence in this approach is growing with staff who are delivering
the approach, evidenced through the action learning sets.

The roll out of this approach is iterative and builds on the philosophy of what matters to
each person and at a speed that can achieve the aspirations desired.

The approach will continue to be embedded and reviewed across all people who use the
service. We are optimistic that following the success and impact of the approach to date,
however with change that matters there have been barriers to overcome and these will
continue to be worked on. These include: Capacity to manage a programme at a pace
and scale. And some staff are finding this paradigm shift hard to live with.

Safeguarding

The vision around safeguarding is that we have a robust process for managing adult
protection issues but we develop and more proactive preventative approach in the
coming year.

A comprehensive review has been carried out and a new team structure has been
developed and implemented which has enabled management of demand to be more
effectively.

Attached are the POVA and the regional safeguarding plan GWASB

Both of these plans guide the work we carry out to safeguard people in Monmouthshire
Safeguarding procedures are well established across the board but we are working on
gaining momentum around the prevention agenda in Safeguarding. The list below are the
areas for development

e Prevention agenda is underdeveloped.

e Non- criminal investigations and ability to use workforce to deliver this well.
e New Act and changes required.

e New app/ FLO phase 2.

¢ QA and performance data management.

51
Page 113



file:///S:/Directorate%20Mgmnt/Strategic%20Planning/Julie's%20Folder/ACRF%20Report%20folder/ACRF%20report%202016%20folder/Documents%20%20-%20links%20for%20ACRF%20folder/POVA.docx
file:///S:/Directorate%20Mgmnt/Strategic%20Planning/Julie's%20Folder/ACRF%20Report%20folder/ACRF%20report%202016%20folder/Documents%20%20-%20links%20for%20ACRF%20folder/GWASB.doc

COMMISSIONING

r‘lrn' ; -'- do‘”“
nNg the world qpsuﬂ_? , |

onmaouthshiive

sair fynasvooys

A major focus of our commissioning activity for 16/.17 will be the ‘Turning the World
Upside Down’ programme.

e We are working towards developing a new model of * At Home Support’ which is
sustainable and strengths based and which enables people to take responsibility for
their own lives and promotes independence.

e In May 2015 we held a series of events for all existing and interested providers of At
Home Support. This included not only the independent sector but the voluntary sector
and the community. The events were used to signal a desire and commitment to
change.

e We are now embarking on a series of systems thinking workshops with providers who
have expressed an interest in ‘turning the world upside-down’
These will take place in June and July over 6 days respectively.

e The interest in taking a new approach to delivering at home support from a wide range
of providers has been very encouraging we will be taking a co-produced approach to

this. We expect the difference to be significant but this work is only just underway.

e Our overarching aim is to have a new model of At Home Support in place by 2018

Workforce planning/development/FLO.
To deliver support to Adults in Monmouthshire the practice change required and the shift
for all staff is challenging; we are supporting this change by a number of different

mechanisms training and development remains a key theme.

Workforce Development

52
Page 114



file:///S:/Directorate%20Mgmnt/Strategic%20Planning/Julie's%20Folder/ACRF%20Report%20folder/ACRF%20report%202016%20folder/Documents%20%20-%20links%20for%20ACRF%20folder/Workforce%20Development.docx

We have delivered an extensive programme of training and support to staff in the last 12
months and have invested heavily in this as part of the culture shift in practice required
this has included: Personal Outcomes Training, Dementia Care Matters, Collaborative
These have been supplemented by action learning sets to support practice change and
the new IT development (FLO) to support practice change.

As part of this approach we have used ‘Doing it different doing it better ‘(Dibdob)
sessions to continue the development and improvement against our purpose. This year
has seen a number of events including ‘dot to dot’, a market place affair that saw all
aspects of the transformation journey represented so everyone was able to see their bit
in relation to the whole picture.

We have also invested time in checking how staff are feeling in relation to the changes
using a few session at ‘Dibdob’ to check how people are the slide below articulates well
the last time we checked.

Shoe’o’meter

Wellies

“boggy
days”(4)

“keeping
up the
pace”(9

Finally the change in practice across teams and the new IT system requires a new look at
what business support is in moving forwards. A review is underway.

Developing the integration journey.
We have a good working relationship with health partners and we want to be in a
position where we have more explicit autonomy to reduce the levels of bureaucracy and

continue to roll out the approach across the whole integrated service.

Integrated Health

53
Page 115



file:///S:/Directorate%20Mgmnt/Strategic%20Planning/Julie's%20Folder/ACRF%20Report%20folder/ACRF%20report%202016%20folder/Documents%20%20-%20links%20for%20ACRF%20folder/Integrated%20Health.docx

A series of senior management meetings with ABUHB with agreement reached to move
forward.
More work is in scope to pilot a freeing up from organisational processes.

e We have also delivered Integrated Assessment workshops to the Gwent community
to enable sharing of learning.

e All health staff are part of DIDDIB.

e Mental Health approach to Systems work and LEAP are progressing.

e Learning disability will commence systems work in March 15, locally work on
integrating Children’s services (disability team) and LD/ILT is about to be revitalised
with a view towards a 0 to Adulthood service .

e Learning from Mental Health systems work will roll into each area; this is changing
the approach from a heavy medical model to a more co- produced approach.

¢ Involving the whole integrated service in the transformation of practice is the vehicle
to ensure we deliver what matters and reduce duplication.

Permission given to nursing staff to go ahead with practice change.

e People are having ‘what matter’s conversations regardless of which person they
speak to.

e All staff are able to access the integrated assessments avoiding duplication and giving
staff relevant information on which to base their work with people.

e Despite distance travelled there is some way to go the Journey around integration is a
long standing one and we have made real progress.

e Integrated teams working on the same assessment process with a shared vision is a
key achievement, but, we are at a critical point in relation to the integration services
of older people, we will need more autonomy if we are to move forward

e Continue to support and drive change in practice.

e Ensure the measurement framework is delivered and the information assists in
changing practice.

e Continue to work on models/workforce to deliver a sustainable service.

e The task and culture shift is a big challenge and we are not there yet

e Measurement of personal outcomes will tell us how far people “ people are living
their own lives”

Table 8

54
Page 116




2.1

3.1

5.1

Agenda Item 3d

" monmouthshire
WO sir fynwy
Agenda Item
SUBJECT: Welsh Language Monitoring Report 2015/16
MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: 6" July 2016
DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All

PURPOSE:

To ask Cabinet to note the contents of the attached Welsh Language Monitoring Report
2015 — 2016 that has been produced in line with the requirements of the Welsh Language
(Wales) Measure 2011. The Monitoring report details our compliance with areas that the
Welsh Language Commissioner has specified.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

To approve the report as a record of the Council’s activities over the last year in respect of
its compliance with the Welsh Language Scheme. The report will then be forwarded to the
Welsh Language Commissioner’s Office by the 30" June 2016 for their scrutiny, response
and formal approval.

KEY ISSUES:

The Council’s Welsh Language Scheme sets out our commitments for the Welsh
Language for a three year period 2013 -16 and the Annual Monitoring Report gives a
detailed account of our compliance with the detailed time aligned action plan.

The Welsh Language Act 1993 has been formally superseded by the Welsh Language
(Wales) Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards have now replaced the
schemes as of the 30" March 2016.

REASONS:

Monmouthshire County Council has a statutory responsibility to produce an Annual
Monitoring Report under the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

There are no additional financial or human resource implications arising out of this
monitoring report.

Page 117



5.2

10.

The Scheme will be published, on approval, on the Council’s intranet and corporate
website.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS:

There are no significant equality impacts identified in the assessment (Appendix 1).

The actual impacts from this report’s recommendations will be reviewed annually.

CONSULTEES:
All Cabinet members, Deputy Leader and Equality Champion, Senior Management Team,

BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Monmouthshire County Council’s Welsh Language Scheme 2013/16

AUTHOR:
Alan Burkitt Policy Officer Equalities and Welsh Language

CONTACT DETAILS:

Tel: 01633 644010
E-mail: alanburkitt@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 118



Monmouthshire County Council Annual Welsh Language
Monitoring Report 2015-2016

This report reflects Monmouthshire County Council’s progress on its Welsh language commitments
during the financial year 2015-2016.

The report presents data on the required indicators in the following fields in compliance with Standards
158,164 and 170: complaints, staff language skills, Welsh medium training for staff and recruiting to
empty posts (page 3.) This report will be published by 30 June in compliance with Standard 158. Next
year we will present a more detailed analysis of progress and effect

Legislative requirements

This year has been a year of transition from implementing the Welsh Language Scheme under the
Welsh Language Act 1993 to implementing the Welsh Language Standards under the Welsh Language
(Wales) Measure 2011. It has been a very challenging time due to the volume of work and complexity of
the Welsh Language Standards. Having said that due to the level of compliance already in place within
the Council the process has not quite been as difficult as we first thought it would be.

Managing change

In terms of changing functions and systems, and changing hearts and minds we have come a long way.
A challenge for the coming year is to monitor our progress in service delivery and to encourage the
public to take up our Welsh Language service. The response from our service areas has been very
positive and as always has been driven by the Monmouthshire ethos of “if we have to do it we will do it

properly”.

Timetable of key Welsh Language Standards dates 2015-2016

Date Action

June 2015 o Consultation draft of MCC’s Compliance Notice received from Welsh Language
Commissioner

July 2015 e MCC responds to the Draft Welsh Language Standards, challenging 10
Standards.
September e MCC’s Compliance Notice received

e The compliance notice for MCC states that we have to meet 143 standards
within six months and 25 standards within one year. It is comparable with those
issued to the other neighbouring Local Authorities.

Sept 2015- e All Services Areas were represented and engaged through meetings Welsh

March 2016 Language Officer

e Budget allocated within the overall budget to make provision for Welsh
Language (E57k).

March 2016 e Council challenges 3 of the standards - 2 to current standards (9 and 41) and
1 to future standards (64 ) for presentation to the Welsh Language
Commissioner

Page 119



30 March e Implementation date for the majority of the Standards

2016
6™ June ¢ Welsh Language Commissioner only accepts the challenge for standard 64 as
2016 valid which has allowed us an extension to the 30" September 2017 for having

a Welsh Language service available on all receptions

Data required each year from 1 April — 31 March from March 2016

¢ Information on complaints (Standard 158(2); 164(2); 170(2)(d))
e Information on staff language skills (Standard 170(2)(a))

o Welsh medium training for staff (Standard 170 (2)(b+c))

e Recruiting to empty posts (Standard 154, 170(ch)).

Information on complaints (Standard 158(2); 164(2); 170(2)(d))

No complaints were received in 2015-2016:

Information on staff language skills (Standard 170(2)(a))

Welsh Language Skills of Employees as at 31/03/16

Staff Welsh Competency Total staff Beginner | Intermediate | Advanced Fluent

Welsh Language 3,700 24 14 5 27

Welsh language spoken skills by service area at 31 March 2016.

[}
s -
o ° Q
E € c =
o f (0] c j—
00 ] % ] 8
@ £ < 2 °
Chief Executive 1 2 0 2 7
Children and Young People
Services 0 1 0 3 4
Democracy and Regulatory 5 1 0 4 10
Enterprise 5 4 4 7 20
Finance 1 0 1 0 2
Operations 5 1 0 2
Social Care and Health 4 4 0 8 16
Elected Members 3 1 0 1 5
Grand Total 24 14 5 27 72




Welsh medium training for staff (Standard 170 (2)(b+c))

In 2015-16, we ran three separate Welsh Language sessions:-

10 members of staff attended the Cwrs Mynediad Year 1 Cymraeg yn y Gweithle 2 hour 30 week course
provided by MCC Adult Education section.

8 members of staff attended Cwrs Mynediad year 2 Cymraeg yn y Gweithle 2 hour 30 week course also
provided by MCC Adult Education section.

12 members of staff attended a bespoke 2 hour 2x per week Reception course designed and run by
Coleg Gwent.

Recruiting to empty posts (Standard 154, 170(ch)).

Job application processes have been amended to be fully accessible in Welsh in accordance with the
Standards.

Below are the details of advertised posts in 2015 - 2016

(a) The number of vacant/new posts advertised from 1st April 2015 — 31st March 2016; - 250

(b) The number of the vacant/new vacant posts advertised from 1st April 2015 - 31st March 2016 that
had 'Welsh language skills essential'; 10

(c) The number of vacant/new vacant posts advertised from 1st April 2015 — 31st March 2016 that had
'Welsh language skills desirable'; 2

(d) The number of vacant/new posts advertised from 1st April 2015 — 31st March 2016 specified as posts
where it is 'necessary to learn Welsh-language skills when someone is appointed to the post’; - 0

(e) The number of vacant/new posts advertised from 1st April 2015 — 31st March 2016 that 'did not
require Welsh language skills'; 238

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3e
W,

monmouthshire
COUNTY, € o8 NGIL

REPORT

SUBJECT: Proposals for the future provision of public car parks by MCC

MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: 6™ July 2016
DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: all

Note: A summary of consultation feedback is provided — appendix 3. The
complete record of the consultation feedback (appendix 2) is available as
hard copy upon request.

1. PURPOSE

To seek approval to advertise and implement a new car park order and
implement other changes to the provision of public car parks by
Monmouthshire County Council.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1  That members note the contents of the draft car park order and statement of
reasons— appendices la, 1lb, 1c and subsequent to the consultation
exercise and feedback from the Economy and Development Select
Committee, amend the order as follows:

2.1.1 That no charge be introduced for blue badge holders but that all other
regulations apply (short stay, parking outside bays etc.)

2.1.2 That the current charging arrangements for Byefield Lane car Park,
Abergavenny continue (i.e. that no daily charge be introduced but the
Tuesday charge remains).

2.1.3 That the current charging and management arrangements for Welsh
Street Car Park, Chepstow continue (i.e. that Welsh Street does not
become a short stay car park and remains as a long stay car park).

2.1.4 That the offer of a ‘free hour’ parking in Chepstow short stay car parks
and after 4.00 in Abergavenny be suspended until the financial implications
of the new car park order (inclusive of the amendments listed above and
capital investment demands) can be re-assessed to ascertain the
affordability of the free hour offer.

2.1.5 That the 30 minute free spaces scheduled for introduction in
Glendower Street car park, Monmouth be suspended again awaiting
financial assessment.

2.2  Following amendment that the order be advertised and implementation

commence following the statutory advertisement period (assuming no
judicial challenge).

Page 123



2.3

2.5

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

3.2

3.3

That the introduction of Electric vehicle (EV) charging points proceed
(subject to future income analysis and affordability) in one car park in
Abergavenny, Chepstow and Monmouth and that car park income revenue
be used to create any capital investment required (if over and above the
capital budgets recommended in 2.4 below)

That members acknowledge receipt of a petition titled * Petition to prevent
Monmouthshire County Council introducing daily parking fees at Byefield
car park’ — appendix 6

That capital budgets of (i) £250,000 for new car park ticket machines, (ii)
£300,000 for improvements/refurbishment to existing car parks, EV points
and signage be created and that these be funded by ‘invest to save’ using
revenue generated through the new car park order and management regime
(subject to Council approval of revised 2016/17 capital budget).

That the feasibility of a discounted car park charge for rail users parking in
the Station Car Park, Chepstow be assessed and implemented.

That the asset, maintenance and management of Usk car parks be
transferred to Usk Town Council (subject to ‘claw back’ arrangements
should the car parks or any part thereof be required for some alternative
use).

That Cabinet acknowledge the need and confirm that investigations
continue into the provision of parking facilities for HGV and buses in and
around our towns.

KEY ISSUES

In September 2014 Cabinet received a report on the future management of
car parks. Some decisions were implemented (increase charges,
development of new car parks) but to change the charging regime for all car
parks requires the preparation and publication of a draft car parking order.

The draft car park order includes all changes to the car park management
regime and is subject to statutory consultation. The consultation exercise
took place in April of this year and the feedback (including a summary
schedule) received is provided in appendix 2 and 3.

The feedback from the consultation exercise was scrutinized by the
Economy and Development Select Committee on the 22" April 2016.
Link to minutes:

http://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g284/Printed%20minut
€s%2014th-Apr-
2016%2010.00%20Economy%20and%20Development%20Select%20Com
mittee.pdf?T=1

Page 124


http://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g284/Printed%20minutes%2014th-Apr-2016%2010.00%20Economy%20and%20Development%20Select%20Committee.pdf?T=1
http://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g284/Printed%20minutes%2014th-Apr-2016%2010.00%20Economy%20and%20Development%20Select%20Committee.pdf?T=1
http://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g284/Printed%20minutes%2014th-Apr-2016%2010.00%20Economy%20and%20Development%20Select%20Committee.pdf?T=1
http://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/g284/Printed%20minutes%2014th-Apr-2016%2010.00%20Economy%20and%20Development%20Select%20Committee.pdf?T=1

3.3

4.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

The minutes reflect that members of the select committee showed particular
concern about the impact of blue badge charging and asked Cabinet to give
this due consideration when reviewing the outcome of the consultation
exercise.

The reason behind the service review has been to better reflect the
demands of the various communities and stakeholder groups whilst also
providing a budget to sustain the service and create investment into the
service infrastructure. The exercise has been protracted but the
recommendations in this report will complete the exercise. It should be
acknowledged that implementation will also take significant time and
resource to implement.

REASONS

The proposals were developed after extensive consultation and research
into priorities of various stakeholder groups. The need to modernise the car
park equipment and the general condition of the car parks were also
highlighted and incorporated into the financial modelling for the service. As
a result of the consultation feedback and scrutiny by select committee
Cabinet are now provided with recommendations for amendments to the
draft order that recognise some of the major themes arising through the
consultation exercise but that also include amendments that render the
necessary investment demands affordable. The rationale behind the
amendments is discussed below:

The draft order proposes the introduction of charges for blue badge holders.
The proposal includes mitigation of an extra hour (for example three hours
parking for the price of two). The consultation highlighted concern about
affordability quoting evidence indicating that a larger proportion of disabled
people are in poverty than within the general population. This was not tested
out in the context of those disabled that have use of a car but generally
scrutiny members seemed sympathetic.

Charging blue badge holders has been introduced in some other local
authorities (evidenced in the select committee reports). However it is
suggested that the authority does not proceed with charging blue badge
holders at this time. There is a financial impact by taking this decision but it
is feasible if other recommendations of amendments to the draft order
(included in the recommendations discussed below) are also pursued.

The draft order proposes introducing a daily charge for Byefield Lane car
park. Consultation highlighted that this is presently the only free car park
(excluding Tuesdays) In Abergavenny so to introduce a daily charge would
have a significant impact upon retail workers and others working within the
town centre. Although it was recognised early on in the review that the
demands of each town are different, the loss of any free parking provision is
recognised as of major impact for part time, low paid workers. As such it is
suggested that the car park charging remain as is i.e. free (excluding
Tuesdays) and financial modelling be adjusted accordingly.

Page 125



4.1.4 The draft order proposes that Welsh Street Car park is designated a short

4.1.5

4.1.6

4.1.7

stay car park (i.e. parking for a maximum of 4 hours) but that the Drill Hall
car park should have a reduced (long stay) daily charge of £1 to increase its
usage and make it an attractive alternative for long stay parking when
Welsh St becomes short stay. The consultation highlighted concern
amongst workers that routinely use Welsh Street all day that the alternative
long stay parking is too remote from their workplace. The exercise also
generated feedback that the reduced charge in the Drill Hall would increase
usage significantly rendering it more difficult to park for the local residents
that rely upon the car park to provide off street parking to park, the outcome
being the risk of greater congestion by increased on street parking. The
feedback suggests that the assessment of long stay users in Welsh Street
may have been underestimated so the proposal will create unanticipated
parking problems. As such it is suggested that the order be revised that
Welsh Street remains a long stay car park but in light of this amendment
reducing pressure upon other long stay car parks that Drill Hall car park
does become a £1 all day car park.

The draft order proposes a charge being introduced at the Station car park,
Chepstow. Feedback indicated that the car park is widely used by train
travellers and it would be unfortunate if public transport became less
attractive to users due to the introduction of a charge for car parking. In
discussion the feasibility of subsidised parking solely for rail users has been
suggested. Therefore it is recommended that the order retains the charge
but that officers investigate discounted parking for rail users parking in
Station car park.

Some of the original proposals in the draft order, amongst others, create
income which is used to invest back into the car park service. Following the
consultation and in light of the recommendations above to amend the order,
which will all reduce income, it is suggested that for the time being the free
hour parking in Chepstow short stay car parks and in Abergavenny car
parks after 4.00 p.m. also included in the draft order, are postponed until
such time as the financial impact of the revised order is clear. Also that the
proposed 30 minute free parking spaces in Glendower Street Car park,
Monmouth do not proceed for the time being. A revised budget forecast to
reflect the amendments is provided in appendix 4 but it should be
emphasised that the actual outcome will obviously be affected by how
motorists might change their travelling and parking arrangements so it
would be prudent to assess this prior to introducing the new ‘free parking’
proposals which will further reduce revenue income.

The recommendations include the creation of budgets for reinvestment into
the service infrastructure, particularly the pay and display machines,
signage and essential repairs to the fabric (line markings surface conditions
etc.). The need for investment is essential as the existing pay machine
design is now obsolete. However the new machines will allow the various
permutations on ticket selection now being offered to be easily managed
and offer options to pay by card rather simply by cash. Similarly signage can
be brought up to date and directional signage improved (one of the
recommendations of the review). Furthermore EV points are recommended

Page 126



for installation in one car park in each town ( Abergavenny, Chepstow and
Monmouth).

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS;
A forecast of the financial impact of the amended proposals is given in
appendix 4 and includes a comparison to the original forecast that was first
reported to the Economy and Development select Committee in July 2014.
A summary of the resource implications is shown below highlighting a
possible net benefit of £36,000 to the authority if proposals are approved.
Total New Commitments Total Cash Savings/Benefits
Loan For New Machines 30,000 | Price Increases 156,312
Loan for Car Park Refurbishment 36,000 | Introduction of New Charges 118,299
Loan For Granville/Rockfield Car Parks 50,000
Historical Budget Deficit 110,000
Free Spaces Glendower Street 12,000
238,000 274,611
TOTAL NET BENEFIT 36,611

7.

9.

Members will note that the report recommends the creation of two capital
budgets totalling £550,000 in 2016/17 that, if approved, will be reported to
Council as an amendment to the Council’'s 2016/17 capital budget.

FUTURE GENERATIONS & EQUALITY ASSESSMENT:

An FGA assessment was presented to the Economy and Development Select
committee in April 2016. This is replicated as appendix 6 as it remains relevant.
However the FGA highlighted the impact upon the disabled of the introduction
of a charge for parking for blue badge holders. If the recommendations of this
report are approved then this negative impact will have been addressed by
members.

SAFEGUARDING ASSESSMENT:
No risks arise in relation to safeguarding as a result of this report.

CONSULTEES:

SLT
Cabinet members

BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Previous reports to Cabinet and the Economy and Development Select committee
referenced within this report.

AUTHORS

Roger Hoggins, Head of Operations

Page 127



CONTACT DETAILS: rogerhoggins@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Amanda Perrin, Car Park Manager
CONTACT DETAILS: amandaperrin@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 128


mailto:rogerhoggins@monmouthshire.gov.uk
mailto:amandaperrin@monmouthshire.gov.uk

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL Appendix 1A
SECTIONS 32, 33,34 and 35 - ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984
MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL (OFF STREET PARKING PLACES) ORDER 2016
NOTICE OF INTENTION TO MAKE A PERMANENT ORDER

Notice is hereby given that Monmouthshire County Council of County Hall, The Rhadyr, Usk NP15 1GA
propose to make an order under sections 32,33,34 and 35 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984

Effect of the Order:

1. Designate all car parks as long, short stay or non charging

Long Stay Charging Car Parks Short Stay Charging Car Parks

Bus Station Car Park, Abergavenny Brewery Yard Car Park, Abergavenny
Byefield Lane Car Park, Abergavenny Tiverton Place Car Park, Abergavenny
Castle Street Car Park, Abergavenny Trinity Terrace Car Park, Abergavenny
Fairfield Car Park, Abergavenny Nelson Street Car Park, Chepstow
Tudor Street Car Park, Abergavenny Welsh Street Car Park, Chepstow
Castle Dell Car Park, Chepstow Chippenham Car Park, Monmouth

Drill Hall Car Park, Chepstow Glendower Street Car Park, Monmouth

Station Road Car Park, Chepstow

The Station Car Park, Chepstow

Cattle Market Car Park,Monmouth

Cornwall House Car Park,Monmouth

Cinderhill Street Car Park, Monmouth

Wyebridge Car Park, Monmouth (Proposed new car park)
Monnow Street Car Park, Monmouth

Rockfield Road Car Park, Monmouth (Proposed new car park)
Rowing Club Car Park, Monmouth

Sports Ground Entrance Car Park, Monmouth

Rogiet Playing Field Car Park, Rogiet

Non Charging Car Parks

Jubilee Way Car Park, Caldicot
Woodstock Way Car Park, Caldicot
Goytre Car Park, Goytre

Main Road Car Park, Gilwern

Magor Square Car Park, Magor
Sycamore Terrace Car Park, Magor
Withy Close Car Park, Magor
Chepstow Road Car Park, Raglan
Maryport Street North Car Park, Usk
Maryport Street South Car Park, Usk
Twyn Square Car Park, Usk

2. That charges be introduced Monday to Saturday in the following car parks:
Byefield Lane car park, Abergavenny charged @ £1.00 per day

Charges at Cinderhill Street Car Park and Rowing Club Car Park, Monmouth be introduced on
completion of the proposed free car park on Rockfield Road @ £1.00 per day.

Station Road Car Park, Chepstow, charged as current long stay car parks.

The Station Car Park, Chepstow charged @ £1.00 per day
Page 129



10.

11.

12.

13.
14.

15.

That an all-day charge of £1.00 be introduced at Drill Hall Car Park, Chepstow

That Blue Badge holders pay to park in all charging car parks with a concession of an additional
free hour’s parking over the tariff paid. Subject to new pay machines being installed.

That the Sports Ground Entrance Car Park, Monmouth be designated Long Stay for Season Permit
holders only.

That the boundary of Chippenham Car Park, Monmouth be extended to include the access road
(Plan T226)

That 8 car parking spaces be designated free for a maximum of 30 minutes at Glendower Street car
park, Monmouth. Subject to new pay machines being installed.(Plan 229A)

There will be no charge at any council car park after 4pm in Abergavenny.

That a first free hour be introduced at the designated short stay car parks of Nelson Street and
Welsh Street, Chepstow. Subject to new pay machines being installed.

To introduce a five day/weekly parking ticket in Long stay car parks at a reduced rate of £15.00 and
£18.00 respectively at current charges. Subject to new pay machines being installed.

That Parent and Toddler car parking spaces be introduced within the following car parks;
Castle Street Car Park, Fairfield Car Park, Abergavenny

Nelson Street Car Park Chepstow, Welsh Street Car Park, Chepstow

Cattle Market Car Park, Monmouth Glendower Street Car Park, Monmouth

A maximum stay of 20 minutes loading/unloading within the loading bay at Glendower Street car
park. (Plan 229A)

That the existing season permit be replaced with a designated season permit for either long stay,
short stay or for the reduced rate car parks.

Introduce a parking charge of £2 per day at Rogiet Playing Field car park.

That the new car parks at Rockfield Road, Monmouth (Plan T232) Wyebridge Street, Monmouth (Plan
T233) and Chepstow Road, Raglan (Plan T238) be included within the Parking Order.

The overstay charge will only be applicable in long stay car parks. There will no permitted return within
two hours at any short stay car park.

A copy of the Draft Order, Statement of Reasons for making the order, the Monmouthshire County
Council (Off Street Parking Places) Order 1996, Momouthshire County Council (Off Street Parking
Places) (Amendment No. 1) Order 2001, Monmouthshire County Council (Off Street Parking Places)
(Amendment No. 2) Order 2010 (which will be affected by the proposed order) may be examined
during normal office hours at :

County Hall, The Rhadyr, Usk NP151GA

Abergavenny One Stop Shop, Cross Street, Abergavenny NP7 5HD

Caldicot Community Hub, Woodstock Way, Caldicot NP264DB

Chepstow Community Hub, Library Building, Manor Way, Chepstow NP16 5HZ
Monmouth Community Hub, Library Building,Rolls Hall, Monmouth NP253BY
Usk Community Hub, 35 Maryport Street, Usk NP151AE

By visiting www.monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 130


http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/

Representations or objections should be made in writing to Roger Hoggins, Head of Operations, PO
Box 106 Caldicot NP26 9AN or alternatively by email to carparking@monmouthshire.gov.uk no later
than 22 April 2016

If you wish to obtain further information about these proposals please telephone the Car Parking
Section on 01633 644702

Dated: 08 March 2016

Roger Hoggins

Head of Operations
Monmouthshire County Council
The Rhadyr

Usk

NP151GA

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

(OFF-STREET PARKING PLACES) ORDER 2016

Monmouthshire County Council (hereinafter called “the Council’) in exercise of its
powers under section 32,33,34 and 35 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984
(hereinafter called “the 1984 Act”) and Traffic Management Act 2004 after
consultation with the Chief Officer of Police in accordance with paragraph 20 of

Schedule 9 to the 1984 Act hereby makes the following Order:-

PART 1

GENERAL
1. This Order shall come into operation on the day of two
thousand and sixteen and may be cited as “the Monmouthshire County

Council (Off-Street Parking Places) Order 2016”.

2. The Monmouthshire County Council (Off-Street Parking Places) Order 1996

as amended is hereby revoked.

3. (1) In this Order, except where the context otherwise requires, the following

expressions have the meanings hereby assigned to them:-

“‘Authorised Officer” means a person authorised by or on behalf of the

Council to supervise any Parking Place or a police constable in uniform.

“Contravention Fee” means a charge payable to the Council and

specified in Articles 36 to 40 inclusive.

Page 133



“Contravention Notice” means a notice issued by an Authorised Officer of

the Council in accordance with the provisions of Article 41.

“Council Offices” means:-

(i) County Hall, The Rhadyr Usk NP15 1GA; or

(ii) Monmouth Community Hub, Priory Street, Monmouth NP25 3XA
or

(iii) Caldicot Community Hub Woodstock Way, Caldicot, NP6 4DB: or

(iv)  Abergavenny Area Office, Market Hall, Cross Street,
Abergavenny, NP7 5HD; or

(v) Chepstow Community Hub, Library Building Manor Way,

Chepstow NP16 5HZ

(vi) Usk Community Hub 35 Maryport Street Usk, NP15 1AE

“Charging Car Parks” means those parking places specified in column 1

of the Schedule and shown numbered

1,2,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,13,15,16,17,18,19,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34,35, 37

and 42 inclusive.

“Days of Operation” means the days prescribed in column 3 of the

Schedule.

“Disabled Persons Vehicle permitted to park in designated disabled bays”

means:-

(i) an invalid carriage as defined in section 136(5) of the 1984 Act: or

Page 134



(i) a vehicle issued for a disabled person by the Department of

Health in lieu of an invalid carriage; or

(iii) any vehicle which bears at the front or rear in a conspicuous
position a badge issued by any local authority to the driver in
pursuance of section 21 of the Chronically Sick and Disabled

Persons Act 1970.

“Driver” in relation to a vehicle waiting in a Parking Place means the

person driving the vehicle at the time it was left in the Parking Place.

‘Excess Charge” means a charge of £5 payable, in accordance with the
provisions of Article 32, by the Driver of any vehicle parked in Long Stay

Charging Car Park between the hours of 9 a.m. and 5 p.m.

“Hours of Operation” means the period prescribed in column 4 of the

Schedule.

‘Loading Bay” means the loading bay area at Glendower Street Car Park

Monmouth identified hatched in Blue on the plan no. T229a.

“Owner” in relation to a vehicle which is required to be licensed under the
provisions of the Vehicle Excise and Registration Act 1994 means the
person in whose name the vehicle was registered under the said Act on

the date on which the vehicle was left in the Parking Place in question.

Page 135



“Driver” in relation to a vehicle waiting in a Parking Place means the

person driving the vehicle at the time it was left in the Parking Place

‘Parent and Toddler Parking Place” means any parking bay
designated for the sole use of an adult with a child travelling in the
vehicle using such a parking bay .

‘Parking Fee” means the sum to be paid in accordance with the
provisions of this Order and as specified in column 5 of the Schedule
by the Driver of any vehicle left in a Charging Car Park and for the
avoidance of doubt where any vehicle tows any other vehicle into a
Charging Car Park the appropriate Parking Fee shall be paid in

respect of each vehicle.

“Parking Permit” means a permit issued by the Council under the
provisions of Article 47 to include season permits for use in long stay
car parks and season permits for use in short stay car parks and

permits that may only be used in specific car parks.

“Parking Place” means a place specified in column 1 of the Schedule
and provided by the Council pursuant to section 32(1) of the 1984 Act
for the purpose of vehicle parking within the area outlined in red and
being the car parks identified on the corresponding Plan numbered

and identified in that column.
“Parking Ticket’ means any ticket issued from a Ticket Machine or

issued by an Authorised Officer at a Charging Car Park including

weekly tickets and five(5) day tickets.

Page 136



(2)

“Permitted Position” means, where parking bays are provided, wholly

within a bay marked on the Placing Place.

“Permitted Vehicles” means a motor car, motor cycle, invalid carriage
as defined in section 136 of the 1984 Act, commercial vehicles not
exceeding 2.5 tonnes unladen weight, caravan, trailer and pedal

cycles.

“Plan” means a plan attached to and forming part of this Order.

“Public Service Vehicle” means a motor vehicle of a type defined in

section 1 of the Public Passenger Vehicles Act 1981.

‘the Schedule” means the Schedule attached to and forming part of

this Order.

“Ticket Machine” means an apparatus provided by the Council at any
Charging Car Park and which is designed to indicate on a Parking
Ticket the time at which a vehicle arrived and the time at which it
ought to leave or one or other of these items.

“Vehicle” includes motor cycle, caravan, trailer and pedal cycle.

For the purposes of this Order where a vehicle is drawing a trailer or

caravan the vehicle and the trailer or caravan shall be deemed to be

Page 137



)

S

®)

separate vehicles and the driver of the leading vehicle shall be

deemed to be the driver of both the vehicles.

References in this Order to any Article without further designation

shall be construed as a reference to the Article so numbered

Any reference in this Order to any enactment shall be construed as a
reference to that enactment as amended, extended, modified or re-

enacted by any subsequent enactment.

The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply for the interpretation of this
Order as it applies for the interpretation of an Act of Parliament, and
as if for the purposes of section 22 of that Act this Order were an Act
of Parliament and the provisions revoked by Article 2 were

enactments thereby repealed.

PART Il

USE OF PARKING PLACES — GENERAL

Except with the written authority of the Council no Parking Place may be

used other than as a parking place for such classes of vehicle as are
specified in relation to that Parking Place in column 2 of the Schedule on
the Days of Operation and during the Hours of Operation and in

accordance with the following provisions of this Order.

Except with the written authority of the Council the Driver of a vehicle

shall not permit the vehicle to wait in a Parking Place for longer than the

Page 138



maximum period permitted for waiting specified in column 6 of the

Schedule in relation to that Parking Place.

No person shall use a Parking Place or any part thereof which has been

closed in part or in whole by authority of the Council.

The Driver of a vehicle using a Parking Place shall not permit the vehicle

to be left in that Parking Place otherwise than in the Permitted Position.

Where in a Parking Place signs are erected or surface markings are laid
for the purpose of indicating that part of the Parking Place is reserved no
person shall allow a vehicle to be left within such part of a Parking Place
unless such person is the holder of a valid Parking Permit authorising
them to park within that part of the Parking Place PROVIDED THAT they
shall only park within that part of the Parking Place in accordance with

any terms and conditions which are attached to their Parking Permit.

No person shall without the written authority of the Council while a vehicle
is in a Parking Place use the Parking Place for any purpose other than
parking the vehicle, boarding or alighting from the vehicle or taking articles
out of or into the vehicle, and in particular but without prejudice to the

generality of the foregoing provisions of this Article shall not:-
(a) carry out any work of construction, overhauling, alteration, cleaning

or repair in respect of the vehicle except such as may be necessary

to enable the vehicle to be moved from the Parking Place;

Page 139



(b) use the vehicle in connection with the sale of any article to persons
in or near the Parking Place or in connection with the selling or

offering for hire of his or someone else’s skill or services;

(c) use the vehicle for the purpose of storing any goods or materials
with a view to selling or delivering such articles to persons in or near

. to the Parking Place.

10. No person shall use any part of a Parking Place or any vehicle left in a

Parking Place:

(i) for sleeping or camping purposes; or

(j) for eating or cooking purposes.

14 No person shall permit a vehicle other than a Disabled Persons Vehicle a
Motor Cycle or Pedal Cycle to wait in any part of a Parking Place which the
Council has set aside only for the parking of Disabled Persons Vehicles
Motor Cycles and/or Pedal Cycles.

(i) There will be no concession for disabled drivers; the appropriate
charge must be paid (other than the additional permitted period as set
out in Article 12)

12 Vehicles carrying a disabled person and displaying a blue badge will be
permitted to park in any available bay and will benefit from receiving an
additional hour free in addition to the time permitted on the payment

made.

Page 140



13 No person shall permit a vehicle other than a vehicle carrying a
child to park in a parking bay within Car Parks indentified in Column 1 of
the Schedule being car parks 6,7,16,19,26, and 31 where parent and toddler
bays are designated for that purpose

14 No person shall in any Parking Place:

(i) erect or cause or permit to be erected any tent, booth, stand, building

or other structure without the written consent of the Council; or
(1) light or cause or permit to be lit any fire.

15 The Driver of a vehicle other than a caravan, trailer or pedal cycle shall not
permit that vehicle to be left in a Parking Place unless the vehicle is licensed
in accordance with the provisions of section 1 of the Vehicle Excise and
Registration Act 1994 and unless there is in relation to the use of the vehicle
by the Driver such a policy of insurance as complies with the requirements of
Part V1 of the Road Traffic Act 1988.

16 No person shall except:-

(a)with the permission of the Council or an Authorised Officer, or

(b)where they have a legal right of access through the Parking Place,

drive any vehicle or ride any pedal cycle or other machine in a Parking

Place other than for the purpose of leaving that vehicle in the Parking

Page 141



y (7

18

19

20

21

Place in accordance with the provisions of this Order or for the purpose of

departing from the Parking Place.

No person shall in a Parking Place destroy, damage, interfere with or deface
any property belonging to the Council and in addition to the penalty provided
by Schedule 2, Part 1, to the Road Traffic Offenders Act 1988 any person so
doing shall be liable for and shall pay to the Council the full cost of repair of

the damage.

No person shall in a Parking Place wantonly shout or otherwise make any
loud noise or sound any horn or other similar instrument or do anything to the
disturbance or annoyance of users of the Parking Place or residents or

occupiers of premises in the neighbourhood.

No person shall in a Parking Place use any threatening, abusive or insulting
words or behaviour with intent to put any person in fear or to provoke a break

of the peace.
No person shall in a Parking Place distribute or cause to be distributed or sell
or cause to be sold any leaflets, pamphlets, papers, journals or any other

similar material or publications without the written consent of the Council.

No person shall within any Parking Place do anything which if the Parking

Place were land in the open air would constitute an offence under the provisions

of the Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978.

Page 142



22 Where in a Parking Place signs are erected or surface markings are laid for

the purpose of:-

(a) indicating the entrance to or exit from the Parking Place; or

(b) indicating that a vehicle using the Parking Place shall proceed in a

specified direction within the Parking Place,

(c)no person shall drive or cause or permit to be driven any vehicle:-

(i) so that it enters the Parking Place otherwise than by an
entrance or  leaves the Parking Place otherwise than by an
exit so indicated; or

(i) in a direction other than that specified.

23 No person shall in a Parking Place cause or permit to be driven any

vehicle in a reckless or dangerous manner or at a speed exceeding 10

m.p.h.

PART III

REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF VEHICLES IN A PARKING PLACE

24 Where an Authorised Officer is of the opinion that any of the

provisions contained in Articles 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 27 44 and

Page 143



25

26

(i)

(ii)

46 have been contravened or not complied with in respect of a vehicle
left in a Parking Place he may remove the vehicle or cause it to be
removed from the Parking Place PROVIDED THAT where a vehicle is
left in a Parking Place in a position other than a Permitted Position an
Authorised Officer may move the vehicle or cause it to be moved to a
Permitted Position or may remove the vehicle or cause it to be

removed from the Parking Place.

In case of emergency an Authorised Officer or any other person duly
authorised by the Council may move or cause to be moved any vehicle left in

a Parking Place to any place he thinks fit.

Any person moving or removing a vehicle in accordance with Article 24 or 25
may do so by towing or driving or in such a manner as he may think
necessary and may take such measures in relation to the vehicle as he may

think necessary to enable him to move or remove it as aforesaid.

When an Authorised Officer moves or removes a vehicle or causes it to be
moved or removed from a Parking Place in accordance with Article 24 or 25
he shall make such arrangements as may be reasonably necessary for the
safe custody of the vehicle but neither such Authorised Officer nor the
Council, its servants or agents shall be liable for any loss or damage to any
such vehicle or its contents arising from or in consequence of the exercise of

the powers contained in Articles 24 and 25.

Section 102 of the 1984 Act shall apply to this Order in respect of the

recovery by the Council of charges for the moving or removal of vehicles in

Page 144



accordance with Articles 24 and 25 for storage and custody of such vehicles

and for disposal of abandoned vehicles.

27 Where a vehicle has been removed from a Parking Place in accordance with

Article 24 or 25 and it appears to the Council to have been abandoned the
Council may sell or otherwise dispose of the vehicle after having made reasonable
enquiry to ascertain the name and address of the owner of the vehicle PROVIDED
THAT the Council shall be deemed to have made reasonable enquiry to ascertain
the name and address of the owner of any vehicle to which this Article applies if it
has taken in relation to that vehicle such steps as may be prescribed by any
regulations for the time being in force by virtue of the 1984 Act, the Refuse Disposal
(Amenity) Act 1978 or any other Act authorising the Council to sell or otherwise

dispose of abandoned vehicles.

PART IV

CHARGES AND CONTRAVENTIONS
28  Subject to the provisions of Article 34, the Driver of a vehicle using:-
(i) a Charging Car Park (excluding that Parking Place numbered 5 in
column 1 of the Schedule and known as Byefield Car Park) between
the hours of 9 a.m. and 4 p.m. and

(ii) the said Byefield Car Park between the hours of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m.

on any day (except Sundays) who is not the holder of a valid Parking

Permit shall

Page 145



29

30

31

(iiiypay the Parking Fee in respect of that Parking Place as specified in

column 5 of the Schedule, and

(iv)affix a Parking Ticket on the dashboard inside the vehicle in respect
of which it was issued so that the date and time of issue or expiry (as
appropriate) of the Parking Ticket may be read by an Authorised Officer
and shall cause the said ticket to be so exhibited at all times while the

vehicle is parked in that Charging Car Park.

The Parking Fee shall be paid:-

(i) by the insertion in a Ticket Machine of a coin or coins, bank notes,
payment cards or tokens such as may be required by the appropriate

Ticket Machine; or

(i) in the case of that Parking Place numbered 5 in column 1 of the
Schedule and known as Byefield Car Park, by payment to an
Authorised Officer making up the amount of the charge for the

period for which payment is being made.

When a Parking Ticket has been exhibited on a vehicle in accordance with
the provisions of Article 28(iv) no person shall remove the Parking Ticket

the vehicle until the vehicle is removed from the Charging Car Park.
Where any vehicle is left in a Charging Car Park and the provisions of

Articles 7, 8 or 9 are contravened a Contravention Fee of sixty pounds (£60)

shall become due.

Page 146



32

33

Where the Driver of a vehicle has left that vehicle in a Long Stay Charging
Car Park and the Driver has purchased a Parking Ticket but has left his
vehicle for longer than the period paid for a Contravention Fee of sixty
pounds (£60) shall become due PROVIDED THAT the Council may waive
payment of that Contravention Fee where the Driver of any vehicle within one
hour of the expiry time specified on the Parking Ticket purchased for that

vehicle on that day has:-

(i) paid the Excess Charge by purchasing an additional ticket from the

Ticket Machine, and

(ii) sent to the Head of Operations of the Council within five
days the original ticket, the additional ticket and the Contravention

Notice.

The Driver of any Disabled Persons Vehicle shall be permitted to remain in a
parking bay for one extra hour over the tariff paid period

Where in any Charging Car Park a Ticket Machine becomes inoperable for
any reason the Driver of any vehicle using any such Parking Place shall when
so requested by an Authorised Officer pay to that Authorised Officer the
appropriate Parking Fee in respect thereof and shall obtain from an
Authorised Officer a Ticket indicating that the appropriate Parking Fee has
been paid and shall display the Parking Ticket in accordance with Article

28(d).

Page 147



35

36

37

38

In the event of the failure of a Ticket Machine at any Charging Car Park the
Council shall be at liberty to operate any such Parking Place by means of an
Authorised Officer in accordance with Article 34 until such time as the failure

is rectified.

Unless it shall be proved to the contrary indications given by a Ticket
Machine of the date and time of issue or expiry (as appropriate) of a Parking
Ticket, of the Parking Fee paid and of the machine number of the issuing

Ticket Machine shall be evidence of such facts for the purpose of:-

(i)  any proceedings for the recovery of any Contravention Fee payable
to the Council in accordance with the provisions of this Order and
of section 35 of the 1984 Act and section 4(3) of the Road Traffic

Offenders Act 1988, and

(i) . any prosecution brought by the Council under section 35A of the

1984 Act.

Subject to Articles 31, 32 and 38 to 40 inclusive, where a Driver has left a
vehicle in a Parking Place otherwise than in accordance with the provisions of
Part Il of this Order a Contravention Fee of one hundred pounds (£100) shall

become due.

Where the Driver of a commercial vehicle exceeding 2.5 tonnes unladen
weight parks the vehicle in a Parking Place other than as permitted in respect
of those Parking Places numbered 3 and 12 in column 1 of the Schedule a

Contravention Fee of one hundred pounds (£100) shall become due.

Page 148



39  Where any vehicle is left in a Parking Place and the provisions of Article 5 are

contravened a Contravention Fee of sixty pounds (£60) shall become due.

40 Where any vehicle is left in a Parking Place and the provisions of Article 9 or
Article 23 are contravened a Contravention Fee of one hundred pounds

(£100) shall become due.

41 Where any vehicle is left at any time in a Parking Place otherwise than in
accordance with the provisions of this Order a Contravention Notice shall be
attached to the vehicle in a conspicuous position by an Authorised Officer

which shall include the following particulars:-

(a) the registration mark of the vehicle or where the vehicle is being used
under a trade licence the number of the trade plate carried by the
vehicle;

(b)the time at which it was noticed that a Contravention Fee specified in

Articles 30 ,31 and 36 to 40 had been incurred.

(c) a statement that the Contravention Fee or Excess Charge (as

appropriate) is required to be paid;

(d)The manner in which the time within which the Contravention Fee or

Excess Charge (as appropriate) should be paid and including:-

(i) where the Contravention Notice relates to payment of a

Contravention Fee a statement referring to the provisions of

Page 149



Article 42 relating to the payment of the Contravention Fee in

the manner specified in that Article; and

(i) where the Contravention Notice relates to payment of the
Excess Charge a statement referring to the provisions of Article
31 relating to the payment of the Excess Charge in the manner

specified in that article.

(k) a statement that it is an offence under this Order and Section 35A of
the 1984 Act for the Driver of a vehicle who has left a vehicle in a
Parking Place to fail to pay the Contravention Fee or Excess Charge

(as appropriate).

42 Subject to Article 43 the Driver of a vehicle in respect of which a
Contravention Fee specified in Articles 30, 31 and 36 to 40 has been incurred shall
pay the Contravention Fee to the Council either by cheque or postal order which
shall be delivered or sent by post so as to reach the County Engineer and Surveyor
of the Council not later than 4.30 p.m. on the thirtieth day following the day on
which the Contravention Fee was incurred or in cash at the Council Offices not later
than aforesaid PROVIDED that if the thirtieth day falls upon a day on which the
Council Offices are closed the period within which the payment of the
Contravention Fee shall be made to the Council shall be extended until 4.30 p.m.

on the next full day on which the Council Offices are open.

43 Where payment of any Contravention Fee specified in Articles 31 , 32 and

37 and 40 is received by the Head of Operations of the Council:-

Page 150



44

(a)not later than 4.30pm on the fourteenth day on which the

Contravention Fee was incurred.

When a Contravention Notice has been attached to a vehicle in accordance
with the provisions of Article 41 no person shall remove the Contravention

Notice from the vehicle until the vehicle is removed from the Parking Place.

PART V

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

45(a) Where the Driver of a vehicle is alleged to be guilty of an offence to

46

which this Order applies the Owner of the vehicle shall give such information
as to the identity of the Driver as he may be requiredto  give by or on
behalf of the Council and such information shall be given in writing if so

required by the Council, and

(b) any other person shall if required as foresaid give in manner
aforesaid any information it is in his power to give which may lead to

the identification of the Driver.

Notwithstanding the fact that a Contravention Notice may have been issued
by an Authorised Officer in respect of a breach of any provision of this Order
and that payment of the Contravention Fee specified in that Contravention

Notice may have been made, the Council shall be entitled to prosecute under

Page 151



47

48

49

50

section 35A of the 1984 Act the Driver of any vehicle who was responsible for

such a breach.

The Council may issue to any person or persons a Parking Permit valid for
use in such Parking Places and on such conditions as may be determined by
the Council and the Council may require payment or payments of such sums

as it may determine prior to the issue of any Parking Permit.

The Council may permit free parking in any of the towns within
Monmouthshire on up to three Saturdays in the run up to Christmas in any

year

Any Parking Ticket issued shall be transferrable on the day of issue between
Charging Car Parks situated in the same town where the Parking Fees

payable in respect of those Charging Car Parks are the same.

Any appeal made to the Council arising out of any contravention of any
‘article’ in the Order will be processed in line with (1) The Civil Enforcement
of Parking Contraventions (General Provision) (ales) (No.2) Regulations
2008 and (23) The Civil Enforcement of Parking Contraventions

(Representations and Appeals) (Wales) Regulations 2008.

Page 152



DATED this day of two thousand and sixteen
GIVEN under the Commons Seal of

MOUNMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Member of the Council

Authorised Signatory

Page 153



1 Bieam uspejun
sauuo) G'z Buipsaoxe

SINOH ¥| weg 0} wdg -onIg- S9[0IYd/\ |BIDIBWIWOD
SINOH 0L wdg 0} weg -ojIQ- sueAele))
(20zZ1 ON ueid)
S3IDIYaA ‘Auuanebiaqy
sinoy /1 ab.ley) oN jybiupiw oy we/ -O}IQ- 90IAIRG JlI9nd ‘uoneis sng ‘¢
Alspenb 00L3
pue Jeak jley 00Z3 wnuue
Jad 00°'06¢£3 Je Bupjed
lwlad uoseag Aejg BuoT
‘kep ||e 003
1o joasay} ped 1o sinoy i Joj
0023 ‘joalay} yed Jo sinoy (L0ZL ON ueld)
€ 10} 0§13 Joasay) ped ‘Auusnebliaqy Med
SINOH #¢ Jo sinoy Z 184y 843 10} 00 L 3 -o0pId- Aeq Aiang S9I2IYSA papIuIed i) uolejs sng ‘¢
Auspenb GzZ13
pue Jeak ey 0GzZ3 wnuue
lad 00°06¢3 1e Bupped
a4 uoseag Aejs Uoys
ainuedap Jo S1y Z Ulylim
uinyal ou Yim sinoy 1oy
00'Z3 4038y} Hed Jo sinoy (00ZL ON ue|d)
€ 10} 0G'L 3 'JodaJay} ped (sAepsan] jdooxs) ‘Auusnebiaqy “Mied
SINOH ¢ 10 sInoY gz 1S4l 98U} 10 00° L3 SINOH |V Req A1an3 S3[DIY3A PapIwISd le) ples Ailamaig |

"aoe|d Bunjieq

(s)aed 1e9 Auuanebiaqy)
wdy pue weg usamjaq

ui Jlem Aew Aepanjeg o} Aepuojy aoe|d Bunjied pasn aq Aew
S3|21Y3A Yd1Yym 10} S3|91YaA jo uoneisadp aoe|d Bunjied ysiym aoe|d
pouad wnuwixepy | papiwsad oy saa4 Bupjied JO SInoH uonesadQ jo sAeq | 40} 3|21YyaA Jo sse|D Buinylied jo aweN
9 NINN1092 S NWN10D ¥ NWN102 € NNN102 ¢ NhN102 } NWN10D

Page 154



Auspenb 0L 3
pue seaf jley 00zF wnuue
lad 00°06£3 e Bunped
Jwisd uoseag Aejg Buo
Aep |le 00 v3
Jo ‘joassy} ped Jo sinoy 4 10y
00°'Z3 -j08lay)} ped Jo sinoy

€ 10} 0G| 3 :Joasay} Hed

(90ZL ON ue|d)
‘Auuanebiaqy

SINOH g 10 sinoy ¢ 3sdiy 8y} 10} 00°L 3 SINOH |1 Aeqg Aen3 S9|2IYs/\ papiwied ed Je) pjaiie /
Aliapenb 0013
pue JeaA jley 00zZ3 wnuue
12d 00°06€3 e Bunied
Juwisd uoseag Aelg Buon
Aep || 00'¥3
Jo ‘joaisy} ped Jo sinoy f 10}
00°C3 :joaiay) Jed Jo sinoy (S0zZL ON ue|d)
€ 1o} 0G'L 3 ‘Jjoaisy) ved ‘AuusneBiaqy ded
SINOH t¢ 10 sInoy z 381} 83U} J0j 00° L3 SINOH || Aeq Aieng S9IOIYaA papiwladg Je) jeaig sisen ‘9
wnuue Jad GZL 3
Nwlisd ey (#0ZL ON ue|d)
psonpay ouy0adg Mied Jed ‘Auuanebliaqy
SINOH 2 Aep |1 0013 SINOH IV Req Aieng S9|2IYSA papiwIed ed Jed pieyaig g
Alsspenb goL 3
pue Jeaf Jey 00ZF wnuue
1ad 00'06€3 ¥e Bupiied
Jwiad uoseas Aeig Buo
‘Aep |18 00'v3
10 !JoaJay)} Jed Jo sinoy 4 1oy (€0ZL "ON ue|d)
0023 -Joaiay) Hed Jo sinoy Auuanebiaqy
€ 10} 0G°L 3 :Josuay) Yed “ed Je)
SINOH 2 10 sinoy g sl 8y} 10} 00°L 3 -ong- Aeqg Aieng SOOIYIA papiued Kioud sAepis v

Page 155



€

SINOH 2

abiey) oN

SINOH |1

Req A1ang

S9JIYSA PapIULIS

(0lzL ueld)
Jooipje) “jied
led Aepp @3jignp |

"ade|d Bunjied
ul yem Aew
S9|21Y3A Y2IYM 10}
poliad wnuwixep

‘widg pue weg usamiaq
Aepinjeg o} Aepuolp
pajels alaym sa|2IYaA
paniwlad Joy saaq Bunjied

aoe|d Bunjied
Jo uonelsadgo
JO SINOH

uonesadQ jo sheqg

pasn aq Aew
aoe|d Bunjied ysiym
10} 3|21Y3A JO sse|)

ase|d
Bupjied jo aweN

9 NWNT02

S NWN102

¥ NWNN102

€ NWN102

¢ NNNT102

I NNN10J

SINOH $Z

Auapenb 0013
pue JeaA jley 00z3 wnuue
Jad 00°'06€3 Je Bupjed
Jwiad uoseas Aejg Buo
Kep ||e 003
10 ‘Jjoaiay} ped Jo sinoy 7 1o}
00°Z3 ‘Joaiay} Wed Jo sinoy
€ 1o} 0G'L 3 ‘Joaiay) ped
Jo sinoy Z 381y 8yj Joj 00°L3

SINOH |V

Aeq Miang

SSPIYSA pajiiad

(6021 ueld)
‘Auuanebiaqy ‘Yed

JeQ J924g Jopn 0L

SIH ¥

Auspenb Gz13
pue Jeak jley 0GZ3 wnuue
lad 00'0613 e Bunjed
Jwlisd uoseag Aejg Loysg
ainuedap Jo Suy Z ulyiIm
uJnjal ou Yym sInoy i Joj
00°Z3 ‘Joalay} Lved Jo sinoy
€ 10} 0G'L 3 ‘Joalay} ped
10 SIN0Y Z 18414 8Y} 404 00" L 3

SINoH |1

Keq A1en3

S8PIYaA pejiled

(80ZL "ON ueld)
‘Auuanebiaqy ‘Yed
JeQ aoews) Auu]

SIH ¥

Aluapenb GzZ13
pue JeaA jjey 0Gz3 wnuue
Jad 00'0613 Je Bupued
Jwiad uosess Aejs poys
ainpedap Jo s1y Z ulypym
uJnjal ou Ypm sinoy 7 oy
00'23 ‘Joasay} Hed Jo sinoy
€ 10} 0G°1 3 ‘joasay} Yed
10 snoy Z isdi} 8y} o) 00°L 3

SINOH ||

Keq faA3

S9[OIYIA PaRIUWLA

(L0ZL "ON ueld)
‘Auusnebiaqy “ied

Je)) a0k|d UOLBAI] ']

Page 156



Aspenb Gz 3
pue Jeah jley 0GzZF wnuue
Jad 00°0613 Je Buniied
lwad uosess Aeis Loys
ainuedap Jo siy g ulyim
uinjal ou yim Aejs winwixew
noy ¢ ‘joassy) Hed Jo sinoy
€ 10} 061 3 'Joauay} Yed
Jo sinoy g 10} 00'L 3 YdIium

(FL2L "ON ueld)
"Mmojsdayn “ed

SINOH ¥ Jayealay) a3l Jnoy isdi4 SINOH |1V Req A1ang S3[0IYaA paniwIed Jen }9a.)s uosieN ‘91
wnuue Jad 6Z13
Juliad ajey (€121 'ON ueld)
paonpay 2ui0adg Mied Jed ‘mojsdayn ed
SINOH ¥2 Aep |l 00°'L3 SINOH IV Aeq Aien3 S9JOIYa/ pajiwIad Jeg ||eH liua 'Sl
(vZlzl ©oN ueld)
SaPIYaA ‘moysday) ‘Bupped
SINOH /| abJey) oN WyBiupiy 03 we, Aeq fueng S0IAI8g Oliqnd yoeoy ||2g 2ised vl
Auspend 0013
pue JeaAk jley 00Z3F wnuue
Jad 00"06€3 Je Bunied
Jwisd uoseas Aejg Buo
fep |1 00 V3
10 ‘joaiay} ped 1o sinoy i 104

SINOH ¢ 0023 -joalay} ped Jo sinoy -onid- -ONd- suenele) (ZLZL "ON ueld)
¢ 10} 0G°13 J0a1y) Jed ‘moisdayn “yied
SINOH ¢ Jo sinoy g }sdi} 84} 104 00°L3 -0nIg- -OjIg- -0)Id- JeQ ||eg 3ised €l
(L1l ON ueld)
JjooIp|ed Med Jed
SINOH 2 abieyn oN SINOH IV Keq A1an3 S9|OIYaA papiwIad Kepn Yo0ISpooAA ‘21

Page 157



(0zzL "oN ueld)
‘Jobe Yied Jen

SINOH $2Z abieyn oN SINOH IV Aeq Aueng S3|2IUaA papiwiad alenbg Jobep zz
(6121 ON ueld)
‘anfo9
SINOH 2 abieyn oN SJINOH |V Keq fiang S3I0IYSA papiwled ‘Sled Jed ankoo 'Lz
(8121 ON ue|d)
‘wism|l Hued
SINOH #Z ab.eyn oN sinoy I feq A1ang S9|2IYaA panIwIad leD peoy ulepy 0z
Alispend GzL3
pue Jeak jley 0Gz3 wnuue
Jad 00°0613 e Bunjied
juwiad uoseag Aeig poys
ainpedap Jo siy Z uiypm
uinjal ou Yyum Aejs wnwiixew
noy ¢ ‘joassy) Hed Jo sinoy
€ 10} 0G'1 3 ‘Joauay} ped (Z121 ON ue|d)
10 sinoy Z 10} 00° L3 UoIym ‘mojsdayn “yed
SINOH ¥ Jayealay) 8l Jnoy 1sdi4 SINOH |IY Req Aisng S9I0IYSA paniwiad JeD 199.41S UsIepA 6L
wnuue Jad GZ13
lwlsd eiey (9121 "oN ueld)
paonpay oul0adg 3ed Jed ‘moysdayn
SINOH ¢z Aep |le 00°L3 SINOH IV Req Aiang S3J2IYaA papIwIRd ‘uonels ayl ‘gl
Alapenb 001 3
pue Jeak jjey 00z3 wnuue
1ad 00°06€3 1€ Bunued
Jwiad uoseas Aeig Buo
Aep |le 003
1o ‘joasay) ped 1o sinoy 4 1o}
00'Z3 ‘Joasay} ped Jo sinoy (GLz1 ON ue|d)
€ 1o} 0G°1 3 ‘Joaiay} ped ‘mojsdayn “ed
SINOH $2Z JO sinoy Z ISy 8y} 10} 00° L3 SINOH |1V Keq fiang S3I2IYSA papiwiad JeD peoy uoneis /1

Page 158



Kuspenb Gz13
pue Jeak jey 0Gz3 wnuue
Jad 00’063 1e Bued
Jwiad uoseas Aejg Hoys
aunpedap Jo siy Z ulyim
unjal ou yum Aejs wnuwixew
lnoy ¢ ‘joasay) ped
10 sInoy € 10} 0§ L3 -Joaiay)

(9221 "ON ueld)
"UINOWUO( “ed

SINOH ¥ ued 1o sinoy Z 10} 00°L3 SINOH |1V Aeq Aiang S30IUSA panIwIad Jen weyuaddiyd ‘gz

(GZZL 'ON ueld)

Kluo Bupped "YINOWUO “Med Je)d

SINOH $2 Jwiad uoseag Aejs Buo SINoH IV Keq A1an3 S9|2IYaA peniwiad punois) spods /2

Aapenb 001 3
pue Jeaf jley 00zZ3F wnuue
Jad 00'06£3 Je Bued
luwad uoseag Aeyg buoT
Aep |le 003
Jo ‘josiay) ped Jo sinoy p Joj

00°Z3 -joaJ8y) Jed Jo sinoy (¥ZZL ON ue|d)

€ 10} 0G°1 3 ‘Joaiy} ped ‘UInowuop “ed

SINOH ¢ 10 sinoy g 3sJl} @Y1 104 00'L 3 SINOH |V Aeq Aisn3 S3[2IYaA pajiwiad Jed 13|\ 3jjeD 92

(ezzl

"ON UB|d) YINOWUOA|

SINOH $Z abieyn oN SINOH IV Req A1an3 S3I0IYBA pPaniWISd ‘pEOY UOXIQ PIO 'SZ

(ZZz1 oN ueld)

JobBep ‘yed

SINOH 2 abieyn oN SINOH IV Aeq Aiang SOI2IYSA papiwISd Jen 9so|n Ey__@ 2
(1zZL ©oN veld) |

"JoBejy

‘Sied Jed 1984

Jayoouysselg/eoelss |

SINOH b2 ab.ieyn oN SINOH IV Aeq Aian3g S3|2IYaA paniwiad alo0wedAs €z

Page 159



0023 408J8y) ped 1o sinoy
€ 10} 0G°L3 ‘Josuay} ed

‘YInowuop
ed JeJ 19ais

SINOH ¥ Jo sunoy z 1841} 84} 104 00° L3 SINOH IV Keq fiang S9[OIYSA paniwIad MOUUOI JO Jeay ¢
(vezzl ueld)
saoeds pajeubisep YINoWUO Yied Jen
S3NUIN 0F 8 ul SaNUI\l O 9314 SINOH |1V Keq Aiang Sa[oIya A papiwiad }9a41S Jamopuals) ‘€€
_ (w6221 ON
ue|d) Yinowuo yied
Jed 193118 Jamopua|9
SaJNUIN 0Z abieyn oN SINOH IV Aeq Aueng S9|oIYaA paniwlad e Aeg Buipeo ‘zg
Alispenb Gz13
pue ieaf jey 0gz3 wnuue
Jad 00°0613 1e Bunied
Jwiad uoseas Aejs poys
alnpedap Jo siy Z UIyjim
uinjal ou yum Aejs wnwixew
inoy ¢ ‘joausy) ped (6221 ©ON ueld)
Jo sinoy ¢ 1o} 0G' 13 Joaiay) "UINOWUO ‘Mled Jed
SINOH ¥ Hed Jo sinoy z 1oy 00°L3 SINoH |V Keq Aisng S9[0IYaA papiwied 198118 Jamopug|o) ‘Lg
Aanenb 0013
pue Jeak jjey 00z3 wnuue
1ad 00°'06£3 Je Buijed
Jwiad uoseas Aeig BuoT
Kep |le 003
Jo ‘j0a1ay) ped 1o sinoy 7 4o}
00'23 ‘josuay) Yed Jo sinoy (8zzl ©ON ue|d)
€40} 0G°L 3 ‘Jjoaiay) ed "‘YINOWUO ‘Sied Jen
SINOH #2 10 sinoy z 1sJ1} 8U} 10} 00° L3 SINOH IV Keq fuang S3DIYAA paniued 9SNOH ||IEMUIOD '0E
wnuue Jad GZL3
jwlsd ey
psonpay 2u10adg yied 1)
>ed Jed (Lzzl oN ueld)
PEOY PIBIO0Y 8314 MaU JO "YINOWUO ‘“ded Jed
SINoH ¢ uoya|dwod uo Aep |ie 00'L3 SINOH IV Req fian3 SIIYBA pajjiuled 193418 [['YJapul) 62

Page 160



8

Buyieq yoeod sn

S9[OIUBA “ed Jed (yinos)
sinoH /1| abieyn oN WBIupI 0} wey Keq Aiang 80IAI9S 2l|gnd 19018 vodAiep oy
(GezL oN ueld)
%sn ed ted (yinog)
SINOH 2 abieyn oN sinoy ||V Req Aian3 S3[0IYSA pepiwied 198418 podAiep B¢
(P€Z1 "ON ue|d) SN
Hed ted (YUoN)
SINOH 2 abieyn oN SINOH IV Aeq Auan3 S9|2IYya\ paniwIad 19a1s podAuep 8¢
Aliapenbd 0013
pue Jeaf jley 00zZF wnuue
Jad 00°'06¢£3 e bunied
Jwiad uoseas Aejs Buo
Kep |le 00'¥3
10 ‘Joaiay) Led 1o sinoy f 10}
00°Z3 ‘joaJay) ped Jo sinoy (egzl)
€ Jo} 0G'L 3 :Joalay) Led Yinowuop ied
SINOH ¥ 10 SInoy Z isdi} 84} 40} 00° L3 SINOH IV Keq Aiang S9[0IYaA papiwied 1en abpLgahpn L€
(zezl)
YINoOWUO “ed Jed
SINOH 2 abieyD oN SINOH |l Aeq Aiang S3IOIYSA pajiuLIed peoy plaxooy ‘9¢
wnuue Jad Gz 13
lued sjey
paonpay oyloadg ed Jen
ied Jed (Lezl ON ue|d)
PEOY P|aIH00Y 991} MdU JO "YINOWUO “MJed
SINOH ¥ uona|dwoo uo Aep |8 00°L3 SINOH IV Keq Aisn3 S32IYaA papiwied Jed qnio Bumoy ‘G¢
Alspenb 0013
pue Jeaf jley 00Z3 wnuue
1ad 00'06€3 Je Bupiied
Jwiad uoseag Aejg Buo]
fep |le 00'+3

10 ‘joaiay) Ued Jo sinoy 4 Jo}

(0£ZL ON ue|d)

Page 161



(8€ZL ON ueid)
ue|bey ‘yed Je)

SINOH 2 abieyn oN SINOH ||V Keq Aiang S92IYSA papiwiad peoy moisdayl ‘ef
wnuue Jad 00’0523

Nwiad a1ey (LgZ1 ©ON ueld)

paonpay ouloadg yied J1en Hed JeQ pisid

SINOH g absey) Aeq IV 00°Z3 SINOH |IY Aeq fiang SS[OIYSA payiwIed Buike|d Je160y ‘¢

(9€z1 ON ueld)

SN Hled

SINOH ¢ abieyn oN SINOH IV Keq Aieng SO|2IYSA paniwlad lep azenbg uAm] L

(veezl)

Page 162



Brewery Yard Car Park Abergavenny T200

Tiverton
Chambers

Town Hall

and Market

(40 SwaJ) >

\ _||e_ﬂ_,u&0 1

Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015

File Pathname / Project / Drawing No.

Monmouthshire County Council
Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newport Road

Magor NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov uk/imaps

Details @ Hawlfraint y Goron a hawhau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415
_ ; ] it

Map Detail text & Crown cop and rights 2013 Survey 100023415

Drawn by Scale Date

Page 163




Bus Station Car Park Abergavenny T201

Priory
Remains of
(Benedictine) |

Car Park o

The Vicarage ) /\7

Z[:) Stone
Bus

Station Stone Circle
Shelfer

I Detalls @ Hawliraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text ®Grown and database rights 2013 Ord Survey 100023415
DRI by Seale Date Monmouthshire Gounty Council
- Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG @
www monmouthshire gov. ukimaps

Page 164



Bus Station Abergavenny T202

—_— f

|

The Vicarage | )
g Car Park ) //
5 S
/\ /

XA \Tanks [{/

/_"__T ] Car Park

Stane Circle

Bus
Station

Staone Circle

Shelter

ESS

= ~ /

Vel
Details © Hawlirain y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text @ Grown ight and d rights 2013 O Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park

Mewport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov. uk/maps

Page 165



/o

x%/

St Marys Priory Car Park Abergavenny T203

Fy
’

i

AN Fast Gate | Posts
—.-"___ASite of)

Tithe
Barn

NS
f3
S,
5 /
;
I .
.
= ’
3 s
.
; ¢
;. ;
s #
P e
. ‘
o \
% —

'_1

e e L,
JST' Mary's Church

—

Priory
Remains of

(Benedictine)

Car Park

Bus
Station

Shelfer

& //

f/ Stone Ci

/

/

7/H""‘“:r
lay A!‘e/é
[

23 10 30 E
10 to T4 ]
-=l l II

File Pathname / Project / Drawing No.

Newport Road
Magor NP26 3DG

www. monmouthshire gov uk/imaps

Details © Hawifraint y Goron a hawkau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text @ Crown ight an base rights 2013 Ord Survey 100023415
Detwe by acale Pate Monmouthshire County Council

Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park

®

Page 166



enny T204

f

1]

Byefield Lane Car Park Abergav

[__ —— |
I I
[ Y N I il B 3
- ' B
) ) )
g e II II : /
| | lJ
0o ' ‘
{1 — {Surgery
I I L
! 1 -
4 L]
- e \\ ———
e = ‘
. i T T S
———__________ \-\‘ /"’__"‘———____________.___ oo R
SRS S 2
e udor’s Gate (site of)
e __"__‘__“—--—_______ e i
\_____--——--“ Car Park
4
S d!
4
Car Park
H“"‘m_/

/__h_h_“ —— “-—h______h

.'I R q_—___h——h__

| _f

Te—

| ;
| Details @ Hawlfrainl y Goron a hawliau crpnla ddata 2013 Arohwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text & Crown copyright and rights 2013 O Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1250 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG
www monmouthshire gov uk/maps

Page 167



Castle Street Car Park Abergavenny T205

Car Park

Details © Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arokwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text ® Crown copyright and rights 2013 O Survey 100023415

Drawn by Scale Date Menmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
u Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG @

www.monmouthshire gov uk/maps

Page 168



Fairfield Car Park Abergavenny T206

B

A s

f
|

:///“%%%“—ﬂd j,“-__-__ﬂ___'__'._'_'_L_'_"_Z_'_'_: i

Details © Hawifraint y Goran a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text & Crawn copyright and database rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG @

www monmouthshire gov ukimaps

Page 169



Tiverton Place Car Park Abergavenny T207

Frogmore
Centfre

Tiverton

Chambers

Car Park

Horsington

Town Hall

and Markeft _ /
" /

@ Hawlfrainl y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arobwg Ordnans 100022415
Map Detail text & Crown copyright and rights 2013 Ord Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG
www monmouthshire gov uk/maps

Page 170



Trinity Terrace Car Park Abergavenny T208

Magistrafes

Court

=
----------
-

/,

 LEwis's Lawe il

1

No Window

© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2012 Arotwg Ordnans 100023415
& Crown copyright and d

Map Detail text base rights 2013 O Survey 100023415
Krawi iy Scale Date Menmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
MNewport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG
www manmouthshire gov. uk/imaps

Page 171




Tudor Street Car Park Abergavenny T209

\ ///
P
/
v
hY

Details @ Hawifraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arohwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text © Crawn copyright and rights 2013 Q Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:500 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park

Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 30G

www monmouthshire gov.uk/maps

Page 172



Jubilee Way Car Park Caldicot T210

(;1 Cras

s Inn

Details
Map Detail text

© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 An
& Crown wght and database rights 2013 Ord

ohwg Ordnans 100023415

Survey 100023415

Scale
1:1000

Date
24/11/2015

Drawn by
‘ Lang.L

File Pathname / Project / Drawing No.

Monmouthshire County Council
Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newport Road

Magor NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov.uk/maps

Page 173




Woodstock Way Car Park Caldicot T211

WTS ey
Builldings

Details
Map Detail text

@ Hawifraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arotwg Ordnans 100023415
@ Grown copyright and database rights 2013 Omdnance Survey 100023415

Scale
1:1000

Date
24/11/2015

Drawn by
Lang.L

File Pathname / Project / Drawing No.

Menmouthshire County Council
Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newport Road

Mager NP26 3DG

www.monmouthshire gov uk/maps

Page 174




Castle Dell Car Park Chepstow T212

C
s

/

;

/

i ’

- I

e ;
y
y

.
s

Pen y Coed

Details © Hawifraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arotwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text ©® Crown copyright and database rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Moenmouthshire County Council

¢ Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park

File Pathname / Project / Drawing No.

Newport Road
Magor NP26 3DG
www monmouthshire gov uk/imaps

Page 175



Castle Dell Coach Bays Chepstow T212A

Details
Map Detail text

& Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Aroiwg Ordnans 100023415
@ Crown and rights 2013 Ords Sureey 100023415

Scale
1:500

Date
24/11/2015

Drawn by
Lang.L
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No.

Monmouthshire County Council
Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park

Newport Road
Magor NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov. ukimaps

Page 176




Drill Hall Car Park Chepstow T213

1§

Lol
1
S

3/\_____

Somerset
(ottages

Warehouse

Electricity Sub Station £

Factory
s
O

Details & Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arobwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text © Grown copyright and database rights 2013 O Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Monmaouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1250 2411112015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park

Newport Road
File Pathname ! Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG

www.monmouthshire gov uk/maps

Page 177



Nelson Street Car Park Chepstow T214

L}

Details

© Hawifraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415

Drawn by
¢ Lang.L

File Pathname / Project / Drawing No.

Newport Road
Mager NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov. ukimaps

Map Detail text © Crown aht and rights 2013 Ord Survey 100023415
Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
1:1250 2411112015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park

Page 178




Station Road Car Park Chepstow T215

Details @ Hawlfrainl y Garon a hawiiau cronfa ddata 2013 Arobwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text @ Crown ight and rights 2013 Ord: Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
u Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG @
www monmouthshire gov uk/maps

Page 179




The Station Car Park Chepstow T216

{edar House

Chepstow

Station

|Datai|s

© Hawilfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arabwg Ordnans 100023415

Drawn by Scale
l Lang.L 1:1000

Map Detail text © Crown and rights 2013 O Survay 100023415
Date Monmouthshire County Council
24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newpor Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov ukimaps

Page 180




Welsh Street Car Park Chepstow T217
\ Castle Dell —

Little Raglan House

Details © Hawlfralnt y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddala 2013 Arobwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text @ Crown copynght and database rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Manmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
u Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG @
www monmouthshire gov ukimaps

Page 181



Main Road Car Park Gilwern T218

|
& — |
—_______‘_"
neycroff . |
|

Thorneyc

Ry P;n_fl}lag T\‘V
\ \ BN

__EI____J--———

Hope Chape!

J =

1

Details

File Pathname / Project / Drawing No.

www monmouthshire. gov. uk

Map Detail text

Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council

Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newport Road
Magor NP26 3DG

maps

Page 182




Goytre Car Park Goytre T219

Playground

Details
Map Detail text

@ Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arobwg Ordnans 100023415

@ Crown and datab rights 2013 Ord

Survey 100023415

Drawn by
Lang.L

Scale
1:1000

Date
24/11/2015

File Pathname / Project / Drawing No.

Monmouthshire County Council

Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park

MNewport Road
Magor NP26 3DG

www.monmouthshire gov ukimaps

Page 183




Magor Square Car Park Magor 7220

Cross
(remains of)
/ O
Priest’s House
: (remains of)

{  StMary's
\ Church

— -

g
Ty
'| Ve \ -
| \ s
I| ]

The Old School House
/ ' | L AT )

YRS V.
| \

Martin
ow

Peartree
Coftage

| M \ Chy
\ /Gerrdi'r I|I !_,_,--f‘) Cer
Prigrdy | P 1 l o
= ——— S
Details @ Hawifraint y Goron a hawkiau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text © Crown copyright and fights 201301 Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newport Road
File Pathname / Project f Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov. uk/maps

Page 184



Brassknocker Street Magor T221
e

L

Tinfern
House
o
Schoal House

-y

L

‘THE SQUARE

LB.-

FOF;}Q
-

Cop

o

s

The Old

Telephone Exchange

Martin

Cross e
(remains of)

Peartree

3 Cottage

'IE’riesf's House
(remains of)

St Mary's /////////
Church ;
P
T/’(??%/{

Deta“s & Hawlraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100022415
Map Detail text & Crown copyright and rights 2013 Ord Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park

Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov.uk/maps

Page 185



Withy Close Magor T222

Chesmque
Cottage

i)

7 War Meql
i

/ Ny \‘\
THE SQUARE

B

Details © Hawliraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arobwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text © Crown copyright and rights 2013 O Survey 100023415

Bimwn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park

Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov uk/imaps

Page 186



Old Dixton Road Car Park Monmouth T223

Leisure Centre

Details @ Hawilraint y Goron a hawkau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text & Crown copyright and rights 2013 Ol Survey 100023415
Doy Scale Dete Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG @
www. monmouthshire gov uk/imaps

Page 187



Cattle Market Car Park Monmouth T224

Details
Map Detail text

& Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415
& Crown ight and rights 2013 O Survey 100023415

Drawn by
Lang.L

Scale
1:1000

Date
24/11/2015

File Pathname / Project / Drawing No.

Monmouthshire County Council
Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newport Road

Magor NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov uk/maps

@

Page 188




Sports Ground Car Park Monmouth T225

lDeta“s @ Hawifraint y Goron & hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arohwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text @ Crown copyright and rights 2013 O Survey 100023415
Bvawnhy Seale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park

Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov.uk/imaps

Page 189



Chippenham Car Park Monmouth T226

St German's
Cofttages

El Sub Sta

Details

@ Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arohwg Ordrans 100022415
Map Detail text © Crown ight and rights 2013 Ord Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newpon Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG
www monmeouthshire gov uk/maps

Page 190



Cinderhill Street Car Park Monmouth T227

7
- 1 .
" Ps s

\ .
X Monnow \

/ Bridge -
PS //// // .

)Dg homas's “Weir
Mot Church
i ,f‘ Fn

Car Park

Icarage
E /

@ Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415
nd d i

Map Detail text © Crown a rights 2013 Oy Survey 100023415
O iy Scake B Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
MNewport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG
www. monmouthshire gov uk/imaps

Page 191



Cornwall House Car Park Monmouth T228

/ Tablet

. Marked
™\ Lord Nelson's
e ' Seat

\
\/> August 19thi
N 1802/
74 \\\\ /

Tn

Chippenham (4

S5t German's
Cottages

Details © Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arofwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text © Crown copyright and database rights 2013 Ondnance Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Menmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park

Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov uk/maps

Page 192



Glendower Street Car Park Monmouth T229

fori
M

a 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415

| 1y Goren a hawliau cronfa ddata 20
rights 2013 Ord Survey 100023415

@ Hawlfrain
@ Crown copyright and

Map Detail text

Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG @

www monmouthshire gov . uk/maps

Page 193



mnnﬁhne PLAN NO. T229A
WS GLENDOWER STREET MONMOUTH

Page 194



Rear of Monnow Street Car Park Monmouth T230
"5;@ < ~ /.',

Tablet
Marked A

Lord Nelson's,
Seat /

August 19t/

: 1802/ /
4

Chippenham Court

St German's o
Cottages JI

N . %
Details @ Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arobwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text ® Crown and rights 2013 Ord Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
k . Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG @
www monmouthshire gov. uk/imaps

Page 195



Rowing Club Car Park Monmouth T231
7 2

! / Gavernment
{ 0 Offices

Rowing Club

Details @ Hawifraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text & Crown capyright and database rights 2013 Ordnance Survay 100023415
Eiswn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
u Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG
www.monmouthshire gov uk/maps

Page 196



Rockfield Road Car Park Monmouth T232

Path {uml

mnbulant?

grahien

Details © Hawlfraint y Goran a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arokwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text @ Crown al rights 2013 O Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Businsss Park

Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov.ukimaps

Page 197



Wyebridge Street Car Park Monmouth T233

Millhous

Hofel

e

5680 YY

E STREEY

Path

Posts

No active Legend.

Survey 100023415

fights 2013 O,

ght and

& Hawliraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arclwg Ordnans 100023415

@ Crown coy

Monmouthshire County Council

Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park

Newport Road
Magor NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov.ukimaps

Date

24/11/2015

Scale

1:1000

Map Detail text

Details

Drawn by

Lang.L

File Pathname / Project / Drawing No.

B

Page 198



Maryport Street North Car Park Usk T234

Car Park

Sunnyview :
Details ® Hawliraint y Goran a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text & Crown copy and rights 2013 Oy Survey 100023415

Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
Newport Road
Magor NP26 3DG @

File Pathname / Project / Drawing No.
www. monmouthshire gov. uk/maps

Page 199



Maryport Street South Car Park Usk T235

L 10
A
= g
B /
-~
Fd

Recreation Ground

Community Centre

File Pathname / Project / Drawing No.

Newport Road
Magor NP26 3DG

www monmouthshire gov. uk/imaps

Details © Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text Crown rights 2013 O Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council

Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park

Page 200




Maryport Street South Coach Bays Usk T235A

>\\ Recreation Ground \\

p%
a

Fl Sub STa /\

Lommunity Cenfre

Lar Park

%;i/// \SMdygroumd

A <>\

Details ® Hawliraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arolwg Ordnans 100023415
rights 2013 O Survey 100023415

Map Detail text © Grown copyright and

Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
u Newpornt Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Mager NP26 3DG @

www monmouthshire gov uk/maps

Page 201



Twyn Square Usk T236

i
ouse /&/
—

St Mary’s Chur

Details ® Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2013 Arobwg Ordnans 100023415
Map Detail text & Crown copyright and rights 2013 Ordy Survey 100023415
Drawn by Scale Date Monmouthshire County Council
Lang.L 1:1000 24/11/2015 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
u Newport Road
File Pathname / Project / Drawing No. Magor NP26 3DG
www.monmouthshire gov uk/maps

Page 202




Ml ¥v0 01314 ONIAY T 131904
LECL'ONNYd

MOTSEAQ NOLLYLS 131908

Page 203




T238 Chepstow Road Car Park Raglan

File Pathname / Project/ Drawing No.

Magor NP263DG
www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/maps

House % ‘ ] -
(astle Vale ﬂ k \ : !
Hill Hous]
y Ty-Hir
[
gt
uinglewood
St Cadoc's
305 ? Church
i Lowfield
e w
Datchet
Idlebrook
Raglan VC £B
&~ Primary School
& s
G -
&
N C
Builders = .« x5 Lo
Q Yard ,(f'\‘rvo“
2.
b h, &% Q Surgery
Q N\ Z FE
mﬁ!tail text @Crown ight and rights 2013 O Survey 100023415
. Scale Cats Monmouthshire County Council
Lang L 25/02/2016 Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park
u 1:1250 Newport Road

Page 204



MONNMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL appendix 1c

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
(OFF STREET PARKING PLACES) ORDER

STATEMENT OF REASONS

Background

Monmouthshire County Council has undertaken a review of off street public car parking
owned by the county council within the county. Following extensive consultation the review
was reported to the county council’s Cabinet in September 2014. The review can be found
on the Council’s website by following the link:
http://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/Data/Cabinet/20140903/Agenda/Full%20Cabinet%
20Agenda.pdf

The decision was taken, amongst other things, to draft a proposed new car park order that
reflected the findings and recommendations of the report. Any decision taken to introduce a
proposed new car park order requires that it be made available for public consultation for a
minimum period of 28 days. The outcome of this public consultation exercise and any
recommendations for further amendments to the order will be reported to the Council’s
Economy and Development Select Committee for scrutiny and subsequently to the
Council’s Cabinet at some time in the future.

The detail of the changes to the order is described below, in the notice of making a
permanent order and in the car park schedule which should be read in conjunction with this
document. However the intention is to create extra parking and some free parking,
reflecting the priorities in each community, and to fund these changes and improvements
through adjustments to the current car park charges .

The proposed Order will amend and consolidate certain of the provisions contained in the
Monmouthshire County Council (Off Street Parking Places) Order 1996 as previously
amendedby the Monmouthshire County Council (Off Street Parking Places) (Amendment
No.1) Order 2001 and (Amendment No.2) Order 2010.

1. It is proposed to designate all car parks as short or long stay, to limit the maximum
stay in short stay car parks with a no return of two hours to achieve a much needed
turnaround of spaces particularly in proximity to retail areas..

2. ltis proposed to reduce the charge currently paid only on Tuesday at Byefield Lane
car park, Abergavenny and introduce a reduced rate daily charge Monday to
Saturday to encourage vehicles to park in the car park on Tuesdays when the car
park is underutilised.

It is proposed to introduce car parking charges at Station Road and The Station car
parks at Chepstow to fund car park improvements and changes to the charging
regime elsewhere (e.g. a free hour in short stay car parks).

It is proposed to remove current tariffs at Drill Hall car park, Chepstow and introduce

a daily tariff at a reduced rate to encourage drivers to park in this car park which is
currently underutilised and which will be of benefit to workers within the town.

Page 205


http://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/Data/Cabinet/20140903/Agenda/Full%20Cabinet%20Agenda.pdf
http://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/Data/Cabinet/20140903/Agenda/Full%20Cabinet%20Agenda.pdf

It is proposed to construct a new free car park at Rockfield Road, Monmouth and
subsequently introduce a reduced rate charge at Cinderhill Street car park and
Rowing Club car parks to increase the car parking capacity within the town.

w

It is proposed to extend the charging policy to include Blue Badge holders with a
concession of an additional hour to the amount of time purchased. It is intended to
position pay machines in close proximity to improved and suitably located disabled
spaces.

»

It is intended to incorporate The Sports Ground Entrance car park, Monmouth into
the order and introduce permit parking only in lieu of pay and display and take
enforcement action where vehicles are currently parking inappropriately and
obstruction access.

5. It is intended to extend the boundary of Chippenham car park Monmouth to
regularise the physical boundary into the Order.

o

It is proposed to incorporate 8 free short term parking spaces (of no more than 30
minutes) into the Order for Glendower Street car park, Monmouth.

7. It is proposed to cease the charge for car parking after 4pm daily in all of
Abergavenny’s pay and display car parks to encourage business within the town.

8. It is proposed to offer the first hour free in any marked bay within the short stay car
parks of Chepstow to encourage business within the town.
9. It is proposed to introduce a 5 day and 6 day pay and display ticket @ £15.00 and

£18.00 respectively at the current parking charge. This will be on offer only when the
new pay machines are installed as part of the aim to offer more payment options and
an alternative to making daily cash payments.

10.1t is proposed to incorporate parent and toddler spaces within selected car parks

11.1t is the intention to introduce a maximum 20 minute period for loading/unloading at
the loading bay situated at Glendower Street car park, Monmouth to enable
recording and controls on use of the area.

12.1t is proposed to offer season permits specific to long and short stay car parks along
with season permits for the reduced charge car parks in the aim to offer more
payment options and an alternative to making a daily cash payment and benefiting
workers within the towns.

13.To create long stay parking at a charge of £2.00 per day at Rogiet Playing fields in
order to create much needed parking and alleviate parking problems with the
community generally.

14.That the new car parks at Rockfield Road, Monmouth Wyebridge Street, Monmouth
and Chepstow Road Raglan be included within the Order.

Page 206



15.The overstay charge will only be applicable in long stay car parks. There will no
permitted return within two hours at any short stay car park.

Page 207



This page is intentionally left blank



Date Received

Subject

13th April 2016

Abergavenny Car Park Charges

9th March 2016

Abergavenny Car Park Charges

24th March 2016

Abergavenny Car Parks/Petition for Byefield Lane

18th April 2016

Blue Badge Car Park

18th April 2016

Blue Badge Holder

14th April 2016

Blue Badge Holder

6th April 2016

Blue Badge Holder/Drill Hall/Welsh street

17th April 2016

Blue badge holders

22nd April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

29th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

21st April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

13th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

22nd April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

11th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

17th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

13th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

15th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

14th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

19th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

21st March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

30th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

30th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

20th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

18th April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

13th April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

21st March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

27th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

16th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

24th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

26th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

18th April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

15th April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

3rd April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

17th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

13th April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

25th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

19th April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

19th April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

27th May 2016

Blue Badge Holders

9th April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

18th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

13th april 2016

Blue Badge Holders

21st March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

11th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

16th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

14th April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

17th April 2016

Blue badge Holders

12th April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

10th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

21st April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

8th April 2016

Blue Badge Holders

Page 209




18th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders

19th March 2016

Blue Badge Holders/Byefield Car Park

15th March 2016

Blue Badge/Aber, Mon & Chepstow Charges

22nd April 2016

Brewery Yard Car Park/Blue Badge Holders

21st April 2016

Byefield Car Park

31st March 2016

Byefield Car Park

12th March 2016

Byefield Car Park

13th March 2016

Byefield Car Park

31st March 2016

Byefield car Park

14th March 2016 Byefield lane
18th March 2016 Byefield Lane
31st March 2016 Byefield lane

16th April 2016

Byefield Lane

14th April 2016

Byefield Lane Car Park

18th April 2016

Byefield Lane Car Park

19th April 2016

Byefield Lane Car Park

22nd April 2016

Byefield Lane Car Park

10th May 2016

Byefield Lane Car Park

10th March 2016

Byefield Lane Car Park

10th May 2016

Byefield Lane Car Park

22nd April 2016

Byefield Lane Car Park

22nd April 2016

Byefield Lane Car Park

11th March 2016

Byefield Lane Car Park

13th April 2016

Byefield lane car Park/Blue Badge

31st March 2016

Byefield Lane/Blue Badge Holders

11th March 2016

Cattle Market Car Park

24th March 2016

Chepstow Car Park

15th April 2016

Chepstow Car Park Charges

31st March 2016

Chepstow Car Parks

17th March 2016

Chepstow Car Parks

13th April 2016

Chepstow Car Parks

14th April 2016

Chepstow Car Parks

12th March 2016

Chepstow Car Parks

15th April 2016

Chepstow Car Parks

21st April 2016

Cinderhill Street Car Park

17th March 2016 Drill Hall
21st March 2016 Drill Hall
23rd March 2016 Drill Hall

10th April 2016

Drill Hall Car Park

15th April 2016

Drill Hall Car Park

20th April 2016

Drill Hall Car Park

18th March 2016

Drill Hall Car Park

21st April 2016

Drill Hall Car Park

7th April 2016

Drill Hall Car Park

22nd April 2016

Drill Hall Car Park

8th April 2016

Drill Hall Car Park

21st April 2016

Drill Hall Car Park

4th March 2016

Drill Hall Car Park

10th May 2016

Drill Hall Car Park

15th March 2016

Drill Hall/Castle Dell Car Parks

17th March 2016

Drill Hall/Welsh Street

18th March 2016

Drill Hall/Welsh Street

Page 210




2nd April 2016

Fairfield Car Park

21st March 2016

Fairfield/Byefield Car Park

21st April 2016

Glendower St/Cattle Market/Rockfield Road/Drybridge Street

11th March 2016

Monmouthshire Car Parks

12th March 2016

No objection to Charges

21st April 2016

Old Dixton Road/ Glendower Street Car Parks/ Blue Badge Holders

12th March 2016

Parking Charges

15th April 2016

Parking Charges Chepstow (agreement)

14th March 2016

Rockfield Road Car Park

23rd March 2016

Rockfield Road Car Park

9th March 2016

Rockfield Road Car Park

24th April 2016

Rowing Club Car Park

17th March 2016

Rowing Club Car Park

21st April 2016

Rowing Club Car Park

10th March 2016

Station Car Park

12th March 2016

Station Car Park

22nd April 2016

Station Road Car Park

8th April 2016

Station Road Car Park

21st March 2016

Station Road Car Park

13th April 2016

Station Road/Drill Hall Car Parks

16th April 2016

2 Hours Free Parking instead of 1

29th March 2016

Tudor Street Car Park

18th March 2016

Welsh Street

17th March 2016

Welsh street

17th March 2016

Welsh Street

18th March 2016

Welsh Street

22nd April 2016

Welsh Street Car Park

19th April 2016

Welsh Street Car Park

25th April 2016

Welsh Street Car Park

17th March 2016

Welsh Street/Drill Hall

Total Objections = 133

Most Popular

Blue Badge =54

Byefield Lane = 24

Drill Hall = 19

Welsh Street = 11

Station Road = 6

Page 211




Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



ORIGINAL

REPORT
JULY 2014 SCHEDULE OF FUNDING IMPLICATIONS OF PROPOSALS WITHIN CAR PARKING REPORT -APPENDIX 4 | JUNE 2016
1increase in daily charges:
Gross Tickets sold  Gross income Post price Gross
Increase (£) (£) - Pre price increas - gross Increase (£)
increase income (£)
99,641 Abergavenny 525,967 569,472 664,979 99,641
53,856 Chepstow 243,580 271,572 318,758 53,856
51,404 Monmouth 231,098 289,572 330,106 51,404
-52,589 Less current overpayment income -52,589
152,312 Sub Total 152,312
2 Introduction of charges for blue badge holders
98,177 Taken from Parsons Brinkerhoff analysis (reported February '14) 0
3 introduction of Sunday charging
25,740 1981 paid parking spaces with an assumed 25% occupancy 0
5 overstay payment be increased from £2 to £5
3,000 estimated 3,000
7 increase in residential parking permit charge from £30 to £40
1,000 1,000
8 introduction of new pay machines and works to make accessible
42 machines @£5,000 each plus ancillary works - pc sum -£40,000
-30,000 capital sum £250,000 paid over 10 years - assume £30,000 per annum -30,000
9,10,11 - introducing charges in Monmouth car parks
Cinderhill, Sports ground, Rowing club, Granville st (assuming planning consent granted)
48,500 assume 50% occupancy 48,500
12,13 - developing new car parks in Granville st and Rockfield rd and providing
30 minute free spaces in Glendower st car park withdrawn -12,000
Granville st and Rockfield rd - capital cost - £230k and £220k respectively
-50,000 £450k paid over 10 years - assume £50k per annum -50,000
14,15 - remove car park charges in Abergavenny after 4.00 p.m.
-45,000 current ticket sale after 4.00 - 19,756@ 80p = £15,804 - assume behaviour change - 0
12,500 £1 flat rate charge for Byefield Lane car park 0
Existing income is £10,500, new income is estimated at £22,500
16, - Free one hour parking in Chepstow town
-90,000 present 2 hour income is £138,308 - assume behaviour change - 0
17, 18 introduce charging in Station road and the Station car parks
69,799 Long stay and £1 per day for Station rd and the Station respectively 69,799
19, introduce charging for parking in Usk Town
No income is assumed given the proposal to eneter into discussions with Usk TC.
21, Car park refurbishment plus improved signage on the highway and car parks
-12,000 Allow £300k recovered over 10 years -36,000
-110,000 Note : ongoing budget deficit on car park income (E117k in 12/13, £108k in 13/14) -110,000
74,028 NET BUDGET IMPACT 36,611

Page 235

withdrawn

withdrawn

withdrawn

withdrawn

withdrawn

ongoing



Page 236



SCHEDULE OF FUNDING IMPLICATIONS OF PROPOSALS WITHIN CAR PARKING REPORT - JULY '14 - APPENDIX 5

1 increase in daily charges:

current gross Proposed gross Gross
tickets sold income (£) income (£) increase (£)
Abergavenny 525,967 569,472 664,979 99,641
Chepstow 243,580 271,572 318,758 53,856
Monmouth 231,098 289,572 330,106 51,404
Less current overpayment income -52,589
sub total 152,312

2 Introduction of charges for blue badge holders
Taken from Parsons Brinkerhoff analysis (reported February '14) 98,177

3 introduction of Sunday charging
1981 paid parking spaces with an assumed 25% occupancy 25,740

5 overstay payment be increased from £2 to £5
estimated 3,000

7 increase in residential parking permit charge from £30 to £40
1,000

8 introduction of new pay machines and works to make accessible
38 machines @£4,500 each plus DDA works - pc sum -£80,000
capital sum £251,000 paid over 10 years - assume £30,000 per annum -30,000

9,10,11 - introducing charges in Monmouth car parks
Cinderhill, Sports ground, Rowing club, Granville st (assuming planning consent granted)

assume 50% occupancy 48,500

12,13 - developing new car parks in Granville st and Rockfield rd and providing
30 minute free spaces in Glendower st car park

Granville st and Rockfield rd - capital cost - £230k and £220k respectively
£450k paid over 10 years - assume £50k per annum -50,000
14,15 - remove car park charges in Abergavenny after 4.00 p.m.

current ticket sale after 4.00 - 19,756@ 80p = £15,804 - assume behaviour change - -45,000

£1 flat rate charge for Byefield Lane car park 12,500
Existing income is £10,500, new income is estimated at £22,500

16, - Free one hour parking in Chepstow town
present 2 hour income is £138,308 - assume behaviour change - -90,000

17, 18 introduce charging in Station road and th gztion g rks
Long stay and £1 per day for Station rd and the Statlogr%sg ively 69,799

19, introduce charging for parking in Usk Town



This page is intentionally left blank



Perrin, Amanda '
E

From: Perrin, Amanda

Sent: 22 April 2016 14:01

To: ‘feodora shearman’

Subject: RE: Charging for the free car park

Dear Mrs Shearman

| can confirm that the petition has been received and will be considered with other feedback received during the
consultation exercise. ?

Kind regards
Amanda

From: feodora shearman [mailto:feodorashearman@hotmail.co.uk]
Sent: 17 April 2016 19:57

To: Perrin, Amanda <AmandaPerrin@monmouthshire.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Charging for the free car park

Thank-you for that information, I will finalise the petition that is currently being for filled over the coming
days. Where am | to take/send the petition and show evidence to my customers that the petition has been
submitted? Thank you for your on going support and information ‘Regards Mrs Shearman.

From: AmandaPerrin@monmouthshire.gov.uk
To: feodorashearman @hotmail.co.uk

Date: Thu, 31 Mar 2016 16:26:13 +0100
Subject: RE: Charging for the free car park

Apologies the close for representations is 22 April 2016
Regards
Amanda

From: feodora shearman [mailto:feodorashearman@hotmail.co.uk]
Sent: 31 March 2016 16:18

To: Perrin, Amanda <AmandaPerrin@monmouthshire.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: Charging for the free car park

Amanda, I'm pleased to hear that you are considering all feedback from those affected by the proposals
and would like to thank you for your reply. However you still haven't answered my original question of the
closing date for petition submissions? Regards Mrs Shearman.

Sent from my iPhone

On 30 Mar 2016, at 15:02, Perrin, Amanda <AmandaPerrin@monmouthshire.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear sir/Madam

Thank you for your communication, your comments will be considered with othgr feedback received
during the consultation exercise #

Regards

Page 239



ssaippy

A ) —m_ »1 ~e0g & SN ) n«ﬂud@,@_&, % wu wvﬁrm\wfd_./
ﬁ " 5% xweewsu.ww Nﬁﬂéﬂ ! Héwmww Mu_aa 1< ;
% " ‘ / . 5
\u. / \....3_\1& ~I m/:%t 2oy pooy0S \vo\..,,.ww.%ﬁ (% .INMJ@ yd , g
VI AT TSU] = =
Btorss ) Tl ARy | faaarel | e
: \h.\ IWQ\ Qr..,.N\ \J\m\\m,lmw\mw\m\:‘qu LNSI2S2) Jeuls 07 ) ) W INMWNDY
M e A Rl oS Yok 22 M MO0, o )
3 . : T <IN
1) |51 e bwbmy @ m, e PP
Oa\m\\ -l MH)M.M \Wu?\W—TMQ?% ‘_,ud.\u& MOIR0IC B I . \:\M\ . N2
i N Lﬂ. —
-2 4 A Cunyrog vy AN Uy m\?@\ P has wio|
Y @éﬁ?ﬂﬁ §w¢ YeY - S =
" /At ~ g | 4 £ “N l. 2 05
. _ ! e_.w.@
N°ANKTs <=7, I
o'/. M..ﬂ\./ d&//ﬁ«?q{afvw ‘A TN ﬂ\l&ﬂdﬂﬁmu /.mﬂ.ﬂxu =N g & E-amhi e aacey
RN Igrha 50 NS
e . == s s RS W wg@%wnd J\vﬁuwd\\\h\ PIAUAS M Y00y
DG R AI22)3d W W G WONNCK it fod |
TR ~ _‘.i:....sa....ry e T aad — .J(.:... NN - W e .
ﬂu;m.._ &1l y _'...._J.w,.f?# < inﬁﬂmuw,_w .m&:.v?.w.;..:mﬂ_”. e Ly WIS A Yy
_ bw 22978 jue AL Ao e oy
ajeq juswiwon

ainjeubig

aweN pajulid

“edied piai4 aAg o) saey Bupped Ajep 8onpoyu o) sjesodoud sjiouNog Ajunoo allysyinowuoy jsurebe uoniay

punoubyoeq

pue fiewwns uopned

Nied Je) pisiyehg je sosy
Bunjied Ajrep Buionpoujui jlounog Ayunog aalysyinowuoypy Jusaaasd 0} uoljijad

Page 240



- ope. G
P22 (I 3T

mu»,..ax e

SOPIE | gy onvh a2G Ve :
v..w\,\% \.:i Y P20) L;.qm.\m\v S QL "V NYED _F;\“ Ji ,J\/\ lm /\ ..USJQ TJJJ)
o PI5Y o NP0 St ~ k) [ YHGg) _
z = ALY = ﬂ?«b v :
im.,g_ MRSt b2 FeeaaoiNy vy SITNG Valg
TRaAv aner WL RQ e0eSaD O¢ -
%lm.uwu e & \\k\\\ Iv\.&..\..hhéesm w&d@*\_
\:\L\.i\.i DM W)\
gifs a1 |MTD oL 3140y 2519471 R \BEEAEN
NN AU MM AWM eofas 4
W . ~ .o.ﬂ \@lw\/\ v ; q °
A1 | N Pw-fﬂ.. fva_wcﬁs \\\.:.L\ri 77 \\w A(,.
9 [ef %\w,nﬁﬂm%u A 32? 7 R 5 Q%\VV
i b &L

N DA I L , &N\ME PP N

alelgy| XL RIE ST ek ooy oy AT T
’ - "ONDIHWND :
| FN WM ey : \é 9

NMEIN | o Quuaonddaty vy 10om . FAONS VonY) (¢ IRER! 0N DY
= sjeq jJuswiwon ssaippy ainjeubig aweN pajulid

iedie) pield oAg o) sa9) Bupyied Ajiep aonponur 0} sjesodoud sjiouno) Aunon allysyinowuol 1surebe uoned

punoJbyoeq

pue Alewwns uoppad

jied Je) plsiyaAg je sosy

Bupjsed Ajiep Buronpodjul j1ounos AJunon allysyinowuopy jusaaid o3 uoied

Page 241



s

)
g N o e P A— o
’ ‘ M N \ JCU,. a\,b/ \UA‘. L\v& L PEL ‘U)Hr __.J\\v 35- ﬁ.\m,) 3 Mﬂ F\SQ\: ﬁ\@ﬂvb
WEdi _ac_im NO ) |

- ¥\

wagA &l w77 \c b)) \mu_ ey Q_

/

77V -0 T

N1

-

AT - By

< 2&
ey Svvrrelays
roy )

s

o

e T S 193 Oy Ve Ty S LSS Yy By ST
—+ SOLTPTSNG ) L.\udmvdcd dﬂjnﬁ ' s ssHY T Tun..ni.wl
<. (Lol soay | Groran ;

1%L e A S IR A
Wru LN~ MG p NG T Y
W 1 W TV o Vo o1y A

7 2L s TN SRR S| o (SR
ajeq juswwon ssalppy ainmjeubig BWieN peajulid

“edied pjai akg 0} sasy Bupued Ajep sonpoiul o sjesodoud sjounod Ajuno) aaysyinowuopy 1suiebe uonnsd

punoubyoeq

pue Asewwns uonied

Nied Je) pjolyoAg je sasy
Bunjsed Ajiep Buonposyul 1ounos Ajunon aJiysyjnowuoly jusaaid o3 uoized

Page 242



[

“iedied pial4 akg o) sesy Bupued Ajlep sonposui 0} sjesodoud siipunog Aunod aaysyinowuop jsuiebe uonned

221y
9]s181 wvopng |ooH ! 2T Nv% U Ui A \&\wv\
.mw\m%\u\ Ftll £ N — N_N\%J Y)aag ..?R_E.w
3 & (¥ .
s;mf@ o e e B L2 MY RN GAIAVWY
_ =1\
o - SOVIREROR  Srdimimiood, bk
17/%41 MWYY G10 g ) é@) BISNG [
[ L . :
Rlpts o Wy g - /Q% 2NV (]
91 &£l ER v Q\Aﬁmu\ (=) i\\ ?ﬂ@@qﬂm
JRDA R e o e W~ B S G T
q-£4 P predsory M \.§ r¢ Cem.uQS.
ajeq juswiwon ssaippy aimjeub)g awepN pajulig
punoubyoeq

pue Aiewwns uopped

Aied Je) pleyaAg je seoj
Bunjied Ajrep Buionpoajul [1ouno) AQjunoy allysyjnowuop yuaaaid 0} uonisd

Page 243



. e
23 1% e o

Page 244

m:_x...ma A
: I'ep Bujop, Hed Jeq
~Nposu; | U_ww_..hw\am e
i 5::00 S99y

w.::wc.wso_:
EOS— HC®>®LQ
0} COES@
#149d



4]

Dy

b2, Opasea

22[ (e Q,Qcmd Zi

_\r\__ P A
L[5 J s s v .J.,r\wuvb‘z ﬁig W ﬁﬁ«og PVUVing |
IS (27 Q:\(,/\)ﬁ.\._ . T
Me)iz 1S st you 1 | ,‘NJU\ F%.#?Sj
== EZe alaa®) o _‘ o T
XD /NN OD T\ T L)
w\\m&wm V11 CgN A e ey m_ad

5| ey nti,
; b
126 .\Mvmrf wary
; o3 rwme) T | a~dMg - vgp w._/e__ gw@c\@.‘ﬂw fljﬁfﬁ
1| pefemer g | Y)Y IR
W s l_..CW it e
\ \ o AR INOYA 2 ﬁ}i \ B LA 5&
N09 hdA 7 5
|U.~\ MN““ Juswiwon LS O3 Qwﬁkuevg é &Wd WQDV&-

“edieD plei4 aAg o} sasy Bunyied Ajiep 8onpoJul 0} sjesodoud sjiounos Aunon aliysyinowuoly jsutebe uopney

punoibyoeq |

Buiaed Ajep Buianpouui

Aled ie) pjsysAig je sasy
1ouno) Ajunon odiysyjnowuop juaiaid o) uoniyey

pue Alewwns :o_u_umn_L

Page 245



. /r-v?ﬂﬁ

I//5)HE ?&.&wﬁ ay \QW«N@ W hA A2 A
/S f\\%&,ﬁ M D Iy \JSQ < -t Eﬂmﬁx%m\“ﬂ
H-EG }Ewé%\&w\ SESEE/AN R .
ifs e $%<,§Q \\M EGwooD) 30

2910 £

)
SR o

AL i) 8

|12S) WUl

VUM N VKU M No 91T HM

A 1 i
M\ 2 e T i N — I N
Ao\~ “

sopsog e ¢ A 3€w

— y J\d_%g,._

H gL TRV a) | o / m.\ﬁ N Jh nwo(
ajeq juswwoy ssalppy ainjeubis awepN pejulid

“ledie) plei4 aAg o) saej Bunued Ajrep @onpoujul 0} sjesodoud sjpouNog Alunog auysyinowuoyy isurebe uonned

punoibyoeq
pue Aiewwins uolied

jied ied pioiyeAg je sos)
Bupjied Ajtep Bulonpodjul [19uno) AJUNOY a4iySYNoWUO Jusaald o0} uoijilad

Page 246



P z S

\qo_vﬁx. \glmww..ﬂu

00 et

Joro
9 TS L waw | hOPYIT W) wwn
\Q@N , oy ?\ M) 45
7 e Bt SV ST
Py ,333 oy v

N7 I b L9\ o T Q@\N g7 220 o
- I¥ISAMN |
e CEab (N ~roBincay e - _ ey o
J_??N f.ry..ﬁmrxu.nrf&n.w T mu| @D\Rﬂg qg@ )
.,w\\ M..\\nr.“... RN r\wﬂ,ﬂuww\,\ww EMN )\J.v% A2 v
T o~ A, \J\I/\I«\U
LR .JN\(.JA u i D ;\/\J,\J\\ R N TIva v
. Vo S (VI
NNz AH.?& S v JJ} 7. — SN
Eﬁwuvu\unwv@ Y%qu_ i Y-
I/ P ) w w,\\.. /! .ﬁ, .ﬂw\*
ajeQ Juswiwon g __._mmo._u_ua. \J einjeubig dweN pajuiid

WedieD piel4 akg o) see) Bupued Aniep aonposui 0} sjesodoud $|PuUNod Aunog auysyinowuoy 1sutebe uoned

punoubyoeq

pue Atewwns uopied
=]

Bunjsed Ajiep Guionponui

jied Jed pjaiyslig je se9y

[1ounog AQJunoy asiysyynowuopy yusasid oy uonnad

Page 247



A1) ¢ (€ i J?>>L?er e 22
‘,W.U.B DJ,\LJJ\-,J; N /.m .\“\\\\\Lu T ] AN 6
e MOPIOY | Dwero~ O A e
A Wrs) ‘IT:..\ 7\ £ T....m&.)_
.\mu ke Qﬁa\\ v\m, g < gﬁ
v o OO
3 ﬁxa s
@\\ o= r@%,cm ‘g U on))
e
O - agpNaBV T LS P NtoD
AUE IE hw,_{.“@\\,.by@w\.&%ﬁ S0V ) mu o m FLLFY,
-7 19 HOH LIt | e VA
T ) DN T sy Adves
ot 5 | T AL e
o2 ORA W LEONA P S SRS i)
q, (s TC?L. Cé/ﬁw_ DAA : »
,\r.‘ Lz om0y o 09 &ll.\.tiw!rﬁ. : w m.ﬁ ﬁﬁ@%lv s aaiad
- ﬂ‘/?dgfﬁd AN Y R R "
g..\ isw 20 Pty rq v .J/? 7 _& AR rEEy
ajeQ wawwion | ssa.ppy ainjeubig awep pajulld
punoibyoeq

“Hedie) pai4 aAg o) saay Bunpied Ajiep aonposjul o sjesodoud sjiounod Aunoy aliysyinowuoyy jsuiebe uonyad

pue Aiewwns uonijed W

Mied 18D pisyaAg je soay
Bunyied Ajiep Buionpoajul j1ouno) Ajuno9 aslysyjnowuo jusnaid o} uonned

Page 248



~ P oS\ 7
ﬁ\‘_\w.ﬁ ~ i s ; )% § b x.
>\_\<§§§§< . - y .

MHlz 0¥ ANl i sgédu 20 -
/ QO ™Yy .

3 ﬁj\m e ) WJNJB % NI A

Qb A~y o= —
Ay @gﬁ%%mwi NI
Vv A2 N .

: ST 0Z T 2R D
] ‘_123925 “ :
1/7) i~ -y & PR 4

wrenry 4 | eyt [N 2=
_, )
9| R_\}\ | NJM w.\”.wa.ﬁl | €\¢Jwﬁv,\ﬁjx®r c&.\w.fé . *
i , biondlayy, (}Ws

'\ \ _F.\Lw vso.,&ya.{ Vo 7Y rpven o7 ,\J\_E. i .Nw
ajeq juswiwon ssalppy ainjeubig SWEN pajulid
punoubyoeq
“edie) pjel4 akg o) seey Bupped Ajep 8onponui 0} sjesodoid sjouUNos Ayunon adiysyinowuopy ysuiebe uoniay pue Alewwns uonyey

Bumyued Ajiep Buionpouajui

Mied Jed pjsysAig je sesy
[1ounoy Ayunon adlysyinowuopy juaaid o) uoniey

Page 249



S0

YASSNY Y

HWH/9

L Py el g
207 HYI vV S

S Q&\* Joroh

RN

L

\..17)3.? K.d. G._J& Jﬂka. >\

WIS Y

; ..M.U....U, Ud

P[P s

94 9

bt U1 o9bod D\ |

v\v«.ﬁqﬁedi g ._.%r._\ o UOA@

i) Fa) 4 s I 7 S
vy vy ot Aol sel \Ro?\«&ﬂ brror b
Rosrrog =553 W YTy S9N )
/b e i gy R WG | T NG D (ST e
/ \ \ w,,.rwe L agmi> _vm_,u-u,a.s, el .uwn_,,..& Nz g — gl @
P o) 7 ppous | ATEnII0y K un g @]

fw\\ ~w\ .W .w..!.nugq ﬂ.!Ud ﬂ..rrﬁm“u..:.y AH./»_/.. 1‘;&.%
DA T Mw y .,.@ d0o
@\\ -V \insr = o i ) eSS el w\v w AT .J\/_ N |m
e S nﬁwn”\@MJE +.
ew.m‘m 41 : ﬂl?.nu.f;—)a:eu\), A 1O mu.r.\.. ﬁm.\c f\a\b)s?\u i ﬂw, e - M1 <
Né ﬂ,).\bﬁud ﬂ.ré.f} QYD UI;..,\Wé I~ Laf.u“*.\_ oA 3:\— u r% bl uj mr Jj\mvl—\w_.wuz ~ -
ajeq juswIWon sselppy ainjeubig aweN pajulid

suedied paid akg o} seay Bupped Ajep sonpouul 0} sjesodoad s(ounod Aunod YSYINOWLO Jsuiebe uonned

punoibyoeq

pue Alewwins uoniad

yied 19 ploiyoAg je saa)
Bupjaed Ajiep Buionpouul j1ounon A3unos adlysynowuoy Jusaaid o} uoiilad

Page 250



3]
Sl
©

|
IS EY POV TV

| WA | mwmE o
Py I DS ,, e e S
\ o
A A A YRS D S
L\ \ 9 njgd AQ)@Q@ 1@. mw : O/ U < J
, F =Y VIRQ ) MO (7
1) MIVSOf Ty )\w@&i R gwx | |
L 4 JH\(L;J)J)L J\J‘D\ww j@f__f.:
-, . \H\.\. \\A,\H,\ ,,.m\.\ m\.u._. ) \. s . - -
/7 giass |y sy
T 12 O . .
/119 Torg XS AN T \ 4
POV gy PRIMDL, - @ NL éﬂ@b M
hOWympdy. —3 __ .
y e e a%\w_g A 0O | <o oy
1S 23y A\ B ‘ @,ﬁ
5 \ \ mvNJ %o..nwhuz AR PO AN e Ao W“N§\ oL o
| cﬂ\:hw\ \J \.\Mwﬁ j ¢ o b\@.duw. %\ : /uf J/W’/v y@r\:‘ nU\\\u
ajeq juswiwon

ssaippy

ainjeubig

edied piel4 sAg o) sesj Bupued Aliep aanposu oy sjesodosd sjounod Aunog aaysyinowuoyy jsurebe uoniad

aweN pajulid
punoubyoeq

Bupyied Ajrep Buionpoujui

died Je) pisyelg je ssay
[1ounog AQjunog saysyinowuopy Jusas.d 0} uolllad

pue Aiewwns uonyed

Page 251



7

A
[ ]

LA “__)\\.,.AT. o, ) s |/ i~
WM. U_\, \u ﬁ\ 7o M Q\ F\%\ \\\J /ﬂmSS p\,\;
SNEIE 7ty ,m Voriawn | Vivey. W ARI G A
75 Ry [ e 7 ¥
VR ¥oopr1d P ST B A
o e e BT &
TR v &7/ ool
1-14 T D R RS
/ Eﬂ N S ) ( | J A
| PO N;ﬁj,),_ = _ = !
S | L Nsiate M\J S aJ. = )
_ 7 >c o\l yu././ﬁ/ ML . ,/lvé,w Qﬁ.jé q

ool i o)

.(.\.u_w__, M~ .S‘...uz g ﬁ

—

(b

SNENg Y

juswwod

SSa.ppy

aunjeubis

awieN pajulid

edie) pisigd aAg o) sa9) Bupied Ajlep eonpoiul 0} sjesodoid s1ounos AJuno?) aaysyinowuoy jsuiebe uonned

punouabyjoeq

pue Alewuwins uoljad

Bied Je9 pjayaig je sosy

Buiysed Ajrep BuionpoJdjul j1I9unos AJunos aJlysSYNoWUO Juaaaad 0} uoijiled

Page 252



\fw - =
" .. e JC. TA f).ﬂ; ~ } JLL“VV r - v
2 h .u.HS\: ldy.ul.uvd . e WS = 1195 N}JW\/«MU \; /.__x},,.,._.;ﬂJu_‘I., Jru!f/\.,/\%n\,\. b ,lll\/xud A2
176 | poru i T >3 0D DHL 0 | Sy
fl-/ \
d\\J\w T P g ).__UV% vy o
: | DOWHD ¥ <IN ON A N DTRLY Y i DHS A
277 | MJU.\,Jév}w o o x,,,.,na(i %J\ ARLHG A
A[H) S St renery Sy *apng) wz.ﬁ,_f.\, r\wf\_ymi ay »CJ R NI
f)\éd:ui ~ T Sy | _ .
DR | fomide oo S FNVE LS Sy D ]@J@X
. &g A A T2 . J e \
VP Sy, el ZK)C 7T gy
SR\ SpoN-|1) { : T hne ,,.,)\.)\e@ N - B
ni\_ .:hrw = Mg\ e Hyo d,wuju h/}.e AWW@% VD.M% ,ﬂ/ ( w.u L_r s P=h ™ o
" . M Novw)] . s 2 RO F2<0) o # S .
FROMPD Drmavd 4\3{% ?MZ \Z 7 . > fﬁw,N shaSy
Mot tih bambagy " ) INA RO 12
i § .\% \\f m%_&_hﬁ_m\ Ve ) x_u..\wms xxwu \\ﬂmw ol Szﬁma i %
ajeq juswiwon

ssaJppy

aunjeubig

sweN pejuld

Huedie) paly4 aAg o) sasy Bunped Ajep 99npoJul 0} sjesodoud sjiounos Ajunon allysyinowuopy 1suiebe uonnsy

punouiboeq

pue Alewwns uoyad

jied ied pjsiyelAg je soay
Bupyied Ajlep Buionpouajui junoy Ajunog allysyinowuo jusaaid o3 uoijljad

Page 253



A9 Aw “ningy

b

agm.ﬁu gx,m

[
+ 1S ooy | é& Aéﬂ, 2 "D
"M P]] DGR R |y - ) T

ST IMIN .,mm_ i 7<\@ - -

. - SCS 4N X 3 A
3 %\i ! JRysideagt % ﬁww Yoy g
| o))l ot Q\:&% - , ?&.&w

- plparyy vON w)

| N

i o_?_. S )
ajeq juswiwon Ssalppy ainjeubig SWweN pajulid

“iedied piel4 akg o) sas) Bupued Ajep eanpoiul 0 slesodoud sjiounod Aunoy anysyInowuop Jsutebe uonnad

punoibyjoeq

pue Aiewiwns uonied

jied Je) pjalyaAg je soay
Bunyjsed Ajiep Buronpouyui j1ouno Ayunon allysyinowuoy Jusaaid o} uoiyjad

Page 254



j !Jl[ e ir T ey
—— e —_——— —_—— |\ |\.. ||\.\ .|”._| “\ —_— e, e —— e o ——— e —_— — L —_ - —_ -— - T e e —_— —_
‘.\.. ‘\. ‘\\
..|.l‘ v. : [
RO - Moo & it 1 N e
~ ®eq | Juswiwo . SRy o pe _

B e R R o ESRI I o 55  oweN pojuid |
Suedie) pialy e4g 0 seoy Bunped Ajep aon o s, R . n_

I I pojul o} sjesodoud sjounog funog asnysyinowuo & s
RE | | N 1suiebe uoniyed pue fiewwns uo |

ML 1 hed

Hed Jed piaijehg je sooy
Buppsed Apep buronpo.yui [1dunoy Ayunon adlysyznowuoly yusas.id o) uolpied

Page 255



-

. {
w\\v\.ﬁ _c%vodaom,q
3,\4 n?ﬁu? er /h MJJ._Q W
ST T — .. ]
' .llll.\\lI\iv P, \f J | ¢ J .ﬂ_
S - e . Y2 ano& % : HI AL IS )
&\\w\\i e . l \N v.;o.vL g\.g.
¢ Ty e oy 4
: : sy POy ¢ __ . YY)
u-\ -
\x\uJ\m At w §3in L ﬂm
pl 2 e ) DUH & d...}uhx
- =
' ( \\.\.\lﬂ ‘.. y
= o wewwsy | S fi.lwmm_uumw  mpeublg ‘SweN pajuid |
Medie) paid afg o} seay Bupsired Ajiep sanponul o) siesodoud s[ouno) Aunod anysyinowuopy Jsuiebe uoned pue .CmE:“_. n”ﬂ_w_”__wwug

fqied Je) pjsijehg je sooy

Bupsed Apep Buronpousyul jIounon funog anysynowuopy Juansid oy uoiiyed

Page 256



Sl s /rfo\v/ IPETEERT ey S oo

) [ Zre o gl .
I ‘5 oNY A() ~ODH
HE,: d Bge u.né:my.[_,u s J%ﬁ P00 4

. - .
o] 45 1 Wau I D Ao Weu { ruhlrM. i . Y
Lk _._Jl, wﬁ\mwbbwaw 2 YA Pet s os K ST, W
Y| TN rIgme ~oy 9%, wSe bl [
D‘Mny\g Anvrﬂﬂx«.«bﬂy .ulﬂur'..dl /l/ﬁ.vﬂﬂ..v.._.lnpl <mmn W/U/.Ilqulﬂ.mu >\ ﬁ/.:ﬂ&ﬂ?d:.ﬁa@rd&

- - SYR LI | 5

3\&.\&.\ e 5o A0 ,\.uxm.\é u\em&\ﬁdm. -
by sl S0 o | sy ) Hom ¢ > 2
R wumw)!i b B _ sseppy | OMRUBIS | ouwey pewiig |

puno.borq |
pue Alewiuns uomed

Em&mw pisi4 aig o) wmmhmm_fmo_ Airep sonposus 0} siesodoud sjiounos funon allysuyinouluoy jsulebe uonnsd

Hed Jed piaiyeAg je S99)
Bunjsed Ajep Bulonpo.auy [1duno) Ayunon ddlysyinowuop yusas.id 0} uoned

Page 257



911 o , ; um..ﬂm.n(une& SORAOS | SPPon ~oHC
Y ey soond A —#Y| rves >
9 J5/b1 # ?8 Lol %T%énmb PPHM202
7)o ) g G @B?fﬁd i e A

\n / &Wpaﬁ“&ﬁ wwm_w WCWH A JOU W ) ) e OJ\ h

LU WD 2 SoalN 3
ol \3\ __ b q r Y gwg
A [ %3 LI Rl o) £
= vﬁu =
Fo- F\S_\ G b
e i . |
= = - R
Do ) S) (§~£\< - S@7) q
| « 3J° . i o I — )
q il ha 51 ) mudwuo dw MZ SN ° o rosv A ARSI S
g ajeq v JewwoD $S2.ppPY ....zmuw:m_m.. i wEaz pajulg |
| punosbyoeq
y “edied plai4 adg o) sasy bupped Aep @onponul 0} sjesodoud sjiounod AUNoD anysyINoWUop 1surebe uoned pue fewwins uoniad

Nied Jed piaijahg 1e soa)
Bupjied Ajiep Butonpodiui 19unos Ajunon allysyjnowiuojpl yusaaid o} uoipled

Page 258



TG Lo/ Ay weeins)
\\% i .,uv\u ¥

ainjeubig

: L Vd s LI
» ~ N e N‘N@@Y\ : 7- NM\;.M 7 WA = s L :
e JM&&W&Q Nn: %mwﬁ ﬁm,\w&w@?@vb\ %@@&Q fs9ap 4D
=E LS EYHIT) CNMTT T addy) e =
\\%&&Rw aharroriy YLog b §<§
WEPT P ,mu Fvant 2wV eNZ Of | femw oI, 1% \\___H,@@\ i_eaé %i‘
9oz s¢ e #o3) PyAWI Y LS(S O oo g
2/1<] < %3,%3 %u%ﬁ_ P PReE u Fod) c@ ML) L
1 91f/se . u:ﬁw); e o oh) € 35%& A RNELOHA )
..:W&.w .Au < QON ;v?.hmﬁ! P ) Q\ .u;wu.w 1\ N &u«ukv &u&d </ !..J.Vj(mvuuu Ta%\xv«.{wwﬁ
Qy _uu.“ <° B W!\.\\ NQ L«U@Emo axay ) &1 ..m_ f%w“& «J&J}%GEUN%LHM_.
9 ¢-5C T SU = oU - Oy JRr0Ge Ty redetey T Raeg @\A SIS =T/
- (7] LS |
)4z mmr m%@w I | )ty WESHO A el = Tl S
S/ [P OGN womel o ) OF | PP | osconl o
eleq juawiwion mmo.__u“&_

awepN pajulig

swed Jed playedg Aq sesy Bunued Ajep 89npoljul o} sjesodoud sjiounoy Aunoy aliysyinowuoy jsurefe uonisy

punouByoeq

pue Alewwns uopney

Yied sed payahg je sooy

Buiysed Ajiep Buionpoajui [1ounog fjunog auysynowuop jussd 0} uoljnsd

Page 259



7|3 M Y T el i

e NP [P RS 2 P T
17 Rl R A7
s QS B VA q@%ﬁw VA L

7 \_\w 75 T PT] = i Uuyﬁ%m T VS
71]n]g JONOWIT [~ 9\@8@@ NI
Vit e rreyapv) \\@ ;3\_,24. Z&«gg .
5 5 £ EEERE VD) e 7
.w\,.&\«\. : S_Eﬂ K\}\.«U : ;%@xx\&m\\\u I ﬂ.dm.mﬂ@nw W J
e = Yo s@é YNy T | ETE WY
NL-N-2 N AL R D) Ipod ¥ i POTDOS
.|-w.ﬁma|| Juawwon e ssaippy |E|3.m:m_m .mEmz pajulid

g punoibyoeq
ied e pleyeAg Aq sasy Bupped Ajep sonpoul o) sjesodoud s[lounog Ajunod aslysyinoluuopy jsuiebe uonney pue fiewiwns uonyad

yied seg ployoAig je soay
Bupjied Ajiep Buionpodiul [1ounoq A3unos aJlysyinowuoy Jusaaud o3 uonijed

Page 260



OIN-T oYL Y lJQQ@WWv AT S
bz V2 5% P\N“M.MM_A Fm\qm,ﬂuw\
377 >, WEJ&DQ 12190 : )W\&QMQ@\. Nosg oq -q |
7750 REno 329 ¢ wog®) g7 neRel o
— (7Y A e J " diosn s
1 Z_Y ,\wasﬂmwﬂgm; G M@ .mm% 2TV xﬁvﬁ@ 03 =R 7
vl \M I i aw ,_\Q n h\\ Af »S. 1 L JNT) a_,__._\ui_w\ﬁ v = \M.\w\ el ,\_ FCTy 7
L] P L B AN | AR S
‘Afshe 0 %é,\,m\,qénmx TWwog R Oy |y
{ \\m. \ 1 7AH P L Eu,uuww\m. _‘q.sww:\u“\/\ <y gt/ :
B oy oty S Py > AR
| eeq Juswio) sso1ppy empuBls | suwien pejuig

yied se) playehg je soay

Bupjied Ajiep Buronpoajul j1ounon Aunog asysyjnowuopy Jusaaid oy uollijad

Page 261



_\f !ﬁ P B ) ~
=refr—43 A ;
w ) = ,.wm TJJH p ¥ IV ra P 44 7..; pwa 4%. 14 w ULM.I 1 (Clh M‘.)\_ Q N‘ L a\ﬂr% - a)\/\\rw_ﬁ T ,ﬁ_m.\ < .._\(J_ iy
| . i ! . ﬁ, b ¥ i
IJHIERE T SO T g O
] | . . o £ ;
fmitlos 7 _,E PN %é Y U
_..v ‘A.._ i nl....“-ﬂufll. \.m \%4 . ..1\.. A 1\__ L \. \. .d_/. .,. ’_ _—. ; \
. g 1 = m S e = 11;..,._“ Wy Cr - / o) - . .1 - s ./\.w_ -, p % 1l Ty -
) ,a Qe W .,..,q\._d.. - ﬁ.\ﬂ\n J_,w_ .w\.v J.Gr\_ Y S\E.W%\M. H W ..&n\‘m d_,\. vL.Le f ; ) w.‘... P ﬂlfQLa_./,ﬂ.\@ =
i . \ . |.w | b a4 ] 5 m_ - . .
- . — ...f " |.u.l..__. Wi - (3 g P
S log [ ] IAIN 1NHH M 1S AV MO an_C_\,_ x
i - G
A\ < _ C\Qf&&/w.u oN ,J.)n) P, o \CLERA A N SN 7# «u C o9\ \ %\
5 s o s iﬁ)u &.d A ?./ rn—-loq/ . 2 Ha.!.luv - . fU/... ! AH._.(H/ : /-r j ,% i _./ i B i m j
...n\.r."nu \ M...“__ L, ..\......‘.s - L ‘s ¥ (e “_ i _.. 4 “\. L \ Y 9 { «P A\
2 Lf ¢ \ ( 5 Bl I _ (
m 4 a., ..mﬂqn. wnv.\. Qv o 9157 CV) ® o P— g AT -

(Rt Tl A e # |

33&

AN

URT

WM

VIR

a[\m

Nl al ol OA Tiwec,

VSISV T s o

oL &n\?

e

JeOg <

ssaippy

juswIWion

m._smwcm_m

WENZ ﬂwu_.:._l

sed 1e) pjoyeAg Aq saay Bunjed Ajep aonposur 0} sjesodold sjipunod AJUnoD aaysyinowuoyy jsurebe uoinsd

punoibyoeq

pue Alewwins uopiad

j4ed ies plaiyoAg je soay
Buiyied Ajiep Buisnpodajul j1ounos AJunos allysyinowuoly juaaaad o} uoiilad

Page 262



i"f’ monmouthshire
QLU

sir fynwy

Name of the Officer completing the evaluation Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal
Roger Hoggins

Amendments to the MCC public car parking regime to better

Phone no: 01633 644133 reflect need and for reinvestment into the service and
E-mail:rogerhoggins@monmouthshire.gov.uk infrastructure
Name of Service; MCC car parking Date Future Generations Evaluation 06/04/2016

& Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
8 with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.

<) How does the proposal contribute to this What actions have been/will be taken to
ADANeII Being Goal goal? (positive and negative) mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

laYaYw i

The plan, amongst other things, seeks to improve
A prosperous Wales car parking services to assist commerce within
Efficient use of resources, skilled, P 9

educated people, generates wealth, our towns by creating parking space closer to
provides jobs shops and the amount of parking available.

A resilient Wales

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and
ecosystems that support resilience and
can adapt to change (e.g. climate
change)




Well Being Goal

How does the proposal contribute to this
goal? (positive and negative)

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A healthier Wales

People’s physical and mental
wellbeing is maximized and health
impacts are understood

A Wales of cohesive communities
Communities are attractive, viable,
safe and well connected

This review has sought to use changes to the
car parking regime to support retail and
business in the larger town s in
Monmouthshire. Supporting retail in
particular helps to sustain the prosperity of
our town centres with all of the knock on
benefits to employment and the sustainability

well-being when considering local
social, economic and environmental
wellbeing

0 of our towns as attractive places to visit and
ég live in.

®

MA globally responsible Wales

f@'aking account of impact on global

A Wales of vibrant culture and
thriving Welsh language

Culture, heritage and Welsh language
are promoted and protected. People
are encouraged to do sport, art and
recreation

A more equal Wales

People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or
circumstances

2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?




What has been done to better to meet this

Sustainable Development How does your proposal demonstrate you have
principle?

Principle met this principle?

The proposals are intended to improve the car park service.

Balancing

short term Funding is generated but this is reinvested into the service to

need with improve the car parking infrastructure which requires
modernization.

long term and

Long-term )
planning for

the future

Working
together with
other
partners to
deliver

Involving
those with an
interest and
seeking their
views

Putting
resources
into
preventing
problems
occurring or getting worse

Prevention

Positively
impacting on
people,

Integration ecohomy and
environment

and trying to benefit all three




3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the

evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.

Describe any positive impacts your

Describe any negative impacts

What has been/will be done to

reassignment

Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?
Age
Disability Improved parking facilities (less obstruction, | Charges are proposed for blue badge Extra time is proposed for blue badge
better delineated spaces ) holders whereas charging has been free | holders (for example 2 hours parking
to blue badge holders to date in MCC would be provided for a 1 hour charge
public car parks
Gender

l_)Cl\/larriage or civil
gpartnership

ra¥aYw ) "\RV\ 1

g?ace
5

Religion or Belief

Sex

Sexual Orientation

Welsh Language




1 O\—7 ﬁRV\ [

4. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on important responsibilities of Corporate Parenting and
safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities? For more information please see the guidance
http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safequarding%20Guidance.docx and for more on Monmouthshire’s Corporate
Parenting Strategy see http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx

Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What will you do/ have you done
proposal has on safeguarding and your proposal has on safeguarding | to mitigate any negative impacts
corporate parenting and corporate parenting or better contribute to positive
impacts?
Safeguarding No safeguarding or parenting

implications are anticipated as a result of
these proposals

Corporate Parenting

5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

pEXtensive consultation has taken place whilst arriving at the proposals,. This has been with local councils, chambers of commerce, and locally

Dreprsentatives of disabled groups (through CAIR). Individuals have also been invited to comment through the statutory consultation process. Information

Dabout this has been provided on the website, sent to local councils and brought to the attention of interested groups. The draft order has also been posted

Nbn all car park signs throughout the county to bring the changes to the attention of all car park users.

EThe impact of the introduction of charging for blue badge holders has created significant feedback. This has previously been reviewed by the Economy and
Development select committee and by Cabinet prior to the draft order being published. The statutory consultation has offered stakeholders the opportunity
again to comment upon the proposals and these are provided in the appendices to the report.

Whilst the issue of blue badges relates to the applicants’ health and is not ‘means tested’ correspondents objecting to the charge highlight that in
information provided at the Equality and Human Rights Commission Annual Conference 2013 stated that 23% of the population in Wales is living in
poverty, that 23% of the population is disabled and that 46% of disabled people in Wales are living in poverty.

Comparable information for Monmouthshire is not available but analysis of blue badge issued by MCC shows that of 5955 issued 267 (4.4%) have been
issued on the basis of Personal Independence Payments (PIP). Neither the whole wales figures or the MCC blue badge figures offer a definitive
assessment of affordability for blue badge holders but are provided to inform any decisions that members contemplate.

The proposal offers mitigation by way of additional time provided for blue badge holders. For example a blue badge holder purchasing 2 hours parking will
be granted 3 hours parking to reflect that mobility issues may delay a blue badge holder returning to a car park. The ticket will also be valid in various car
parks within the town in any one day allowing a blue badge holder to move between car parks without incurring further charges.

Within Wales seven councils charge blue badge holders to use their car parks. Mitigation is offered by way of extra hours or an initial free period. The
arrangements with neighbouring English authorities vary where charges are imposed some form of mitigation is often provided for blue badge holders.



http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safeguarding%20Guidance.docx
http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx

The MCC proposal requires that the blue badge holder purchases parking time and extra time is then granted. Some correspondents have suggested that
this be amended to offer an hour as free parking and time over and above that hour be paid for. Both examples are in use in other authorities.

89¢ abed



6. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

7. Actions. As a result of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if

applicable.

What are you going to do When are you going to do it?

Who is responsible Progress

69¢ ofed

Monitoring: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will
evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review.

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on:

Six monthly from the implementation of the order and
changes otherwise proposed in the plan ( new pay machines,
improvements to the car parks)




This page is intentionally left blank



1.

2.

3.

Agenda Item 3f

“W4 monmouthshire

W sir fynwy

SUBJECT: MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTIONS ON THE HIGHWAY

MEETING: CABINET
DATE: 6" JULY 2016
DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: ALL

PURPOSE:

1.1 To seek approval for the adoption of a policy titled ‘Provision of a Management of Commercial
Obstruction on the Highway’. The Policy will cover various occasions when a business wants to
use the Public Highway for reason of benefit to that company. It will bring a consistency to the
policy, both within MCC processes and the wider Local Authority community by using a specific
licensing and charging mechanism for any organisation seeking to make use of the public
highway.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 That Cabinet approves the adoption of the new policy ‘Commercial Obstruction on the
Highway’ having given due consideration to its constituent parts as listed below:

2.2 (3) ‘A’ Board Policy,
2.3 (4) Flyposter Policy,
2.4 (5) Commercial Provision Policy,

2.5 (7) Community Provision Policy.

To be included in overall Policy, ( policy previously approved ) :-

2.6 (6) Verge Sponsorship Policy

KEY ISSUES:

3.1 Enforcement action taken by Highways Operation’s Department forms a significant element
of their work. This enforcement, usually against business and people, that are aware of the MCC’s
current policies / guidance, could be developed into a system that is more readily available,
encompassing all private activity on the Public Highway. The policy will more effectively control
apparatus in the highway and will recover the cost associated with enforcement.

3.2 Monmouthshire County Council has a statutory obligation to provide ‘unhindered access to

the Highway’, while this Duty needs to be managed it currently uses valuable Council resources

to provide the service of approval, of advice and of enforcement. Unfortunately this service is not

consistent throughout Monmouthshire_We cu ly licence and charge scaffold and skip hire
Page st



companies for the use of the Highway space, but not other uses such as a business who occupy
the highway for commercial purposes. This policy seeks to bring consistency, safety and clarity in
this area.

3.3 Commercial obstruction of the Public Highway can be defined as an obstruction created by
the placement of an object on the public Highway, for the purpose of private gain, without consent.
Commercial obstruction of the Public Highway can be divided into a number of categories —

a. Flyposting. Installing, usually short time, advertising on Highway Furniture without permission.
‘A’ Frames, installing, usually long time, advertising on the Public Highway for adjacent
Businesses without permission.

=3

C. Table and Chairs. Can be seasonal, short term or long term placement of furniture on the
Public Highway for the benefit of adjacent Businesses without permission.

d. Ad-hoc Furniture. Can be seasonal, short term or long term placement of plants, sale items
and sale rails on the Public Highway for the benefit of adjacent Businesses without permission.

e. Static Furniture. Usually a permanent feature such as a memorial bench or memorial tree for

the benefit of the community and normally placed with permission.

REASONS:

4.1 It is not unreasonable that the beneficiaries of service requests made to MCC should pay for the
cost associated with those requests, especially when a failure to comply, with The Highway Act
1980, would normally lead to enforcement action being taken and possible fines and costs being
charged.

4.2 An interest by Companies to use the public Highway as a site to benefit their business is evident
throughout MCC. This benefit, usually through advertising or by the direct use of the Public
Highway as a premise from which to sell goods or to supply a service, needs to be managed.
However, this benefit can conflict with MCC’s statutory Duty to ‘.... assert and protect the rights of
the public to the use and enjoyment of any highway....’, Highway Act 1980 : Section 130, and
needs to be managed effectively

4.3 It is the Duty of Monmouthshire County Council to control such activities. The use of licences that
are free, the use of licences that have associated nominal fees and licences that have charges
that reflect the market value are all used in this policy.

4.4 Feedback was received from Strong Community Select Committee, their concerns have been
incorporated within the revised policy.

4.5 Consultations with Business and Access Forums provided useful viewpoints.

4.6 The use of a third party company to provide the marketing, selling and financial controls on these
business opportunities will been considered. The option to manage in house and to seek support from
NCC in this area is also open to a positive collaboration. However to optimise income to MCC at this
stage it is recommended that it is managed in house and performance reviewed in twelve months of
implementation, when we may seek external help

Page 272



RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

5.1 Staff resources are currently engaged in guidance and enforcement. A shift to guidance and
licensing will require additional resources. An additional post has already been approved, within Static
Advertising Policy, and this will provide the detailed administrative support and financial control that
the scheme demands.

5.2 income generation is not the aim of the policy, clarity and safety are. However, it is anticipated
one off fees will be generated to a value of £10,000 and £5,000 annual renewal fees will also be
anticipated. These will go towards supplementing the Highway advertising savings (mandate B13)
that was set up in teh 16/17 MTFP.

5.3 the annual fees generated will support the costs associated with approval, enforcing and
supporting the community and charity applications

5.4 The proposal for fees ( table 1 ) was derived through a small survey of other Authorities
approach to this problem.

Table 1 A BOARD SEATING / DISPLAYS ADVERTS / BANNERS | ‘PITCH’ one off
MCC £50 one off SEATING / SALE RAILS / DISPLAYS. | Continue with similar | £75firstapplication
PROPOSAL | application First application will always be £125. | policy whereby only £50-subseqguent
The annual renewal will be based on | charities are allowed
288 x 70% x | area occupied to advertise and are
£50 = Use Sgm rates : not charged. Funding
£10,080 0to 6 =£120 helped by income
6 to 12 =£240
12 to 18 = £360
Larger areas not permitted
Yearly Based on 31 x 70% x £240 £0 MCC STREET
rental 70% enforcemen = £5208 TRADING POLICY
take up t DEALS WITH

FUTURE GENERATIONS AND EQUALITY ASSESSMENT:

6.1 The significant equality impacts identified in the FGE (Attachment 1) and are summarised below
for Cabinet consideration:

6.2 The access for all forum were consulted. The bringing together of policy that reduces and prevents
uncontolled proliferation of obstructions while providing a less cluttered environment was seen as a
positive step forward.

6.3 The policy will provide an improving position for access and safety. The management of the
unsolicited use of the Public Highway will ensure that the policy achieves an improving situation with
regard Commercial Obstructions and will provide benefit to all Citizens

6.4 The actual impacts from this report’s recommendations will be reviewed at year 1, and when
changes are required, and criteria for monitoring and review will include:

Enquiry numbers, accident / incident numbers, insurance claims, canvassing accessibility groups,
canvassing business forums

SAFEGUARDING ASSESSMENT
No risk arise in relation to safeguarding as a result of this report

CONSULTEES:

7.1 Cabinet Members

7.3 Strong Community Committee
7.4 Town and Community Council
7.5 CAIR

BACKGROUND PAPERS:

8.1 SUPPORTING PAPERS
1. Commercial obstruction in the higr]w@/g)éliz/?g:GE assessment




10.

Management of commercial activity on the public highway policy / report ( 2 parts )
‘A’ board policy

Flyposter policy

Commercial provision policy

Community provision policy

o gk wn

AUTHOR:
Steve Lane, Operations Manager, County Highways

CONTACT DETAILS: Tel: 01291 431678/ 07885 225972
E-mail: stevelane@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 274



MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY

APPENDIX 1 part 1
MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY

Introduction

Monmouthshire County Council has a statutory obligation to provide ‘unhindered

access to the Highways’, while this Duty needs to be managed it currently uses
valuable Council resources to provide the service of approval, of advice and of
enforcement. Unfortunately this service is not consistent throughout
Monmouthshire. We currently licence and charge scaffold and skip hire
companies for the use of the Highway space. This policy seeks to bring

consistency, safety and clarity in this area.

1.2. What is Commercial obstruction of the Public Highway?

Commercial obstruction of the Public Highway can be defined as an obstruction
created by the placement of an object on the public Highway, for the purpose of
private gain, without consent. Commercial obstruction of the Public Highway can

be divided into a number of categories —

0] Flyposting. Installing, usually short time, advertising on Highway Furniture

without permission.

(i) ‘A’ Frames, installing, usually long time, advertising on the Public Highway

for adjacent Businesses without permission.

(i)  Table and Chairs. Can be seasonal, short term or long term placement of
furniture on the Public Highway for the benefit of adjacent Businesses

without permission.

(iv)  Ad-hoc Furniture. Can be seasonal, short term or long term placement of
plants, sale items and sale rails on the Public Highway for the benefit of

adjacent Businesses without permission.
(v) Static Furniture. Usually a permanent feature such as a memorial bench
or memorial tree for the benefit of the community and normally placed with
permission.
(vi)  Verge Sponsorship. A new provision whereby Businesses can advertise

from a static sign location, installed by Monmouthshire County Council, for
business advertising. Dealt with under the Static Advertising Policy

approved in 2015.

Page 275



1.3

MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY

The problems associated with Commercial obstruction of the Public

Highway?

Apart from being illegal, Commercial obstruction of the Public Highway is also
unfair on those companies who choose to trade legitimately. It also puts an

additional cost on the Authority who are required to manage the Highway.

Commercial obstruction of the Public Highway places unnecessary strain and
may pose additional risk to all users of the Public Highway, especially those who

may have an additional need for unhindered access.

Monmouthshire County Council may be placed at risk of third party claims of
personal injury, should an incident arise and Monmouthshire County Council has
not acted upon its Duty of Care. Monmouthshire have to manage a robust policy

in a way that limits risk and does not become burdensome.

1.4  Legislation

0] Under section 130 of the Highway Act 1980 (1) it is the Duty of the
highway authority to assert and protect the rights of the public to the use
and enjoyment of any highway for which they are the highway authority,

including any roadside waste which forms part of the it.

(i) Under section 132 of the Highway Act 1980 it is an offence for any person
to paint, inscribe or affix any picture, letter, or sign on the surface of a
Highway, any tree, or structure without the consent of the Highway

Authority.

(i)  Under section 149 of the Highway Act 1980 (1) if anything is so deposited
on a highway as to constitute a nuisance, the highway authority for the
highway may by notice require the person who deposited it there to

remove it forthwith..........

(iv)  Under section 149 of the Highway Act 1980 (2) if the highway authority for

any highway have reasonable grounds for considering —

a. That anything unlawfully deposited on the highway
constitutes a danger...... to the users of the highway,

and

b. That the thing in question ought to be removed
without the delay involved in giving notice................

Under this section,
the authority may remove the thing forthwith

(v) Under section 50 of the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991.(1) The

street authority may require the payment of—
(a)a reasonable fee in respect of legal or other expenses
incurred in connection with the grant of a street works
licence, and

(b)an annual fee of a reasonable amount for administering
the licence;

and any such fee is recoverable from the licensee.

Page 276



MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY

2.

Methods of Prevention

The Council aims to prevent infringement, and so protect legitimate Business, by
enforcing the removal of any Commercial obstruction of the Public Highway that is
placed without lawful authority or excuse.

Those activities listed as i to vii in section 1.2. above, will be licenced as this process
and the Policy relating to them, those with no licence will be removed while following the
enforcement process.

2.1

Highways activity

The Authority’s Highways division has two existing policies and one guidance
note that cover their activities around controlling fly posters and advertising on
their property. These are —

a.

POLICY :'Control of Goods Displayed on the Public Highway' policy,
adopted and effective from 1 April 2002. This covers aspects such as
displaying of goods and advertising hoardings on public footways. The
intention is to ensure a consistent approach, to ensure Highways Officers
are clear when endeavouring to determine whether an obstruction is
acceptable or not. This policy covers issues such as obstruction, for
example where ‘A boards’ may cause an obstacle for people with
disabilities (including the visually impaired) and people with pushchairs to
negotiate. There is also reference here to the Council not adopting a rigid
ban on street advertising. The policy refers to ‘trader’s livelihoods could
be damaged by the imposition of a rigid ban. Some displays are
considered to add colour and vibrancy to the street scene of our towns
and are an accepted component of some retail businesses’.

It should be noted the policy was agreed following extensive consultation
with the Town Councils covering Abergavenny, Monmouth, Chepstow,
Caldicot and Usk, their respective Chambers of Commerce and CAIR
(Monmouthshire Disablement association). Each trader potentially
affected by the policy received a letter and background information prior to
1 April 2002.

POLICY : ‘Tourism signing’ policy, adopted and effective from 19 May
2006. This policy sets about making it easier for visitors to find facilities
and attractions, thereby enhancing the local economy,. notably in the run
up to the Ryder Cup in 2010. It encourages the removal of illegal and
shabby signs, through a grant scheme to replace with better standard and
:egal_signage. It also encourages the removal of too many signs in certain
ocations.

Consultees included 260 tourism businesses across the County, all
Community and Town Councils, and the Monmouthshire Tourism Alliance.

GUIDANCE : control of goods displayed on the Highway. A board Guidance.
The Council introduced guidance to control the placement of goods and
advertising hoardings on town pavements. It recognises that a limited amount
of street advertising and display gives colour and vibrancy to the street scene
and adds to the character and atmosphere of our towns and villages, but it
also has a statutory duty under the Highways Act ( section 149 ) to maintain
the footways primarily for the unhindered passage of pedestrians. In an effort

to acknowledge these Fgg&f&ct%fnterests the Council has adopted a



MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY

guidance to allow traders to display goods and advertising hoardings on
street footways on the understanding that they comply with stipulated criteria

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Highway undertake regular, low level, enforcement against those who obstruct
the public highway for Commercial benefit. This would typically be objects
projecting too far into a pavement or tables and chairs obstructing the pavement,
and preventing the ‘the use and enjoyment of a highway’. This enforcement is
carried out under the Highway Act 1980 section 149, it currently exceeds 80
occasions a year and continues to be a drain on resources.

Our Approach

This Authority recognises and supports the need and indeed the desire of
Business to use the public Highway as opportunity to increase revenue through
sales and advertising. However the Authority must adopt and manage a robust
policy to ensure that the public and the Authority have adequate safeguards.This
policy would cover the various occasions when a Business wants to use the
Public Highway for reason of benefit to that company. We currently licence and
charge scaffold and skip hire companies for use of the Highway space. This
review seeks to bring a consistency to the policy, both within MCC processes
and the wider Local Authority community.

The Authority will seek to licence those Business’, companies, Charities or
individuals who seek to take advantage of this policy by placing an object for their
gain or purpose on the Public Highway. These licences will be considered in the
following processes

a. A‘FRAMES : An advertising board displayed on a pavement outside
business

b. FLYPOSTER : An advert displayed on highway usually away from
business

c. COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES : Memorial benches planting areas notice
boards & pitch booths

d. COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES : Café tables etc ‘Sale rails’ ‘Planters’ or
adhoc spaces

This Authority recognises the need for some obstructions, for example for village
fetes, charitable events, 'Give Blood', temporary road safety awareness signs,
etc. but also the desire to increase the vibrancy of the street scene through
‘alfesco opportunities’, sales pitches, memorial provision or advertising. It does
not therefore seek a ‘zero tolerance’ approach, recognising the difficulties this
would present to businesses, charitable groups, statutory bodies and others. To
provide guidance to the public, businesses, charities and other event organisers,
a leaflet has been produced. A copy of the leaflet is provided as Attachment 5 at
the end of this policy document.

Any complaints / enquires regarding Commercial Obstruction on the Highway will
in the first instance be recorded at our One Stop Shops. A ‘process map’
outlining the procedure for dealing with Commercial Obstruction on the Highway
is provided in Attachment 1. $Ha&Q)@ B<®SS’s will be updated to reflect recent



MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY

changes in both legislation and personnel (notably in Highways). Highways
would be the first point of reference for any Commercial Obstruction on the
Highway complaints, referring to colleagues in other teams where the situation
demands — as outlined in Section 2 above. The ‘one point of reference’ will allow
the Authority to measure numbers of complaints, any trends, and our
effectiveness.

3.5 It is the view of Officers in Highways, Planning and Environmental Health, that

they deal with their elements of existing legislation, due to professional and
competency issues. Thus Highway Engineers will determine compliance with the
Highways Act provisions, Planning with Town & Country Planning Act etc.
However, that does not preclude better joint working, with improved
communication between the three teams. So, for example, Environmental Health
have two Environmental Wardens who, if instructed, can remove / report
infringements while out on the district. Similarly they could contact Planning for
any breaches they see during their routine activities. It is the intention to provide
a quicker response to infringement.

3.6  Businesses or organisers benefiting from unapproved Commercial Obstructions

3.7

will be warned of the consequences by letter. Repeat offenders will be referred
to our Legal Services Section by a Planning Enforcement officer, with a view to
prosecute.

Our staged approach to action will be by way of standard letters. In appropriate
circumstances, names and addresses will be traced, but it must be noted that
companies are aware that it can be difficult to trace a ‘responsible’ person or
company when they display limited information.

Highways staff, in the interests of clarity, will adopt the following prescribed
approach:

Permitted Obstruction in the Highway -

All local businesses, organisations, national or local charities or individuals can
with approval participate in this policy providing their activities :

do not cause offence

do not cause a traffic or pedestrian hazard or safety issue in any way

do not damage hardware by their presence

are of presentable quality and not excessive in number

are present in an agreed location

are removed by the organisations concerned when required by an Officer of

this Authority, an Officer of the Emergency services or an Officer of the

Statutory undertakers who requires access.

e Are licensed on all occasions and that that licence is displayed, where
required at the location

¢ Meet the general list of criteria, as noted in licence, standard permission but
may change with local conditions for the activity that they are undertaking

e All fees are paid in relation to the application and those fees are applicable

to the period licenced. These fees will be in line with the actual Licence

type sought and the criteria relating to each application.

The fees are outlined in the Policy for each process.

These fees may change from time to time, as agreed by Cabinet members,

under the relevant approval process.

Approved Organisations

Page 279



MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY

Approved organisations, determined by the Highways Section, shall have, but not
be limited to the following

Be in possession of an up to date, and applicable licence, with all monies paid, or
arrangements made to pay all fees in connection with the application.

Third party public liability insurance, of a value current to time and duration of
application

Applicants may be expected to demonstrate that they have no other reasonable
way of undertaking their business. Regard will also be made to the 'purpose
when determining applications, for example advertising near to the premises of a
similar business may not be permitted or permission for alfresco arrangements
when an adjacent business has already made arrangements and further
development will, at the discretion of the Authority, cause a greater risk will not
be permitted High impact events may require special consideration

The following organisations are expressly not permitted to erect signs:

Those not in possession of an up to date, and applicable licence, with all monies
paid, or arrangements made to pay all fees in connection with the application.
Those without suitable third party public liabity insurance of a value current to
time and duration of application

Those without public liability which do not have the full support of the Authority or
local council, their liability would be encompassed by the Authority

Party political organisations

3.8  Approved organisations who fail to observe the Council's conditions may have
their permit withdrawn and may risk prosecution.

4. Outcomes

4.1  The outcome sought is threefold :-

1. to ensure the duty of the highway authority to assert and protect the
rights of the public to the use and enjoyment of any highway, by
consistent licencing, engagement and enforcement.

2. to protect Monmouthshire County Council and its stakeholders from
the expense relating to failures to manage the unhindered access to
the highway

3. to ensure a quick and effective response to illegal obstructions. By
consistent recording of incidents, working together better with early
intervention, problems associated with Commercial Obstructions will
be reduced.

4.2  Officers involved with the policy will ensure all relevant Officers, including One
Stop Shop staff, are aware of the content of this policy and monitor compliances,
to update their procedures and provide some training.

4.3 The policy will be reviewed after 12 months to determine whether it assists in
reducing conflicts and achieving its aims in Monmouthshire. Reviewed every 3
years after.

5. Report Contributors

6. Report Authors —

Steve lane
Highway Manager
Highways Operations

Page 280



MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY

Attachment 1

Monmouthshire County Council

Highways Operations

Process Commercial Obstruction in the Carriageway complaints

Public complaint by
phone/in person
|

!

Complaint passed to
OSS for logging in
Mayrise

A 4

Response managed
by Planning Dept

Standard letfers,
Appropriate to
process, are issued in
order, to offenders

Routine - enquiries are
reviewed by HED

Complaints received
by letter

!

Is the
Obstruction
on highway
property?

A

No

Notes:

Mayrise = Highways enquiry system

A 4

Site monitoring, & removal
offending obstructions by
Highways staff / Enviro-

Wardens within 10 days of

notification

Yes

Detail passed to
HED, & scanned
into Mayrise

Response managed
by Highways

Standard letters,

A

Item found - Have
letters been sent
before?

Appropriate to
process, are issued in
order, to offenders

A

No

Enforcement staff

PROSECUTION by Planning

HED = Highways Enquiry Desk

OSS = One Stop Shop

Page 281



‘A * FRAMES
AN
ADVERTISING
BOARD
DISPLAYED ON
A PAVEMENT
OUTSIDE
BUSINESS

IS IT OUTSIDE
BUSINESS ON
PAVEMENT

Y N

|

FORM
‘A’ FRAME
APPLICATION

28¢ abed

CHECK

MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY

FLYPOSTER —
ROUTE

FLYPOSTER

AN ADVERT
DISPLAYED ON

HIGHWAY
USUALLY

AWAY FROM

BUSINESS

|

ARE YOU A
CHARITY or
COMMUNITY

{

Y

|

EVENT

FORM

FLYPOSTER

APP

LICATION

CHECK
STATIC

ADVERTISING

ROUTE

1:1 : NEW OVERALL FLOW

VERGE
SPONSORSHIP
RENTAL OF
ADVERTISING
SPACE MADE
AVAILABLE BY
MCC

l

IS YOUR SERVICE
BASED IN
MONMOUTHSHIRE

v

Y N

|

FORM
VERGE
SPONSORSHIP

NO
ADVERTISING
PERMITTED

COMMUNITY
ACTIVITIES
MEMORIAL
BENCHES
PLANTING AREAS
NOTICE BOARDS
& COMMUNITY
EVENTS

l

DO YOU HAVE
PERMISSION FROM
YOU COMMUNITY

COUNCIL

\ v

Y N

!

FORM
COMMUNITY
PROVISION

NO
PROVISION
PERMITTED

COMMERCIAL
ACTIVITIES
CAFE TABLES etc
‘SALE RAILS’
‘PLANTERS’
PITCH BOOTHS &
ADHOC SPACES

l

IS THE PAVEMENT
YOU WISH TO USE
ADJACENT TO
YOUR BUSINESS

v

Y N

FORM
COMMERCIAL
ACTIVITY

CHECK
COMMUNITY
PROVISION or NO
ACTIVITY PERMITTED



MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY

Page 283



This page is intentionally left blank



1 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

APPENDIX 1 part 2

1.1 OBJECTIVE :

Provision of a Management of Commercial Obstruction on the Highway Policy. This would cover the various
occasions when a Business wants to use the Public Highway for reason of benefit to that company. We
currently licence and charge scaffold and skip hire companies for use of the Highway space. This review
seeks to bring a consistency to the policy, both within MCC processes and the wider Local Authority
community.

2.1 CURRENT SITUATION

Enforcement action taken by Highways Operation’s Department forms a significant element of their work. This
enforcement, usually against business and people, who are aware of the MCC's current policies, could be developed
into a system that is more readily available, encompassing all private activity on the Public Highway. The policy will
effectively control apparatus in the highway and will recover the cost associated with enforcement.

This policy is based on the following premise :-

1. It is not unreasonable that the beneficiaries of service requests made to MCC should pay for the cost
associated with those requests, especially when a failure to comply, with The Highway Act 1980, would
normally lead to enforcement action being taken. ( e.g. a service request highlighting the need to fill a
pothole is different from one requesting the opportunity to place scaffold or advertising on the highway ).

2. An interest by Companies to use the public Highway as a site to benefit their business is evident
throughout MCC ( e.g. ‘A’ boards and Coffee tables ). This benefit, usually through advertising or by the
direct use of the Public Highway as a premise from which to sell goods or to supply a service, needs to be
expanded. However, this benefit can conflict with MCC’s statutory Duty to “.... assert and protect the rights
of the public to the use and enjoyment of any highway....”, Highway Act 1980 : Section 130, and needs to be
managed effectively

3.1 CONCLUSION :-

By managing and licencing access to the Public highway by Companies who benefit from its use MCC can help,
through charges, to encourage vibrancy to the street scene in an area that is an accepted component of some retail
business. Introduction of charges for requests and licences, in line with a number of other Authorities, MCC can be
seen to be proactive and fair in its management of the Highway space. Consistency needs to be achieved by further
consultation with business and interested forums. The proposal for fees ( table 1 ) was derived through a small
survey of other Authorities approach to this problem.

Table 1 A BOARD SEATING / DISPLAYS ADVERTS / BANNERS | ‘PITCH’ one off
MccC £50 one off SEATING / SALE RAILS / DISPLAYS. First Continue with similar | £75-first
PROPOSAL application application will always be £125. The annual | policy where by only | applicatien
renewal will be based on area occupied charities are allowed | £50-subsequent
288 x 70% x £50 | Use Sgm rates : to advertise and are
=£10,080 0to6=£120 not charged. Funding
6 to 12 =£240 helped by income
12 to 18 = £360
Larger areas not permitted
Yearly rental | Based on 31 x 70% x £240 £0 MCC STREET
70% take up | enforcement = £5208 TRADING POLICY
DEALS WITH

Page 285




11

2.1

3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

4.1 INDEX

2 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

Objectives
Current Situation
Conclusion

Index
Background

Data and Evidence

Process for Flyposter, old and new

Process for ’A’ Frame, old and new

New Overall Flow

Page 286



3 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

5.1 BACKGROUND :-

The prevalence of A boards, flyposting and seating areas throughout Monmouthshire appears to exceed 544 units (
70 poster applications per year / 288 A boards present in Dec 2012 / 31 seating areas at 6 seats each ( guestimate ) ).

The 544 units suggests a need and willingness to display or use the Public Highway, by business. The potential for a
financial reward, for the business is made after some initial investment in the form of :-

Manufacture of flyposter, banners measuring 10 feet be 3 feet on occasions
Manufacture of A boards, varying from simply chalk boards to aluminium frames
Manufacture of seating areas, tables, chairs and barriers

P wnNPR

Investment in benches and trees for community and memorial reasons

It should not be considered unreasonable to formalise an approval process for each of the above installations. A one
off yearly fee for each A frame / each seat ( 0.5metre square ). A fixed charge based on cost of facilitating and
enforcement could be arrived at ( circa £50 to £100 per application / year ). A take up rate of 70% would deliver an
income of around £6k per annum on annual renewal fees. Enforcement / management currently exceeds £17k per
annum and is a continual drain on the Highway resources. These costs would reasonably be expected to reduce on
time and actual fines / enforcement incomes will initially rise before falling off.

Memorial tribute in the form of planting and benches etc. providing they are backed by the community will only be
subject to the first year’s approval charge, as would the community council.

Sources of approval that require bringing into process and flows:

Flyposter : Flow 7.1

A frames : Flow 8.1

Table and chairs : No flow exists

Adhoc furniture, plants, sale rails etc. : No flow exists

Community / Memorial, benches and plantings etc. : No flow exists

oV wnN R

Overall Process : Flow 9.1
Interested parties. Consultation / notification required

Head of Operations

Highways Management

Head of Public Health and Culture
Head of Legal Services

MCC income / planning

County Councillors

Community Councils

0SS Managers

Access Forums

O e N R WDNRE

10. Business Forums

Page 287



4 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

6.1 DATA and EVIDENCE
1. OPINION

The Opinion of Stakeholders has been sort through a small survey of the Public. This was done by asking a set of
guestions of people through 0SS, calls and street corners. The sample consisted of 121 people who wished to
express their opinion. A number of engagement sessions were held throughout Monmouthshire, held in local halls
and meeting places. These attracted members of the public, business people and access representatives. The raw
date is included in point 5 below

CANVASSING : A BOARD : SOME CONCLUSIONS

There appears to be a solid support to allow the continuation of advertising with ‘A boards’(‘SIGNS ENCOURAGE
BUSINESS AND GIVE CONTINENTAL FEEL’ - ONE SMALL BOARD OUTSIDE SHOP IS FINE’), a solid feeling that safety,
with rules that are followed, should be implemented by MCC. MCC have a number of Duties including removal of any
obstruction and assert and to protect the rights of the public to the use and enjoyment of any highway. A significant,
but small number of people do feel that their needs are not being protected (‘SIGNS CAN BE A DANGER TO VISUALLY
IMPAIRED PEOPLE SO BETER TO PLACE THEM AGAINST’-‘CREATING OBSTACLES WHICH IS UNFAIR TO VISUALLY
IMPAIRED’). There is a willingness to see a small charge, although not an overwhelming one, but it can be seen
against a backdrop that a number of those who felt no fees should be made (‘ENOUGH RATES PAID SHOULD NOT
PAY MORE’) also feel no rules should be set and not fines if the law is broken should be enforced. This is not a
reasoned response and could result in proliferation of hazards (‘SHOULD ONLY BE ALLOWED OUTSIDE A SHOP, IF NO
RULES WE WILL HAVE SIGNS ETC EVERYWHERE’). A strong sense that MCC should help by placing communal
advertising in open spaces and carparks to promote local service is evident (‘USE TECHNOLOGY, FINGER POSTS,
ADVERTISING AWAY FROM FRONTAGE, HELP TOURISM AND TRADE’ )

A mandate exists to allow the continuation of ‘A Board’ use, but in a controlled way.

In order to protect the stakeholders rights and the Duties of MCC, given the financial pressure being imposed on the
authority we are seeking support to adopt this policy in full. This would include an administration fee of £50 per
year.

CANVASSING : CAFE AREA / DISPLAY AREA: SOME CONCLUSSIONS

There appears to be a solid support to allow the continuation and expansion of Café areas (‘CAFE SOCIETY IS GOOD’,
- “THEY DO ADD VIBRANCY’ — ‘LOVELY TO SEE SEATS/TABLES IN CAFE AREAS.’), a solid feeling that safety, with rules
that are followed, should be implemented by MCC. MCC have a number of Duties including removal of any
obstruction and assert and to protect the rights of the public to the use and enjoyment of any highway. A significant,
but small number of people do feel that their needs are not being protected (‘ONLY ALLOW IF THEY DO NOT CAUSE
OBSTRUCTION, - ‘ENOUGH ROOM IS LEFT FOR PEDESTRIANS, PUSHCHAIRS, WHEELCHAIRS ETC’ — ‘SOME SECTIONS
OF FOOTWAY TOO NARROW BUT GOODS ARE PLACED). There is a willingness to see a small charge, although not an
overwhelming one, but it can be seen against a backdrop that a number of those who felt no fees should be made
(‘LEAVE SMALL BUSINESSES ALONE’ — ‘IS IT ANOTHER WAY TO SQUEEZE MONEY OUT OF SMALL BUSINESSES’) also
feel no rules should be set and no fines if the law is broken should be made. This is not a reasoned response and
could result in proliferation of hazards (‘1T IS A QUESTION OF DEGREE, ONLY ALLOW IF THEY DO NOT CAUSE
OBSTRUCTION’ — ‘ONLY WHEN THEY DO NOT HINDER PEDESTRIANS’).

The results suggests a mandate exists to allow the continuation of Café Areas and Display areas to continue and the
expansion of the Café Society would encourage vibrancy and new business could be supported by all

In order to protect the stakeholders rights and the Duties of MCC, given the financial pressure being imposed on the
authority, we are seeking support to adopt this pgjﬁygréfuﬁggs would include a One Off approval fee of £125 on



5 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

successful application / agreement. And an ongoing Annual licence based on the area occupied : less than 6m2 =
£120 or 6m2 to less than12m?2 = £240 or 12m2 to 18m2 = £360

Page 289



6 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

2. ENFORCEMENT AND PERMISSION COST

ENFORCEMENT COST : first / second / third stage typical

Administration : first contact @ £107? 10
Administration : support and processing 60 mins @ £20 per hour 20
Supervisor : 3 stage communication by letter 45 mins each @ £35 per hour 26

Highway Operatives : 2 men and truck collect / store depot 60 mins @ £50 per hour 50
Operations Staff : chat + data collection for legal, 120 mins @ £30 per hour 60
166 +legal

86 complaints in 12/13 therefore potential resources allocation worth £14,276 + legal fees ( 86 occs @ £166 ) was
made. Enforcement would need to be more rigorous or faith in system would be lost.

APPLICATION COST : typical Flyposter

Administration : first contact @ £107? 10
Administration : support and processing 30 mins @ £20 per hour 10
Operation’s staff : 30 mins each @ £35 per hour 17.5

82 applications in 12/13, therefore potential resource allocation worth £3,075 ( 82 occs @ £37.5 ) was made.
Applications would increase and yearly renewals would need significant input.

Page 290



7 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

3. FEE COMPARISON WITH OTHER LOCAL AUTHORITIES

COMPARISON : CHARGES IN RELATION TO PRIVATE OBSTRUCTIONS IN HIGHWAY

‘A’ BOARDS CAFE AREAS
GLOUCESTER £50 per year -
SOMERSET £165 per year + Licence £165 per year + £350 licence
CAERPHILLY £160 fee + yearly fee ? £408 + yearly fee ?
BRISTOL CITY No fee. guidance and £50 fine | Currently no fee. Similar debate to MCC, too much
clutter and increased risk so need to manage
LIVERPOOL £50 per year -
NOTTINGHAM £0 for licence -
SWANSEA £58 per year £132 for 6 chairs per year
£264 for 12 chairs per year
NEWPORT - £399 for max 3 tables + chairs per year
PLYMOUTH - £500 for 0 to 15 chairs per year
TORBAY - £226 for 0-10m2 per year
£336 for 10-20m2 per year
DEVON - £210 for 0-10m?2 per year
£315 for 10-20m2 per year
£110 one off licence
CARDIFF -£165 first year fee £165 for 6 chairs

£115 per year

£30 per chair after

NORTH YORKSHIRE

£69 for 0-10m2 per year £265 fee
£122 for 10-20m2 per year £478 fee

NORTH SOMERSET

£168 for 3 tables per year
£672 for 6 tables per year

TAMWORTH £95 plan / £25 licence -
£50 per year
TEST VALLEY - £199 per year
TORFAEN CC Are investigate away from Tend to be in precinct, which is private and not
precinct ‘A’ Boards TCC controlled. Investigating elsewhere
AVERAGE £55 first year fee £161 for licence fee
£81 per year £223 for 0 to 10m2 per year
2 have no charge £351 for 10 to 20m?2 per year
MCC PROPOSED £50 firstyear( one off admin | £125 for one off licence fee +
charge ) £120 for 0 to 6m2 per year
£40-peryear £240 for 6 to 12m2 per year
£166 charge if owner fails to £360 for 12 to 18m?2 per year
comply
COST OVER FIRST THREE YEARS £217 average £830 for up to 10m2 average
£50 MCC one off fee £1178 for up to 20m2 average

£485 for 6m2 MCC ( 58% of average )
£847 for 12m2 MCC ( 72% of average )
£1205 for 18m2 MCC ( 102% of average )

Average : simple average, anywhere a fee is charged it was added and divided by total number of charges
A square area charge was proposed to cover sale rails and displays in a similar and simple way

COMPARISON : CHARGES IN RELATION TO VERGE SPONSORSHIP

8cm x 3 columns

8cm x 5 columns

17.8cm x 8 columns
Half page

South Wales Argos

8x3x£7 =£168

8x5x£7 =£280

£756 with discount

Free Press 8x3x£3.5= £84 8x5x£3.8= £140 £375 with discount
Beacon 8x3x£3.8=£91.2 8x5x£3.8= £152 £541.12 no discount
Radio From £644 = 4 x 30sec adds, alternate days to

£1092 = 4 x 30secs, alternate days to

£1365 =5 x 30secs each day over 13 weeks

Higher Profile Lower Profile
Verge Sign £1500 per year > 5,000 vehicles per day £1000 per year < 5,000 vehicles per day
Car park Sign £1500 per year > 50,000 tickets per year £1000 per year < 50,000 tickets per year

4. EVIDENCE OF SCALE AND LOCATION OR BUSINESS NEEDS

Page 291




8 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

Table 1
A BOARD AND FLPOSTER COMMUNICATION : 1/12/11TO 1/12/12
TOTALS APPLICATIONS COMPLAINTS
POSTER APPLICATIONS 86 86
VIA ALL SOURCES
POSTER / A BOARD COMPLAINTS 52
VIA LETTER & EMAIL
A BOARD COMPLAINTS 16 82
VIA CALLS & WALK UPS
POSTER COMPLAINTS 14
VIA CALLS & WALK UPS
Table 2
A BOARD, FLYPOSTER, SEATING AND MISCELANIOUS ACTIVITY : DECEMBER 2012
A BOARDS FLYPOSTERS SEATING AREAS MISC
MONMOUTH 60 3 5 10
USK 20 0 3 8
ABERGAVENNY 90 3 14 10
CHEPSTOW 88 0 6 9
CALDICOT 17 0 1 1
MAGOR 13 0 2 3
TOTAL 288 6 31 41

Misc : planters and sale rails etc

Page 292




€6¢ abed

9 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

5 CANVASSING SUMMARY

CANVASSING : A BOARD SUMMARY : SHOPPERS / CUSTOMERS TO OSS / CALLS

A Boards : A sign placed on the Public Highway, usually small triangular stands that are bright and YES NO ?
colourful that advertise a shop / business
88 nos 26 nos 6 nos
1. Do you find the signs helpful and informative?
73% 22 % 5%
. _ _ . ) . 26 nos 87 nos 6 nos
2. Do you find these signs a hindrance when visiting your town or village amenities?
22 % 73 % 5%
3. Have you ever, or know someone who has, tripped, bumped, knocked or had to squeeze past a signand | 31 nos 85 nos 3 nos
so be put at risk? 26 % 71 % 39
4. MCC have a Duty to maintain unobstructed access to the Highway, do you think signs should be allowed 65 nos 46 nos 8 nos
on the public Pedestrian area or footway? 54 % 39y 7%
5. MCC’s duty to maintain unobstructed access to the Highway means that it could be liable if a claim is 106 nos 10 nos 4 nos
. . . ) T
made against a business. Should Businesses comply with safety guidelines: 88 % 89 49
6. Should businesses be fined if they continually hinder your access to the highway / footway and so break | 88 nos 23 nos 8 nos
?
the law: 74 % 19 % 7%
7. No rates, fees or licences are paid by a business to use the Public highway for their private purpose, do 69 nos 42 nos 8 nos
you believe they should be licenced and pay a small fee to place items on the Public Highway? 58 % 35 % 7%
(o] (o] (o]

Comments :

SOME AREAS ARE FINE, BUT HIGHWAY SHOULD BE KEPT CLEAR AT ALL TIMES — WARNINGS SHOULD BE ISSUED BEFORE FINES — SHOULD NOT BE ALLOWED AT ALL — IF THERE IS ROOM FOR A BOARD TO BE DISPLAYED
WITHOUT HINDERING PEDESTRIANS THEY ADD TO ATMOSPHERE AND VIBRANCY — IF LOCATION ALLOWS SAFELY — ENOUGH RATES PAID SHOULD NOT PAY MORE — SIGNS OKAY OF PAVEMENT IS LARGE ENOUGH
WITHOUT RESTRICTING WAY — SIGNS ENCOURAGE BUSINESS AND GIVE CONTINENTAL FEEL, THEY ARE OKAY SO LONG AS THEYLEAVE SPACE — CANNOT BELIEVE THIS IS A VIABLE POINT OF DEBATE, WE ARE A NATION
OF SHOPKEEPERS — SIGNS CAN BE A DANGER TO VISUALLY IMPAIRED PEOPLE SO BETER TO PLACE THEM AGAINST WALLS — ‘A’ BOARDS ARE ADVERTISING, THEY HAVE TO PAY TO ADVERTISE IN PAPERS ETC. SO WHY
NOT PAY TO ADVERTISE ON THE STRET — SIGNS FOR SHOPS ARE FINE, SHOULD BE LICENCED BUT FEELS THEY PAY ENOUGH — ONLY ALLOWED IF THEY DO NOT CAUSE AN OBSTRUCTION — SHOULD FOLLOW RULES —

DEPENDING WHERE THAY ARE PLACED CAN BE A NUISANCE — DEPENDS IF PEOPLE CAN GET AROUND — HELPFUL SO LONG AS NOT IN ANYONES WAY — NO PROBLEM SO LONG AS SPACE IS LEFT TO ALLOW

PEDESTRIANS TO PASS — SHOULD ONLY BE ALLOWED OUTSIDE A SHOP, IF NO RULES WE WILL HAVE SIGNS ETC EVERYWHERE — SHOULD NOT BE ALLOWED — BOARDS HAVEMULTIPLIED IN SOME AREAS CREATING
OBSTACLES WHICH IS UNFAIR TO VISUALLY IMPAIRED — ONE SMALL BOARD OUTSIDE SHOP IS FINE

Sample size 121, some chose not to answer all questions




v6¢ abed

10 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

CANVASSING : A BOARD SUMMARY : PUBLIC MEETINGS MAY 2015

A Boards : A sign placed on the Public Highway, usually small triangular stands that are bright and YES NO ?
colourful that advertise a shop / business
15no0s 4nos 1nos
1. Do you find the signs helpful and informative? 75% 20% 5%
7nos 13nos 1nos
2. Do you find these signs a hindrance when visiting your town or village amenities? 33% 62% 5%
3. Have you ever, or know someone who has, tripped, bumped, knocked or had to squeeze past a sign and 10nos 9nos 1nos
so be put at risk? 50% 45% 5%
4. MCC have a Duty to maintain unobstructed access to the Highway, do you think signs should be allowed 14nos 5nos 1Inos
on the public Pedestrian area or footway? 70% 25% 5%
5. MCC’s duty to maintain unobstructed access to the Highway means that it could be liable if a claim is 19no0s onos onos
made against a business. Should Businesses comply with safety guidelines? 100%
A - -
6. Should businesses be fined if they continually hinder your access to the highway / footway and so break | 18nos 2nos onos
?
the law? 90% 10% )
7. No rates, fees or licences are paid by a business to use the Public highway for their private purpose, do 13nos 3nos 3nos
. . i . 5
you believe they should be licenced and pay a small fee to place items on the Public Highway- 68% 16% 16%

Comments :

YOU DO NEED STANDARDS OR SHOPS WILL NOT BE ACCESSIBLE-EACH TOWN IS DIFFERENT, TREAT THEM SO TOURISM OR LOCAL TRADE MAY BE MORE IMPORTANT-UTILITIES/ROADWORKS AND SCAFFOLD GET IN WAY-
SEEN THEM BLOW AROUND FOOTPATH-CONSISTENCY IS REQUIRED-AN ABOARD CAN GENERATE 40% EXTRA INCOME ON SIDE STREETS-CAN WE HAVE CARPARK SIGNING TO ADVERTISE US-CAN WE SIGN SERVICE NOT
JUST EVENTS-20YRS AGO MCC WOULD REMOVE WITHOUT QUESTION WHY STOP-OKAY SO LONG AS NOT OBSTRUCTION AND CAN PASS SAFELY- MUM HAS FALLEN OVER A BOARD-SHOULD BE HIGHLY VISIBLE-
CONDITION OF PAVEMENTS MORE IMPORTANT-EACH TOWN IS UNIQUE, USE TECHNOLOGY TO CENTRALISE ADVERTISING-THEY ARE VITAL TO BUSINESS’ OFF MAIN STREET, WHY A NEED TO PAY-IF UNSAFE REMOVE
THEM-LICENCE, NO FEE- ALLOW SHOPS TO HAVE BOARD AWAY FROM FRONTAGE IF ON SIDE STREET-GENERALLY NOT ROOM FOR BOARDS AND PEDESTRIANS-RETAILERS NOT PLEASED WITH PAST PROMISES, DEPENDS
HOW MUCH ROOM THEY TAKE UP-BUSINESS NEED HELP FROM MCC-FINGER POSTS WILL HELP-PAVEMENTS TOO BUSY TO BE OBSTRUCTED-LICENCE NO FEE-ENFORCE 1.5M- COMMUNAL ADVERTISING WOULD BE
GOOD-SIGNAGE FROM CARPARKS WOULD HELP-IMPROVE GENERAL SIGNAGE-ALL RAISED IN 2011 AND NO ACTION-PROBLEMS HIGHLIGHTED-LICENCE NO FEE-WHY EXCLUDE CHARITIES UNFAIR-HOW DOES POLICY
REMOVE LIABILITY-PROTECT LOCAL BUSINESS-JUST A TAX-FINGER POSTS-£40 A YEAR TOO CHEAP-HAVE A MCC A BOARD OF CHARACTER-VISITORS LIKE A BOARDS-PAYMENTS YES-CONSISTENT APPROACH-RAISE SIGNS
OF PAVEMENTS-CHAMBERS OF COMMERCE NEED TO BE ON BOARD, SOME ARE SUPPORTIVE-CHARGES COULD HELP PAY FOR TOWN WARDENS—SHOULD BE INCLUDED IN RATE-SAFETY FIRST-LICENCE, NO FEE :
Sample size approximately 36, with around 20 returns, some chose not to answer all questions




G6¢ obed

11 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

CANVASSING : CAFE AREA / DISPLAY AREA SUMMARY : SHOPPERS / CUSTOMERS TO 0SS / CALLS

Café area / Displays : A table or chair placed on the Public Highway or shelves, boxes and items for YES NO ?
sale placed on the Public Highway
. . ) . 95 nos 20 nos 5 nos
1. Do you find these areas pleasurable when visiting your town or village amenities?
79 % 17 % 4%
19 nos 94 nos 6 nos
2. Do you find these areas a hindrance when visiting your town or village amenities?
16 % 79 % 5%
3. Have you ever, or know someone who has, tripped, bumped, knocked or had to squeeze past these 24 nos 93 nos 2 nos
areas and so put at risk? 20 % 78 % 2%
4. MCC have a Duty to maintain unobstructed access to the Highway, do you think seating / sale areas 70 nos 40 nos 9 nos
. . 5
etc. should be allowed on the public pedestrian area or footway? 59 33 % 89
5. MCC’s duty to maintain unobstructed access to the Highway means that it could be liable if a claimis | 105 nos 9 nos 6 nos
made against a business. Should Businesses comply with national guideline? 87 % 8 59
6. Should businesses be fined if they continually hinder the access to the highway and so break the law? | 92 nos 16 nos 12 nos
77 % 13% 10%
7. No rates, fees or licences are paid for by a business to use the Public highway for their private 70 nos 44 nos 6 nos
purpose, do you believe they should be licenced and pay a small fee to place items on the Public 58 % 37 % 59
Highway? ° ° ?

Comments:

KEEP ACCESS CLEAR AT ALL TIMES — SHOULD HAVE MORE PUBLIC SEATING — SHOULD NOT REDUCE TO LESS THAN TWO BUGGIES OR MOBILITY SCOOTER, PEDESTRIANS SHOULD NOT BE FORCED IN TO TH EROAD —
MORE SEATINGFOR DISABLED — WARNING BEFORE A FINE — THEY SHOULD NOT BE ALLOWEED AT ALL, FINE IF ENCROACH — AS LONG AS TABLES AND CHAIRS ARE | A REASONABLY LARGE AREA THEY DO ADD
VIBRANCY — APPROPRIATE SIGNAGE AND OUTSIDE TABLE AND CHAIRS CAN ADD TO VIBRANCY — SO LONG AS CARE IS TAKEN IN PLACING ITEMS IT SHOULD BE ALLOWED — TABLES AND CHAIRS BEEN PLACED FOR
YEARS, SOME SECTIONS OF FOOTWAY TOO NARROW BUT GOODS ARE PLACED—ONLY WHEN THEY DO NOT HINDER PEDESTRIANS—CAFE SOCIETY IS GOOD, A SMALL LICENSE FEE COULD BE CHARGED AS ADMIN FOR
COMPLIENCE — ROOM FOR BUGGY AND MOBILITY SCOOTER — GOOD TO SEE LOCAL BUSINESS FLOURISHING AND BEING MORE INVITING, DO NOT PUNISH THEM WITH MORE COSTS — CAFE AND PUBS ARE
GENERATING BUSINESS FOR THE AREA AND WOULD REDUCE IF SEATING ETC. WERE NOT AVAILABLE — ROOM FOR PEDESTRIANS — LICENSE BUT NOT FEES — IT IS A QUESTION OF DEGREE, ONLY ALLOW IF THEY DO
NOT CAUSE OBSTRUCTION — IF THEY ATTRACT BUSINESS THEN YES — IS IT ANOTHER WAY TO SQUEEZE MONEY OUT OF SMALL BUSINESSES — PUBLIC TRIP UP END OF!...., LEAVE SMALL BUSINESSES ALONE — SO LONG
AS ENOUGH ROOM IS LEFT FOR PEDESTRIANS, PUSHCHAIRS, WHEELCHAIRS ETC. — IF CAUSING HINDERANCE THEN SHOULD NOT BE ALLOWED — LOVELY TO SEE SEATS/TABLES IN CAFE AREAS.

Sample size 121, some chose not to answer all questions




96¢ abed

12 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

CANVASSING : CAFE AREA / DISPLAY AREA SUMMARY : PUBLIC MEETINGS MAY 2015

Café area / Displays : A table or chair placed on the Public Highway or shelves, boxes and items for YES NO ?
sale placed on the Public Highway
, - : . 20nos 1nos Onos
1. Do you find these areas pleasurable when visiting your town or village amenities?
95% 5% -
. . i . . 5nos 13nos 1nos
2. Do you find these areas a hindrance when visiting your town or village amenities?
26% 69% 5%
3. Have you ever, or know someone who has, tripped, bumped, knocked or had to squeeze past these | 11nos 10nos Onos
areas and so put at risk? 52% 48% -
4. MCC have a Duty to maintain unobstructed access to the Highway, do you think seating / sale areas 16no0s 5nos 0Onos
. . N
etc. should be allowed on the public pedestrian area or footway? 76% 24% _
5. MCC’s duty to maintain unobstructed access to the Highway means that it could be liable if a claimis | 18nos 1nhos onos
made against a business. Should Businesses comply with national guideline? 95% 5% )
6. Should businesses be fined if they continually hinder the access to the highway and so break the law? | 16nos 2nos 1nos
84% 11% 5%
7. No rates, fees or licences are paid for by a business to use the Public highway for their private 14nos 4nos 2nos
Egﬁ;i,'pdo you believe they should be licenced and pay a small fee to place items on the Public 70% 20% 10%

Comments:

YOU DO NEED STANDARDS OTHERWISE SHOPS NOT ACCESSIBLE, 1.2M-SOME TABLES AND CHAIRS NOT ENFORCED-UTILITIES, ROADWORKS GET IN WAY ALSO SCAFFOLD-CONGESTION IN SIDE STREET, 20 YEARS AGO
MCC WOULD REMOVE WITHOUT QUESTION WHY STOP-OKAY SO LONG AS NOT OBSTRUCTING AND CAN PASS SAFELY, OTHERWISE NO-SHOULD BE HIGHLY VISIBLE-TOWNS UNIQUE NEED FLEXIBILITY-GENERAL
CONDITION OF PAVEMENTS IS MORE IMPORTANT-VITAL TO CHARACTER AND ASSET TO AREA-WHY DO TRADERS HAVE TO PAT, IF UNSAFE THEN REMOVE-WE NEED UNOBSTRUCTED PAVEMENTS FOR OLD, DISABLED,
VISUALLY IMPAIRED AND PUSHCHAIRS-RETAILERS NOR PLEASED WITH PAST PROMISES-SMOKERS REQUIRE AREA-WILL A SMALL FEE ALTER THE PAVEMENT SIZE?-MCC SHOULD BE HELPING-PAVEMENTS ARE NOT
ALWAYS WIDE ENOUGH-LICENCE AND NOMINAL FEE ALL RAISED IN 2011, NO ACTION-PROBLEMS HIGHLIGHTED-HOW DOES POLICY REMOVE LIABILITY-CHAMBER OF COMMERCE NEED TO BE ON SIDE, SOME ARE-
CHARGES COULD HELP PAY FOR WARDENS-CHARGES SHOULD APPLY BUT IS IT A TAX-INFORMATIVE-SHOULD BE INCLUDED IN RATES-TO HAVE IS FAVOURABLE, ENCOURAGE THEM-APPROACH SEEMS FAVOURABLE-THEY
CONTRIBUTE TO AMBIENCE BUT FEES MAY DISCOURAGE THEM-HOW BIG IS PROBLEM REALLY-MORE COMPARISONS WITH OTHER WELSH COUNCILS
Sample size approximately 36, with around 20 returns, some chose not to answer all questions




/6¢ abed

13 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

OLD

OSS receives a call for a
Poster/Banner Application. OSS
staff will advise that they need
public Liability Insurance and if
they wish to proceed to contact
the Highways Department.

Engineer will then change
the Ownership to
‘Completed’.

U

This is then picked up by
the Admin staff and the
Response is then emailed
back to Customer.

—

=

NEW

Business hub receive request
and send out application by

=

email or post

Enforcement action is taken

following existing policy,
after complaint or routine
clearance

—

7.1 PROCESS FOR FLYPOSTER : 86 applications 12/11 to 12/13

90% of requests to
Highways are received via
Email. Applications are
then emailed back to
customer.

Engineer will fill in
Template (Approved/Not
Approved). This is usually
done within a week.

—

No’s are usually followed up with :>

a call to explain decision

Illegal installations are removed
whether approved or not

Fly Poster Application is
received in Highways
Department via
Post/Email.

The Ownership on Mail
Now is then changed to
the appropriate Engineer.

Enforcement action is
taken following existing
policy, after complaint or

routine clearance

Fly Poster Application is
received in Admin hub via
Post/Email.

=

Application is stamped

scanned and logged to

mailnow for Engineers
approval

No’s are usually followed up

with a call to explain

(=

decision

—

—

=

Fly Poster Application is
stamped in by Admin
Assistant.

Fly Poster Application is
scanned in and entered
onto Mail Now and the
Application is Hyperlinked
along with a Response
Template.

Engineer will fill in
Template (Approved/Not
Approved). This is usually
done within a week.

9

Email : replies sent by Engineer & logged as complete

letters: return to Admin who reply and log as complete




14 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

8.1 PROCESS FOR A FRAMES : circa 41 complaints 12/11 to 12/13

oLD

Enquiry received in MCC Area inspected : guidance
Logged and allocated to

Admin Hub : email or letter _ note distributed to all
Area Engineer

0SS : phone, offenders In vicinity, and
contact made with owners
U Actions logged and replies
8 made to initial enquirer
D
N
(o]
o NEW
Weekly / as required under Guidance letters delivered Enforcement letters
statutory inspection regime to offending business. |::> delivered to offending
inspections undertaken by :> (letter A board guidance) business on second offence
Project inspectors (letter A board enforcement)

Highways Operations receives Inspector records defect
Follow Flyposter

enforcement <:| request ( via current inspection : against criteria with request
rocess b el L es sl to remove offending sign
P dates and closes



66¢ abed

‘A “ FRAMES

AN ADVERTISING
BOARD DISPLAYED
ON A PAVEMENT
OUTSIDE
BUSINESS

!

IS IT OUTSIDE
BUSINESS ON
PAVEMENT

L }

Y N

L

‘A’ FRAME
APPLICATION

FORM

CHECK

FLYPOSTER
ROUTE

15 MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION ON THE HIGHWAY REPORT

FLYPOSTER

AN ADVERT
DISPLAYED ON
HIGHWAY
USUALLY AWAY
FROM BUSINESS

!

ARE YOU A
CHARITY

! \

Y N

!

FLYPOSTER
APPLICATION

FORM

CHECK

STATIC
ADVERTISING
ROUTE

9.1 : NEW OVERALL FLOW

VERGE
SPONSORSHIP

RENTAL OF
ADVETISING
SPACE MADE

AVAILBLE BY MCC

!

IS YOUR SERVICE
BASED IN
MONMOUTHSHIRE

! !

—

Y N

!

FORM

VERGE
SPONSORSHIP

NO

ADVERTISING
PERMITTED

COMMUNITY

MEMORIAL
BENCHES
PLANTING AREAS
NOTICE BOARDS &
PITCH BOOTHS

!

DO YOU HAVE
PERMISSION FROM
YOU COMMUNITY

COUNCIL

v v

Y N

!

COMMUNITY
PROVISION

FORM

NO
PROVISION
PERMITTED

 —

COMMERCIAL
ACTIVITIES

CAFE TABLES ETC
‘SALE RAILS’
‘PLANTERS’ or
ADHOC SPACES

!

IS THE PAVEMENT
YOU WISH TO USE
ADJACENT TO
YOUR BUSINESS

v

Y N

!

COMMERCIAL
ACTIVITY

FORM

CHECK

COMMUNITY
PROVISION or NO
ACTIVITY PERMITTED



This page is intentionally left blank



1.

1.2.

1.3

1.4

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

A BOARD_POLICY - CHARGE

Introduction

‘A Board’ advertising, apart from being an illegal activity, can degrade the local
‘street scene’ and can contribute to an impression of urban decay.
Monmouthshire County Council would therefore aim to reduce damaging ‘A
board’ displays throughout the county, and to control inappropriate ‘A board’
displays through education and enforcement.

What is an A Board?

An A Board is defined a free standing advertising board, usually a two sided A
frame located within the Public Highway. They usually advertise a business
immediately adjacent.

The problems of using A Boards

Apart from being illegal, MCC have requirement to maintain a clear and
unobstructed highway ( Highway Act 1980, Section 132)

‘A Board’ Displays can have a detrimental effect on the public’'s use of
pedestrian areas of our County. They can be the subject of third party claims,
for which MCC may be the most likely defender.

Legislation

(i) Under section 224 of the Town and Country Planning act 1990 it is an
offence for any person to display an advertisement in contravention of
the regulations. The relevant legislation is contained in the Town and
Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 1992. Any
person contravening the legislation is liable on summary conviction to a
fine, currently not exceeding £2500, recently increased under the
provision of the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003. In the case of a
continuing offence, there is £250 for each day on which the offence
continues after conviction.

(i) Under section 132 of the Highway Act 1980 it is an offence for any person
to paint, inscribe or affix any picture, letter, or sign on the surface of a
Highway, any tree, or structure without the consent of the Highway
Authority. If guilty of an offence the person can be liable to a fine of up
to £1000, in the case of a second offence up to £2500.

(i) Under section 50 of the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991. The
Authority has the power to impose conditions on permissions they think fit,
including conditions requiring the payment to the council of such reasonable
charges as they may determine

Page 301



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Methods of Prevention
The Council aims to prevent ‘A Board’ displays through a number of methods.
Highways activity

The Authority’s Highways division has an existing policy that covers their
activities around controlling ‘A Board’ displays and advertising on their property.
These are —

a. 'Control of Goods Displayed on the Public Highway’ policy, adopted and
effective from 1 April 2002. This covers aspects such as displaying of
goods and advertising hoardings on public footways. The intention is to
ensure a consistent approach, to ensure Highways Superintendents are
clear when endeavouring to determine whether an obstruction is
acceptable or not. This policy covers issues such as obstruction, for
example where ‘A board’ displays may cause an obstacle for people with
disabllities (including the visually impaired) and people with pushchairs
to negotiate. There is also reference here to the Council not adopting a
rigid ban on street advertising. The policy refers to ‘trader’s livelihoods
could be damaged by the imposition of a rigid ban. Some displays are
considered to add colour and vibrancy to the street scene of our towns
and are an accepted component of some retail businesses’.

It should be noted the policy was agreed following extensive consultation
with the Town Councils covering Abergavenny, Monmouth, Chepstow,
Caldicot and Usk, their respective Chambers of Commerce and CAIR
(Monmouthshire Disablement association). Each trader potentially
affected by the policy received a letter and background information prior
to 1 April 2002.

b. ‘Tourism signing’ policy, adopted and effective from 19 May 2006. This
policy sets about making it easier for visitors to find facilities and
attractions, thereby enhancing the local economy, notably in the run up
to the Ryder Cup in 2010. It encourages the removal of illegal and
shabby signs, through a grant scheme to replace with better standard
and legal signage. It also encourages the removal of too many signs in
certain locations.

Consultees included over 120 members of the public during town and
village centre surveying, business and stakeholder contribution during 5
open meetings.

Planning activity

The Planning Enforcement team have no specific policy regarding dealing with
‘A board’ display, since it is usually restricted to the Public Highway.

A ‘Planning Enforcement Policy’ was approved by Council on 13th September,
2007 which reflects the national 'enforcement concordant principles' - see 2.4
below

Environmental Health activity

Environmental Health have no involvement with ‘A Board’ display, most
complaints going to Highways for investigation

General

Page 302



3.1

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

This Authority is also signed up to the ‘Enforcement Concordat’ which lays
down national principles of good enforcement. This includes reference to being
open about our approach to enforcement, being helpful, proportionate and
consistent. The Authority awaits further guidance from the newly formed Local
Better Regulation Office regarding a new ‘compliance code’ which will outline
similar enforcement principles.

Our Approach

This Authority recognises the desire for ‘A Board’ display. It does not seek a
‘zero tolerance’ approach, recognising the difficulties this would present to local
business. To provide guidance to the public, businesses, charities and other
event organisers, a guidance letter has been produced. A copy of the Guidance
is provided as Attachment 5 at the end of this policy document.

An application, received from a business, for permission to place an ‘A board’
will be recorded at our Customer Contact Centre. A ‘process map’ outlining the
procedure for dealing with ‘A Board’ Displays is provided in Attachment 1. The
process allows for a business to receive a license or be advised of reason that
no licence will be issued.

Any complaints regarding ‘A Board’ display will in the first instance be recorded
at our Customer Contact Centre. A ‘process map’ outlining the procedure for
dealing with ‘A Board’ Displays is provided in Attachment 1A. Staff atthe OSS’s
will be updated to reflect recent changes in both legislation and personnel
(notably in Highways). Highways Inspectors would be the first point of
reference for any ‘A Board’ complaints, referring to colleagues in other teams
where the situation demands — as outlined in Section 2 above. The ‘one point
of reference’ will allow the Authority to measure numbers of complaints, any
trends, and our effectiveness.

It is the view of Officers in Highways, Planning and Environmental Health, that
they deal with their elements of existing legislation, due to professional and
competency issues. Thus Project Inspectors will determine compliance with
the Highways Act provisions, Planning with Town & Country Planning Act etc.
However, that does not preclude better joint working, with improved
communication between the three teams. So, for example, Environmental
Health have two Environmental Wardens who, if instructed, can remove fly
posters on street furniture while out on the district. Similarly they could contact
Planning for any breaches they see during their routine activities.

It is recognised that much of the ‘A Board’ adverting in Monmouthshire tends to
be restricted to the main urban pedestrianised areas but not limited to.
(Abergavenny, Caldicot, Chepstow, Magor, Monmouth, Usk and Tintern) .
Highway Superintendents will be charged with their removal, once Projects
Inspectors have identified offenders and followed process. Business’ benefiting
from ‘A Boards’ that do not comply will be warned of the consequences by letter.
Repeat offenders will be referred to our Legal Services Section by a Planning
Enforcement officer, with a view to prosecute.

Our staged approach to action will be by way of staged letters. These are
provided in Attachments 2, 3 and 4. In appropriate circumstances, names and
addresses will be traced from telephone numbers advertised on ‘A Boards’.

Highways staff, in the interests of clarity, will adopt the following prescribed
approach:

Permitted temporary posting -

Page 303



3.7

3.8

3.9

4.1

4.2

4.3

Approved organisations are permitted to erect signs on street furniture on a
temporary basis, provided the signs:

do not cause offence

do not cause a traffic or pedestrian hazard or safety issue in any way
do not damage hardware by their presence

are of presentable quality and not excessive in number

are removed by the organisations concerned

Approved Organisations

The list of approved organisations, determined by the Highways Section, will
be strictly limited. Initially it will include:

Adjacent Business’.

Blood Transfusion Service

Polling Stations

Registered and legitimate not for profit organisations

The Head of Highways may extend the list of approved organisations.
Applicants will be expected to demonstrate that they have no other reasonable
way of spreading their message.

The following organisations are expressly not permitted to erect signs:
Business’ advertising other than their business

Business’ advertising away from their frontage, unless agreed in licence
conditions

Approved organisations who fail to observe the Council's conditions may have
enforcement action taken and may risk prosecution.

To assist organisations and businesses determine what may be acceptable,
and what specifically is not, a guidance leaflet is available - Attachment 5.

the ‘A Board’ is compliant with attachment 5

Outcomes

The outcome sought is to ensure a quick and effective response to ‘A board’
advertising that may be considered a risk. By consistent recording of incidents,
working together better with early intervention, problems associated with fly
posting will be reduced.

Officers involved with the policy will ensure all relevant Officers, including
Customer Contact Centre staff, are aware of the content of this policy and
monitor compliances, to update their procedures and provide some training.

The policy will be reviewed every 12 months to determine whether it assists in
reducing non-compliance in Monmouthshire.

Report Contributors
Policy substantively as 2008

Report Authors —
Steve Lane, Highways Manager, Highways Operations

Page 304



LICENCE FLOW

Request to display ‘A
Board’ received at
CcC

Approval considered
and payments made

J

Resend Attachment 6

Licence

Monmouthshire County Council
Highways Operations

Attachment 1 : A BOARD

Send Attachment 5 : criteria

: Send Attachment 6 Application

Failed application :
return Attachment 6
with comments and

advice

Approval returned
by Business

CCC = Customer Contact Centre / call centre

Page 305

—

(=

Application returned
by Business

J

Application
considered and
referred to engineer
if required

J

Successful
Application : Resend
Attachment 6
Approval




Monmouthshire County Council
Highways Operations

ATTACHMENT 1A : ABOARD
ENFORCEMENT FLOW

Project Inspectors identify
Complaint received

non compliance of ‘A '
Board’ displays during <::| via CCC

routine inspection

Y

Project inspector hand deliver Project Inspector hand
Guidance letter to offending deliver enforcement letter to
business during inspection and offending business on second
records |:> offence and records
Letter : A Board guidance letter : A Board enforcement
Stage 1 Stage 2

POSITIVE RESPONSE

Project Inspector hand deliver
enforcement letter to offending
business on subsequent offence
and records. Owner engages in

licensing process

) letter : A Board enforcement
Prosecution by

XXXXXXXXX Staff

£166 costs for first

offence <::|
Fine + £256 costs

for subsequent

offence

NEGATIVE RESPONSE

Follow enforcement process if
response from chat is not
productive

Letter : A Board enforcement

Stage 3

Bold = paper trail
CCC = Customer Contact Centre / call centre

Page 306

=

(=
(=

Inspector records defect
against criteria with request
for Opps. remove offending

sign via existing reporting

’

Highways Operations receives
request, via current inspection
route, and removes sign, dates

J

Highway Operation’s

and closes

staff speak to Business
owner when they come
to collect their ‘A board’



Attachment 2 : A BOARD

The person dealing with this matter is:
Highway Enquiry Desk

Tel.No./Ffén: 01633 644725
Fax/Ffacs: 01633 644725
Email/Ebost:

Dear Sir/Madam

RE:- CONTROL OF GOODS DISPLAYED ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY : ¢ A BOARD’ DISPLAYS
‘A BOARD’ GUIDANCE : FIRST STAGE ENFORCEMENT

It has been recorded that an ‘A Board’ Display, identifying your business, has been positioned on the Public
Highway that fails to comply with the Council Policy.

The Council has introduced guidance to control the placement of goods and advertising hoardings on town
pavements. It recognises that a limited amount of street advertising and display gives colour and vibrancy to the
street scene and adds to the character and atmosphere of our towns and villages, but it also has a statutory duty
under the Highways Act ( section 149 ) to maintain the footways primarily for the unhindered passage of
pedestrians.

In an effort to acknowledge these conflicting interests the Council has adopted a policy to allow traders to display
goods and advertising hoardings on street footways on the understanding that they comply with the following
criteria, viz;

i) The obstruction does not encroach onto the footway by more than 1 metre from the shop frontage.

i) That the residual unobstructed footway width is not less than 1.2 metres or the footway width, whichever is
the lesser. The footway width is deemed to be measured from the back of footway to the kerb line or the
dished channel, whichever is the lesser.

iii)  That ‘A’ frame boards are secure so that they do not collapse if they are hit.

iv)  The sign shall measure no more than H900mm, W450mm, D450mm approx., when displayed.

V) That all placements in the footway shall be highly visible or shall have a contrasting horizontal band at least
3 inches wide across its width, at the top, in order to render them visible to visually impaired persons.

vi)  Where the existing designated footways have less than 1.5 metres unobstructed width no displays will be
permitted.

vii)  Exceptions by agreement may be considered subject to maintaining a minimum access width in
pedestrianised areas or limited vehicular access areas.

viii)  That traders provide evidence, when requested, of Public Liability Insurance cover to the minimum value
of £5,000,000 indemnifying the County Council against third party claims for damage or personal injury as a result
of an accident involving an obstruction in the highway.

Cont’d/2.........

Page 307



-2

The above criteria have been established following widespread consultation with the Chambers of Trade
and Commerce for the main towns and villages, CAIR (Monmouthshire Disablement Association) and
many stakeholders..

Although it will be still possible for the Council to prosecute for an obstruction in the highway under
powers within the Highways Act 1980 ( section 149 ), it would not be in the spirit of the agreement to
do so for an obstruction which is placed within the criteria outlined above although it would be desirable
to prosecute any trader who refuses to comply.

It is hoped that this policy will require very little policing and that traders will abide by the criteria in
the knowledge that every endeavour has been made to strike a fair balance between the needs of traders
to advertise their wares and the rights of pedestrians to have safe and unhindered passage of the
pavements.

This policy came into effect on the 1 April 2016 but if in the meantime you would like to discuss this
matter or to meet a Highway Inspector to agree the location of apparatus fronting your premises then
please contact the Highway Enquiry Desk on 01633 644725.

The Council wishes to pursue this matter in a spirit of co-operation, but will reserve the right to

prosecute if the obstructions in the highway extend beyond the agreed limits or cause a danger or hazard
to other users.

Your co-operation in complying with Council ‘A Board’ policy will be appreciated.

Yours faithfully

Steve Lane
Highway Operations Manager
Operations Directorate

Page 308



Attachment 3: A BOARD

The person dealing with this matter is:
Highway Enquiry Desk

Tel.No./Ffén: 01633 644725
Fax/Ffacs: 01633 644725

Email/Ebost:

Dear Sir/Madam

RE:- CONTROL OF GOODS DISPLAYED ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY : ‘A BOARD’
DISPLAYS
‘A BOARD’ GUIDANCE : SECOND STAGE ENFORCEMENT

| am writing to advise you that an ‘A Board’ Display, identifying your business, has
again been positioned on the Public Highway and that it fails to comply with the Council
Policy. | must remind you that it is an offence under section 149 of the Highways Act
1980 to erect such an object on the Council’'s equipment without meeting the criteria
outlined in the guidance. No permission has been given for this sign to be erected, so
it is therefore being removed by the Council regardless of its location in the near future.

The sign will be available for collection from a nearby storage depot. Your co-operation
in refraining from business advertising in this way will be appreciated, as we prefer
such matters not to escalate to a prosecution. Court action is not in the interests of
either party, and the courts generally favour the local authority in such cases.

You should be aware that it is the policy of the Council to prosecute people who carry
out repeat ‘A Board’ displaying that is not in compliance with the policy, and no further
warnings will be issued to you on this matter.

You should request the guidance and seek permission to place an ‘A Board’ through
the an application procedure that is available, by calling your local Customer Contact
Centre / call centre or calling 01633 644725 please.

Yours faithfully

Steve Lane
Highway Operations Manager
Operations Directorate

Page 309



Attachment 4 : A BOARD

The person dealing with this matter is:
Highway Enquiry Desk

Tel.No./Ffén: 01633 644725
Fax/Ffacs: 01633 644725

Email/Ebost:

Dear Sir/Madam

RE:- CONTROL OF GOODS DISPLAYED ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY : ‘A BOARD’
DISPLAYS
‘A BOARD’ GUIDANCE : STAGE 3 ENFORCEMENT

| am writing to advise you that an ‘A Board’ display, identifying your business, has
again been positioned on the Public Highway and that it fails to comply with the
Council Policy. | have reminded you in the past that it is an offence under section
149 of the Highways Act 1980 to erect such an object on the Council’s equipment
without consent. No permission has been given for this sign to be erected, so it is
therefore being removed again by the Council.

The sign will be available for collection from a nearby storage depot.

| am passing the matter to the Council’s solicitors, who will now instigate legal
proceedings. Our costs will be recovered through the courts.

Yours faithfully

Steve Lane
Highway Operations Manager
Operations Directorate

Page 310



Attachment 5 : ABOARD

The person dealing with this matter is:
Highway Enquiry Desk

Tel.No./Ffén: 01633 644725
Fax/Ffacs: 01633 644725
Email/Ebost:

Dear Sir/Madam

RE:- CONTROL OF GOODS DISPLAYED ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY : ‘A BOARD’ DISPLAYS
‘A BOARD’ GUIDANCE

The Council has introduced guidance to control the placement of goods and advertising ‘A Boards’ on town
pavements. It recognises that a limited amount of street advertising and display gives colour and vibrancy to the
street scene and adds to the character and atmosphere of our towns and villages, but it also has a statutory duty
under the Highways Act ( section 149 )to maintain the footways primarily for the unhindered passage of
pedestrians.

In an effort to acknowledge these conflicting interests the Council has adopted a policy to allow traders to display
goods and advertising hoardings on street footways on the understanding that they comply with the following
criteria, viz;

i) The obstruction does not encroach onto the footway by more than 1 metre from the shop frontage.

i) That the residual unobstructed footway width is not less than 1.2 metres or the footway width, whichever is
the lesser. The footway width is deemed to be measured from the back of footway to the kerb line or the
dished channel, whichever is the lesser.

iii)  That ‘A’ frame boards are secure so that they do not collapse if they are hit.

iv)  The sign shall measure no more than H900mm, W450mm, D450mm approx., when displayed.

V) That all placements in the footway shall be highly visible or shall have a contrasting horizontal band at least
3 inches wide across its width, at the top, in order to render them visible to visually impaired persons.

vi)  Where the existing designated footways have less than 1.5 metres unobstructed width no displays will be
permitted.

vii)  Exceptions by agreement may be considered subject to maintaining a minimum access width in
pedestrianised areas or limited vehicular access areas.

viii) That traders provide evidence, when requested, of Public Liability Insurance cover to the minimum value
of £5,000,000 indemnifying the County Council against third party claims for damage or personal injury as a result
of an accident involving an obstruction in the highway.

Cont’d/2.........

Page 311



-2

The above criteria have been established following widespread consultation with the Chambers of Trade
and Commerce for the main towns, CAIR (Monmouthshire Disablement Association) and the Town
Councils.

Although it will be still possible for the Council to prosecute for an obstruction in the highway under
powers within the Highways Act 1980 ( section 149 ), it would not be in the spirit of the agreement to
do so for an obstruction which is placed within the criteria outlined above although it would be desirable
to prosecute any trader who refuses to comply.

It is hoped that this policy will require very little policing and that traders will abide by the criteria in
the knowledge that every endeavour has been made to strike a fair balance between the needs of traders
to advertise their wares and the rights of pedestrians to have safe and unhindered passage of the
pavements.

The Council wishes to pursue this matter in a spirit of co-operation, but will reserve the right to
prosecute if the obstructions in the highway extend beyond the agreed limits or cause a danger or hazard
to other users.

Your co-operation in complying with Council ‘A Board’ policy will be appreciated.

Yours faithfully

Steve Lane
Highway Operations Manager
Operations Directorate

Page 312



N

monmouthshire
COUNTY. COUNCIL

Attachment 6 : A BOARD

APPLICATION : COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION IN THE HIGHWAY LICENCE
TYPE A : ‘A’ BOARD ADVERTISING
Subject to section 132 of the Highway Act 1980
Section50 of the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991 permits and Licence

DY

Agreement by both parties, will require the payment of a single approval / licence fee, by the applicant, to
Monmouthshire County Council.
On successful application a £50 administration fee will be payable.
Should the A Board be displayed in accordance with the licence then no further fees are payable.
Should the A Board not comply, it will be removed and costs, £166, charged to the Licensee.
\_ Fees of £256, and fines, may be charged on subsequent infringements.

‘A Board’ organisations are reminded that permission granted is subject to the full policy of
Monmouthshire County Council. (copies available on request.) In particular, (a) the obstruction does not
encroach onto the footway by more than 1 metre from the shop frontage, (b) the residual unobstructed footway
width is not less than 1.2 metres or the footway width, whichever is the lesser. The footway width is deemed to be
measured from the back of footway to the kerb line channel, or the dished channel, whichever is the lesser, (c) the
‘A’ frame boards are secure so that they do not collapse if they are hit, (d) The sign placed in the footway shall be
highly visible or shall have a contrasting horizontal band at least 3 inches wide across its width, at the top, in order
to render them visible to visually impaired persons., () Where the existing designated footways have less than 1.5
metres unobstructed width no displays will be permitted, (f) exceptions by agreement may be considered subject
to maintaining a minimum access width in pedestrianised areas or limited vehicular access areas, (g) cause
offence, (h) cause a traffic hazard or safety issue, (i) One ‘A board’ is permitted per business and will
only be considered for outside premises, if the criteria can be achieved. (j) the sign shall measure no more
than H900mm, W450mm, D450mm approx., when displayed. (k) failure to comply with the licence may
require the sign to be removed and costs being payable to MCC. (I) you may be required to display a
small receipt on the sign at all times.

Completed by Applicant :I wish to apply for permission to display an ‘A Board’ on the Highway

Responsible representative :..........cccceovieieeeeiciece e, Signature @.......oooovviiiiiiiiie
Email AdAress i e Tl NO. te e
POSTAL AQAIESS . nneenee e e

Public liability insurance to be held for whole period that business utilises the licence e
Size of ‘Aboard : A=..................... W= B=

‘A Board °: Is it highly visible or contain a contrasting 3 inch horizontal band Yes

Is the ‘A Board’ outside your business Ves

Details of location :sketch and notes./ \

\_Page 313 J




Official use : The Permission :

Given : please refer to Attachment 5 detailing criteria:  Yes | resend aggreement attachment 6 & 5

Refused : please give reasons in comments Yes | send attachment 5 with comments
Referred to Area Engineer for comments : -
Comments

Signed : Date

Completed by Applicant:To be completed by the responsible Person, of the business, on successful
agreement to place an ‘A Board’ on the highway.

Please return, with payments, to allow the issue of a Licence. You will be contacted prior to the
completion of the Licence period to renew at you request. Please note that any sign not displayed as
guidance and or that is not Licenced will be removed and the Policy enforced.

Please find enclosed Payments as prescribed below. I understand that (a) | will need to ensure that |
comply with the Guidance and in particular (b) I will ensure that my Public Liability Insurance is
maintained and my Business will remain covered, and Monmouthshire County Council will be
indemnified for the whole duration of the Licence, (c) | will ensure the ‘A board’ does not cause a
traffic hazard or safety issue.

Please call 01633 644725 to arrange payment

£50 application and approval fee, payment per Business and or per premise

| understand that this document will form the :Licence only when signed and dated below by Officer
of Monmouthshire County Council. . The licence will be displayed in a prominent place, window,
door or similar position, accessible by the Public and Monmouthshire County Council Officers and
usually within sight of the A Board.

Official use : The Licence :

Payments received Yes - Licence Agreed Yes : Licence sent Yes

Signed : Date :

Licence to place and display ‘A Board’ as above agreement

Page 314



:i attachment 6 : A5size

monmouthshire
COUNT\.', COUNCIL
Sir fynipy

LICENCE FOR COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY SECTION 50

[ Reference : ]

Official use : The Licence in force when : This document and applicable stipulation / drawings received and

Approval fees paid Yes Licence Agreed Yes

PLAN

Signed : Date :

Monmouthshire County Council Highways

Licence to place an A Board within the Area defined above and as agreement

Should you wish to enquire, or have concerns, about the provision detailed in
the agreement above please contact Monmouthshire County Council via your
local Customer Contact Centre or Highways@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 315



This page is intentionally left blank



1.2.

1.3

1.4

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

FLY POSTING POLICY

Introduction

Fly posting, apart from being an illegal activity, can degrade the local ‘street
scene’ and can contribute to an impression of urban decay. Monmouthshire
County Council would therefore aim to reduce fly posting throughout the county,
and to control inappropriate fly posting and advertising through education and
enforcement.

What is fly posting?

Fly posting is defined as ‘the display of advertising material on buildings and
street furniture without the consent of the owner’. Fly posting can be divided into
three categories —

0] Adverts primarily for local events, for example advertising bands playing in
pubs, car boot sales and fairs, and personal events, typically birthdays.
They appear attached to lampposts, railings and street furniture, or pasted
on equipment or buildings.

(i) Posters advertising products of large organisations and put up by
professional poster companies.

(i)  Posters displayed by pressure groups or political bodies, put up ad hoc
and sporadically.

The problems of fly posting

Apart from being illegal, fly posting is also unfair on those companies who
choose to advertise legitimately. It also puts an additional cost on the Authority
and other landowners, who are required to remove fly posters from their street
furniture, walls, etc.

Fly posting has a detrimental effect on the local environmental quality of our
County. It can lead to an increase in local residents fear of crime, and act as a
disincentive to new businesses setting up.

Legislation

0] Under section 224 of the Town and Country Planning act 1990 it is an
offence for any person to display an advertisement in contravention of the
regulations. The relevant legislation is contained in the Town and Country
Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 1992. Any person
contravening the legislation is liable on summary conviction to a fine,
currently not exceeding £2500, recently increased under the provision of
the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003. In the case of a continuing offence,
there is £250 for each day on which the offence continues after conviction.

(i) Under section 132 of the Highway Act 1980 it is an offence for any person
to paint, inscribe or affix any picture, letter, or sign on the surface of a
Highway, any tree, or structure without the consent of the Highway
Authority. If guilty of an offence the person can be liable to a fine of up to
£1000, in the case of a second offence up to £2500.

(i)  Sections 48 — 52 of the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003, as amended by
the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005, enable the
Authority to serve a ‘defacement removal notice’ on the owners,
occupiers, operators (such as telecommunication companies) of ‘relevant
surfaces’ whose property is defaced with graffiti and/or any fly posters.

Page 317

Methods of Prevention



2.1

2.2

The Council aims to prevent fly posting through a number of methods.
Highways activity

The Authority’s Highways division has two existing policies that cover their
activities around controlling fly posters and advertising on their property. These
are —

a. '‘Control of Goods Displayed on the Public Highway’ policy, adopted and
effective from 1 April 2002. This covers aspects such as displaying of
goods and advertising hoardings on public footways. The intention is to
ensure a consistent approach, to ensure Highways Superintendents are
clear when endeavouring to determine whether an obstruction is
acceptable or not. This policy covers issues such as obstruction, for
example where ‘A boards’ may cause an obstacle for people with
disabilities (including the visually impaired) and people with pushchairs to
negotiate. There is also reference here to the Council not adopting a rigid
ban on street advertising. The policy refers to ‘trader’s livelihoods could
be damaged by the imposition of a rigid ban. Some displays are
considered to add colour and vibrancy to the street scene of our towns
and are an accepted component of some retail businesses’.

It should be noted the policy was agreed following extensive consultation
with the Town Councils covering Abergavenny, Monmouth, Chepstow,
Caldicot and Usk, their respective Chambers of Commerce and CAIR
(Monmouthshire Disablement association). Each trader potentially
affected by the policy received a letter and background information prior to
1 April 2002.

b. ‘Tourism signing’ policy, adopted and effective from 19 May 2006. This
policy sets about making it easier for visitors to find facilities and
attractions, thereby enhancing the local economy, notably in the run up to
the Ryder Cup in 2010. It encourages the removal of illegal and shabby
signs, through a grant scheme to replace with better standard and legal
Isignage. It also encourages the removal of too many signs in certain
ocations.

Consultees included 260 tourism businesses across the County, all
Community and Town Councils, and the Monmouthshire Tourism Alliance.

Planning activity

The Planning Enforcement team have no specific policy regarding dealing with
illegal advertising and fly posting, but deal with all complaints received. They
report currently dealing with approximately 20 cases per year, such as trailers
advertising on the side of the highway on private land, and large banners
hanging off buildings. The Planning Enforcement Manager is now a member of
the ‘Unlawful Advertising & Fly posting Database’ group which allows all Councils
around the country to share information regarding successful prosecutions, which
can then be used after conviction to increase persistent offenders’ fines.

A ‘Planning Enforcement Policy’ was approved by Council on
13th September, 2007 which reflects the national 'enforcement concordant
principles’ - see 2.4 below

Page 318



2.3

2.4

3.2

3.3

3.4

Environmental Health activity

Environmental Health rarely have involvement with fly posting, most complaints
going to Highways and Planning for investigation. Where there was a persistent
problem, e.g. pasted advertising on telecommunication boxes, or on a privately
owned building, then they could intervene to ensure the property owner or
occupier removes the poster.

General

This Authority is also signed up to the ‘Enforcement Concordat’ which lays down
national principles of good enforcement. This includes reference to being open
about our approach to enforcement, being helpful, proportionate and consistent.
The Authority awaits further guidance from the newly formed Local Better
Regulation Office regarding a new ‘compliance code’ which will outline similar
enforcement principles.

Our Approach

This Authority recognises the need for certain temporary signage, for example for
village fetes, charitable events, 'Give Blood', temporary road safety awareness
signs, etc. It does not therefore seek a ‘zero tolerance’ approach, recognising
the difficulties this would present to charitable groups, statutory bodies and
others. To provide guidance to the public, businesses, charities and other event
organisers, a leaflet has been produced. A copy of the leaflet is provided as
Attachment 5 at the end of this policy document.

Any complaints regarding fly posting will in the first instance be recorded at our
Customer Contac tCentre ( CCC ). A ‘process map’ outlining the procedure for
dealing with fly posters is provided in Attachment 1. Staff at the CCC’s will be
updated to reflect recent changes in both legislation and personnel (notably in
Highways). Highways would be the first point of reference for any fly posting
complaints, referring to colleagues in other teams where the situation demands —
as outlined in Section 2 above. The ‘one point of reference’ will allow the
Authority to measure numbers of complaints, any trends, and our effectiveness.

It is the view of Officers in Highways, Planning and Environmental Health, that
they deal with their elements of existing legislation, due to professional and
competency issues. Thus Highway Engineers will determine compliance with the
Highways Act provisions, Planning with Town & Country Planning Act etc.
However, that does not preclude better joint working, with improved
communication between the three teams. So, for example, Environmental Health
have two Environmental Wardens who, if instructed, can remove fly posters on
street furniture while out on the district. Similarly they could contact Planning for
any breaches they see during their routine activities. It is the intention to provide
a quicker response to illegal fly posting.

It is recognised that much of the fly posting in Monmouthshire tends to be small,
often A3 or A4 size adverts on rallings and lamp posts. Highway
Superintendents will be charged with the removal of all but a small number of
permitted signs. Businesses or organisers benefiting from unapproved fly
posters will be warned of the consequences by letter. Repeat offenders will be
referred to our Legal Services Section by a Planning Enforcement officer, with a
view to prosecute.

Our staged approach to action will be by way of staged letters. These are

provided in Attachments 2, 3 and 4. In appropriate circumstances, names and
addresses will be traced from telephone numbers advertised on posters.

Page 319



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Highways staff, in the interests of clarity, will adopt the following prescribed
approach:

Permitted temporary posting -

Approved organisations are permitted to erect signs on street furniture on a
temporary basis, provided the signs:

do not cause offence

do not cause a traffic or pedestrian hazard or safety issue in any way

do not damage hardware by their presence

are of presentable quality and not excessive in number

are present for no more than 15 days

are removed by the organisations concerned

are erected no further than 3 miles from the activity publicised

general list of criteria, as attachment 5, standard permission but may
change with local conditions

Approved Organisations

The list of approved organisations, determined by the Highways Section, will be
strictly limited. Initially it will include:

The AA & the RAC

Blood Transfusion Service

Registered Charities, who have applied for blanket permission

Legitimate not-for-profit advertisers approved from time to time to provide public
information. Approval by town or Community Council and or relevant Cabinet
Member. (note : this would allow for the church fate or local council approved car
boot sale)

The Head of Highways may extend the list of approved organisations, by written
permit in exceptional circumstances. Applicants will be expected to demonstrate
that they have no other reasonable way of spreading their message. Regard will
also be made to the 'main interest' of the advert, when determining applications.
High impact events may require special consideration

The following organisations are expressly not permitted to erect signs:

Advertisers for commercial benefit ( note : This would eliminate the pubs / fithess
clubs etc who legally flypost by linking an event to a charity )
Party political organisations

Approved organisations who fail to observe the Council's conditions may have
their permit withdrawn and may risk prosecution.

To assist organisations and businesses determine what may be acceptable, and
what specifically is not, a guidance leaflet is available - Attachment 5.

New provisions under the Clean Neighbourhood and Environment Act 2005, that
came into force in March 2007, are shared with Planning Enforcement. This
covers the aspect described in section 1.4 (iii) above. If there was repeat
defacement in a particular location, (for example, persistent pasted posters on
end wall to a corner shop), this would then be referred to the local Community
Safety Action Team, for them to consider multi-agency intervention.

In addition to our enforcement options outlined above, Monmouthshire County

Council will also consider any notable practice from other Local Authorities. For

example, certain city Authorities have had success with the use of 'cancelled’

stickers, deterring organisers gf band ormances particularly. Paragraph 2.2
g org Efaé’le élfa Y y grap



4.2

4.3

above also referred to our participation in the 'Unlawful Advertising & Fly Posting
database' which shares information and best practice.

Outcomes

The outcome sought is to ensure a quick and effective response to illegal fly
posters. By consistent recording of incidents, working together better with early
intervention, problems associated with fly posting will be reduced.

Officers involved with the policy will ensure all relevant Officers, including One
Customer Contact Centre, are aware of the content of this policy and monitor
compliances, to update their procedures and provide some training.

The policy will be reviewed after 12 months to determine whether it assists in
reducing fly posting in Monmouthshire, and subsequently every 3 years

Report Contributors

Report Authors —

Steve Lane
Highways Manager
Highways Operations

FLYPOSTINGPOLICY

Page 321



Attachment 1

Monmouthshire County Council

Highways Operations

Process Flowchart for Fly posting complaints

Public complaint by
phone/in person

Complaint passed to
CCC for logging in
Mayrise

Routine - enquiries are

Complaints received
by letter

Response managed
by Planning Dept

Standard letters
T23, T24 issued
in order, to fly
poster/ advertiser

A 4
A

reviewed by HED

Is the fly
posting on
highway
property?

No

Site monitoring, and
removal of illegal signs by
Highways staff/ Enviro-

A

Yes

Detail passed to
HED, & scanned
into Mayrise

Response managed
by Highways

Standard letters

A 4

Wardens within 10 days of
notification

No Item found - Have

Notes:

Mayrise = Highways enquiry system

letters T21, T22
been sent before?

T21, T22 issued
in order, to fly
poster/ advertiser

A

No

PROSECUTION by Planning
Enforcement staff

HED = Highways Enquiry Desk

CCC = Customer Contact Centre

Page 322



Attachment 2

The person dealing with this matter is:
Highway Enquiry Desk

Tel.No./Ffon: 01633 644725
Fax/Ffacs: 01633 644725
Email/Ebost:

Our Ref:/Ein Cyf: HED/ T21
Your Ref: Eich Cyf:
Date/Dyddiad :

Dear Sir/Madam

| am writing to advise you that a sign bearing your identity has been found illegally
placed on street furniture in Monmouthshire. It is an offence under section 132 of the
Highways Act 1980 to erect such an object on the Council’'s equipment. No
permission has been given for this sign to be erected, so it is therefore being
removed by the Council.

Your co-operation in refraining from this fly posting activity will be appreciated.

Yours faithfully

Steve Lane
Highway Operations Manager
Operations Directorate

Page 323



Dear Sir/Madam

The person dealing with this matter is:

Highway Enquiry Desk
Tel.No./Ffon: 01633 644725
Fax/Ffacs: 01633 644725
Email/Ebost:

Our Refi/Ein Cyf: HED/T23
Your Ref: Eich Cyf:
Date/Dyddiad : 28 June 2016

Attachment 4

| am writing to advise you that a sign bearing your identity has again been found
illegally placed on street furniture or structures in Monmouthshire. | have reminded
you in the past that it is an offence under section 132 of the Highways Act 1980 to
erect such an object on the Council’'s equipment without consent. No permission has
been given for this sign to be erected, so it is therefore being removed again by the

Council.

| am passing the matter to the Council’s solicitors, who will now instigate legal
proceedings. Our costs will be recovered through the courts.

Yours faithfully

Steve Lane
Highway Operations Manager
Operations Directorate

Page 324



Attachment 5

The person dealing with this matter is:
Highway Enquiry Desk

Tel.No./Ffon: 01633 644725
Fax/Ffacs: 01633 644725
Email/Ebost:

Our Ref:/Ein Cyf: HED/T23
Your Ref: Eich Cyf:
Date/Dyddiad : 28 June 2016

Dear Sir/Madam

Thank you for your recent request.

Permission to position signs at the locations described is given. The following criteria should be
met:-

. Posters not to be fixed at or near junctions where they can distract drivers (shall need to
be 30 metres or more form a junction)

. Posters not to be fixed at or near roundabouts where they can distract drivers (shall need
to be 30 metres or more from a roundabout)

. Posters not to be fixed to pedestrian guardrails / furniture at crossing points

. Should be fixed on straight sections of road away from junctions if drivers are the target
of sign.

. Can be attached to street lights or timber post and rail fence

. We cannot approve fixing to BT or Electric poles; these companies have been known to

prosecute fly posting companies

. We cannot approve fixing to private fences or property.
. All posters to be removed soon after last event
. Soft fixings to be used with loose ends removed

Signs that are legal have received permission and are installed in accordance with the criteria
above. All other signs are illegal, either because they were not given permission or have been
erected incorrectly.

Page 325



3

monmouthshire

COUNTY.COUNCIL
SIF TV

APPLICATION : COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION IN THE HIGHWAY LICENCE

TYPEB : FIXAPOSTER TO HIGHWAY FURNITURE
Subject to section 132 of the Highway Act 1980

Posting organisations are reminded that permission granted is subject to the full posting policy of
Monmouthshire County Council. (copies available on request.) In particular, posters and signhs must not a)
cause offence, b) cause a traffic hazard or safety issue, c) damage street furniture by their presence, or d)
compromise safety if fixed street furniture. They must be of accepted quality and size. Poster cannot be
erected more than 15 days before an event, and must be removed immediately afterwards. An event to
which the application applies must occur within the boundaries of Monmouthshire.

I wish to apply for permission to erect a poster(s) fixed to highways furniture in Monmouthshire

A 03 424U ()
Responsible representative @.........o.vvvivrintiiiiiieereeseesee e SIZNATUIE 1ottt
Email Address i ..o TelNO. toeiie
POStAl AATESS .. ettt e
Are you a charity : No You are not allowed to advertise, seek support of
Community Council or permission refused

Yes Charity NOS.t.. ..o
EVent(S) PromOted ©. ... .iei ittt ettt ettt
Public liability insurers @............cooevveviiiiinnnnnnn Policy expirydate :.........coooeiiiiiiiiii
Size of POSLET(S) fveneenineiniiiiiiii e, Total number of posters :.........cccoevvviiiiiinnnnn..
Event dates(s) i....oivriiiiiiiii e, Will there be repeat events @...........oeeeviviineinnnnn,
S1gNS 10 D FIXEA 10 ©. ettt
| Dot T i (o) 1 ) I ST

|
Official use : Permission :

Given : please refer to Attachment 5 detailing criteria:  Yes  send attachment 5 with comments

Refused : please give reasons in comments : Yes  send attachment 5 with comments
Referred to Area Engineer for comments : Yes No
L7071 05153 1

Signed : Pagea826



Background

Monmouthshire County Council welcomes the
promotion of voluntary activities in its towns and in
the countryside. This improves the range of activities
on offer to citizens, and adds to the character of the
area.

We need to balance the benefits of these events with
the Nekd for a safe, clean and welcoming place for
resights and visitors.
)

The¢ouncil has developed a fly-posting policy to
reflgd® this balance. It shows how we manage the
use Of the public highway for the display of
temporary promotional posters.

This leaflet outlines the main parts of the policy and
the limitations which apply to the erection of posters
advertising such events in Monmouthshire.

Generally, we prefer organisations not to advertise
using signs on or near our roads. Such signs tend to
generate a cluttered street scene and detract from
highway safety, giving the impression of a neglected
environment.

However, community groups, registered charities
and not-for-profit organisations may be allowed to
advertise on the public highway, subject to certain
terms which are summarised in this leaflet.

The Environment

We all want a better environment. We want it to be
safe, clean, neat and well organised. That means a
level of “good housekeeping” in our streets and verges.
Strictly controlling the display of advertising material
in public places helps to create areas we can be proud
of, in which people can travel, shop and relax with
comfort.

Fly-posting

“Fly-posting” is the unauthorised display of
advertising signs, posters and stickers in public places.
It can make our streets look uninviting to visitors and
shoppers. Old and damaged signs can cause a hazard
to road users and make our environment unsightly.

Fly-posting gives an unfair advantage to those who
trade from it. Clearing up after illegal fly-posting also
costs money. This money is better spent on other
functions.

We do not want unauthorised fly-posting on our roads,
signs and structures. But we will permit a limited
number of signs for a short while to help promote
community events.

Action

The Council will act in the interest of its citizens. Our
highway staff will act on any complaints about fly-
posting. We will remove any unauthorised signs from
our roads. Records are kept of these actions.
Persistent offenders will be prosecuted.

The Advertisers

So, who can advertise on Monmouthshire’s roads?
Applications from the following types of organisation,
who are adequately insured, will be considered:

Registered charities
Non-commercial organisations
Public bodies

Advertisers such as developers, traders and party-
political groups are generally not allowed to post
notices on the highway.

The Conditions

Posters on our roads must be:

licensed by our Head of Highways

of presentable quality

erected for no longer than 15 days

less than 3 miles from the event

generally fewer than 20 posters per event
removed within 24 hours of the event ending

Posters must not:

o Cause offence
Cause a hazard to traffic or pedestrians
o Cause damage to street furniture

Recurring events may only advertise on the event day.
Those not meeting our terms risk losing the future
right to advertise, or in extreme cases, may be
prosecuted.

Who to contact

Call in at the one stop shop for an application form,
or phone one of our 4 One-Stop-Shops, or email:
highways@monmouthshire.gov.uk to apply.



mailto:highways@monmouthshire.gov.uk

The Law — (the small print)

It is illegal to display any advertisement without first
getting the permission of the site owner, or a person
who has legal powers to grant that permission. The
Council has powers to grant permission.

The Highways Act 1980

Under section 132 of the Highway Act 1980 it is an
offence for any person to paint, inscribe or affix any
picture, letter, or sign on the surface of a Highway,
any tree, or structure without the consent of the
Highway Authority. If guilty of an offence the
person can be liable to a fine of up to £1000, or in
the case of a second offence up to £2500.

Towh and Country Planning Act 1990
Q

Undmr section 224 of the Town and Country
Plar%g act 1990 it is an offence for any person to
disp@® an advertisement in contravention of the
regulations. The relevant legislation is contained in
the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 1992. Any person
contravening the legislation is liable on summary
conviction to a fine, currently not exceeding £2500,
recently increased under the provision of the Anti-
Social Behaviour Act 2003. In the case of a
continuing offence, there is £250 added for each day
on which the offence continues after conviction.

Anti-social behaviour act 2003

Sections 48 — 52 of the Anti-Social Behaviour Act
2003, as amended by the Clean Neighbourhoods and
Environment Act 2005, enable the Authority to serve
a ‘defacement removal notice’ on the owners,
occupiers, operators (such as telecommunication
companies) of ‘relevant surfaces’ whose property is
defaced with graffiti and/or any fly posters.

How you can help

We want to know about illegal fly-posting. Our
Customer contact Centres located in, Monmouth,
Chepstow, Caldicot and Abergavenny will be pleased
to hear from you. You can call in or phone these
numbers:

Monmouth: 01600 - 775200

(Whitecross Street)

Chepstow: 01291 - 635700
(Steep Street)

Caldicot: 01291 - 426400
(Woodstock Way)

Abergavenny: 01873 - 735800

(Cross Street)

Or you can email us at:

highways@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Tell us exactly when and where you saw the problem
and the name of the organisation or the event
advertised, and we will do the rest.

We will treat your approach confidentially, and will
aim to remove unauthorised signs quickly and safely.

If you think a sign does not meet our strict guidelines,
it is probably illegal. Help us to make Monmouthshire
a better place for our citizens and visitors.

Report that Fly-poster!

N

monmouthshire

COUNTY. COUNCIL
sit fymoy

December 2007

N

monmouthshire

COUNTY. COUNCIL

sir fynwy

A guide to using posters
in public places

Canllawiau ar gyfer defnyddio

posteri mewn mannau cyhoeddus

Monmouthshire Highway Operations
‘Serving Citizens Safely”



1.2.

1.3

1.4

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

COMMERCIAL PROVISION POLICY

Introduction

Commercial activities can help form part of a vibrant street scene. This policy
aims to help coordinate, reduce the risks involved and provide a system that can
be managed and readily understood. The policy makes provision for an annual
licencing fee, and a one off licence charge to cover the administration costs.

What is a Commercial Provision?

Commercial Provisions’ are defined as, for profit, business or non-charitable
organisation’s activities provided to improve the business and contribute to
Highway Street scene. They can include the following activities, or activities of a
similar nature.:-

0] Café Tables and chairs

(i) Tables and benches

(i)  Sale rails, sale displays, furniture and items of a temporary nature

The problems of Commercial Provision

These provisions, because they are unmanaged, create unnecessary risks and
hazards to highway users. A single system aimed at approving and registering
these provisions will allow Monmouthshire County Council to ensure its duty to
‘assert and protect the rights of the public to the use and enjoyment of any
highway’. The agreement, which would include a plan and notes to confirm
a;]pprp\{(al will further improve Monmouthshire County Council’'s management of
the risk.

Legislation

0] Under section 130 of the Highway Act 1980 (1) it is the Duty of the
highway authority to assert and protect the rights of the public to the use
and enjoyment of any highway for which they are the highway authority,
including any roadside waste which forms part of the it.

(i) Under section 149 of the Highway Act 1980 (1) if anything is so deposited
on a highway as to constitute a nuisance, the highway authority for the
highway may by notice require the person who deposited it there to
remove it forthwith..........

(i) Under section 149 of the Highway Act 1980 (2) if the highway authority for
any highway have reasonable grounds for considering —

a. That anything unlawfully deposited on the highway
cogstitutes a danger...... to the users of the highway,
an

b. That the thing in question ought to be removed
without the delay involved in giving notice................
Under this section, the authority may remove the thing
forthwith

(iv)  Under section 50 of the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991. The
Authority has the power to impose conditions on permissions they think fit,
including conditions requiring the payment to the council of such reasonable
charges as they may determine

Methods of Prevention

The Council aims to prevent illegal Commercial Provision at source. Applications

are normally made to Monmo@pa@g S%ﬁﬂy Council at an early stage and by
guiding applicants through thi s5‘Will provide the prevention method. By



2.1

2.2

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

circulating the new policy to all businesses / business forums, either at
consultation or implementation stage it will again provide a degree of prevention.

Highway activity

The Highway Operations Department have a high activity in this area.
Intervention through education with written and oral guidance have only limited
success.

General

This Authority is committed to helping and engaging the community when
requested. No formal approach exists and applications are treated on personal
experience and not through official guidance.

Our Approach

This Authority recognises the need, and the desire, for Local Community
provision. It does not therefore seek a ‘zero tolerance’ approach, recognising the
difficulties this would present to charitable and community groups, Business,
statutory bodies and others.

Any complaints regarding commercial provision will in the first instance be
recorded at our One Stop Shops. A ‘process map’ outlining the procedure for
dealing with commercial provision is provided in Attachment 1. Staff at the
Customer Contact Centre’s will be updated to reflect recent changes in both
legislation and personnel (notably in Highways). Highways would be the first
point of reference for any commercial provision complaints, referring to
colleagues in other teams where the situation demands — as outlined in Section 2
above. The ‘one point of reference’ will allow the Authority to measure numbers
of complaints, any trends, and our effectiveness.

It is the view of Officers in Highways that they deal with their elements of existing
legislation, because of their professional and competent approach. This policy
will allow Highway Engineers to manage and determine compliance with the
Highways Act provisions with more confidence. Better joint working, with
improved communication, between those teams who maintain open spaces will
help ensure acceptance throughout the organisation. For example, a provision
request made to the Highway Department on a Public Right of Way can be
relayed to Countryside directly with an understanding that they will manage any
provision.

Retrospective applications will be pursued.

Highways staff, in the interests of clarity, will adopt the following prescribed
approach:

Any Organisations are permitted to apply under this provision, provided they :-

do not cause offence

do not cause a traffic or pedestrian hazard or safety issue in any way

do not damage hardware by their presence

are of presentable and safe in quality

are maintained, where stipulated in the agreement, by the organisations
concerned

e adequate free passage for pedestrians and vehicles is maintained

The following organisations are expressly not permitted to erect signs:

Party political organisations Page 330



3.6

4.2

4.3

Companies with no fixed address

Companies that do not comply with this policy in any way

From time to time any company, business or organisation that may be deemed or
their display may be deemed inappropriate for any reason

Approved organisations who fail to observe the Council's conditions may have
their permit withdrawn and may risk prosecution.

Outcomes

The outcome sought is to ensure a quick and effective response to requests. By
consistent recording of requests and successful applications, working together
better with early intervention, resolution and enforcement of problems will limit
the current confusion.

Officers involved with the policy will ensure all relevant Officers, including
Customer Contact Centre staff, are aware of the content of this policy and
monitor compliances, to update their procedures and provide some training.

The policy will be reviewed every 12 months to determine whether it assists in
reducing fly posting in Monmouthshire.

Report Contributors
Report Authors —
Steve Lane

Highways Operations Manager
Operation Directorate

Page 331



LICENCE FLOW

Request to provide

a Commercial
provision received
at CCC

Approval
considered and
payments made

J

Resend Attachment
5 with attachment 6

Licence

—

Y —

Attachment 1

Send Attachment 5
Application

Failed application :
return Attachment
5 with comments

and advice

Approval returned
by responsible
person /
Organisation

CCC = Customer Contact Centre / call centre

Page 332

Y —

Y —

Attachment 1

Application
returned by
responsible person
/ Organisation

J

Application
considered and
referred to engineer

J

Successful
Application :
Resend Attachment
5 Approval




Monmouthshire County Council
Highways Operations

ENFORCEMENT FLOW

Highway Operation Complaint received
Officers identify

via CCC
noncompliance of <:|

obstruction

Y

Highway Operation

Highway Operation Officers Officers confirm
confirm noncompliance and noncompliance and deliver
: . ’ Apparatus can only be
deliver, by Appropriate by appropriate means bP 4

removed if appropriate.

means enforcement letter :> enforcement letter on The removal will be

Remove apparatus. second offence and records.

L ) recorded, usually with
etter : Duty to ensure Remove apparatus e
highway unhindered Letter : Duty to ensure

Attachment 2 highway unhindered -
Attachment 3

POSITIVE RESPONSE
Guide the responsible person
through the application
process. Start at any stage of
engagement
Process : application for a
Commercial activity

Licence
: Attachment 5 Highway Operation’s

Prosecution by < l,:| staff speak to
XXXXXXXXX staff 0 A
£166 costs for first reanisation’s

p” <::| NEGATIVE RESPONSE <:| responsible person if
g. enie£256 i Follow enforcement process possible and engage
£ ine b cots > if response from chat is not them in the policy.
or subsequen oroductive
offence

Letter : Duty to ensure
highway unhindered
Attachment 4
Enforcement referral to
Legal

Bold = paper trail
CCC = Customer Contact Centre / call centre

Page 333



Attachment 2

The person dealing with this matter is:
Highway Enquiry Desk

Tel.No./Ffon: 01633 644725
Fax/Ffacs: 01633 644725
Email/Ebost:

Our Refi/Ein Cyf: HED/ T21
Your Ref: Eich Cyf:
Date/Dyddiad :

Dear Sir/Madam
Highway Act 1980 Section 130 : Duty to ensure Highway is unhindered

| am writing to advise you that apparatus, we believe belongs to you or bears your
identity has been found illegally placed on Highway in Monmouthshire. It is an
offence under section 149 of the Highways Act 1980 to erect such an object on the
highway. No permission has been given for this apparatus to be placed on the
highway, so it is therefore, may be, removed by the Council.

Monmouthshire County Council have a policy that allows organisations, who meet
the local needs, to install apparatus in the Highway. Some fees are required to do so
but should you wish to make an application please do so by contacting your local
Customer Contact Centre or calling 01633 644725.

Yours faithfully

Steve Lane
Highway Operation’s Manager
Operations Directorate

Page 334



Attachment 3

The person dealing with this matter is:
Highway Enquiry Desk

Tel.No./Ffon: 01633 644725
Fax/Ffacs: 01633 644725
Email/Ebost:

Our Ref:/Ein Cyf: HED/T22
Your Ref: Eich Cyf:
Date/Dyddiad : 28 June 2016

Dear Sir/Madam
Highway Act 1980 Section 130 : Duty to ensure Highway is unhindered

| am writing to advise you that apparatus, we believe belongs to you or bears your
identity has been found illegally placed on Highway in Monmouthshire. | must remind
you that it is an offence under section 149 of the Highways Act 1980 to erect such an
object on the highway without consent. No permission has been given for this
apparatus to be erected, so it is therefore being removed again by the Council.

Your co-operation in refraining from the activity will be appreciated, as we prefer such
matters not to escalate to a prosecution. Court action is not in the interests of either
party, and the courts generally favour the local authority in such cases.

You should be aware that it is the policy of the Council to prosecute people who
repeatedly obstruct the highway. No further warnings will be issued to you on this
matter.

Monmouthshire County Council have a policy that allows organisations, who meet
the local needs, to install apparatus in the Highway. Some fees are required to do so.
You should ensure, if you wish to persist with these obstructions, to make an
application please do so by contacting your local Customer Contact Centre or calling
01633 644725.

Yours faithfully

Steve Lane
Highway Operations Manager
Operations Directorate

Page 335



Dear Sir/Madam

The person dealing with this matter is:

Highway Enquiry Desk
Tel.No./Ffon: 01633 644725
Fax/Ffacs: 01633 644725
Email/Ebost:

Our Refi/Ein Cyf: HED/T23
Your Ref: Eich Cyf:
Date/Dyddiad : 28 June 2016

Highway Act 1980 Section 130 : Duty to ensure Highway is unhindered

Attachment 4

| am writing to advise you that apparatus, we believe belongs to you or bears your
identity has been found illegally placed on Highway in Monmouthshire. | have
reminded you in the past that it is an offence under section 149 of the Highways Act

1980 to erect such an object on the highway without consent.

No permission has

been given for this apparatus to be erected, so it is therefore being removed again by

the Council.

| am passing the matter to the Council’s solicitors, who will now instigate legal
proceedings. Our costs will be recovered through the courts.

Yours faithfully

Steve Lane
Highway Operations Manager
Operations Directorate

Page 336



Attachment 5

3

monmouthshire

COUNTY.COUNCIL

SIF VLY

APPLICATION : COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION IN THE HIGHWAY LICENCE
TYPE E : COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY PROVISION IN HIGHWAY
Subject to section 50 of the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991

Agreement by both parties, to this arrangement, will require the payment of a one off approval
fee and an annual licence fee to Monmouthshire County Council
These fees are : One Off approval fee of £125 on successful application / agreement. Annual
licence : less than 6m2 = £120 or 6m2 to less than12m2 = £240 or 12m2 to 18m2 = £360.

Organisations are reminded that permission granted is subject to the full policy of Monmouthshire County Council. (copies
available on request.) In particular, all proposed activity must not a) cause offence, b) Cause a traffic hazard or safety issue, c)
damage street furniture by their presence, d) compromise safety if a permanent feature. €) project must be of accepted quality and
be appropriate, or f) Will remove the provision immediately on the request of a Police officer, a member of the Emergency
services or an Officer of Monmouthshire County Council.

| wish to apply for permission to use the Public Highway in Monmouthshire

A A0 g 1 ¥ T2 ) s B TP
Responsible representative :..........oooeeeeininiiiiriiiiinieneseeeeseeeee . S1NATATS 1o
Email Address @....o.oveiiiiii i TelNO. e
POSEAL AQAIESS ...ttt e e e
Is the proposal adjacent : you may not be able to use the public highway, unless safe.
to your premises No continue with application

Yes continue with application
Proposal : Supply detail drawings / plans / specification as required ................ocooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn,
Public liability insurers :...........cooevveeiiinnininennnn.. Policy expiry date :........ocooeiiiiiiiiiiiiii
DIUFBLTION 2.t e e e e
Is this @ permanent fEAtUIe ... .....cooit ittt e e

Page 337



:i Attachment 5 cont

monmouthshire

COUNTY.COUNCIL
¢ i
iy t

Official use : Permission :

Reference :
Given : please refer to Attachment 5 detailing criteria : Yes send attachment 5 with comments
Refused : please give reasons in comments : Yes - send attachment 5 with comments
Referred to Area Engineer for comments : o No
Area approved from plan Less than 6m2 6m2 to less than 12m2 12m2 to 18m2
£120 annual fee £240 annual fee £360 annual fee

Comments / Stipulations to licence :..include drawings and specifications that will form agreement......................

Signed Engineer : Date :

Completed by Applicant:To be completed by the responsible Person, of the business, on successful agreement to undertake the
Commercial Provision.

Please return, with payments, to allow the issue of a Licence.. Please note that the comment / stipulations made above will form
part of the licence. Failure to comply with the Licence will require the removal of the provision.

Please find enclosed Payments as prescribed below. | understand that (a) | will need to ensure that | comply with the Guidance,
employ a suitable management regime, and in particular (b) | will ensure that my Public Liability Insurance is maintained and my
Organisation will remain covered, and Monmouthshire County Council will be indemnified for the whole duration of the Licence,
(c) I will ensure the Provision does not cause a hazard or safety issue. Please call 01633 644725 to arrange payment

£125 application and approval fee, one off payment per application

f..... licence fee as detailed above and appropriate to below, e.g. :-
(iv) Café Tables and chairs
(v) Tables and benches

(vi) Sale rails, sale displays, furniture and items of a temporary nature
(vir) The provision and licensing of street markets will remain with Area Services Officers who currently organise and
charge market stall holders for their events

I understand that this document will form the Licence only when signed and dated below by Officer of Monmouthshire County
Council. The licence will be displayed in a prominent place accessible by the Public and Monmouthshire County Council Officers
and within sight of the Commercial provision.

Page 338



::i attachment 6 : A5size

monmouthshire

COUNTY. COUNCIL
¢ Ty n

LICENCE FOR COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY SECTION 50

Reference :

Official use : The Licence in force when : This document and applicable stipulation / drawings received and

Approval fees  Yeg : Licence Agreed =~ Yeg

PLAN

Signed : Date :

Licence to place Provision within the Area defined above and agreement until,

Should you wish to enquire, or have concerns, about the provision detailed in the
agreement above please contact Monmouthshire County Council via the
Customer Contact Centre or Highways@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 339



This page is intentionally left blank



1.2.

1.3

1.4

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

COMMUNITY PROVISION POLICY

Introduction

Community supported activities form part of a vibrant street scene. This policy
aims to help coordinate, reduce the risks involved and provide a system that can
be managed and readily understood. Unfortunately in drawing in the Commercial
activities to a robust policy means that in order to prevent misuse then all activity
needs to be managed fairly The policy makes no provision for an annual
licencing fee, but a one off licence charge will made to cover the administration
costs.

What is a Community Provision?

Community Provisions’ are defined as, not for profit or fund raising activities
provided to improve the Highway Street scene. They can include the following
activities, or activities of a similar nature.:-

0] Community Council notice boards

(i) Memorial benches, trees, planting areas

(i) Community sponsored planting areas, street furniture and permanent
features

This Policy will not cover those events covered by the Temporary Entertainments

Notices (TEN’s) or the Safety Advisory Group (SAG) process, which are by

nature not permanent features in the highway. These will continue to be

coordinated under the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991 and administered

by the Highway Network Management Section.

The provision and licensing of street markets will remain with Area Services

Officers who currently organise and charge market stall holders for their events

The problems of Community provision

These provisions, because they are unmanaged, often lead to confusion about
ownership and long term maintenance regimes, or create unnecessary risks and
hazards to highway users. A single system aimed at approving and registering
these provisions will allow Monmouthshire County Council to ensure its duty to
‘assert and protect the rights of the public to the use and enjoyment of any
highway’.

Legislation

0] Under section 130 of the Highway Act 1980 (1) it is the Duty of the
highway authority to assert and protect the rights of the public to the use
and enjoyment of any highway for which they are the highway authority,
including any roadside waste which forms part of the it.

(i) Under section 149 of the Highway Act 1980 (1) if anything is so deposited
on a highway as to constitute a nuisance, the highway authority for the
highway may by notice require the person who deposited it there to
remove it forthwith..........

(i)  Under section 149 of the Highway Act 1980 (2) if the highway authority for
any highway have reasonable grounds for considering —

a. That anything unlawfully deposited on the highway
cogstitutes a danger...... to the users of the highway,
an

b. That the thing in question ought to be removed
without the delay involved in giving notice................
Under this section,

the @layglagtygﬁei/ remove the thing forthwith



2.1

2.2

3.2

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Methods of Prevention

The Council aims to prevent illegal Community Provision at source. Applications
are normally made to Monmouthshire County Council at an early stage and by
guiding applicants through this process will provide the prevention method. By
circulating the new policy to all Community Councils, either at consultation or
implementation stage it will again provide a degree of prevention.

Highway activity

The Highway Operations Department have a limited activity in this area, most are
trying to resolve historical provision or dealing with applications made through the
Community Councils.

General

This Authority is committed to helping and engaging the community when
requested. No formal approach exists and applications are treated personal
experience and not through official guidance.

Our Approach

This Authority recognises the need, and the desire, for Local Community
provision. It does not therefore seek a ‘zero tolerance’ approach, recognising the
difficulties this would present to charitable and community groups, statutory
bodies and others.

enforcement action is likely to be minimal. Someone wishing to place a
permanent structure, such as a seat, will normally contact the council to seek
advice. A process is outlined in attachment 2 in order to provide consistency and
clarity.

Any complaints regarding community provision will in the first instance be
recorded at our Customer Service Centre ( CCC ). A ‘process map’ outlining the
procedure for dealing with community provision is provided in Attachment 1.
Staff at the CCC’s will be updated to reflect recent changes in both legislation
and personnel (notably in Highways). Highways would be the first point of
reference for any community provision complaints, referring to colleagues in
other teams where the situation demands — as outlined in Section 2 above. The
‘one point of reference’ will allow the Authority to measure numbers of
complaints, any trends, and our effectiveness.

It is the view of Officers in Highways that they deal with their elements of existing
legislation, because of their professional and competent approach. This policy
will allow Highway Engineers to manage and determine compliance with the
Highways Act provisions with more confidence. Better joint working, with
improved communication, between those teams who maintain open spaces, will
help ensure acceptance throughout the organisation. For example, a provision
request made to the Highway Department on a Public Right of Way can be
relayed to Countryside directly with an understanding that they will manage any
provision.

Retrospective applications will not be pursued.

Highways staff, in the interests of clarity, will adopt the following prescribed
approach:

Organisations are permitted to apply under this provision, provided they :-

e do not cause offence Page 342



4.2

4.3

do not cause a traffic or pedestrian hazard or safety issue in any way

do not damage hardware by their presence

are of presentable and safe in quality

are maintained, where stipulated in the agreement, by the organisations
concerned

Approved Organisations

The list of approved organisations, determined by the Highways Section, will be
strictly limited. Initially it will include:

Community Councils

Community groups supported by the Community Council

Statutory organisations, such as the NHS, Fire or Ambulance

Registered Charities, such as the guide dog association

Legitimate not-for-profit advertisers approved from time to time to provide
public information. The local Church notice board or a Scouts group
wishing to plant an apple orchard.

The Head of Highways may extend the list of approved organisations, by written
permit in exceptional circumstances. Applicants will be expected to demonstrate
support from the local community is real.

The following organisations are expressly not permitted to erect signs:

Commercial businesses or members of the Public who cannot demonstrate the
support of the Community, either the Community County Council or the County
Council elected member for the locality of the application.

Party political organisations

Approved organisations who fail to observe the Council's conditions may have
their permit withdrawn and may risk prosecution.

Outcomes

The outcome sought is to ensure a quick and effective response to requests. By
consistent recording of requests and successful applications, working together
better with early intervention, resolution and enforcement of problems will limit
the current confusion.

Officers involved with the policy will ensure all relevant Officers, including
Customer Contact Centre staff, are aware of the content of this policy and
monitor compliances, to update their procedures and provide some training.

The policy will be reviewed every 12 months to determine whether it assists in
reducing fly posting in Monmouthshire.

Report Contributors
Report Authors —

Monmouthshire County Council, Highways Operations
Attachment 1

Attachment 1

LICENCE FLOW

Page 343



Request to provide

a local community

provision received
at CCC

—

Approval
considered and
payments made

J

Resend Attachment
5 Licence

Y —

Send Attachment 5
Application

Failed application :
return Attachment
5 with comments

and advice

Approval returned
by responsible
person /
Organisation

Page 344

—

Y —

Y

Application
returned by
responsible person
/ Organisation

J

Application
considered and
referred to engineer
if required

J

Successful
Application :
Resend Attachment
5 Approval




Monmouthshire County Council Highways Operations

ENFORCEMENT FLOW

Highway Operation
Officers identify
noncompliance of
obstruction

Y

Highway Operation Officers
confirm noncompliance and
deliver, by Appropriate
means enforcement letter
Remove apparatus.
Letter : Duty to ensure
highway unhindered
Attachment 3

Complaint received
via CCC

—

Highway Operation
Officers confirm
noncompliance and deliver,
by Appropriate means
:> enforcement letter on
second offence and records.
Remove apparatus
Letter : Duty to ensure
highway unhindered
Attachment 4

POSITIVE RESPONSE
Guide the responsible person
through the application
process. Start at any stage of
engagement
Process : application for a
Commercial activity
Licence

: Attachment 5
Prosecution by

XXXXXXXXX staff
Fine + min £166

NEGATIVE RESPONSE
costs?

Follow enforcement process
if response from chat is not
productive
Letter : Duty to ensure
highway unhindered
Attachment 4
Enforcement referral to
Legal

Bold = paper trail
CCC = Customer Contact Centre / call centre

Page 345

=

Tt

attachment 2

Apparatus can only be
removed if appropriate.
The removal will be
recorded, usually with
photographs

Highway Operation’s
staff speak to
Organisation’s
responsible person if
possible and engage
them in the policy.



Attachment 3

The person dealing with this matter is:
Highway Enquiry Desk

Tel.No./Ffon: 01633 644725
Fax/Ffacs: 01633 644725
Email/Ebost:

Our Refi/Ein Cyf: HED/ T21
Your Ref: Eich Cyf:
Date/Dyddiad :

Dear Sir/Madam
Highway Act 1980 Section 130 : Duty to ensure Highway is unhindered

| am writing to advise you that apparatus, we believe belongs to you or bears your
identity has been found illegally placed on Highway in Monmouthshire. | must remind
you that it is an offence under section 149 of the Highways Act 1980 to erect such an
object on the highway without consent. No permission has been given for this
apparatus to be erected, so it is therefore being removed again by the Council.

Monmouthshire County Council have a policy that allows organisations, who meet
the local needs, to install apparatus in the Highway. Some fees are required to do so
but should you wish to make an application please do so by contacting your local
Customer Contact Centre or calling 01633 644725.

Yours faithfully

Steve Lane
Highway Operations Manager
Operations Directorate

Page 346



Attachment 4

The person dealing with this matter is:
Highway Enquiry Desk

Tel.No./Ffon: 01633 644725
Fax/Ffacs: 01633 644725
Email/Ebost:

Our Ref:/Ein Cyf: HED/T22
Your Ref: Eich Cyf:
Date/Dyddiad : 28 June 2016

Dear Sir/Madam
Highway Act 1980 Section 130 : Duty to ensure Highway is unhindered

| am writing to advise you that apparatus, we believe belongs to you or bears your
identity has been found illegally placed on Highway in Monmouthshire. | must remind
you that it is an offence under section 149 of the Highways Act 1980 to erect such an
object on the highway without consent. No permission has been given for this
apparatus to be erected, so it is therefore being removed again by the Council.

Your co-operation in refraining from the activity will be appreciated, as we prefer such
matters not to escalate to a prosecution. Court action is not in the interests of either
party, and the courts generally favour the local authority in such cases.

You should be aware that it is the policy of the Council to prosecute people who
repeatedly obstruct the highway. No further warnings will be issued to you on this
matter.

Monmouthshire County Council have a policy that allows organisations, who meet
the local needs, to install apparatus in the Highway. Some fees are required to do so.
You should ensure, if you wish to persist with these obstructions, to make an
application please do so by contacting your local Customer Contact Centre or calling
01633 644725.

Yours faithfully

Steve Lane
Highway Operations Manager
Operations Directorate

Page 347



Dear Sir/Madam

The person dealing with this matter is:

Highway Enquiry Desk
Tel.No./Ffon: 01633 644725
Fax/Ffacs: 01633 644725
Email/Ebost:

Our Refi/Ein Cyf: HED/T23
Your Ref: Eich Cyf:
Date/Dyddiad : 28 June 2016

Highway Act 1980 Section 130 : Duty to ensure Highway is unhindered

Attachment 5

| am writing to advise you that apparatus, we believe belongs to you or bears your
identity has been found illegally placed on Highway in Monmouthshire. | must remind
you that it is an offence under section 149 of the Highways Act 1980 to erect such an
No permission has been given for this
apparatus to be erected, so it is therefore being removed again by the Council.

object on the highway without consent.

| am passing the matter to the Council’s solicitors, who will now instigate legal
proceedings. Our costs will be recovered through the courts.

Yours faithfully

Steve Lane
Highway Operation’s Manager
Operations Directorate

Page 348



Attachment 6

3

monmouthshire

‘OI{I:I‘T‘;'.II(!IJO‘IU].N‘C]L
APPLICATION : COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION IN THE HIGHWAY LICENCE
TYPE D : COMMUNITY ACTIVITY PROVISION IN HIGHWAY
Subject to section 50 of the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991

Agreement by both parties, to this arrangement, will require the payment of a single
approval fee, but may include an appropriate maintenance agreement, by the applicant, to
Monmouthshire County Council
These fees are : on successful application a £0 administration

Organisations are reminded that permission granted is subject to the full policy of Monmouthshire County Council. (copies
available on request.) In particular, all proposed activity must not a) cause offence, b) cause a traffic hazard or safety issue, c)
damage street furniture by their presence, d) compromise safety if a permanent feature., or €) may be subject to a maintenance
agreement. A project must be of accepted quality and appropriate .

| wish to apply for permission to erect a ‘Feature’ on the highway in Monmouthshire

1Y A0 gt 1 ¥ T2 [ ) s B PN
Responsible representative 1..........coiieiniiiiiiniee e SIZNATUNE S
Email Address . ..ooviniiiiiiii i Tel NO. toi e,
POSEAL AQAIESS & vttt e e
Seek support of Community Council or permission refused. Yes

Confirm support of Community Council and attach Yes

Proposal : Supply detail drawings / plans / specification as required ...............cccoeviiiiiiiiiininiiinn.n
Public liability insurers :...........cccoovveiiiiiinennnn.. Policy expiry date :.......cccoeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieean,
IS this @ Permanent fEatUNe & ... .o e e

Page 349



Attachment 6 cont

3

monmouthshire
COUNTY, COUNCIL
SiF fyniy

Official use : Permission : Reference :
Given : please refer to Attachment 6 detailing criteria : Yes send attachment 6 with comments
Refused : please give reasons in comments : Yes - send attachment 6 with comments

Referred to Area Engineer for comments : Yes No

Comments / Stipulations to licence :..include drawings and specifications that will form agreement......................

Completed by Applicant:To be completed by the responsible Person, of the business, on successful agreement to undertake the
Community Provision.

Please return, with payments, to allow the issue of a Licence.. Please note that the comment / stipulations made above will form
part of the licence. Failure to comply with the Licence will require the removal of the provision.

Please find enclosed Payments as prescribed below. | understand that (a) | will need to ensure that I comply with the Guidance and
in particular (b) 1 will ensure that my Public Liability Insurance is maintained and my Organisation will remain covered, and
Monmouthshire County Council will be indemnified for the whole duration of the Licence, (c) | will ensure the Provision does not
cause a hazard or safety issue. Please call 01633 644725 to arrange payment, (d) | will ensure the ‘Feature’ is maintained and
kept safe, as stipulated in the licence, and or removed, at the cost of the Licensee

£0 application and approval fee, one off payment per application as below, e.g. :-

a) A permanent feature, such as memorial bench.
b) A permanent feature, such as a Community planting area or notice board

| understand that this document will form the Licence only when signed and dated below by Officer of Monmouthshire County
Council.

Page 350



:i attachment 6

monmouthshire

COUNTY. COUNCIL
My

LICENCE FOR COMMUNITY ACTIVITY

Reference :

Official use : The Licence in force when : This document and applicable stipulation / drawings received and

Approval fees paid Yes Licence Agreed Yes

PLAN / DETAILS

STIPULATIONS

. J

Signed : Date :

Licence to place Provision within the Area defined above and agreement until,

RALE. ... Page.321..........



This page is intentionally left blank



T
T :
¥  monmouthshire
QL) sir fynwy
Name of the Officer completing the evaluation Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal
Steve Lane
This report will allow obstructions in the Highway to be officially placed

Phone no: 07885 225972 under a new policy and licencing regime. This will remove a degree of
E-mail:stevelane@monmouthshire.gov.uk uncertainty about what a Citizen can expect.

Name of Service; MCC Highways Operations Date Future Generations Evaluation 20/06/2016

_%. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
@ Wwith suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.
Q

Z;o How does the proposal contribute to this What actions have been/will be taken to
EﬂNeII Being Goal goal? (positive and negative) mitigate any negatlve_ |_mpgcts or better
contribute to positive impacts?
A prosperous Wales The proposal will reduce street clutter and some
Efficient use of resources, skilled, of the risks associated with uncontrolled
educated people, generates wealth, Commercial Obstructions on the Highway.
provides jobs

A resilient Wales

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and
ecosystems that support resilience and
can adapt to change (e.g. climate
change)

A healthier Wales

People’s physical and mental
wellbeing is maximized and health
impacts are understood




o "\RV\ 1
S¢ ovucqg

Well Being Goal

How does the proposal contribute to this
goal? (positive and negative)

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A Wales of cohesive communities
Communities are attractive, viable,
safe and well connected

The new management procedure, this policy,
will bring some certainty to the current
situation, which is fragmented and does not
encompass all aspects.

Commercial Obstructions already exist, it is
the proposal to formally agree / licence these
Commercial Obstructions that will provided
the positive impact

Supporting retail in particular helps to sustain
the prosperity of our town centres with all of
the knock on benefits to employment and the
sustainability of our towns as attractive
places to visit and live in.

Reinvestment of some raised income into local
signing, allowing Businesses to advertise away
from their frontages or, provide business
opportunities adjacent to them, but in a controlled
manner will help provide a positive outcome

globally responsible Wales
Taking account of impact on global
well-being when considering local
social, economic and environmental
wellbeing

A Wales of vibrant culture and
thriving Welsh language

Culture, heritage and Welsh language
are promoted and protected. People
are encouraged to do sport, art and
recreation

A more equal Wales

People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or
circumstances

2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?




Sustainable Development

How does your proposal demonstrate you have

What has been done to better to meet this

Principle met this principle? principle?
Balancing Ultimately bringing together existing guidance and policy
short term into one place will simplify
need with Consultation and fact finding with engagement of, Citizens,

1 " long term and Business, other Authorities, CAIR, Legal, Planning, and
SR planning for front line Teams will ensure balance and a long term stable
the future policy.
Working
together with
other
Collaboration par.tners to
deliver
objectives
Involving There have been several rounds of consultation with many

those with an
interest and
seeking their
views

@)

Invalvement

stakeholder groups as detailed in the report. These have
enabled a proposal that seeks to balance the needs of a
vibrant, prosperous Monmouthshire with the need to protect
the highway user

Putting
resources
into

preventing
problems
occurring or getting worse

Prevention

Controlling the proliferation of uncontrolled obstructions will
protect MCC and stakeholders, reducing risk and exposure
to hazards and claims. The policy will provide a robust
protocol that will ensure the following to prevent adverse
outcomes

Review of policy after year one and then as appropriate.
Routine inspections to highlight hazards.

Rigorous enforcement procedures in place that are
communicated to all Staff involved in the process

Clear / consistent guidance given to applicants




Sustainable Development
Principle

How does your proposal demonstrate you have
met this principle?

What has been done to better to meet this
principle?

Positively
impacting on
people,
economy and
environment
and trying to benefit all three

Integration

The new regime reflects feedback from various
stakeholders and seeks to balance the need for a vibrant

Business Community with that of a clean safe environment
for those using the Public Highway

9G¢ abed




3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the

evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.

Protected
Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive

reassignment

impacts?
Age
Disability The proposal will reduce street clutter and Positive feedback has been received to People will be able to see, and
some of the risks associated with the proposal understand, what can be expected in
uncontrolled Commercial Obstructions on relation to an obstruction they may
the Highway. expect to encounter
Gender

Marriage or civil
gpartnership
D

2
HRace

)

INaYalaY YD) ]

J\'I'Religion or Belief

Sex

Sexual Orientation

Welsh Language




4. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on important responsibilities of Corporate Parenting and
safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities? For more information please see the guidance
http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safequarding%20Guidance.docx and for more on Monmouthshire’s Corporate
Parenting Strategy see http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx

Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What will you do/ have you done
proposal has on safeguarding and your proposal has on safeguarding | to mitigate any negative impacts
corporate parenting and corporate parenting or better contribute to positive
impacts?
Safeguarding No safeguarding or parenting

implications are anticipated as a result of
these proposals

Corporate Parenting

. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?
Q

«Q

laYaYallaY

DExtensive consultation has taken place whilst arriving at the proposals,. This has been with local councils, chambers of commerce, and locally
Wyepresentatives of disabled groups (through CAIR). Individuals have also been invited to comment through a consultation process. Information about this
as been provided within the policy documents, sent to local councils and brought to the attention of interested groups.
larity for the business and the citizen will be made. Clear licence stipulations, clearly displayed and rigorously enforced will ensure Citizens will
experience a Highway with reduced clutter that will help fulfill MCC Duty to assert and protect the rights of the Public to the use and enjoyment of any
Highway for which they are the Highway authority.

A need for Businesses to advertise is evident, they are doing so in an uncontrolled way at present. Business’s were keen, during consultation to provide a
way forward that provides clarity and consistancy . the policy has taken into account their concern at the cost of such a scheme. These concerns have
been aderessed in this proposal.

The desire for a street scene clear of all obstruction was seen as a desire by Representatives of Disabled groups ( CAIR ), although a need for consistency
and clarity was viewed as a more achievable aim

Evidence, from other Authorities, means we will be undertaking control, licencing and enforcement in a similar way. Fees and charges are also at or
substantially below those made by many of the Authorities.



http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safeguarding%20Guidance.docx
http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx

6. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

Clarity for the business and the citizen will be main achievement.
Safe guarding the Highway user, protecting them from hazards while protecting MCC from risk make this policy worth while

Guidance and Licencing will affect business flexibility and fees will affect their budgets, these have been mitigated by proposing single, one off,
administration fee for A boards and low fees for other business use.

Investigation into charges made by other Authorities in this area have been made and the policy reflects the needs for Business to flourish

7. Actions. As a result of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if

applicable.
What are you going to do When are you going to do it? Who is responsible Progress
—tReview Policy once accepted Review after year one and then as Highways Operations Manager
ég required or when changes are
(¢») required
)
o

8. Monitoring: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will
evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review.

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on:




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3g

" monmouthshire
W sir fynwy
SUBJECT: Review of Earmarked Reserves
MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: 6t July 2016
DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All

11

2.1

3.1

3.2

PURPOSE:

To review the level of earmarked reserves held by the Council at the end of 2015/16, the
rationale for each reserve and the protocols for using them.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That Cabinet approve the revised protocols for the use of Earmarked reserves contained
in the Policy on Earmarked Reserves at Appendix 1 to ensure purposeful use of earmarked
reserves.

KEY ISSUES:
Background

Cabinet received a review of reserves in 2012, at that time the Council had £18m in
earmarked reserves and £6.2 million in general reserve. At the end of 2015/16 the Council
had £9.2 million in earmarked reserves and this is expected to reduce to £6.2 million by
the end of 2016/17. The general reserve balance has slightly increased to £7 million and
is expected to be maintained at this level over the medium term. Replenishment of
reserves over this period has been limited to circa £570k from underspends in 2015/16,
however there have been opportunities to redistribute reserves as the need for funds such
as Single Status reserve expired. The overall use of ear marked reserves has totalled £9
million and has resulted in a 50% reduction in earmarked reserves over the 4 year period,
which is a much faster reduction in the use of these reserves than was expected at the last
review. The balance on earmarked reserves expected at the end of 2015/16 in the last
review was £11.2 million, compared to the actual balance of £9.2 million.

In summary the main uses of the earmarked reserves has included:

o Redundancy costs £1.9 million

o Invest to redesign £2.2 million, including budget implementation, innovation centre,
Adults social care transformation and social care system

o Priority Investment £2.3 million — including Raising education standards and IT

technicians for schools £850k, social care £600Kk, business related £375k, People
services strategy £150Kk,
¥ Page 361



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

° IT Investment £1.2 million

o Capital funding to release assets or support capital programme £1.5 million
o Treasury Equalisation - £340k
o Service reserves — Elections and Grass routes £200k

A further £3 million of earmarked reserves is planned to be used in 2016/17, taking the
balance on earmarked reserves to £6.2 million

It is important that all councils undertake periodic reviews of reserves which considers:

o The rationale for keeping each reserve, with reference to the council’s future
spending plans

o The funds needed

o How long reserves have been held and projections for using them, which should be
monitored.

o The protocols for the management of reserves

Definitions of Reserves

Local Authorities in following proper accounting practices, provide a Movement in
Reserves Statement as part of the Local Authority financial statements. This statement
presents the movement in the year of reserves of the authority analyses into ‘usable’ and
‘unusable’ reserves.

This report is concerned with Usable reserves rather than Unusable reserves. Unusable
reserves arise out of the interaction of legislation and proper accounting practice, either to
store revaluation gains or as adjustment accounts to reconcile accounting requirements
driven by reporting standards to statutory requirements. These reserves are not resource
backed and cannot be used for any other purpose.

Usable reserves are referred to as cash-backed reserves that can be used to fund future
expenditure. As at 31 March 2016 the Council held the following usable reserves:

31/03/14 31/03/15 31/03/16

£000 £000 £000

General Fund Balance 7,080 6,991 6,989
Schools reserves 988 1,140 1,156
Earmarked Reserves 13,249 10,980 9,269
Total revenue reserves 21,317 19,112 17,415
Capital receipts 8,023 17,629 5,423
Capital Grants unapplied 953 3,130 2,546

Page 362




3.7

3.8

3.9

Some of these reserves are subject to restrictions on their usage. These include:

Schools Reserve — for use in schools as governed by the Fair Funding Scheme for
Financing schools,

Capital Grants Unapplied — this will relate to specific capital projects and will be restricted
by the grant terms and conditions

Capital Receipts — this holds the proceeds from the sale of assets and in accordance with
regulations these funds can only be used for capital purposes or set aside to repay debt.
From April 2016 WG has provided additional flexibilities for Local Authorities to spend
100% of capital receipts from asset sales on the revenue costs of reform projects. Given
the pressures on the capital programme, the need to minimise the cost of debt in the
revenue account, and the fact that MCC has an earmarked reserve for invest to save
projects it is unlikely that capital receipts will be drawn on for this purpose.

General Reserve (Unallocated reserve)

This is a working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows to avoid
unnecessary temporary borrowing and to provide a contingency to cushion the impact of
unexpected events or emergencies. There is no prescriptive guidance on minimum or
maximum reserves. The authority needs to assess the strategic, operational and financial
risks facing it when assessing the adequacy of the general reserve. A WAO report
indicated that of the 50% of authorities that did set a minimum level, they typically range
between 3 and 5% of net revenue expenditure.

In Monmouthshire a range of between 4 and 6% of net revenue expenditure has been
used. Unlike some other Authorities, Monmouthshire has no contingency within the base
budget to help cushion the impact of unexpected variations and so relies on its general
reserve for this purpose. The Authority’s risk register is reviewed when assessing the level
of reserves required at budget setting and this is reported to Cabinet and Council. As can
be seen in the table above the general reserve has remained fairly constant over the period
and at the end of 2015/16 represented 5.1% of net revenue expenditure. Whilst
comparisons can be difficult because each authority faces its own particular set of
circumstances and risks, some comparisons are published based on the number of day’s
turnover covered by unallocated reserves. Based on 2014/15 data, the average for Wales
was 10 days turnover is covered by unallocated reserves, with a range from 3.4 days to
17.2 days. The figure for Monmouthshire was 14.3 days. The level of the general reserve
will continue to be reviewed annually as MTFP work progresses, to ensure is it sufficient
for the level and type of risks to which the authority is exposed.

Earmarked reserves

These reserves are a means of building up funds to meet known or predicted requirements.
Reviews completed by WAO in 2012 and more recently by the Welsh Government,
identified varying levels of disclosure and clarity about the purpose, use and expected
timing of use of earmarked reserves as part of the statutory accounts process. In MCC
information is regularly provided throughout the year on earmarked reserves as part of

Page 363



3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

budget forecasting reports, at budget setting stage through reports to Cabinet and Council
as well as in the Statement of Accounts.

However, given the last review of reserves was carried out in 2012 and the depletion of
reserves in recent years, a further review is considered timely as the Authority faces the
next four years of continued austerity. In terms of comparisons with the rest of Wales the
average level of earmarked reserves as a percentage of gross revenue expenditure in
2014/15 was 12% with a range of between 3% and 24%. The comparative figure for
Monmouthshire was 6% and so at the low end compared to others. Whilst comparisons
may be useful, the levels of reserves required in any given authority needs to be assessed
against the situation of that Authority, as each authority will be a in a different place in
relation to the risks they face. The attached review supplements the information provided
during the year relating to reserves and focuses on developing clearer protocols for the
management of reserves.

As reserves have been used extensively and there is less opportunity to replenish reserve
balances as budgets get tighter, ear marked reserves need to work harder to help the
Authority through the financial challenges and risks it faces. Reserves should not be used
to plug the funding gap and fund on going expenditure, they are needed to help with one
off costs to invest and transform services so that they can operate within a reduced
financial envelop. Having clearer protocols and responsibility assigned can help to ensure
the return from the use of reserves in the future is maximised. The benefits/return from
any reserve investment should be monitored as the investment takes place and reviewed
once the investment is complete to ensure the expected benefits have been delivered and
to gain the learning for future investment decisions.

Given the forecast use of earmarked reserves that was being projected through the
2015/16 budget monitoring reports, Cabinet has already approved some changes in
practice to ensure that earmarked reserves remain adequate for the Medium Term
Financial Plan:

o Increase workforce planning and redeployment to reduce the need for reserves to
cover redundancies
o Any request for reserve funding must first explore whether existing budgets, or

external funding sources can be used for the proposal accepting this may require a
change in priorities if existing budget are used

o Use of reserves to implement budget savings must use the saving first to repay the
reserve
o IT investment bids will need to be considered in the core capital programme when

the IT investment reserve is extinguished, this may necessitate displacing some of
the core capital programme allocations depending on the priorities agreed

This has now been incorporated into a more thorough review of the protocols that should
be attached to each earmarked reserve and is included in the Policy on Earmarked
Reserves in Appendix 1 attached. If action is not taken to slow down the use of ear marked
reserves through tighter protocols, consideration will increasingly need to be given to
budgeting to replenish reserves or including in the base budget requests that would
normally have been funded by reserves, both of which will increase the resource gap in
the MTFP and the need for a greater extent of revenue savings and upheaval to services.

Page 364



10.

As redundancy and pension strain costs have become an on-going feature of today’s
financial climate, school based redundancies are now contained in the base budget.
Including other general redundancy costs as part of the base budget needs to be
considered as part of the MTFP.

. REASON

A review was necessary due to:

Faster than expected use of earmarked reserves over the last 4 year period

Limited opportunities to replenish reserves from in year underspends as budgets get tighter
Limited opportunities to redistribute reserves as various reserves are used up

Risks around the on-going austerity measures, the projected gap in the MTFP and the lack
of clarity on the Authority’s future business model or longer term financial plan to respond
to this, notwithstanding the work recently commenced around ‘Future Monmouthshire’.
Huge commitment of capital resources to Future Schools

The need for reserves to work harder

The need to consider some issues as requiring base budgets rather than continued funding
from reserves e.g. redundancy costs are unfortunately going to be an ongoing feature of
expense for the Authority every year.

To comply with best practice regarding the management and review of earmarked reserves
and the Financial Procedure Rules within the Authority’s constitution.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

None arising directly from this report. The governance arrangements outlined in this report
are designed to ensure that the appropriate resource implications are considered when
earmarked reserves usage or replenishment is being considered.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS:

The Future Generations process has been completed and the form is attached at Appendix
2

SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING IMPLICATIONS:
NONE

CONSULTEES:

SLT

Monitoring officer

Audit Committee on 30" June 2016

BACKGROUND PAPERS: Nil

AUTHOR: Joy Robson
Page 365



11. CONTACT DETAILS:

Tel: 01633 644270
E-mail: joyrobson@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 366



APPENDIX 1 — Policy on Earmarked Reserves

1

Definitions of Reserves

Local Authorities in following proper accounting practices, provide a Movement in
Reserves Statement as part of the Local Authority financial statements. This statement
presents the movement in the year of reserves of the authority analyses into ‘usable’ and
‘unusable’ reserves.

This Policy is concerned with Usable reserves (in particular earmarked reserves) rather
than Unusable reserves. Unusable reserves arise out of the interaction of legislation and
proper accounting practice, either to store revaluation gains or as adjustment accounts to
reconcile accounting requirements driven by reporting standards to statutory requirements.
These reserves are not resource backed and cannot be used for any other purpose.

Usable reserves are referred to as cash-backed reserves that can be used to fund future
expenditure.

The General Reserve is a working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash
flows to avoid unnecessary temporary borrowing and to provide a contingency to cushion
the impact of unexpected events or emergencies.

However some usable reserves are subject to restrictions on their usage. These include:

Schools Reserve — for use in schools as governed by the Fair Funding Scheme for
Financing schools,

Capital Grants Unapplied — this will relate to specific capital projects and will be restricted
by the grant terms and conditions

Capital Receipts — this holds the proceeds from the sale of assets and in accordance with
regulations these funds can only be used for capital purposes or set aside to repay debt.
From April 2016 WG has provided additional flexibilities for Local Authorities to spend
100% of capital receipts from asset sales on the revenue costs of reform projects. Given
the pressures on the capital programme, the need to minimise the cost of debt in the
revenue account, and the fact that MCC has an earmarked reserve for invest to save
projects it is unlikely that capital receipts will be drawn on for this purpose.

Earmarked reserves are a means of building up funds to meet known or predicted
requirements and it is the protocols around the management of these reserves that are
considered below:

Holding Earmarked Reserves

The Council recognises the need to hold and maintain earmarked reserves but also
recognises the opportunity cost of holding balances as reserves. For this reason it is
important to set out clearly, and regularly review the framework through which reserves

Page 367



are managed. Management of reserves is a key tool of the Council’s overall MTFP and
financial resilience over the longer term, key to this is the need to ensure resources are
effectively focussed on priorities and risk can be managed.

Building Earmarked Reserves

The Head of Finance is authorised to annually review and recommend the appropriate
level of earmarked reserves during the budget setting process and at the end of the
financial year, taking into account all relevant factors at the time of the review.

Earmarked reserves may be established, as part of setting the budget for a specific
purpose to be used in the future. Or they can be created at the end of the financial year if
the final outturn allows the creation of a new reserve or the addition to an existing reserve.
Responsibility for the approval of adding funds into earmarked reserves is for Cabinet.

Using reserves

Earmarked reserves can only be used for the purpose for which they were created.
Cabinet, however, can change the use of the earmarked reserves if is so wishes or move
funds between reserves. Earmarked reserves must have Cabinet approval before they
are used for a specific purpose, unless there is another specific mechanism for approval
as outlined in the table below.

Any request for reserve funding must first explore whether existing budgets, or external
funding sources can be used for the proposal accepting this may require a change in
priorities if existing budget are used

The Cabinet, on the recommendation of the Head of Finance, can eliminate or reduce the
funds in the earmarked reserves by adding them to the general reserve.

Earmarked reserves can only be used once and so should not be held to fund on-going
expenditure.

The use of reserves is reported to members on a quarterly basis as part of the budget
forecasting reports to Cabinet and Select committees.

Risk Analysis
Any recommendations on the planned use of reserves needs to take account of the

significant risks facing the council. This analysis forms part of the final budget report to
Cabinet and Council and includes consideration of the following:

o Future funding gap and continuing low settlements

o Pressures arising from such issues as increasing demand, new and changing
legislation, changes in the wider economy and hard to predict events.

o Grant funding streams being reduced or stopped at short notice

o Capital receipts and other income streams not being achieved

o Saving proposals not being delivered and increased demand on services leading to
overspends

Page 368



o Uncertainty in financial markets and the wider economy
o Factors affecting partners working closely with the Council

Rationale for keeping each reserve
Earmarked reserves have been set up where there has been a need to set aside resources

for a specific future purpose. The purpose of each earmarked reserve is detailed below.
Utilisation of these reserves is under the control of the Cabinet and will require approval

by it, unless specifically stated otherwise.

Earmarked Rationale for Funds needed Protocol — procedures for
reserve reserve management and control of
the reserve
Invest to To fund service Investment in projects | Business case justification of one
redesign redesign to either of an transformational | off investment, must relate to
improve the service, nature delivery of MTFP and the strategic
generate income or direction of the Authority as agreed
reduce costs by Council. Must also provide
evidence of exploring the use of
existing budgets first. Any savings
made as a result of the investment
must first repay the reserves
wherever possible.
IT To invest in ICounty strategy Business case submission through
Transformation information Digital by default the Digital Board
reserve technology in support | Big data
of the organisations
outcomes and
generation of
improved service
efficiency, income
generation or cost
savings.
Capital To finance future Considered when Approval to use this funding source
Investment capital expenditure reviewing the capital is a part of the capital budget and
reserve MTFP, or to fund capital MTFP process.
unexpected Any extraordinary overspends or
overspends outside of | new schemes requiring funding via
the Authority’s control. | this reserve would require Council
approval as this would be a change
to the capital budget.
Priority To fund additional To address specific Business case will need to
Investment one off investment in | issues which are demonstrate the outcomes to be
reserve the Authority's agreed | preventing the achieved and how the results of the
priorities Authority from investment will be measured either
achieving its specific by quantitative or qualitative KPIs
priorities. Examples
include investment to
improve standards in
schools, and
investment to improve
the outcomes for
looked after children,
and vulnerable adults.
Redundancy To meet redundancy | Link with People Business case for changes to
and Pensions costs and commuted | Strategy, need to posts/structures which leads to
Reserve payments for early minimise call by associated redundancy or pension
strain costs needs to demonstrate

Page 369




retirements over a
maximum of 5 years.

improved workforce
planning

ongoing saving as a result, to be
paid for if possible from savings
arising from the restructure.

Insurance and
Risk

To meet excesses
and administration

Actuarial valuation of
outstanding insurance

Insurance cost centre managed
through year to minimise impact on

Management costs on claims claims on a periodic reserve.
reserve against the Council, basis (normally every
to provide cover on 4 years). Annual Business case assessment of risk
self-insured risks and | assessment of management activity to
contribute to risk changes to claims demonstrate investment reduces
management experience claims activity/exposure
activities
Treasury Originally created The Future schools Treasury forecasts as part of the
Equalisation from rescheduling programme more than | MTFP are provided and assessed
reserve discounts and premia, | doubles the existing for volatility over the medium term.

intended for use
under the concept of
prudence to permit a
long term view to be
taken of treasury
decisions.

capital programme
and the Authority’s
funding requirements.
Timing of receipts and
interest rate forecasts
all introduce a risk
which is increased in
size due to the
program

Use of the reserve will form part of
the MTFP process to smooth out
the impact of cashflows on the
revenue account.

Capital Receipt

Securing capital

In accordance with the

Estimate of requirement to use this

Generation receipts is a vital Asset management funding mechanism should be
Reserve element of the plan and County farms | made when the approval for selling
Authority's capital strategy. the asset is sought, so generally
investment strategy. captured as part of the Capital
Improving the final budget/MTFP process and
disposal value by approved through Cabinet and
investment, either in Council. Enhancing expenditure
the fabric of the asset needs to demonstrate increased
or by proper disposal value/return on investment.
expertise ensures the
Council obtains the
best possible value
for surplus assets.
Current accounting
regulations are such
that investing in
disposal must be
taken against the
revenue account and
these costs cannot be
fully offset against the
ultimate capital
receipt. The reserve
has been established
to finance such
expenditure.
Museums To receive donations | To purchase exhibits Must demonstrate exhibit is of
Acquisitions to purchase exhibits value to enhancing overall visitor
Reserve for display to general experience, of relevance to the
public enhancing the area and enhancing existing
visitor experience to collection
the County
Elections To fund local A constant A budget to undertake the local
Reserve elections every 5 contribution to the election needs to be estimated as

years

reserve is budgeted
every year so that in

part of the budget process in the
year prior to the election taking

Page 370




year 5 there is
sufficient funds to pay
for the local election

place. This will enable a budget to
be included in the revenue account
and funded from reserves in an
election year.

Grass Routes
Buses Reserve

To replace buses

Originally grant funded
and income derived
from scheme is ring
fenced, so that any
balance on the cost
centre at the year end
is carried forward in
this account.

Requirement to fund replacement
vehicles or purchase new vehicles
needs to be supported by a
business case reviewing the
options available.

Youth Offending
Team

The Authority has
lead authority status
for administering
funds on behalf of
other partner
organisations in
relation to this
function.

Under and
overspends on the in-
year running costs
associated with the
service are
accommodated
through holding a
balance in reserve.

Protocol for maintaining and using
the reserve for this partnership
should be included in the
agreements in place which govern
the operation of the partnership. In
the absence of such agreements,
recommendations to use or
contribute to the reserve should be
agreed amongst the partners

Building Control
trading reserve

Building Control
enforces the Building
(Local Authority
Charges) Regulations
2010 to ensure
building construction
is carried out in a safe
manner alongside the
control of dangerous
structures and
demolitions. The
Regulations state that
a "break even"
position should be
maintained on the
chargeable trading
element and an
earmarked reserve
for surpluses and
losses be set up and
reviewed over a
suggested three year
rolling basis.

Under and
overspends on the in-
year running costs
associated with the
chargeable service
are accommodated
through holding a
balance in reserve.

Use of the reserve to invest in the
service would require a business
case to demonstrate the benefits to
be derived and the specific
measures to assess success.

Outdoor
education
centres trading
reserve

The Authority has
lead authority status
for administering
funds on behalf of
other partner
organisations in
relation to this
function.

Under and
overspends on the in-
year running costs
associated with the
service are
accommodated
through holding a
balance in reserve.

Protocol for maintaining and using
the reserve for this partnership
should be included in the
agreements in place which govern
the operation of the partnership. In
the absence of such agreements,
recommendations to use or
contribute to the reserve should be
agreed amongst the partners

CYP Maternity
cover

An SLA between the
Authority and the
schools regarding the
volatility of costs
associated with
maternity cover
requires that any

Under and
overspends on the in-
year position are
accommodated
through this reserve.

Expenditure on maternity cover will
be monitored through the year, in
accordance with the SLA between
the schools and the Authority.

If the reserve is insufficient to cover
an overspend position the balance

Page 371




underspends are
carried forward in a
reserve and
overspends funded
via the reserve

would need to be funded through
the revenue account.

This policy will be subject to periodic review and approval by Cabinet.

SUMMARY POSITION

2011/12 | 2012/13 | 2013114 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17

Account Cat2(T) BIF BIf ClF ClF ClF ClF
Council Fund
Council Fund (Authority) 6,184,035 | 6,184,035 -7,061,035| 6,971,903 -6,970.143| -6,970143
School Balances 1,024,684 | 1024684 172684 924672 940,802 [ 940802
Sub Total 1208718 | -7.208718| -7.833718| -7.896,574| -7.910944| -7.910944
Earmarked Reserves:

Invest to Redesign 3563989 | 32284441 2208161 -1483522| -1298155| -639,943
IT Transformation -1,601,65 | -1,382573| 046,845 639.840| -826,835| 577,974
Insurance and Risk Management 717576 | -1522.862 | 1,968,388 | 2,250,388 | 1,236,396 -1,236,3%6
Capital Receipt Generation Reserve BI8707| -33803| -244246) 460342 -322.361| -226,985
Treasury Equalisation Reserve 1124693 [ 1124693 | 1124693 -990024] 990,024 -990,024
Redundancy and Pensions Reserve 135,056 | 622319 744243 599936 | -1,274256| 681,735
Capital Investment Reserve 2,1216% | -1592,413| -1,636,445( -1,620,945| -1,264599|  -645,363
Priority Investment Reserve 4063902 | -3449640| -2468935| -1973294] -1120069| -416,155
Service reserves
YG33 Museums Acquisitions Resene 51303 59798|  -59798|  -H9798| 6,760 56,760
YG33 Elections Resene -108,183 -33,183 58,183 83,183 108,183 -33,183
YG33 Grass Routes Buses Resene 246502 2594411  -186,528| 160,615  -139,702  -144,702
Restricted Use Reserves 519212 H02443|  5047T|  -6h8423|  -631,287(  -631,287
Total Earmarked Reserves -18,040,309 | -15,661,446 | -13,248,776 | -10,980,311 | 9,268,628 | 6,280,507
TOTAL GENERAL And EARMARKED RESERVES -25,249,028 | -22,870,165 | -21,082,495 | -18,876,885 | -17,179,572 | -14,191,452

Page 372




Gl

Qo sir fynwy

monmouthshire

Joy Robson

Phone no:01633 644270

Name of the Officer completing the evaluation

E-mail:joyrobson@monmouthshire.gov.uk

using them.

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal

To review the level of earmarked reserves held by the Council at the
end of 2015/16, the rationale for each reserve and the protocols for

Name of Service

Finance

13/06/16

Date Future Generations Evaluation form completed

.b
Q

Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.

o

V)
N
»Well Being Goal

o

How does the proposal contribute to this
goal? (positive and negative)

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A prosperous Wales

Efficient use of resources, skilled,
educated people, generates wealth,
provides jobs

Clearer protocols for the use of significantly
reduced balances on earmarked reserves and the
use of a business case to apply for reserve usage
will help ensure efficient use of resources.

Monitoring and evaluation of the use of earmarked
reserves will enable an assessment of the benefits
of any investment of reserves and capture any
learning for future use of reserves.

A resilient Wales

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and
ecosystems that support resilience and
can adapt to change (e.g. climate
change)




3 | O "\RV\ 1

How does the proposal contribute to this What actions have been/will be taken to
goal? (positive and negative) mitigate any negative impacts or better

Well Being Goal . e
contribute to positive impacts?

A healthier Wales

People’s physical and mental
wellbeing is maximized and health
impacts are understood

A Wales of cohesive communities
Communities are attractive, viable,
safe and well connected

A globally responsible Wales
Taking account of impact on global
well-being when considering local
social, economic and environmental
gvellbeing

DA Wales of vibrant culture and
gthriving Welsh language

Julture, heritage and Welsh language
;hre promoted and protected. People
are encouraged to do sport, art and
recreation

A more equal Wales

People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or
circumstances

2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?



Sustainable Development
Principle

How does your proposal demonstrate you have
met this principle?

What has been done to better to meet this
principle?

Balancing
short term
need with

Long-term long term and

The revised protocols will help ensure that earmarked reserves
can be sustained over the medium to longer term to assit with
developing a future business plan within the work on Future
Monmouthshire.

The business case for applications for reserve usage will
ensure the FGA principles are considered when
applications are made

planning for

the future

Working

together with

other

Iy partners to

deliver

objectives

Involving
those with an
interest and

seeking their
Invalverment [
views

Putting
resources
into

preventing
problems
occurring or getting worse

Prevention

Positively
impacting on
people,

Integration ecohomy and
environment

and trying to benefit all three




Page 376



3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the
evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.

Business case applications will assess the impact on the protected characteristics of any earmarked reserve usage

Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What has been/will be done to
Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?
Age
Disability
Gender

reassignment

Marriage or civil
Epartnership

" T |

=8

Race
@

eligion or Belief

Sex

Sexual Orientation

Welsh Language




4. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on important responsibilities of Corporate Parenting and
safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities? For more information please see the guidance
http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safequarding%20Guidance.docx and for more on Monmouthshire’s Corporate

Parenting Strategy see http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx

Business case applications will assess the impact on the Corporate parenting and safeguarding of any earmarked reserve usage

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on safeguarding and
corporate parenting

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on safeguarding
and corporate parenting

What will you do/ have you done
to mitigate any negative impacts
or better contribute to positive
impacts?

Safeguarding

orporate Parenting

oY Nal "\RV\ 1
U{jt; ovtd

5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

The use of business cases and review of the impact of the reserve investment before and after the investment happens, will mean that in future there will
be data available to assess the FGA, safeguarding and protected characteristic implications of any earmarked reserve application.



http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safeguarding%20Guidance.docx
http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx

6. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

7. Actions. As a result of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if

applicable.

What are you going to do

When are you going to do it?

Who is responsible

Progress

Ensure the business case/
application form for requesting
reserve usage asks for
B:onsideration of the FGA,
Rsafeguarding and protected
$haracteristic implications

Immediately

Head of Finance

Forms developed for
consultation with Performance
team

~
O

~r1eo ARy g
O

8. Monitoring: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will
evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review.

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on:

and at year end.

Through the periodic budget forecasting reports, at budget setting




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3h

SUBJECT: WELSH CHURCH FUND WORKING GROUP
MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: 6t July 2016

DIVISIONS/WARD AFFECTED: All

1. PURPOSE:

1.1  The purpose of this report is to make recommendations to Cabinet on the
Schedule of Applications for the Welsh Church Fund Working Group meeting 1
of the 2016/17 financial year held on the 16" June 2016.

2. RECOMMENDATION:

2.1 We resolved that the following grants be awarded as per the schedule of
applications.

SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS CONSIDERED 2016/17 — MEETING 1.
(1) Caldicot Town Team requested £1,000 to assist in the purchase of branded

market stall equipment to increase footfall and attract new customers to the
market.

Recommendation — £500 was awarded to assist in purchasing branded specialised
equipment to assist this community group.

(2)  Goetre Village Hall requested £500 to assist in the replacement of non compliant
doors for disabled access.

Recommendation - £500 awarded to assist in provision for disabled access to the
community facility.

3) Penterry Church Field & restoration Committee requested £2,500 to assist in
the refurbishment of church roof.

Recommendation - £1,250 awarded to assist in the renewal of the church roof. .

(4)  John Richard Buck requested £618 towards the cost of adapting a kitchen for
disability.

Recommendation - £618 was awarded on the deemed need for this updated facility.

5) Friends of ‘Our Lady of Tintern’ requested £1,000 to assist in staging a non
charging 'Sungvespars' event at Tintern.

Recommendation — awarded £250 for assistance in organising this popular community
event.

Pags:381



(6) Emma Thomas requested £150 to assist in attending a residential National
Scout and Guide Orchestra residential course

Recommendation - £150 awarded to assist in helping the candidate achieve a
qualification that can be used to benefit others in the community.

(7) Methodist Church Abergavenny requested £1,000 to assist in the funding and
refurbishment of the damaged portico / frontage of the Church and improve
drainage in church grounds.

Recommendation — £1,000 was awarded so essential repairs could be carried out to
the church.

(8) St Mabli’'s Church Abergavenny requested £5,000 towards the cost of fitting a
disabled toilet and new kitchen along with associated groundwork’s.

Recommendation — further information to be requested in regard to other proposed
funding streams on this large project before an award is considered

(9) Nelson Garden Preservation Trust requested £1,000 to assist in the Preservation
of the garden buildings and provision of a disabled toilet.

Recommendation - £500 was awarded towards the cost of this community group
project.

(10) Olivia Bartieri requested £450 towards being able to compete at the British Youth
Fencing Championships.

Recommendation - £200 has awarded to help in providing support for the
Monmouthshire resident to compete at national level

(11) United Reformed Church, Abergavenny required £1,000 to help in replacing
three large windows at the front of the chapel in need of repair / replacement

Recommendation - £500 was awarded for assistance in the upkeep of the church after
consideration of other financial resources available.

(12) H.E. Lawton requires assistance (£750 request) in funding the fees for a
placement at the Royal Academy of Music to study for a Masters in Performance
from September 2016.

Recommendation - £500 was awarded to further the educational achievement of a
Monmouthshire resident

(13) Raglan Parish Church requested £1,000 to assist in the installation and the
equipment of a kitchenette in the Vestry of the Church

Recommendation - £1,000 awarded towards updating catering facilities for the users of
the church

Pager a2 -



2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

KEY ISSUES
The nature of the request in each case is set out in the attached schedule.
REASONS
A meeting took place on Thursday, 16" June 2016 of the Welsh Church Fund
Cabinet Working Group to recommend the payment of grants as detailed in the
attached schedule and to confirm administrative procedures for the financial year
2016/17.
County Councillors in attendance:

County Councillor D.L. Edwards (Chairman)

County Councillor B. Strong (Vice Chairman)

County Councillor D. Evans

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

D. Jarrett Central Finance Officer
P. Harris Senior Democracy Officer

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

It was agreed that declarations of interest would be made under the relevant
item.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Councillors A. Webb

ELECTION of CHAIR

We elected County Councillor D. L. Edwards as Chair
APPOINTMENT of VICE CHAIR

We appointed County Councillor B. Strong as Vice-Chair.

CONFIRMATION OF REPORT OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting of the Welsh Church Fund Working Group held on
Thursday 10th March 2016 were confirmed as an accurate record and signed by the
Chairman.

4.

i?ESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
A total of £6,718 was allocated at meeting 1 of the Welsh Church Fund

Committee. The remaining budget of £31,191 is available for distribution in the
2016/17 financial year.

Page 383



SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS:

There are no equality or sustainable development implications directly arising
from this report. The assessment is contained in the attached appendix.

CONSULTEES:

Senior Leadership Team

All Cabinet Members

Head of Legal Services

Head of Finance

Central Management Accountant

BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Welsh Church Fund Schedule of Applications 2016/17— Meeting 1 (Appendix 2)
AUTHOR:

David Jarrett — Senior Accountant — Central Finance Business Support

CONTACT DETAILS

Tel. 01633 644657
e-mail: daveJarrett@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Pagerafid -


mailto:daveJarrett@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Gl

Qo sir fynwy

monmouthshire

Name of the Officer
D Jarrett

Phone no: 4657

E-mail: davejarrett@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal

To assess the Grant Allocation Processes of the Welsh Church
Fund for the meeting of the Welsh Church Fund Working Group
on the 16" June 2016.

Name of Service

Finance

Date Future Generations Evaluation
16" June 2016

'EJ Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together

8 with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.

)
ﬁNeII Being Goal

faYaYa)

How does the proposal contribute to this What actions have been / will be taken to
goal? (positive and negative) mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A prosperous Wales

Efficient use of resources, skilled,
educated people, generates wealth,
provides jobs

Positive in relation to developing the skills
and proficiencies of applicants

A resilient Wales

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and
ecosystems that support resilience and
can adapt to change (e.g. climate
change)

No impact

A healthier Wales

People’s physical and mental
wellbeing is maximized and health
impacts are understood

Positive in regard to providing equipment to
assist in the preservation of life




Well Being Goal

How does the proposal contribute to this

goal? (positive and negative)

What actions have been / will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A Wales of cohesive communities
Communities are attractive, viable,
safe and well connected

Positive in relation to connecting the
community and its constituents

A globally responsible Wales
Taking account of impact on global
well-being when considering local
social, economic and environmental
wellbeing

Positive in relation to social well-being.
Helping the environmental well-being of the
community through preservation of history.

A Wales of vibrant culture and

thriving Welsh language

Culture, heritage and Welsh language
UZre promoted and protected. People
pare encouraged to do sport, art and
Rrecreation

Positive in relation to the promotion of culture
in the community

Positive impact on the education of individuals in
regard to recreational achievements

more equal Wales
eople can fulfill their potential no
Phatter what their background or
circumstances

faVYaYal "\RV\ 1

No impact

2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?

Sustainable Development

How does your proposal demonstrate you have

met this principle?

What has been done to better to meet this
principle?

Principle
Balancing short
term need with
long term and

. planning for the

Long-term  ERifiI(=

Not applicable to Welsh Church Fund Trust




Sustainable Development
Principle

How does your proposal demonstrate you have
met this principle?

What has been done to better to meet this
principle?

Working
together with
other partners
to deliver
Collaboration objectives

Not applicable to Welsh Church Fund Trust

Involving those
with an interest
and seeking

their views
Involvernent

Not applicable to Welsh Church Fund Trust

Putting
resources into
preventing
problems
occurring or

Not applicable to Welsh Church Fund Trust

S Positively
impacting on
people,

. economy and
AIEEERERE environment

and trying to benefit all three

Not applicable to Welsh Church Fund Trust




3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the

evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.

Protected
Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive

impacts?
Age No impact No impact
Disability Positive impact in the provision of disabled | None
facilities
Gender No impact No impact
reassignment
Marriage or civil No impact No Impact
-ghartnership
® -
<§2Race No impact No Impact
GReligion or Belief Positive impact in relation to the None
88 preservation and accessibility of religious
services
Sex No impact No impact
Sexual Orientation No impact No Impact

Welsh Language

No impact on Welsh Language

No impact on Welsh Language




4. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on important responsibilities of Corporate Parenting and
safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities? For more information please see the guidance
note http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Equality%20impact%20assessment%20and%20safeguarding.docx and for more

on Monmouthshire’s Corporate Parenting Strategy seehttp://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on safeguarding and
corporate parenting

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on safeguarding
and corporate parenting

What will you do/ have you done
to mitigate any negative impacts
or better contribute to positive
impacts?

Safeguarding

Not applicable

Corporate Parenting

Not applicable

5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

roc_abov
O

0
O

p I he evidence and data used for the assessment of each applicant to the Welsh Church Fund is supplied by the applicant upon submission of
Rtheir application. The data and information supplied or subsequently requested is used to form the basis of the Committees’ decision on
d/vhether to award a qualifying grant.



http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Equality%20impact%20assessment%20and%20safeguarding.docx
http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx

6. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

The grant aid supports and highlights the positive effect that decisions the Welsh Church Fund Working Group have on the applicants
funding requests from Voluntary Organisations, Local Community Groups, Individuals and Religious Establishments.

All awards are made in the belief that the funding is utilised for sustainable projects and cultural activities that benefit individuals,
organisations, communities and their associated assets.

All grants are awarded within the Charitable Guidelines of the Trust

7. Actions. As a result of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if

applicable.
T
é;’ What are you going to do When are you going to do it? Who is responsible Progress
(
doAward grants July 2016 Welsh Church Fund On target
q
O

8. Monitoring: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will
evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review.

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on: The Payment of grants awarded to the successful applicants




T6E abed

10

11

12

13

WELSH CHURCH FUND - APPLICATIONS 2016/17 APPENDIX 2
MEETING 1 -16th June 2016
ELECTORAL Signed by APPROX DATE .
ORGANISATION DIVISION Councillor REQUEST | DECISION NATURE OF REQUEST COST Received D of | Comments
NEW APPLICATIONS
AWAITING DECISION £ £ £
Assistance required to purchase branded market stalls to increase specialised These stalls are available for local Traders, Community Groups and for use
West end' markets and improve footfall and trade. at local events such as Caldicot Carnival
Caldicot Town Team Caldicot D Evans £1,000 £500 £8,098 18/03/16 Yes
Funding assistance for the replacement of external doors to conform to disabled Present doors do not conform to disabled access requirements to allow all
access requirements and building regulations residents to attend functions and meetings at the hall.
Goetre Village Hall Goetre Fawr Brian Jones £500 £250 £2,920 18/03/16 No
Repairs required to Church roof Work required, slate repairs, repointing, lead flashing repairs, guttering and
=) Church. Field & R i fascia boards.
enterry thurch, Field & Restoralion | o4 arvans A Webb £2500 | £1,250 £9,240 | 18/03/16 | Yes
Committee
Assistance to providing an adaptive kitchen for a disabled ex-serviceman that is This application has been made with the assistance of a caseworker from
hn Rich « _ blind in one eye and suffers from a cataract in the other. Also, suffers from patrtial the SSAFA charity (Lifelong Support for our forces and their families)
John Richard Buc Priory J Prosser £618 £618 hearing, arthritis and other medical problems. £2,326 22/04/16 No
Funding assistance required to help in staging a non charging 'Sungvespars' event This event is an annual event that is funded through voluntary donations and
at Tintern. refreshment sales on the day.
Friends of 'Our Lady of Tintern' St Arvans A Webb £1,000 £250 £1,035 22/04/16 Yes
Assistance required to attend a residential National Scout and Guide Orchestra
Emma ThomaS POI"[Skewet'[ P. Fox £150 £150 residentia| course in Stourbridge in July 2016 £470 25/04/16 No
_ _ Assistance required to repair and refurbish the damaged portico / frontage of The building is Grade ii listed built in 1829
Methodist Church - Abel‘gavenny Grofield D Edwards £l,000 £1,000 Church and improve drainage in church grounds £34,117 03/05/16 Yes
defer for |Assist in fitting a disabled WC and kitchen including associated ground and utility The Hall is used by several community groups for Concerts , meetings etc.
St Mabli's Church Hall, Abergavenny |Llanover S Jones £5,000 ULF supply work £112,575 03/05/16 No  |and is staffed exclusively by volunteers.
The Nelson Garden Preservation _ Funding required to assist in the Preservation of the garden buildings and provision The purpose of the trust is to preserve the historic fabric of the gardens for
Trust Mitchell troy G Burrows £1,000 £500  |of a disabled toilet. £100,228 | 10/05/16 NO  |the local community and visitors to Monmouth
o _ _ Assist and provide assistance for the applicant to compete at the British Youth Olivia is currently ranked 2nd in Wales for girls in the Youth Category and
Olivia Bartelli Rogiet L Guppy £450 £200  |Fencing Championships. £458 11/05/16 NO  |has represented Wales at international level
United Reformed Church, Llantillio Funding required to help replace three large windows at the front of the chapel in
Abergavenny Crossenny R EdwardS £1,000 £500 need Of repair / replacement £15,432 17/05/16 No
_ _ Requires assistance in funding the fees for a placement at the Royal Academy of The applicant has been studying her B. Mus fro 4 years and this is the final
Harriet Elizabeth Lawson Devauden B Greenland £750 £500  |Music to study for a Masters in Performance from September 2016 £22,120 | 10/05/16 No |year in September
Late Application
_ _ _ _ _ _ This kitchen will provide up to date facilities for the wider use of the church
Raglan Parish Church Raglan P. Jones £1,000 £1,000 |Assistance to install and equip a kitchenette in the Vestry of the Church £6,000 08/06/16 NO  land community.
Deferred Applications
SUB TOTAL Meeting 1 £15,968 £6,718
Meeting 1 Award 6,718
TOTAL AWARDED FOR 2016/17 TO DATE 6,718
BUDGET 2016/17 31,400
BALANCE B/F TO 2016/17 £6,509
Monmouthshire's Allocation for 2016/17 £37,909

REMAINING BALANCE

£31,191




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3a End of Year Performance 2015/16 on Whole Authority Safeguarding
	1a. Appendix on corporate safeguarding End of Year Performance 2015-16 - Cabinet

	3b Proposed changes to the whole authority safeguarding approach
	2a. Draft Safeguarding Strategy - Cabinet
	2b. Safeguarding Strategy Programme of Activities - Cabinet
	2c. Whole Authority Safeguarding Coordinating Group Constitution and Terms of Reference - Cabinet
	2d. Future Generations Evaluation Form - Cabinet and Council

	3c Annual Report of the Statutory Director of Social Services
	7a. Annual Report of the Statutory Director of Social Services CABINET REPORT - 240615

	3d Welsh Language Monitoring Report 2015/16
	3a. MCC WL_Annual Mon Rep WLB 201516

	3e Proposals for the future provision of public car parks by MCC
	5a. car park order - appx 1a - June '16
	5b. car park draft order - appx 1b - junel'16
	5c. car park order Statement_of_Reasons_2016 - appx 1C
	5e. consultation feedback summary - appx3
	5f. Copy of car park -amended order - June '16 - appendix 4 -V2
	5g. car park forecast- original july '14 - appendix 5
	5h. Petition - parking fees at Byefield Car Park
	5i. new car park order - FGE form - June '16

	3f Management of commercial obstructions in the highway
	6a. MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION POLICY july 2016
	6b. MANAGEMENT OF COMMERCIAL OBSTRUCTION july 2016
	6c. ABOARD ACTIVITIES POLICY july 2016
	6d. FLYPOSTING ACTIVITIES POLICY july 2016
	6e. COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES POLICY COMPLETE july 2016
	6f. COMMUMITY ACTIVITIES POLICY COMPLETE july 2016
	6g. Commercial Obstruction in the Highway - FGE form - July '16

	3g Review of Earmarked Reserves
	11a. Future Generations Evaluation review of reserves

	3h Welsh Church Fund Working Group
	4a. The Welsh Church Fund Working Group Meeting 1 EQIA 6th July 2016
	4b. Appendix 2 WCF Working Group  Meeting 1 - 16th June 2016


